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Looking back over 2016, the acquisition of Tumi has undoubtedly been the year’s most
significant event, and | believe we have further strengthened the position of the Company
in the global travel lifestyle marketplace. Our business is more resilient, having become a multi-
brand, multi-category and multi-channel business, and along with a broad international spread, the
Company has many axes on which to develop in the future. The world will carry on traveling, and
this will drive our business forward. | am fully confident that we end this year even better equipped
to meet the needs of our customers on the move, with a full array of brands, exciting and extensive
product ranges, the most comprehensive distribution channel coverage and in almost every country
of the world.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is the world’s largest travel luggage company, with
a heritage dating back more than 100 years. The Group is principally engaged
in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and
computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective
cases for personal electronic devices throughout the world, primarily under the
Samsonite®, Tumi®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®,
High Sierra® ~ Gregory® ~ Speck® ~ Lipault® &
Kamiliant® AR H B EREREN@E

Speck®, Lipault® and Kamiliant® brand names as well as other owned and
licensed brand names.

THE COMPANY’S STRATEGY

N R B R B

The Company aims to increase shareholder value through sustainable revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow generation.

In order to achieve this objective, the Group has adopted the following principal strategies:

RATREEEBAIFARSERBARRARELEEARESREURARREE - REIUER - FEECHRALT EZFRE

Continue to develop the Company into
a well-diversified multi-brand, multi-
category and multi-channel luggage,
bag and accessories business.

BESARREZERSEBEZME
ZEMBRIRZOHRENZ T
TEEEREEE -

Leverage the Company’'s regional
management structure, sourcing and
distribution expertise and marketing
engine to extend the strong Tumi brand
into new markets and penetrate deeper
into existing channels.

BREARANMEEERE KB
DIHBEAMBAREHB > HRK
B Tumi SR E TS - LINRZ
BRARE °

D u

e Tactfully deploy multiple brands to

operate at wider price points and
broader consumer demographics in
each category.

NEERBHIEYEEZETRER
HImE  BEEZHERM -

Increase the proportion of net sales
from the Group's direct-to-consumer
channel by growing direct-to-consumer
e-commerce net sales and through
targeted expansion of its bricks-and-
mortar retail presence.

BRETTEREREEENEFHE
SRR TR ERTE
X0 BNMASEEEERHEEER
BIEHEFRENLE -

Continue to invest in the Group's core
brands with sustained R&D spending
to produce lighter and stronger new
materials as well as exciting and
innovative new products, supported
by effective marketing spend to drive
awareness among consumers.

B AR O MR - F R
BHORARIRA - PR R R B ERED
FTRA R AR S| DRI E R - R
BRCERE AN - MR mEEHE
EZENHEE -

Intend to increase the Company’s
investment in marketing in 2017 to
support global expansion of Tumi
and to continue to drive visibility for
Samsonite, American Tourister and
other brands.

FFEIR 2017 FIE AR BN E 7
HMEE  AZETumi B &2 3kE
B - AREBEIRFIAE - American
Tourister } B b im pEAIAIE JE o

Execute on market opportunities for
recently acquired brands to further
diversify the Group’s product offering
into non-travel categories.

EIRAHYIE R T IS S - BR
FERBEERER  SARENERE
BEZT -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016,
THE GROUP’S:

Net Sales
HERE

Net sales increased to a record level of US$2,810.5 million, reflecting an
increase of 17.3% on a constant currency basis!” from the previous year.
US Dollar reported net sales increased by 15.5%. Excluding amounts attributable
to the Tumi brand, which was acquired on August 1, 2016, net sales increased by
US$145.9 million, or 6.0%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported
net sales increased by US$102.2 million, or 4.2%.

Operating profit increased by US$31.0 million, or 10.0%, on a constant
currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported operating profit increased by
US$22.3 million, or 7.2%, to US$331.2 million. Excluding acquisition-related
costs, operating profit increased by US$68.3 million, or 21.5%, on a constant
currency basis and US Dollar reported operating profit increased by US$59.6
million, or 18.8%.

USZBI03

The Group's reported effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2016
was 0.8%, or an income tax benefit of US$2.2 million. During 2016, the Group
purchased an annuity to liquidate its principal defined benefit pension plan in the
U.S. In conjunction with this liquidation, the Group recorded a US$56.8 million tax
benefit related to the derecognition of deferred tax liabilities that originated from
contributions to the pension plan in prior years. In addition, the enacted future tax
rate in Luxembourg decreased by 321 basis points to 26.0%, which resulted in a
favorable tax adjustment of US$8.8 million to the Group's deferred tax liabilities.
Excluding these tax benefits, as well as the tax benefit resulting from the Tumi
acquisition-related costs, the Group's effective tax rate was 27.8%.

Profit for the year increased by US$63.0 million, or 29.0%, on a constant currency
basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported profit for the year increased by US$57.8
million, or 26.6%, to US$274.8 million. Excluding the tax-effected acquisition-related
costs and the tax benefit realized on the pension plan liquidation, the Group's profit
for the year increased by US$28.5 million, or 12.8%, on a constant currency basis
and US Dollar reported profit for the year increased by US$23.4 million, or 10.5%,
despite a year-on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily
associated with the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.

Profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$63.2 million, or 32.0%,
on a constant currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar reported profit
attributable to the equity holders increased by US$58.0 million, or 29.4%, to
US$255.7 million. Excluding the tax-effected acquisition-related costs and
the tax benefit realized on the pension plan liquidation, the Group's profit
attributable to equity holders increased by US$28.7 million, or 14.1%, on a
constant currency basis and US Dollar reported profit attributable to the equity
holders increased by US$23.6 million, or 11.6%, despite a year-on-year increase
in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated with the Senior
Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.

Adjusted Net Income®, a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$44.4 million, or
20.5%, on a constant currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported Adjusted Net
Income increased by US$41.0 million, or 18.9%, to US$257.9 million, despite a year-
on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated with
the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.
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Adjusted EBITDAM$485 6
KFEEBITDA "
million BBX7T

e Adjusted EBITDA“, a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$91.5 million, or
22.8%, on a constant currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar reported
Adjusted EBITDA increased by US$84.5 million, or 21.1%, to US$485.6 million
due to the inclusion of Tumi. Excluding the Adjusted EBITDA attributable to
Tumi, US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA was US$421.3 million, an increase of
US$20.1 million, or 5.0%, and by 6.8% on a constant currency basis.

e Adjusted EBITDA margin®, a non-IFRS measure, increased to 17.3% from
16.5%. Excluding the Adjusted EBITDA and net sales attributable to Tumi,
Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.6% from 16.5%.

0 ting Cash FL
SRS o $$260.8

million BEEB%x

e The Group generated US$260.8 million of cash from operating activities during
2016 compared to US$259.0 million during 2015, an increase of US$1.7 million
from the previous year, despite a US$34.2 million increase in cash paid for
interest, primarily associated with the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance
the Tumi acquisition, and the US$37.3 million increase in acquisition-related
costs recorded in 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of US$368.5 million and outstanding financial debt of US$1,939.7
million (excluding deferred financing costs of US$64.3 million), putting the Group
in a net debt position of US$1,571.2 million.

°  On March 15, 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors recommended that a cash
distribution in the amount of US$97.0 million, or approximately US$0.0687 per
share, be made to the Company’s shareholders, a 4.3% increase from the US$93.0
million distribution paid in 2016. The distribution will be subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2016 ACQUISITION:

*  On March 3, 2016, the Group entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the
“Merger Agreement”) with Tumi Holdings, Inc. (“Tumi Holdings”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to acquire Tumi Holdings for a cash consideration
of US$26.75 per outstanding common share of Tumi Holdings, without interest.
The acquisition was completed on August 1, 2016. The total consideration paid
under the Merger Agreement amounted to approximately US$1,830.8 million. As
a result of the completion of the acquisition pursuant to the Merger Agreement,
Tumi Holdings became an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. On
December 30, 2016, Tumi Holdings was merged with and into its wholly-owned
subsidiary Tumi, Inc., with Tumi, Inc. surviving the merger.

Tumi is a leading global premium lifestyle brand offering a comprehensive line
of business bags, travel luggage and accessories. The brand is consistently
recognized as “best in class” for the high quality, durability, functionality and
innovative design of its products, which range from its iconic black ballistic
business cases and travel luggage synonymous with the modern business
professional, to travel accessories, women's bags and outdoor apparel.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHHE

The financial results of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 ~ AEER2016F 12831 B REZEZ B FFEOIHE
include Tumi Holdings' financial results from August 1, 2016, the date of acquisition, ~ #&8ETumi Holdings 520168 A 1 H (W HH) &
through December 31, 2016. HE2016F 12 A31 HHBI IS EE -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A 31 HLEFE

Percentage Percentage increase
increase (decrease) excl. foreign

(decrease) currency effects!”
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per share data) EICRD) HERE H B
(ABBETLES - SRETERIN) 2016 2015 Bt EMCHD) B
Net sales HEFHE 2,810.5 2,6432.5 15.5% 17.3%
Operating profit FS S | 331.2 308.9 7.2% 10.0%
Operating profit excluding £ 2m A (R Uk AR 2 377.4 317.7 18.8% 21.5%

acquisition-related costs®? FA)@
Profit for the year FE A 274.8 217.0 26.6% 29.0%
Profit attributable to the equity holders A¥#EREA A FE(L % H] 255.7 197.6 29.4% 32.0%
Adjusted Net Income® KRR R A 257.9 216.9 18.9% 20.5%
Adjusted EBITDA® 4R FAEE EBITDAW 485.6 401.2 21.1% 22.8%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin® TR EBITDAR X O 17.3% 16.5%
Basic and diluted earnings per share SR EA K #5552 F| 0.181 0.140 29.3% 32.1%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share] (ABIRETZ31)
Adjusted basic earnings per share® & FAEREFIEARZEF]© 0.183 0.154 18.8% 20.1%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (ABIRET231)
Adjusted diluted earnings per sharel® (&A= GATESE ZF| ©
(Expressed in US Dollars per share] (AERETZ235) 0.182 0.154 18.2% 20.1%
Notes 7% :

)
(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
REFESEELTINEERIFIFRSHMBIETA - ANRAFEUE B 2T EERBEFOTHIEXGFEMRS -

Acquisition-related costs amounted to US$46.2 million and US$8.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

BE 20169 % 2015912 A31 AL FEMBIBRBERAD B4 2 BEXTRIBEXT °

Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges, along with their respective tax
effects, that impact the Group’s US Dollar reported profit for the year, which the Group believes helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties a better
understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance. See “"Management Discussion and Analysis - Adjusted Net Income” for a reconciliation from the Group’s profit for
the year to Adjusted Net Income.

EHBEFWARIEIFRS ISt BT A - AEMBFEFARKBURTRBROENOSENA - BAREBEURETEMIRSEACERESSNRBYE)NTE A%
BREEBEDRFOME REERAMBBENZERE2H T RASENBEEMBRE - BAAKEF ST SEHEFRANERE - F20 [EREIHEDT — &
RN

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization l“AdJuSted EBITDA"), a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges and credits
and certain other non-cash charges, which the Group believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying trends of
its business. See "Management Discussion and Analysis - Adjusted EBITDA" for a reconciliation from the Group's profit for the year to Adjusted EBITDA.

RETFIR - I8 - B REHATHS AR ([SHAZEBTDADRIFIFRSHBHTETA - EMBRZHERA - BEAREEURETEMIFRSBANTE  AEEHEEHE
BARE2E T BELERRIEEBOMEEBY - ARASEFORT ECTEEEBTDANYRR - F2H [EREHNHENN — LHEEBITDA] -

Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.

&I EBITDARE R AIF IFRSHIEFT B TA - SAEIHEE EBITDARRASHE FEFHEATS ©

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share, both non-IFRS measures, are calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the year.
BPBRGEEALEERNARIFIFRSHMIETETA - DUSHBEFRABRAFANEITEIMNO IR F AR B E S EAS -

The Group has presented certain non-IFRS measures in the financial highlights — REER L X W BEHE—& 255 TIEIFRS B 55+
section above because each of these measures provides additional information 2T H - JE LS B2 TRARMEZEM -
that management believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding EIEEHEEBFRESSNE  EE REMAE
of the Group's operational performance and of the trends impacting its business ~ EF|ZEEF 2H T HAEEAOLE R RFEH
to securities analysts, investors and other interested parties. These non-IFRS ¥R « AXATEHEMILEIEIFRSHSEIET
financial measures, as calculated herein, may not be comparable to similarly ~ BERMA[EEAARFERAEUGZOFE TR
named measures used by other companies, and should not be considered as  fTLLE - B TEWAR A A EAEBAFELHEE Wa
measures comparable to IFRS measures in the Group's consolidated income =R IFRSH it E TRLLEMEIET A « JEIFRSH
statement for the year. Non-IFRS measures have limitations as an analytical tool ~ BstE2LEEA—BHMIABHBRIE - TER
and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, an analysis ~ fRABI R IR EREBEIRIEIFRS T2 MBI 75 %
of the Group's financial results as reported under IFRS. BERIDHT ©

/
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2016 SHEFE
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The Shwayder Trunk Manufacturing Company was
founded over a century ago by Jesse Shwayder in 1910 in
Denver, Colorado, U.S.A., and the Samsonite brand was
first introduced in 1941. Today, Samsonite is the world’s
largest travel luggage brand, offering sophisticated and
high quality products to the seasoned business and
leisure traveler at mid-market price points.

Shwayder Trunk Manufacturing Company A 19104
EEERBRZ NI HTH Jesse Shwayder Bl »
M Samsonite (FFEE) mERIA 1941 BAAGER 5K »
FEEREMEANRTERE  RERBBEM KRR
FRABHNBEERNTIRERKTHEER °

The Samsonite brand recorded net sales increases in
all regions during 2016: Asia (+7.1%'"), North America
(+1.8%"), Europe (+7.8%") and Latin America (+18.9%'").

FEBERIERN 2106 FEEEITRGHE FRER ¢

T (+7.1%") ~ 62 (+1.8%") ~ BN (+7.8%") R AL T
EM(+18.9%") »

1,948.8

Increase )
g +5.9%

WExcluding foreign currency effects. MFREE 5872 o

~ THE WORLD'S
LARGEST
TRAVEL

r

2IREABIRTTHE m b
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Looking at the performance of the business
excluding Tumi, we were pleased with the
6.0% growth in constant currency net sales,
and also on the same basis, the increase
in Adjusted EBITDA of 6.8% to US$421.3
million. This was a creditable result, given
overall economic conditions, and better
than we might have expected at the half-
year point.

MR Tumi BNERKREMS  BEEY
HEFENERG0% MEHBEE  £F
HEBITDAT R 6.8% F421.3HEET
EEBEBRATHEZESUIRSATEN
¥E BHTERMAFEREFHTES - )

\ﬁ%%@%é
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Tc’mo‘{fy Charles Parter

Chairman E/#




It is encouraging that the second half of the year has been much stronger than the first half, especially in the
two major markets of the U.S. and China. | believe we have further strengthened the position of the Company

in the global travel lifestyle marketplace.
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Looking back over 2016, the acquisition of Tumi has undoubtedly been the year's most
significant event, and arguably the most important acquisition in our company’s 100-
plus year history. As our overall results incorporate a first, part-year contribution from
Tumi, my intention will be to look more closely at what has been going on in organic
terms, as this will give a clearer picture of the Company’s progress. It is encouraging
that the second half of the year has been much stronger than the first half, especially
in the two major markets of the U.S. and China. Whilst 2016 did not present currency
challenges on the scale of 2015, there remained some US Dollar appreciation
pressures in a number of key trading territories. Also, although consumer sentiment
improved during the course of the year, 2016 has been an uneven year in terms of
global growth and demand, due to a mixture of political and economic uncertainty.
Against this backdrop we are very satisfied with the results of the business, and |
believe we have further strengthened the position of the Company in the global travel
lifestyle marketplace.

The headline results are as follows: including Tumi, net sales advanced by 15.5%
to a record US$2,810.5 million and the Group's reported profit attributable to
the equity holders increased by 29.4% to US$255.7 million. However, this profit
measure was significantly affected by, on the negative side, the costs of the
Tumi acquisition, and on the positive side by a one-off tax benefit arising from
the liquidation of the Group’s U.S. pension plan. Adjusting these out, the profit
increase came to 11.6%.

In line with previous years, | would like to draw attention to the two performance
measures of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income. These are non-IFRS
measures, but they do, in our view, present a clear picture of the underlying
performance of the business, as they adjust out various one-off charges (in the
main related to acquisitions) and certain other non-cash charges and adjustments
unrelated to operating performance. Adjusted EBITDA increased by 21.1% to
US$485.6 million, and Adjusted Net Income advanced 18.9% to US$257.9 million.
The latter figure is especially noteworthy as it is struck after the financing costs of
the Tumi acquisition.

Looking at the performance of the business excluding Tumi, we were pleased with
the 6.0% growth in constant currency net sales, and also on the same basis, the
increase in Adjusted EBITDA of 6.8% to US$421.3 million. This was a creditable
result, given overall economic conditions, and better than we might have expected
at the half-year point. As Ramesh points out in his report, China, our second
largest market, which was flat in terms of net sales growth in the first half, turned
in constant currency growth of 11.4% in the second half. We did see evidence of an
uptick in the North American business as well: sales were up 7.2% in the second
half which helped the overall increase for the year to 3.8% after a virtually flat first
half. Whilst Speck has contributed substantially to this improvement, mainly due to
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We are now focused on a strong growth path for Tumi for the future, not only in the U.S., which will benefit
from increased investment in marketing spend, but also in several key markets in Asia, where we are much
ahead of original plans to take back direct control of distribution. In summary, Tumi is not just a case of an

acquisition going according to plan, but one that is performing better than we expected in most departments.
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new product introductions, there is also evidence that the retail store comparative
growth is moving into positive territory. Whilst there remains considerable turmoil
in the market as some of our larger wholesale customers adapt to the shift toward
e-commerce, the range of initiatives we have in place for the coming year gives us
confidence that we will see a better climate for growth in 2017.

There were headwinds in three other markets in Asia in 2016: South Korea is one
of the most intensively and successfully operated markets for the business, and
this exposes us particularly to changes in overall consumer sentiment and general
economic conditions. These have been a challenge, but we do expect some
improvement in the coming months. Secondly, uncertainty in India around the
withdrawal of high denomination notes from circulation has not helped another
market where our shares are high: again, we have a number of initiatives that
should see advances in 2017. Finally, although Hong Kong is not one of the largest
Asian markets, the loss of tourist throughput in a predominantly retail market
has been painful for profitability in 2016. As the year closed we did see signs of
some stabilisation, and therefore prospects for next year should be better. It's also
worth pointing out that as a result of slower growth and channel shifts in the two
key markets of China and South Korea, we've seen a halt to the previously strong
growth track of American Tourister in Asia. We have subsequently made changes
to our marketing and product strategy which we believe will have a positive impact
in the near term.

In Europe, we have made good advances with the American Tourister brand partly
as a result of increased marketing investment, but also due to an exciting and
dynamic product range. As Ramesh reports, we have had a good year in Europe
barring the impact of terrorist attacks in France, which has been slow to return
to normal levels of activity. The previous acquisitions of Rolling Luggage and
Chic Accent have made a good contribution to net sales and the bottom line, and
also shifted our business more in the direction of direct-to-consumer. Whilst we
are not yet seeing any substantial impact in terms of profits earned in our Latin
America business, this has been a year of very exciting progress: excluding the
impact of foreign currency translation, our net sales increased by 17.4%. Chile
remains the bedrock of the business, but we are seeing some real movement in
the key markets of Mexico and Brazil, driven by the retail expansion and further
development of the American Tourister brand.
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As Ramesh notes in his report, our strategy to diversify the Group in terms of
brands, product categories and distribution channels is making good progress.
Although 2016 was a blip for American Tourister in China and South Korea, the
brand continued to record double-digit growth in many markets, and other brands
- Lipault, Gregory, Speck and Hartmann, all grew in excess of 15.0%. We are
also particularly excited by the homegrown mass market brand Kamiliant, which
has gone from a virtually standing start to US$21.9 million in net sales during
2016. Turning to product categories, constant currency net sales for the non-
travel categories increased by a combined 9.1% (excluding Tumi), faster than
the core travel category at 4.5%. As we invest more behind the business, casual
and accessories categories, and also as a result of the shift towards direct-to-
consumer, we expect to see further progress in this area. Finally, in terms of
distribution channels the march of e-commerce continues unabated: it now
represents almost 10.0% of the business, and we are accelerating our efforts to
get in front of this curve. There is much to do, and in order to attain full potential
of our brands in this channel, we know that investments may need to be made
whose return is uncertain in the short term, but we will do what it takes to build a
#1 position globally in this channel. We do know that our bricks-and-mortar estate
needs to work hand-in-hand with e-commerce, and we intend to further invest in
direct-to-consumer channels. 2016 was not an exciting year for retail comparative
sales (+2.5% on a constant currency basis), but with an improving outlook in some
of our bigger markets, we expect better results in the coming year.
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This brings me to Tumi. There has been no better example of Ramesh'’s leadership
skills in bringing the two companies together, and then applying his knowledge
of the business to make the right calls in terms of people and structure. It is
true that Samsonite and Tumi share many common values, and this has helped
the integration process. But only the relentless attention to detail, and careful
assessment of people and plans, has led us to the truly exciting position we
find ourselves in today. As we have mentioned on several occasions, this is a
real complementary fit, and at an operating level | believe we have made good
decisions in maintaining a centrally-driven brand and design function, delivered
by regions in terms of sales and marketing. Tumi is an outstanding business,
and | would like to thank the team there for being willing to work so well with
the Samsonite people to get the best long-term result for the Group. Of course,
there has been some initial restructuring, but we are now focused on a strong
growth path for the future, not only in the U.S., which will benefit from increased
investment in marketing spend, but also in several key markets in Asia, where
we are much ahead of original plans to take back direct control of distribution. In
summary, Tumiis not just a case of an acquisition going according to plan, but one
that is performing better than we expected in most departments.

One of the goals of our management team is to maintain a clear and consistent
strategy, with appropriate flexibility in execution, and Ramesh recapitulates this
in his report. As | mentioned earlier in this commentary, 2016 has been another
year of sluggish overall trading conditions, and this has led us to a conservative
stance on marketing spend. In fact, we did manage to increase our spend by 10.1%
in constant currency terms to US$143.8 million, although as a percentage of net
sales it fell slightly from 5.4% last year to 5.1% of net sales in 2016. It is worth
reiterating that we consider investment behind our brands as a key long-term
driver of growth, and after a couple of years in which spend has had to be trimmed,
it is our intention to raise the percentage in coming years, and our plans for 2017
fully take this into account.

One important goal of our management team is generating strong operating cash
flow, subject, of course, to meeting our overall growth objectives. In 2016 overall
operating cash flow was US$260.8 million, compared to US$259.0 million in 2015,
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despite a US$34.2 million increase in cash paid for interest and the US$37.3
million increase in acquisition-related costs associated with the Tumi acquisition.
Net working capital efficiency of 12.6% was a slight deterioration on 2015, mainly
due to the addition of Tumi, but this will be subject to various improvement
initiatives in coming months. At year-end, the Group had a net debt position of
US$1,571.2 million and following the refinancing of the Senior Credit Facilities
in February 2017, our cash interest cost is expected to fall by approximately
$16.0 million in the first year. Clearly the reduced financing costs will contribute
positively to post-acquisition earnings per share.

Your Board continues to follow a progressive dividend policy that broadly links
payments to increases in earnings. During the year, profit attributable to the equity
holders [excluding the non-cash income tax benefit recognized upon liquidation of
the U.S. pension plan) rose by 3.3% on a constant currency basis. The Board has
therefore recommended a cash distribution to shareholders for 2017 of US$97.0
million, an increase of 4.3% on the previous year, and representing approximately
US$0.0687 per share.

As ever, Ramesh and his dedicated executive team have turned in a performance
of great resilience in the face of indifferent trading conditions, and have laid the
foundations for further long-term growth. | would like to thank them all, and
especially the finance team under Kyle Gendreau, who has done so much to get
a complex transaction completed, but also on obtaining the most favourable
financing terms possible. | would like to pay tribute also to the work of Fabio
Rugarli, who returns to Italy after running our European business successfully
since 2009, and to wish Arne Borrey, his successor, every good fortune. During
the year, we also said goodbye to Miguel Ko, who stepped down from the Board
as a result of growing commitments in his home territory of Singapore. He has
been a genuine heavyweight in the Boardroom, and we will miss him. However, it
is with great pleasure that we welcome Jerome Griffith, the former CEO of Tumi,
and currently of Lands’ End. His credentials in terms of industry knowledge and
successful operating performance need no further elaboration.

In closing, | would note that 2016 was a year of political surprises, and 2017 may
be no different. However, the world will carry on traveling, and this will drive our
business forward. | am fully confident that we end this year even better equipped
to meet the needs of our customers on the move, with a full array of brands,
exciting and extensive product ranges, the most comprehensive distribution
channel coverage and in almost every country of the world.

/OQA};)/" //V,-r—/

Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman
March 15, 2017

Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2016 | ¥15 B

2608 HEEIT - M2015FA259.088ET < /F
BEBEESWEER12.6% * BEENR 20159 - TEHRN
IS Tumi BB - BRPISTEAR R B A SHET LB R
LITEME - TR AREFEEAI1L712BEE
T R2017E2 AETREEERBERER - &K
MHEPEFENRSFENTERIH160EET -
BR - BMEXATEEEENREEERNTREA
MEEEERE -

AAREFSERERINENRBBER - #HIRA
BNABRLER - FR @ KETEEEE - Rig
58 ARE(R S F (MBR 38 B ZBUR RS 71 &I AR
MIEREATEHIEE)IER33% AMtEESEZ
BL2017 FRAMREIEL 97.0 8 BEITeF8R490.0687
ETHWREDIK - RZAT—FERL3% °

—INUAZE - Ramesh MR /0 8 1 RO T B X FE 1 4

T ECRNEMRERERDBANIFES - AR
REIPERETF TIREERE o RAZILRG® AN
71 5 RIRZ Kyle Gendreau R ESBEMBI B E B - &
MERDIBNTH —IBEMNR S - MARILIERS
FHEHEENRE EM o Fabio Rugarli B 2009 4
RS EBMMBUNET - BEKFREEEX
- ARAGRUEE - AR AT A Arne Borrey —
PNER] - FA - BT REEUREEBR] - KERE
N E h E B E B PSR EE S SR -
BESEFGANME —BREEE - HMEES
fth oo SR - FRAPI D85 - B Tumi M AT ETTER AR
R Lands’ End WUFTEAEEL Jerome Griffith 1A
BMNESE - RETEAB LK EERE T HED
BRBAZERM

R AAEL—IR - 2016 FBUBFRMS ATEN

R 0 2017 SFEVIERIRAT RN — 8 - AT - 2
R R B R - BB BRI TS B R AT
R o RAFENHEIE Zliiﬁﬁiﬁi&—*ﬁﬂ?@

FEH  SEMAABREZENMERSY] - S AHE
BEEmERES M&%¥&¥%tﬁtMI%
NEEEDHEEER  MERPTEMENEZK -

3
Timothy Charles Parker
201743 A 15H

BR AT 2016 FER

13



. , ‘Aop'S
o Off”
STATEMENT

?Tﬁ%ﬁﬁ% t¢ 2016 was Samsonite’s most momentous

year since our IPO in 2011. The acquisition
of Tumi Holdings, Inc., announced on March
4, 2016, was successfully completed on
August 1, 2016. This fulfilled a long-held
ambition for Samsonite. Tumi, with its
leading position in the premium business
bagandtravelluggage segments,isaperfect
strategic fit and a truly transformational
acquisition for Samsonite.

2016 FRFFEEH2201NFERABABEN
REEEN—F - R2016F3FLHEMW
Tumi Holdings, Inc. W EIHE R 2016 F

\ 8A1EHIER - ER T HEBHBE -
\ Tumi B E R B RS E R T 555
M EE o EH L RRPSELS

B R—ERESHEMAEMLOKE - 99

4
& A

_u.-a,

»; —1|_—r*r”L
I_

iﬁ 7| A

H.J"

= “'—L,'.Cl'l

i

1k
L
A

Ramesh
Dwgau'ma/ Tainwala

Chief Executive Officer

TR



2016 was Samsonite’s most momentous year since our IPO in 2011. The acquisition
of Tumi Holdings, Inc., announced on March 4, 2016, was successfully completed
on August 1, 2016. This fulfilled a long-held ambition for Samsonite. Tumi, with
its leading position in the premium business bag and travel luggage segments,
is a perfect strategic fit and a truly transformational acquisition for Samsonite.
This transaction further strengthens our multi-brand platform to drive long-term
growth across a broad range of price points and product categories, following the
strategy first initiated eight years ago by our Chairman, Tim Parker.

Including amounts attributable to the Tumi brand, the Group's net sales increased
by US$420.4 million, or 17.3%, on a constant currency basis, to a new record of
US$2,810.5 million. North America (+26.8%"), Europe (+16.1%") and Asia (+9.9%")
all benefited from the inclusion of Tumi. The Group’s US Dollar reported net sales
increased by US$378.0 million, or 15.5%, reflecting the negative foreign currency
translation impact due to the continued strength of the US Dollar.

The Group's reported profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$58.0
million, or 29.4%, to US$255.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Excluding the tax-effected acquisition-related costs and the income tax benefit
realized on the liquidation of the Group's principal defined benefit pension plan in
the U.S., the Group's reported profit attributable to the equity holders increased by
US$23.6 million, or 11.6%, despite a year-on-year increase in interest expense of
US$40.5 million, primarily associated with the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to
finance the Tumi acquisition.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income are two key performance indicators
that we focus on. We believe these two non-IFRS measures, which eliminate the
effects of a number of costs, charges and credits (such as the costs related to the
Tumi acquisition) and certain other non-cash charges along with their respective
tax effects, provide a much clearer indication of the underlying performance of our
business. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group’s reported Adjusted
EBITDA increased by US$84.5 million, or 21.1%, to US$485.6 million, while reported
Adjusted Net Income increased by US$41.0 million, or 18.9%, to US$257.9 million.
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The Group’s reported profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$58.0 million, or 29.4%, to
US$255.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. Excluding the tax-effected acquisition-related costs
and the income tax benefit realized on the liquidation of the Group’s principal defined benefit pension plan in
the U.S., the Group’s reported profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$23.6 million, or 11.6%,
despite a year-on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated with the Senior

Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.
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Note i

(1) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local

currency results.
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The Group generated strong operating cash flow of US$260.8 million in 2016
compared to US$259.0 million recorded in the previous year, despite a US$34.2
million increase in cash paid for interest, primarily associated with the Senior
Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition, and the US$37.3 million
increase in acquisition-related costs. Net working capital efficiency came in at
12.6% for 2016, a slight deterioration from the 11.8% level achieved the year before
as a result of the current year impact from the addition of Tumi. We are confident
that this will improve in the near term with the completion of systems and back
office integration of Tumi. During the year, we raised US$2,425.0 million in Senior
Credit Facilities (including a US$500.0 million revolving credit facility which remains
largely undrawn] to complete the acquisition of Tumi, had capital expenditures of
US$69.6 million, and paid US$93.0 million in cash distributions to shareholders.
As of December 31, 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$368.5
million and US$1,939.7 million in financial debt outstanding, putting the Group in
a net debt position of US$1,571.2 million. On February 2, 2017, we completed the
refinancing of the Senior Credit Facilities, which is expected to result in a reduction
in cash interest payments in the first full year after refinancing of approximately
US$16 million. I'd like to extend a big thank you to our CFO, Kyle Gendreau, for
making this possible.

Even though the acquisition of Tumi has been an important driver for the Group’s
performance in 2016, our organic business also delivered solid growth. Excluding
Tumi, the Group's net sales on a constant currency basis increased by US$145.9
million, or 6.0%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$102.2 million,
or 4.2%. All of our regions delivered solid constant currency net sales growth in
2016, despite the challenging economic and trading environment. In particular, our
two largest markets, the U.S. and China, both saw US Dollar reported net sales
growth pick up in the second half of 2016 after a relatively soft first half. Excluding
the Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Tumi, reported Adjusted EBITDA was US$421.3
million, an increase of US$20.1 million, or 5.0%.

Excluding the Tumi brand, Asia, our largest region, delivered a constant currency
net sales increase of 4.0% in 2016. US Dollar reported net sales increased by
2.3% to US$969.8 million. The growth was driven mainly by Japan and Australia,
where constant currency net sales rose by 12.2% and 21.5%, respectively. Both
countries saw good growth in the core Samsonite and American Tourister brands,
augmented by further expansion of our acquired brands (Gregoryin Japan and High
Sierrain Australia). China, our largest market in Asia, had a slow start to 2016. Net
sales on a constant currency basis were more or less flat in the first half of 2016
due to shifts in consumers’ channel preferences, with trading conditions especially
challenging in the TV home shopping and department store channels as consumers
continued to migrate online. However, on the back of strong growth of Samsonite
and Samsonite Red in the business-to-business and e-commerce channels, China
enjoyed a strong rebound with constant currency net sales increasing by 11.4%
in the second half of 2016, and by 5.3% for the full year. | have no doubt that over
the medium to long-term, China will continue to be the locomotive for the region’s
growth. This growth was partially offset by an 11.5% constant currency net sales
decline in Hong Kong (which includes Macau) due to lower Chinese tourist arrivals.
However, the situation in Hong Kong has shown early signs of stabilizing, with
constant currency net sales down only 7.4% in the second half of 2016 compared to
the 15.6% decline recorded in the first half. South Korea saw constant currency net
sales dip by 1.0% due to weak consumer sentiment, while India was affected by the
government’'s demonetization initiative and recorded a 0.5% decrease in constant
currency net sales for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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North America (which includes the United States and Canada), had a slow first half
to 2016, with US Dollar reported net sales increasing by 0.2% (0.5% on a constant
currency basis). However, sales growth improved in the second half. Excluding
Tumi, US Dollar reported net sales increased by 7.2% (7.3% on a constant currency
basis) in the second half of 2016. As a result, excluding Tumi, US Dollar reported net
sales increased by US$30.4 million, or 3.8%, and net sales on a constant currency
basis increased by US$31.8 million, or 3.9%, to US$841.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016. This increase was primarily driven by the Speck brand, which
saw its US Dollar reported and constant currency net sales in North America
increase by 14.9%, lifted in part by new product launches relating to certain new
electronic devices that were introduced during the year, together with robust
growth in net sales of protective phone cases as a result of significantly expanded
distribution. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumiand Speck brands in North
America, net sales on a constant currency basis and on a US Dollar reported basis
increased by 2.0% and 1.9%, respectively, driven primarily by increased sales of the
Samsonite, American Tourister and Lipault brands.

Europe was once again the Group's star performer. Despite challenging economic
conditions, the region delivered solid top-line growth, with net sales up by 10.3%
year-on-year on a constant currency basis, while US Dollar reported net sales rose
by US$40.0 million, or 7.3%, to US$584.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2016, excluding Tumi. Europe’s strong performance was driven by both Samsonite
and American Tourister, whose constant currency net sales increased by 7.8% and
21.9%, respectively. Excluding Tumi, American Tourister comprised 13.1% of the
Group’s 2016 net sales in Europe, up from 11.7% the previous year, as a result of
the brand’s successful region-wide rollout. Excluding net sales attributable to the
Tumi brand, with the exception of France, where net sales were down 6.2% due to
the negative effects of terrorist attacks earlier in 2016, all of our major markets
in Europe reported solid constant currency growth: Russia (+23.2%), the United
Kingdom (+21.3%), Germany (+15.7%), Spain (+12.2%) and ltaly (+11.3%).
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Latin America also delivered strong growth considering the negative economic

impact on the region from continued weakness in commodity prices and volatile
currencies. Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Latin
America for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased by 17.4%, year-on-year.
This was spearheaded by double-digit net sales growth of Samsonite, American
Tourister and the women'’s handbag brand Secret. US Dollar reported net sales for
the region increased by US$10.1 million, or 8.4%, to US$130.6 million, due to the
continued strength of the US Dollar. Chile, our largest market in Latin America with
45.6% of the region’s net sales, recorded constant currency net sales growth of
6.8%. Mexico, our number two market with 31.7% of the region’s net sales, recorded
strong constant currency net sales growth of 26.0%. Net sales in Brazil increased
by 25.5% on a constant currency basis, driven by continued retail expansion. The
Group has been historically under-represented in Brazil and continues to invest in
the country to drive future net sales growth and market share gains.

Most of our brands performed well in 2016. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by 5.9% year-on-year, with all regions
reporting constant currency net sales increases of the brand: Asia (+7.1%), North
America (+1.8%), Europe (+7.8%) and Latin America (+18.9%). US Dollar reported net
sales grew by 3.9% to US$1,548.8 million. On a constant currency basis, American
Tourister saw good growth in Europe (+21.9%), North America (+3.1%) and Latin
America (+98.5%), yet this was offset by a 7.3% decline in Asia due to lower sales in
China and South Korea, where constant currency net sales were down year-on-year
due to shifts in consumers’ channel preferences. The overall result was a slight
decrease in American Tourister constant currency net sales of 1.0% in 2016. US
Dollar reported net sales of the American Tourister brand decreased by US$17.7
million, or 3.2%, to US$531.5 million. The Group has subsequently made changes
to its marketing and product strategy which it believes will have a positive impact in
the nearterm. The Lipault brand continued to gain good traction in both Europe and
Asia. We have also assumed direct distribution of the brand in North America. As a
result, Lipault's constant currency net sales more than doubled for the year ended
December 31, 2016, and we see good opportunity to leverage the brand’s Parisian
DNA to gain a bigger foothold among female consumers. The Gregory (+22.7%),
Hartmann (+21.4%) and Speck (+15.1%) brands all achieved double-digit top-line
growth in 2016 on a constant currency basis. Excluding foreign currency effects,
High Sierra’s net sales decreased by 2.9%, due to a 13.7% decrease in Asia driven
by a decrease in India, partially offset by a 1.6% increase in North America. In Asia,
the value-conscious, entry-level brand Kamiliant continued to gain traction, with
reported net sales rising to US$21.9 million during the year ended December 31,
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2016, compared to US$2.8 million in the previous year. This strong performance
validated our belief in the vast untapped potential of the entry price segment, and
2017 will see us further expand Kamiliant distribution across Asia.

Excluding Tumi, net sales in the travel category, the Group’s traditional area of
strength, grew by 4.5% year-on-yearin 2016 on a constant currency basis. Country-
specific product designs and locally relevant marketing strategies continued to be
the key factors contributing to our success in the travel category. Excluding Tumi,
constant currency net sales in the casual product category increased by 6.1% on the
back of strong growth of the Gregory and Samsonite brands. Meanwhile, excluding
Tumi, the business product category saw constant currency net sales rise by 3.8%
driven by growth in Asia and Europe, partially offset by a decrease in North America
due to lower sales of protective laptop cases under the Speck brand. Excluding
Tumi, constant currency net sales in the accessories category increased by 26.4%.
This was driven by the combination of an increase in net sales of Speck-branded
protective phone cases together with the full-year impact of sales made through
the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent retail chains that were acquired during
2015. Overall, excluding Tumi and on a constant currency basis, net sales in the
non-travel product categories grew by a combined 9.1%, a product of the Group
investing resources to support the growth of its non-travel business. Among non-
travel products, backpacks clearly represent a significant opportunity for us, and
we will continue to invest to grow this business.

Excluding the impact from the acquisition of Tumi, e-commerce continued to see
the strongest growth among our distribution channels. Excluding Tumi and on a
constant currency basis, total e-commerce net sales increased by 19.7% in 2016,
with net sales to e-retailers (which are included within the wholesale channel)
increasing by 21.5% and net sales in the Group's direct-to-consumer e-commerce
business [which are included within the direct-to-consumer channel) increasing by
17.2%. As a result, e-commerce’s contribution to the Group’s US Dollar reported
net sales rose to 9.6% in 2016 compared to 8.5% in 2015. Excluding Tumi and on
a constant currency basis, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by 4.5%,
while net sales in the direct-to-consumer channel increased by 11.8% year-on-
year. The growth in the direct-to-consumer channel was driven by the addition of
74 net new company-operated Samsonite retail stores in 2016 and the full-year
impact of 162 net new stores added in 2015 (including 31 Rolling Luggage stores
and 30 Chic Accent stores that were added through the acquisition of those two
retail chains in 2015), together with the continued strong growth of the Group's
direct-to-consumer e-commerce business. On a same store, constant currency
basis, retail net sales increased by 0.8% in North America (where constant currency
same store net sales have rebounded from a decline of 4.4% in the first half of
2016 to an increase of 5.2% in the second half of 2016). Europe and Latin America
also recorded constant currency same store net sales growth of 7.6% and 9.4%,
respectively. This increase was partially offset by a constant currency same store
net sales decline of 4.8% year-on-year in Asia due to fewer visitors from Mainland
China to Hong Kong (including Macau) and South Korea, as well as generally weak
consumer sentiment in certain other countries in the region. Overall, the Group
recorded a 2.5% increase in constant currency same store net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

This very encouraging set of results, achieved against a backdrop of currency
pressures and difficult trading conditions in many of our main markets around the
world, is a testament to the effectiveness of our strategy and the strength of our
machine. To reiterate, there are three key drivers for the Group’s long-term growth:
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Today the Tumi business is still mainly concentrated on the U.S. market, with its customers largely hailing
from the finance or consulting industries. Awareness of the brand outside its core markets and customer
groups is very low. To realize the full potential of the Tumi brand will require us building up distribution and

brand awareness.

SROTuMiEBNEBREHTREE TS -
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REFEUMRBANEERER - E2EFH Tumi mEED - RMEFTER/RASERNEREANEE -

our multi-brand, multi-category and multi-channel strategy; our investment in
marketing to support our brands; and our decentralized management structure.
The goal of our multi-brand, multi-category and multi-channel strategy is to build
a well-balanced business around a portfolio of diverse yet complementary brands,
offering our customers a competitive mix of products in both travel and non-travel

categories that are sold through multiple distribution channels. With the Tumi

brand joining the Samsonite family, we are now well-positioned to expand our
presence in every segment of the bag and travel luggage market, and are truly well
on our way to achieving our goal of transforming Samsonite from being largely a
single brand, single category travel luggage company, into a multi-brand, multi-
category and multi-channel global travel lifestyle company.

The Tumi acquisition is truly a transformational moment in our hundred-year-plus
history. The loyalty that the Tumi brand enjoys was one of its major attractions for us,
and we continue to be surprised by the intense devotion and pride of the Tumicustomer.
This reinforced our commitment to protect the Tumibrand's unique DNA, taking great
care not to adopt a ‘not invented here” mindset as we carry out the integration. At the
same time, we were pleasantly surprised to find both organizations sharing many core
principles: unparalleled quality, superior functionality and durability, design excellence,
technical innovation and world-class customer service. These factors enabled the
integration to proceed far more quickly and smoothly than we had originally expected,
with initial cost savings from the elimination of C-suite and other redundancies already
being realized. Systems and back office integration are on track to be completed later
this year, which will help us achieve further synergies in areas such as working capital
efficiency. In the five months from the completion of the acquisition on August 1 to
December 31, 2016, Tumi reported net sales of US$275.8 million and Adjusted EBITDA
of US$64.3 million.

Today the Tumi business is still mainly concentrated on the U.S. market, with its
customers largely hailing from the finance or consulting industries. Awareness of
the brand outside its core markets and customer groups is very low, and in certain
important markets like China, almost non-existent. To realize the full potential
of the Tumi brand will require us building up distribution and brand awareness.
On the distribution side, Tumi has been steadily expanding its store network, and
had also acquired its joint venture in Japan in January 2016. We have continued to
execute Tumi’s store roll-out plan, adding nine net new stores in the five months
ended December 31, 2016, to the 202 company-operated stores that we acquired.
We are also actively working to gain control of the wholesale and retail distribution
of Tumi products in key markets around the world. As a matter of fact, we have
assumed direct control of the wholesale and retail distribution of Tumi products in
South Korea with effect from January 1, 2017, and we are making good progress
in our negotiations with Tumi’s distributors in other markets. With control of our
distribution, we intend to leverage the Group’s on-the-ground resources and
market knowledge to further expand Tumi’s presence on the global stage.
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In addition to gaining control and expanding distribution of Tumi products, we
also need to invest in communications and brand awareness, and to that end we
have significantly increased marketing spend for the Tumi brand post-acquisition.
Indeed, we consider our consistent investment in our brands to be the second
key driver of long-term growth. The Group's sizeable marketing spend serves the
dual purpose of helping us both build brand awareness and drive net sales growth
when times are positive, while providing us with a buffer when we are faced with
challenging economic and trading conditions. The Group spent US$143.8 million on
marketing in 2016, an increase of 8.9% compared to 2015. As a percentage of sales,
total marketing spend was 5.1% compared to 5.4% in 2015. On a constant currency
basis, marketing expenses increased by 10.1% year-on-year. The reduction in
marketing spend as a percentage of sales reflects more normalized spending
on the American Tourister brand in Europe following two years of investment to
enhance awareness and drive growth of the brand across the region. Nevertheless,
with our scale and global reach, as well as through our deployment of targeted
and focused advertising and promotional campaigns, we were able to maintain a
high level of awareness for our brands among consumers worldwide. We intend to
increase our investment in marketing in 2017, both in absolute dollar terms and as
a percentage of net sales, partly to support the global expansion of the Tumi brand,
and also to improve our marketing support for Samsonite, American Tourister and
our other brands. This will help us achieve our goal of building sustainable brand
strength and creating intangible value that will pull in the consumer.

Alongside the acquisition of Tumi, another change that is having a profound impact
on our business is consumer’s growing preference for searching and shopping
online. This is evidenced in how the growth in e-commerce has significantly
outpaced our other channels over the last few years: e-commerce’s contribution
has grown from 5.6% of the Group’s US Dollar reported net sales in 2013 to 9.6% in
2016 (excluding Tumi), increasing by a CAGR of 29.0% during that period. Including
Tumi, e-commerce contributed 9.5% of the Group's 2016 net sales. Another
effect from the rapid growth of e-commerce is its widespread disruption to our
distribution partners, including TV home shopping channels in China and South
Korea, and bricks-and-mortar retailers around the world.

There is no doubt that the shift towards e-commerce poses the biggest challenge
that our business has faced in a long time. However, if managed well, this could

also be our biggest opportunity. Indeed, with our portfolio of brands and our scale,

MHEREPHUIINIBEMZEREE  EPEE
ETEEMHEZLTEANE - Z2EASH Tum)
mIERE T - BT E EEAR D 3R INE RS
e EDHEAE  Tumi—ERSERERHAS
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WMATTumiFJERTE - RELE20165F12A31B1ER
& B EBRPIFTKES M) 202 R B & 5 R EE E/F 8%
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TNERIS RAFHER - BEE B 9 837 - FAMIFH SR
AAREERREERETISMENDIE—FHRE
Tumi BT ©
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
ITHRARARRE

There is no doubt that the shift towards e-commerce poses the biggest challenge that our business has faced
in a long time. However, if managed well, this could also be our biggest opportunity. Indeed, with our portfolio
of brands and our scale, Samsonite has the potential to become a significant player in the bags and luggage

e-commerce channel.

HEAEFHEERERRSRMANEEEERK AN RMEE - AW - MENSE - LTFERBEFANKAH
#-BEL BEEMNDBESRAE  FEBEEIRARERITEHRETHERENEERTFEZ— -

Samsonite has the potential to become a significant playerin the bags and luggage
e-commerce channel. To achieve this goal, we intend to increase the contribution
of direct-to-consumer e-commerce by implementing an omni-channel strategy,
ensuring sales on our own brand sites are a direct extension of our bricks-and-
mortar retail operations. At the same time, we aim to maintain a balance through
proactive engagement with both e-retailers and traditional bricks-and-mortar
retailers (who are also building their e-commerce business).

While e-commerce is a global priority for the Group, in view of the varying consumer
preferences and channel dynamics in individual markets, it is still up to each of the
regional presidents and their management teams to drive the business forward.
Our decentralized management structure is perhaps the most important driver of
our long-term growth. This structure empowers our people to make independent
decisions within a broad framework, enabling us to respond nimbly and quickly to
varying challenges and opportunities in individual markets. | am confident that our
experienced and motivated regional and country management teams will continue
to execute as a team and grow our business. | would like to take this opportunity to
thank Tim Parker, our Chairman, for his wise leadership and invaluable counsel. |
would also like to thank my fellow senior management team members, especially
our CFO, Kyle Gendreau, and General Counsel, John Livingston, for their tireless
efforts in making the Tumi acquisition a reality, as well as Rob Cooper who is doing
a great job integrating and growing the Tumi business. A great vote of thanks also
goes to the rest of the senior management team including Lynne Berard, Subrata
Dutta, Roberto Guzman, Frank Ma and Leo Suh for their unwavering camaraderie
and consistently vigorous efforts in navigating the business to deliver a set of
extremely satisfying results in an otherwise difficult trading environment. Lastly,
I'd like to express my appreciation to Fabio Rugarli for his past leadership of the
European business, and to extend a warm welcome to Arne Borrey who has taken
up the role of President, Europe. Fabio will now focus on driving the growth of
the Group's business in Italy and will also play a strategic role in developing new
business initiatives.

After a successful yet challenging 2016, | see more opportunities than risks in 2017 for
our business. With the Tumi brand now a member of the Samsonite family, we have a
credible presence in every segment of the bag and travel luggage markets, allowing
us significantly greater scope to grow our business. The Group’s multi-brand, multi-
category and multi-channel strategy, its consistent investment in marketing and
decentralized management structure have served us well, and we will continue to
rely on these strengths to take our business to the next level in the months and years
ahead. Trading conditions in most markets are showing early signs of improvement.
We are also fortunate that travel and tourism continues to post steady growth. Demand
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for international tourism remained robust in 2016 despite challenges. International Bt R k¥ 404% (UNWTO) &R - 2B IRE AR
tourist arrivals grew by 3.9%" to reach a total of 1,235 million in 2016, according to the 2016 F3E K 3.9%% » & F£iE 1,235 B & AR © 20164F
UNWTQ. Some 46 million more tourists travelled internationally last year compared ~ 2EIRE ABE 2015 F Z M s6 BB AKX - iR
to 2015, and, based on current trends, UNWTQ projects international tourist arrivals B AT#82Y * UNWTO F&RI 2 Bk iR B A BUBH 2017 F 4
worldwide to continue to grow at a rate of 3% to 4% in 2017. Over the long-term, global ~ #EIZ3% E 4% MIERE FF o« RiEME * R 20114F
tourism is estimated to grow by 3.3%% annually from 2011 to 2030, and the worldwide % 2030 F #f » 2 BRIk ¥ £ T8 B FIE R 3.3%
luggage market forecast to grow at an annual rate of 6.1%" between 2017 and 2021, /2017 = 2021 F R - 2HTTHEMHEHE
the foundations for our future growth are solid. With all these excellent opportunities 38K 6.1%% » BEFIHRIIERE FREFEZ AL o
ahead of us, | am sure that - together — we will make our journey forward to build ~ ¥ RR—F RiF#E - AARE - LEHFEL
Samsonite into the "World's Leading Global Travel Lifestyle Company” an invigorating — #%3/1 * IS B BITIER [ §E —FEM 2 BRIk

and rewarding one. ERRAR]  BESARE BME -
A Ao ¢~ = 4

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala TR B,

Chief Executive Officer Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala

March 15, 2017 201743 A15H

Notes #H1
[2)  Source: United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO) World Tourism Barometer, January 2017 Issue.
ERIIOR « B A Bt R BB (UNWTO) : (it kB 2RI (World Tourism Barometer)) + 201748 1 A5 »

(3] Source: UNWTO World Tourism Highlights 2016 Edition.
BERIOR : UNWTO : 2016 F 5k 555 2 (World Tourism Highlights 2016 Edition)) ©

(4)  Source: Global Luggage Market 2017-2021, Technavio, 2016.
BRHOR : Technavio (2016) : {2017-2021 £ 2 ER1TZ48 35 (Global Luggage Market 2017-2021)) ©
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Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is the world’s largest travel luggage company, with
a heritage dating back more than 100 years. The Group is principally engaged
in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and
computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective
cases for personal electronic devices throughout the world, primarily under the
Samsonite®, Tumi®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®,

Speck®, Lipault® and Kamiliant® brand names as well as other owned and
licensed brand names.

HEBEBRERAR(TARAR ] BREGEFTENHNBLRNGER AL
B REREAWKETERLR  BHERI10FEAEL - REEFEER
BRfEERE - B8 - REBR O HETEHE BRERERE - FIMERKEE -
BB AR EAE FRBEFSRER  BTEENREETRRRENTE®
Tumi® ~ American Tourister® ~ Hartmann® ~ High Sierra® ~ Gregory® »

Speck® ~ Lipault® ] Kamiliant® fa k& LA R HoAth BB RER RN R IE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI mE D

The Group sellsits productsin over 100 countries through avariety of wholesale distribution
channels, through its company-operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The
Group sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Group's
audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS"] as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the "IASB").

NET SALES

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by US$420.4 million, or 17.3%,
for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015
US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$378.0 million, or 15.5%, to US$2,810.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2016, reflecting the impact of foreign currency
translation from the strengthening US Dollar during the year. Excluding net sales
attributable to the acquisition of Tumi, which occurred on August 1, 2016, net sales
on a constant currency basis increased by US$145.9 million, or 6.0%, and US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$102.2 million, or 4.2%.

Performance on a constant currency basis by region

REEEWEE  RuEHIHRREWT

Asia T2
Net Sales (US$m)

North America 3t 3E5M
+$94_1 Net Sales (US$m) +$21 7.2
+9.9% HEFE(EEET) +26.8%

Europe BUM

HEFEH(EE=T)

Net Sales (US$m)
HEFH(EBET)

AEERBEREMEOHRE AENTEENRE
BEFHECHBI00ERTEEER - AEER
oMl ~ e BN T M EEER ©

ERENWESNELREEE ST EABES
(TIASB ) A0 i) ( BEBR B 75 3R 22 B (TIFRS ) #R 3L
SRS 2 Ay e i =

HEFHE

WERELZE  HE2016F12A31BLEFERNH
EFETHE2015F12A31HIEFEREL204H
BETR173% - FE2016F12831HLEFEM
ELHRMEE FEERI780AEETHKIS5%E
2,810. 5@%%% [RBRF NZETTR BT R A INE [E
HEZ - MBRR 201698 A 1 B UKEE Tumi FE(EH) 8
BFE - REEEBELE  HEFHEER1SIEE
ET6.0%  LETHRAHES FEAEK102.2
BEELNL2% -

Latin America H7 T =M

+$87.7 +$20.9

Net Sales (US$m)

+16.1% M #HEFE(EEERD) +17.4%

Excluding amounts attributable to the Tumi brand, performance on a constant currency basis by region

WER Tumi RIEMNEL SR - REEEREE  RERIHRRUT

Asia ZZ;H
Net Sales (US$m)
HEFEH(EEET)

North America 2t 3E5M
+$37.5 Net Sales (US$m)
+4.0% SHEFH(EBEET)

Europe B
+$31.8
+3.9% 8

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, both in absolute terms and as a
percentage of total net sales.

Year ended December 31,

BE12ANBLEFE

Net Sales (US$m)
EFH(EE=T) +10.3%

Latin America H7 T =M

+$56.2 Net Sales (US$m) +$20.9

HEFHEERED) +17.4%

TRFFNEZE2016F 1231 B KX 2015F 12 A31H
I FEik @ s 5 MEE FEAMA - LUEHERG
HEFHEBBAE DY o

2016 vs 2015
2016 2015 2016 F 22015 F LB
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage increase  (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales (decrease) currency effects®?
Net sales by region'!: US$°000 HEFH B ORA) MBRE R &N
Zit RS HHEFED FET P Bt 2R ) B
Asia T3 947,602 39.0% 8.5% 9.9%
North America 3t 3 811,304 33.4% 26.6% 26.8%
Europe BUM 544,740 22.4% 13.0% 16.1%
Latin America $IT =M 120,476 5.0% 8.4% 17.4%
Corporate 13 8,355 0.2% 6.4% 6.4%
Net sales $HEF58 2,632,477 100.0% 15.5% 17.3%
Notes 7

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.

AEEHEFEOMBUENMRREEERNER - YT —ERKmEEEBRAENER -

[2)  Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

REEEHELERT|

MEEREIFRSH B ETE - ENHAFENEES2INEERAEFOTHERAEMS -
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One of the largest travel luggage brands in the world, with
a long tradition of quality and design, whose products are
targeted for value-conscious consumers.
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Net sales increased by 21.9%", 3.1%"" and 98.5%" in
Europe, North America and Latin America, respectively.
This was offset by a 7.3%'"" decrease in Asia, resulting
in a slight decrease in overall net sales of the American
Tourister brand of 1.0%" during 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB EE D AT
The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for the years
r ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, both in absolute terms and as a
[ percentage of total net sales.
fm b
TEREINEE2016F12 A3 BR2015F 12 A31 BIEFEEMAEEI DM EFEH
A R ERMEEE FRAEA DI
Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3NHLEE
2016 vs 2015
2016 2015 2016 FEL2015 FLLEL
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage of Percentage of increase (decrease) excl. foreign
net sales net sales (decrease) currency effectsm
Net sales by brand: US$°000 HEZRH Us$'000 HERE I ORL) HBREE 5.8
BRI RS EFE ¢ FEx Bt FEx Bt Bt BMOR) B tls‘?l
Samsonite $T5EE 1,548,849 55.1% 1,490,470 61.3% 3.9% 5.9%
American Tourister 531,528 18.9% 549,269 22.6% (3.2)% (1.0)%
Tumi 275,779 9.8% - -% nm #BEEZ nm BEEZ
M Speck 135,449 4.8% 117,719 4.8% 15.1% 15.1%
High Sierra 82,282 2.9% 85,300 3.5% (3.5)% (2.9)%
Gregory 44,217 1.6% 34,338 1.4% 28.8% 22.7%
Lipault 27,607 1.0% 13,788 0.6% 100.2% 102.9%
Hartmann 26,067 0.9% 21,340 0.9% 22.1% 21.4%
Kamiliant 21,869 0.8% 2,766 0.1% 690.5% 706.2%
[ Other™ E ™M 116,850 4.2% 117,487 4.8% (0.5)% 1.8%
Net sales $HE 558 2,810,497 100.0% 2,432,477 100.0% 15.5% 17.3%
Notes 1%

(1) Otherincludes certain other brands owned by the Group, such as Saxoline, Xtrem and Secret, as well as third party brands sold through the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent
retail stores.
HAtb B FE Saxoline  Xtrem i Secret 7K EE T HM B A MM - AKEBRolling Luggage & Chic Accent ZE[E I EME =77 M <

(2] Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
REEESEELINEERIEIFRSMBTE TR - ENAFEAE SR 25 NEERA EFOTHEXRGTEMRS -
Not meaningful due to the acquisition of Tumi on August 1, 2016.

%H% ER 20168 A1 BETumi - ITERE -
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$87.9 million, or 5.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
previous year. US Dollar reported net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$58.4 million, or 3.9%, with all regions reporting constant currency net sales
increases of the brand: Asia (+7.1%), North America (+1.8%), Europe (+7.8%) and
Latin America (+18.9%). All regions reported US Dollar reported net sales increases
of the Samsonite brand: Asia (+5.5%), North America (+1.6%), Europe (+4.4%) and
Latin America (+7.6%). Samsonite comprised 55.1% of the net sales of the Group
during 2016 compared to 61.3% in 2015 reflecting the continued diversification of
the Group’s brand portfolio with the addition of the Tumibrand, which was acquired
on August 1, 2016, as well as increased contributions from the Speck, Lipault,
Hartmann, Gregory and Kamiliant brands. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales of the American Tourister brand decreased by US$5.4 million, or 1.0%, for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the previous year. US Dollar reported
net sales of the American Tourister brand decreased by US$17.7 million, or 3.2%,
driven by a 9.6% decrease in Asia, partially offset by an increase in net sales of
20.5%, 3.0% and 72.4% in Europe, North America and Latin America, respectively.

Net sales of the Tumi brand, which was acquired on August 1, 2016, amounted
to US$275.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2016. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales of the Speck brand increased by US$17.8 million,
or 15.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015 due to new product launches related to certain new electronic
device introductions and robust growth in net sales of protective phone cases,
partially offset by lower net sales of protective laptop cases. On a constant currency
basis, net sales of the High Sierra brand decreased by 2.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015 driven by a
13.7% decrease in Asia, partially offset by a 1.6% increase in North America.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Gregory brand increased by $7.8
million, or 22.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the previous
year, with Asia, North America and Europe all recording double-digit net sales
growth. On a constant currency basis, net sales of the Lipault brand increased by
US$14.2 million, or 102.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2015, driven by geographical expansion in Asia, increased
sales in Europe and the direct-to-market strategy adopted in North America.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Hartmann brand increased by
US$4.6 million, or 21.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
previous year, driven by increased traction of the brand in Asia and Europe. For
the year ended December 31, 2016, Kamiliant, a value-conscious, entry level brand
introduced in Asia during the second half of 2015, recorded US Dollar reported net
sales of US$21.9 million, compared to US$2.8 million during 2015.

1%
5%
1%\
39, gl

5%

2015

23%
61%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI mE D
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The Group sells products in four principal product categories: travel, business, casual
and accessories. The travel category is the Group’s largest category and has been
its traditional strength. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by
product category for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales.

AEFHENERRENEERERER - K - B - KEREMF © REERN R
AEBERAEMBR  BEESR®RE - TREIIBE2016F12 A31 AKX 20155
12A3 BLSFERERENZDNEEFERA  UEHERMEEE FRETRTD
LEFIER ©

Year ended December 31,

BE12ANBLEE

Net sales by product category:
REMERIEI 5 HHEFHE

[ Travel jkiEz
[ Business!" @#g
[l Casual {KMA
[ Accessories®? Eiff @
Other HAth
Net sales $HE/F %8
Notes T#&

(1) Includes tablet and laptop cases.
DEFREMRTFREMI -
[2) Includes protective phone cases.

BAETFHARER -

2016 vs 2015
2016 2015 2016 F 22015 F LB
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales (decrease) currency effects®
Us$'000 HEFE 0GR A) HEREE 5 S8
FTER Bt Bt 2GR ) BD S
1,660,852 68.3% 9.4% 11.4%
275,999 11.3% 37.2% 38.2%
263,096 10.8% 14.8% 16.4%
183,899 7.6% 46.1% 47.3%
48,631 2.0% (10.5)% (7.5)%
2,432,477 100.0% 15.5% 17.3%

(3] Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
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Net Sales By Product Category
RERERE D NHEEFRE 0% 1"

[ Travel jfiz
[ Business &7
[l Casual Kk H

I Accessories Bo 4
Other EAth

2016

13%

65%

Travel Products FRiEE fm
Net Sales wssm SHEF 8 (mazn)

+11.4%"

2016 $1,817.8

$1,660.9

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. BRI 5 524 o

2015

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category increased
by US$188.6 million, or 11.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales in the travel
product category increased by US$156.9 million, or 9.4%. Excluding Tumi, net sales
in the travel product category increased by 4.5% on a constant currency basis and
by 2.6% on a US Dollar reported basis. Country-specific product designs and locally
relevant marketing strategies continued to be the key factors contributing to the
Group’s success in the travel category. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales in the business product category increased by US$105.3 million, or 38.2%. US
Dollar reported net sales in the business product category increased by US$102.6
million, or 37.2%. This increase was primarily due to the addition of Tumi. Excluding
Tumi, net sales in the business product category increased by 3.8% on a constant
currency basis and by 2.5% on a US Dollar reported basis driven by strong growth
in Asia and Europe, partially offset by lower sales of protective laptop cases under
the Speck brand in North America. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales
in the casual product category increased by US$43.2 million, or 16.4%. US Dollar
reported net sales in the casual product category increased by US$38.8 million,
or 14.8%. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the casual product category increased by
6.1% on a constant currency basis and by 4.4% on a US Dollar reported basis due
to an increase in net sales of the Gregory and Samsonite brands. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales in the accessories category increased by US$87.0 million,
or 47.3%. US Dollar reported net sales in the accessories category increased by
US$84.8 million, or 46.1%, largely due to the addition of Tumi. Excluding Tumi, net
sales in the accessories product category increased by 26.4% on a constant currency
basis and by 25.2% on a US Dollar reported basis due to an increase of US$31.4
million in net sales of protective phone cases sold under the Speck brand, as well as
the full-year impact of net sales made through the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent
retail chains that were acquired during 2015.
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8% 2%

1%

el 2015

68%

WHRERZE - IREEMBHNEZE2016F12 831
HIEEFENHEFERAE2015F 12831 01E
FERRI188.6AEERITLK.4% + MAETTHR
R IREEE mAH RIS B FREABE R 156.9 B & E Tk
9.4% o WBR Tumi - 1REE BB ELE - IREEME
RIS & B FIE R 4.5% » ML T B R AL A Bl
£2.6% ° BRAANERZFARDE EHIRFED
EHRBDARARE B IREFAB USRIV E ZH#
)7 o MRERTE MBS ERERNHEE TR
R105.3 B EFEIT38.2% ° UFEITLHRAA L E R
RIS E FREER102.6 BB ETRIT.2% ° LG
REZHRIIE Tumi BT - MR Tumi - RETE
KR BSERENNIEE FEIER3.8% « Mk
FETTERSREERIE R 2.5% ¢ 1t Jh52 M B A58
IR RFTEE) - B0 M Speck MARHE T B FI2E Y
REREILEMAOHETE TIRATE - HIRE R
2 RHERENNEEFHEIERIS2AEEERTL
16.4% ° LASETT R ¥R EV IR ] 2 4R Bl 85 6 F REIE &
38.8AEEITLK 14.8% ° Mk Tumi » IHETEKE
% RHERERINHE FREIER61% - MIRET
FRREEAIER 4.4% » JhA Gregory RFTHE R
KO SHEFREIZ AT EL - MIBREE X 28 - BRHFEERIR
HE FREIERGT.0AEETHLT.3% ° UEITTHAR
B BRI E R R84 8B BE L 46.1%
FEHRIIE Tumi B MR Tumi - IREE &S
BEE - BEHELENOEEFEIGER264% Mk
FITHREERIL R 25.2% » It TIE Speck THIEHE
HEMFRRERNESE FREIGMINLBEET
LA K33 3858 2015 FYLEE A Rolling Luggage & Chic
Accent TEEHEHE FENDFEME -

Non-travel Products JEiREEE R
Net Sales wssm SHEFEZE (mazn)

+30.0%"

2016

$992.7
$771.6

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. #iFRIE 5 524

2015

BB AR AT 2016 FF5R

31



32

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETWED N

4
‘ nw
P 4 The Group sells products through two primary distribution channels: wholesale
( S H‘/ and direct-to-consumer. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by
S distribution channel for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,

both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales.

fj\ﬁ\ﬁ SE 35. AREERAMETENHRENEER  WHLEBEAAEEE - TREATEE 2014
= F12A31BR2015F 12 31 BIEFEEDHEBEIDMEE FEBEMA - LUEHER
HIHE FREREE DL -

Year ended December 31,

BEZENANBLEE

2016 vs 2015

2016 2015 20165822015 F LLEL
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effects®

Net sales by distribution channel: US$’000 SHEFHE US$'000 SHERE #hnCGrA) MI@EF&%%

B BRI D ST FTEx Bt FTER AL Bt B0 B LY
Wholesale 3 2,067,287 73.6% 1,903,687 78.3% 8.6% 10.5
Direct-to-consumer!! E#EEEHEE 734,323 26.1% 520,435 21.6% 41.1% 42.4
Other'? HAth 8,887 0.3% 81355 0.3% 6.4% 6.4

Net sales $HEF58 2,810,497 100.0% 2,432,477 100.0% 15.5% 1173

Notes i+
(1) "Direct-to-consumer” includes bricks-and-mortar retail and direct-to-consumer e-commerce. This channel was previously referred to as “retail”, however, the Group

believes “direct-to-consumer” more accurately reflects its evolving business.
[EXHAEEES | SRERTELERAMEEENSESTEHE - WREBERAA [TE ] AW - AEEEE [EREREEE | FERKMRETENEZNERY -
(2] "Other” primarily consists of licensing income.
[Hfth ] T2 REXEEA -
(3] Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

REFEHEEZINEERIFIFRSHMBFIETA - ENRAFENE B 2NN EERBEFOTHERFEMRST -

Net Sales By Distribution Channels 4% 1%
Eﬁﬁﬁ%%g%ﬁﬂgﬁﬁ%)‘%%ﬁ //////// 3% 1%
22. U% ///// 18% /- ////// %
72 Wholesale #t % i Retail T€ / / / 7, //
[ Net Sales to E-retailers |l Direct-to-consumer / &
A FEEFHEAHE  E-commerce 2016 // 5% 2015 /
EERAARFOTTAR oY) ///
Other £ ft /// / /
% 3% //////// 3%
Wiy
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased
by US$199.5 million, or 10.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales in the wholesale
channel increased by US$163.6 million, or 8.6%. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the
wholesale channel increased by 4.5% on a constant currency basis and by 2.5%
on a US Dollar reported basis. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the
direct-to-consumer channel increased by US$220.4 million, or 42.4%, and US Dollar
reported net sales in the direct-to-consumer channelincreased by US$213.9 million,
or 41.1%. This increase was driven by growth in direct-to-consumer e-commerce, as
well as the addition of 285 net new company-operated stores during 2016, including
202 company-operated Tumi stores resulting from the acquisition on August 1, 2016
and 9 net new Tumi stores added post-acquisition. Additionally, there was the full-
year impact of 162 net new stores (including 31 Rolling Luggage stores and 30 Chic
Accent stores from the respective acquisitions) added during 2015. On a same store,
constant currency basis, retail net sales increased by 2.5% year-on-year. This was
driven by constant currency same store net sales growth of 0.8%, 7.6% and 9.4%
in North America, Europe and Latin America, respectively. This was partially offset
by a 4.8% decline in Asia as a result of fewer visitors from Mainland China to Hong
Kong (including Macau) and South Korea and generally weak consumer sentiment in
certain other countries in the Asia region. The Group’s same store analysis includes
existing company-operated retail stores which have been open for at least 12 months
before the end of the relevant financial period. The 42.4% constant currency net
sales growth in the direct-to-consumer channel reflects the Group’s strategy of
investing resources to support the growth of its bricks-and-mortar retail and direct-
to-consumer e-commerce business, including through acquisitions. Excluding
Tumi, net sales in the direct-to-consumer channel increased by 11.8% on a constant
currency basis and by 10.5% on a US Dollar reported basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, US$265.7 million, or 9.5%, of the Group's
US Dollar reported net sales were derived from e-commerce [comprising U5$120.0
million of net sales from the Group’s direct-to-consumer e-commerce business,
which is included within the direct-to-consumer channel, and US$145.7 million
of net sales to e-retailers, which are included within the wholesale channel). This
represents an increase of 29.1% compared to the year ended December 31, 2015,
when e-commerce comprised US$205.8 million, or 8.5%, of the Group’s net sales.
Excluding net sales attributable to Tumi, net sales in the Group's e-commerce
business increased by 19.7% on a constant currency basis and by 18.2% on a US Dollar
reported basis, and comprised US$243.4 million, or 9.6%, of the Group's net sales.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales to e-retailers increased by US$26.0
million, or 21.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales to e-retailers increased by US$24.6
million, or 20.4%. Excluding Tumi, net sales to e-retailers increased by 21.5% on
a constant currency basis and by 20.4% on a US Dollar reported basis. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales in the Group's direct-to-consumer e-commerce
business increased by US$36.8 million, or 43.4%, for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales
in the direct-to-consumer e-commerce business increased by US$35.2 million, or
41.5%, of which US$22.3 million was attributable to Tumi. Excluding Tumi, net sales
in the Group's direct-to-consumer e-commerce business increased by 17.2% on a
constant currency basis and by 15.2% on a US Dollar reported basis.
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R199.5BEETH10.5% -+ 1 LAZE TR R A9 L3¢
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EFEIRFRR25% WL HZIEMN - BONRRFT
EMZE T EEEEANENRIEHE FEYRIER
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EFE T4 8% T - AEBMEESTEER
AV BHRTANEEESL 2EANREE S
TEE - HEEMEBEERERETEBEEGE
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HZE2016F12 A3 ALLFE » AEBUETHR
RIS FREP 265. 7T ABELRIS% IREETE
B(pREREBAEEEZERRAEEENEFEmEE
BHEEFEI20088XTGIAEEAMEES
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EREEMIEEFEIER215%  MRFETABE
AERIPIE R 20.4% © MBREN ZE - HE20165F12A°
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Asia increased by US$94.1
million, or 9.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales for the region increased by US$81.0
million, or 8.5%. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumi brand in Asia, net sales
on a constant currency basis increased by US$37.5 million, or 4.0%, and US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$22.2 million, or 2.3%. This constant currency net
sales increase was primarily driven by the Samsonite, Kamiliant, Lipault, Gregory and
Hartmann brands, partially offset by decreases in net sales of the American Tourister
and High Sierra brands.

BRANDS

On a constant currency basis, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$35.1 million, or 7.1%, from the previous year. US Dollar reported net sales of
the Samsonite brand increased by US$27.4 million, or 5.5%, from the previous year
driven by the success of the direct-to-consumer e-commerce channel. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, Kamiliant, a value-conscious, entry level brand introduced
in Asia during the second half of 2015, recorded US Dollar reported net sales of

MHRERTE  AEERBE2016F12A31 81
FEEDMNOEE FEREE2015F12A31H1E
FRERMIBEETHI.I% - AETHBHER
HEFRAPER81.0B &BETHB8.5% ° MER Tum/
mER MBI EE R - RET BB EE - i
BFHERITEAEFTITHL.0% » MAETHR
HHE FRAPER22. 2B &ET2.3% © IHIRE
FTEBEEAENHEFRERIEXTAE -
Kamiliant ~ Lipault ~ Gregory X Hartmann ik Fr#s
&)+ ZH ¥ American Tourister J2 High Sierra fnhé
BV EH S F R A AT IS -

fm &

RETEEBELE  FAERENHEESFER2015F
BEISIHEFRITLNT % - FTHEREAETHR
K SHE FRERIR 2015 FIE R 274 BB ETL5.5% *
DX EEEREEENS TRBRENKIIFAEE -
HE2016F12A31BIEFE - R2015F T HEFHE
NS AR R EE L API R Kamiliant 81 LAZETT
RS FRE21 9B &% - MR2015F 81428
BEETT - MBRERRZ  American Tourister fahé
HZE2016F 12 A3 BIEFERTMNERHE FE
BHE2015F 12 A3 HIEFERA 289 BEETTHK
7.3% ° American Tourister thhE AT EERAVEHE F
FHRIE 2015 FR A 384 BEEERTHI.6% TERE
American Tourister ERETRBENERERREEY
REMHEESFHETIYRMTE AEEHZEERE
BHERERKE  BEEREHRNTREETE -
EAREBER 2016588 1 BUEE Tumi LAR » Tumi @
R EENASEE FRE A58 8 AEETT - HE20164F
12 A31 BILEE » High Sierra f e el 60§ & 5
BANABET  RETEBEER AT —F T &
13.7% » MLASETT R HE FRERIB 2 BT — & T
15.7% b TR AR E B REENE HEE T H
WA B ABGHE SRR TR E) c BIE 201656124




US$21.9 million, compared to US$2.8 million during 2015. Excluding foreign currency
effects, net sales of the American Tourister brand in the Asia region decreased by
US$28.9 million, or 7.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales of the American Tourister
brand decreased by US$38.4 million, or 9.6%, from the previous year, primarily driven
by decreased net sales of American Tourister product in the TV home shopping
channel in China and South Korea. The Group has subsequently made changes to
its marketing and product strategy which it believes will have a positive impact in
the near term. Net sales of the Tumi brand amounted to US$58.8 million in Asia
since the Group's acquisition of the company on August 1, 2016. Net sales of the High
Sierra brand amounted to US$11.6 million in Asia during the year ended December
31, 2016, a decrease of 13.7% from the previous year on a constant currency basis,
while US Dollar reported net sales decreased by 15.7% from the previous year driven
by a decrease in India due to the Group’s decision to promote backpacks under its
other brand names within the country. Net sales of the Hartmann brand amounted
to US$8.7 million in Asia during the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of
57.7% from the previous year on a constant currency basis, while US Dollar reported
net sales increased by 61.1% from the previous year as the brand continued to gain
traction in the region. Net sales of the Gregory brand in Asia amounted to US$26.0
million during the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of 29.4% year-on-year
on a constant currency basis, and an increase of 40.7% from the previous year on
a US Dollar reported basis as the Group continued to develop products designed
specifically for the tastes and preferences of consumers within the region. Net sales
of the Lipault brand amounted to US$10.4 million in Asia during the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to net sales of US$2.7 million during the year ended
December 31, 2015 as the brand began to successfully expand throughout the region.

PRODUCT CATEGORIES

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category increased
by US$28.0 million, or 4.2%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$17.6
million, or 2.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the previous
year. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the travel product category increased by 2.3% on a
constant currency basis and by 0.7% on a US Dollar reported basis. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales in the business product category increased by US$45.0
million, or 37.6%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$44.5 million, or
37.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the previous year driven
by the addition of Tumiand a change in the new product mix of Samsonite Red from
casual products to business products. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the business
product category increased by 12.3% on a constant currency basis and by 10.9%
on a US Dollar reported basis. Net sales in the casual product category increased
by US$16.9 million, or 13.6%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported
net sales increased by US$15.4 million, or 12.4%, due to the addition of Tumi and
increased sales of the Gregory brand. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the casual product
category increased by 7.0% on a constant currency basis and by 5.6% on a US Dollar
reported basis. Net sales in the accessories product category increased by US$10.0
million, or 38.8%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales
increased by US$9.5 million, or 36.9%, compared to the previous year. Excluding
Tumi, net sales in the accessories product category increased by 17.6% on a constant
currency basis and by 15.0% on a US Dollar reported basis.
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1 Excluding foreign currency effects. Bk 5 524 o
Asia Adjusted EBITDA (ussm)
M EBITDAEELR)
1 5 8 (1)
+19.0%
2016 $227.9
2015 $200.6

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. iR 5 524 o
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DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$75.8 million, or 9.6%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$62.3
million, or 7.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the previous
year, despite the challenging trading conditions in China and South Korea. Excluding
Tumi, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by 3.4% on a constant currency
basis and by 1.6% on a US Dollar reported basis. Net sales in the direct-to-consumer
channel increased by US$18.3 million, or 11.8%, on a constant currency basis year-
on-year. US Dollar reported net sales in the direct-to-consumer channel increased
by US$18.7 million, or 12.1%. This increase was driven by the addition of 46 net new
company-operated stores during 2016, including 14 Tumi stores from the acquisition
on August 1, 2016 and 6 net new Tumi stores added post-acquisition. Additionally,
there was the full-year impact of 39 net new stores added during 2015 and strong
growth in the Group's direct-to-consumer e-commerce net sales, partially offset by
a decrease in same store net sales. Direct-to-consumer e-commerce sales in the
region increased year-on-year by 26.2%, on a constant currency basis, while US Dollar
reported net sales increased by 22.6% from the previous year, as the Group focused
on expanding its presence online. On a same store, constant currency basis, retail
net sales decreased by 4.8% due to fewer visitors from Mainland China shopping in
Hong Kong (including Macau) and South Korea and generally weak retail sentiment
in certain Asian countries. Excluding Hong Kong (including Macau) and South Korea,
same store net sales, on a constant currency basis, increased by 1.8% year-on-year.
Excluding Tumi, net sales in the direct-to-consumer channel increased by 6.8% on a
constant currency basis and by 6.4% on a US Dollar reported basis.

COUNTRIES

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Asian region by
geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,

HZ12ANBLEE
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2016 vs 2015

2016 2015 20165822015 F L8
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effects®?
Net sales by geographic location!": US$°000 SHETFHE US$'000 HERE I ORL) BREE gﬂ’\]
R E R D HHEFR FEn BAL FEr Bt Aot EMORA) B2
China H[El 251,729 24.5% 252,722 26.7% (0.4)% 5.3%
South Korea %2 178,176 17.3% 184,141 19.4% (3.2)% (1.00%
Japan BZx 135,041 13.1% 93,668 9.9% 44.2% 29.0%
India ENE 128,056 12.4% 135,066 14.3% (5.2)% (0.5)%
Hong Kong? & 109,093 10.6% 77,224 8.1% 41.3% 41.4%
Australia M 67,959 6.6% 56,203 5.9% 20.9% 21.5%
Other EAt 158,524 15.5% 148,578 15.7% 6.7% 8.0%
Net sales $HEF5 1,028,578 100.0% 947,602 100.0% 8.5% 9.9%

Notes 7

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.
FEBEEFENIALEDHRPUEEERNER - YT —ERALEBEERAENER -
(2] Includes Macau. 2016 includes sales to distributors of the Tumi brand throughout Asia.

BARRPT 2016 FRIEMEBEETME Tumi SRR SHREEHAVHE -

(3] Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

ZEEEWEERFINEERIFIFRSH Bt ETA - ANBAFENEHEE 258
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, net sales of the Tumi brand within
Asia have only been recognized in Japan and Hong Kong (net sales in Hong Kong
included sales to distributors of the Tumi brand throughout Asia, excluding Japan).
Japan experienced strong constant currency growth of 29.0% year-on-year driven
by increased sales of the Samsonite, American Tourister and Gregory brands, as
well as the addition of the Tumi brand. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumi
brand in Japan, net sales on a constant currency basis increased by 12.2%, while net
sales on a US Dollar reported basis increased by 25.0%. Excluding foreign currency
effects, net sales in China increased by 5.3%, driven by sales of the Samsonite brand.
Net sales in South Korea decreased by 1.0% on a constant currency basis due to
weak consumer sentiment and a decrease in shoppers visiting from China during
the year. On a constant currency basis, net sales in India decreased by 0.5% for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the previous year, due to the economic
disruption related to the Indian government’s demonetization initiative. On a constant
currency basis, net sales in Hong Kong (including Macau) increased by 41.4%, driven
by the addition of the Tumi brand. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumibrand
in Hong Kong (including Macau), net sales on a constant currency basis decreased by
US$8.9 million, or 11.5%, while net sales on a US Dollar reported basis decreased by
US$8.9 million, or 11.6%, driven primarily by fewer Chinese shoppers visiting from the
Mainland. Australia had strong constant currency net sales growth of 21.5%, driven
by increased sales of the Samsonite, American Tourister and High Sierra brands.

Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2016 | ¥15E

BOLD NEW WAY TO BE
YOURSELF AND TO BE

WEFLSPOTTED K/ Z‘/ Qo

RERIFREER -
2 T EHEAER

An entry level travel luggage brand aimed at value-conscious
consumers.

SHENEIT A SRR T 3R B9 A P B ARITFE M o

The Kamiliant brand continued to gain traction in Asia, with
net sales rising to US$21.9 million during 2016 compared to
US$2.8 million in the previous year. This strong performance
validated the Group’s belief in the vast untapped potential of
the entry price segment, and 2017 will see the Group further
expand Kamiliant distribution across Asia.

Kamiliant RIEPATEMAEE R - 2016 5F - SHEFEEIEM
E219EBET MEFAB28EEET - WASHIRIEFE
BAEEHAMBNSBEERARERENNGES M
REBR 2017 FH§#E — HHRRE Kamiliant BE TN S EHY
PEH o

AR

Increase +706 . 3%(1)

120
WExcluding foreign currency effects. #BRE 5 8/ &

REBZE2016F 12 A3 BIEFE » Tumi @ER M
EANHEFRENAARTERR(EENHEF
EEIER B AIAINT N & Tumi BEE D s e
WSHE) o ZATAEE - American Tourister } Gregory
MR S E R N LA KRB Tumi Mm%

BAZGRYER  BEFERHEFRRFER
29.0% © iR Tumi ISR B AN EIGHHE FE - 1%
EFEHEE  HEFHEER12.2%  MikETH
REERHE FHEANER25.0% - MBRERTE
TENEEFRETAEMEONHERTH ML R
5.3% c MR FRBEEENESLEFBEYNHE
BRI - BUREIE EREE - BROHEFER
D1.0% - REFEEERE - HE2016F12A31H
IEFE - HERNHEFREB A —F T#0.5% * J)
PR 82 ) BURT RE 128 T SR AR R e AR R eV IS B
B - REFEWEE  FE(BERMOHEE
SFEIE R 41.4% - TYENIE Tumi i FTASE) © MRk
Tumi e SR EE (R BENHEF5E - 12E
EEEEE  BEFHERSIESEETHI5% -

ﬁﬁ?ﬁz%mﬁﬂ#&%—%ﬁ’]iﬁ SFRERR 8.9 BB XL
11.6% + £ 25 55 BB YA B R i iR R A BT s

g o %?ﬁ%&g  American Tourister &2 High Sierra
ISR HE RIS - RN BRINETEE
BB FRIE R 21.5% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in North America increased
by US$217.2 million, or 26.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales for the North American
region increased by US$215.9 million, or 26.6%. Excluding net sales attributable to
the Tumi brand in North America, net sales on a constant currency basis increased
by US$31.8 million, or 3.9%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$30.4
million, or 3.8%. This increase was primarily driven by increased sales of the
Samsonite, American Touristerand Lipaultbrands, as well as by the Speck brand. Net
sales of the Speck brand in North America increased by US$17.6 million, or 14.9%, on
both a constant currency and US Dollar basis for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to the year ended December 31, 2015 due to new product launches related
to certain new electronic device introductions and robust growth in net sales of
protective phone cases, partially offset by lower net sales of protective laptop cases.

BRANDS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased
by US$9.2 million, or 1.8%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$8.0
million, or 1.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior
year. Net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$2.5 million, or
3.1%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported net sales increased by
US$2.4 million, or 3.0%. Net sales of the Tumi brand in North America amounted
to US$185.4 million since the Group's acquisition of the company on August 1,
2016. Net sales of the Speck brand increased by US$17.6 million, or 14.9%, on both
a constant currency and US Dollar reported basis due to new product launches
related to certain new electronic device introductions and robust growth in net
sales of protective phone cases, partially offset by lower net sales of protective
laptop cases. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the High Sierra
brand increased by US$1.0 million, or 1.6%, while US Dollar reported net sales
increased by US$1.0 million, or 1.5%, due to increased business-to-business
sales. US Dollar reported net sales of the Hartmann brand amounted to US$14.1
million, a constant currency and US Dollar reported decrease of 2.1%, as the
Group continued its efforts to redefine the product assortment. Net sales of the
Gregory brand increased by US$1.5 million, or 11.6%, on both a constant currency
and US Dollar reported basis for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2015. The Group implemented a direct-to-market
model for its Lipault brand in the North American region by taking its business
with a former distributor in-house, which generated US Dollar reported net sales
of US$3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.

WHhEHZE  NEBEREE2016F12A31H
IFEFEEIEEMNHE FEREE 2015512 A 31
HIEFERR217288BETLEK26.8% ° LAFEILH
HEdEEM R EE FHAIER215988ET
526.6% W Tumi @GR AL EMEIGEEEF
BORETEREE  HEFHEERIISEEE
L 3.9% - AEITTERImEEE FEAIER30.48
BEIILH3.8% c WHRETESHEE * American
Tourister N Lipault fa k2 6 85 & R4 AN LA K2 Speck h
FEFTASE) o IRET B REITTHRIRELE  Speck
FREE2016F 12 A31 A IEFEEILEMNDHEEF
HERBZE2015F 12 A3 ALFERRI17T6HEE
L 14.9% - ARG TS EHEFERUREEET
TAE TR LT R FHIRERA RSN E FREY
RETE S FIREMRERNE S FRR DA
HEH o

fm &

WMBENRZE  HE2016F12A31 B ILFEFH
AEMBHEFER A —FERICEEETLK
1.8%  MAETRBHHE FEAPERS0BEHE
JLEK 1.6% ° American Tourister fn 2 )8 E F 58
RETEEEAER2EEETH 1% MAE
TR E FEAPER 24 AEETHI0% - B
AREBER2016F8 A1 HUEE Tumi LA - Tumi &
R L ENNEE FEA185.4BBFET - ET
R ETTHRERE - Speck MEMHE FEHIER
17.6 BBXRIITE14.9% @ TYREMS EERTESR
NEAETHRET B LT R FHRRERNRS
HEFHEIERAE - oW FIREMRERNHE
SFRRAFTHE A o MIRE R E - High Sierra
JRRHE FHEIERI10BEBETR 1.6%  MUET
BRI E FBANER 1088 ETH1.5% /A
TERBBEERENY - ARNASEEEESER
T&48 - B Hartmann RIGAETTHR BN HEE FEA
I BEEEL  REATEEERETHRELTEY
WA 2.1% c BE2016512 A31 B ILEE - 1REFE
B RETTRRELE - Gregory MIEHHE FER
HE2015F12A3AIEFELRISBEELL
11.6% ° AEBEZEEEILEME Lipault THIEH 15
AMER  RABRARBENEBER - REZE
2016F 12 A31 BIEFEBRUETHBROHEF
HEISHBE

North America Net Sales ussm)
b EXMNEE R mazn

+26.8%"

2016 $1,027.2

$811.3

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. Bk 7 724 o

2015



PRODUCT CATEGORIES

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category increased
by US$104.9 million, or 19.5%, and US Dollar reported net salesincreased by US$103.8
million, or 19.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015 driven primarily by the addition of Tumi. Excluding Tumi, net
sales in the travel product category increased by 3.5% on a constant currency basis
and by 3.3% on a US Dollar reported basis. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales in the business product category increased by US$37.1 million, or 41.9%, and
US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$37.0 million, or 41.8%, year-on-year,
driven by the addition of Tumi, partially offset by a strategic business decision to stop
selling Speck protective laptop cases in an unprofitable sales channel. Excluding
Tumi, net sales in the business product category decreased by 19.3% on a constant
currency basis and by 19.4% on a US Dollar reported basis. Net sales in the casual
product category increased by US$14.5 million, or 15.8%, on a constant currency
basis and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$14.4 million, or 15.7%, year-
on-year, resulting primarily from the addition of Tumi. Excluding Tumi, net sales
in the casual product category decreased by 1.7% on a constant currency basis
and by 1.8% on a US Dollar reported basis. Net sales in the accessories category
increased by US$60.7 million, or 66.2%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$60.6 million, or 66.1%, due to increased sales
of Speck protective phone cases over the previous year and the addition of Tumi.
Excluding Tumi, net sales in the accessories product category increased by 34.4% on
a constant currency basis and by 34.4% on a US Dollar reported basis.

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$75.6 million, or 11.5%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$74.5
million, or 11.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015 primarily due to the addition of Tumi and strong shipments to
e-commerce retailers and other key customers. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the

IRRY
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LE
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North America Adjusted EBITDA (us$m)
b E MR EBITDAmELR)

+37.0%"

2016 $169.8

2015 $124.2

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. iR M 7 574 o

Em¥En!
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wholesale channel increased by 3.6% on a constant currency basis and by 3.4% on a
US Dollar reported basis. Net sales in the direct-to-consumer channel increased by
US$141.6 million, or 93.2%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net
salesincreased by US$141.4 million, or 93.0%, year-on-year. This increase was driven
by the addition of 171 net new company-operated stores during 2016, including 163
Tumi stores from the acquisition on August 1, 2016 and 3 net new Tumi stores added
post-acquisition, along with the full-year impact of 16 net new stores added during
2015. Additionally, there was the positive impact of a 0.8% increase in same store
net sales, on a constant currency basis. This increase was the result of the negative
impact that the strengthening US Dollar had on foreign tourist arrivals to gateway
markets in the United States during the first half of 2016 becoming moderated,
resulting in improved store traffic in the second half. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the
direct-to-consumer channel increased by 5.4% on a constant currency basis and by
5.2% on a US Dollar reported basis.

US Dollar reported net sales through the Group's direct-to-consumer e-commerce
channel increased by US$20.9 million, or 61.3%, of which US$19.9 million was
attributable to Tumi. Excluding Tumi, net sales through the Group’s direct-to-
consumer e-commerce channel was driven by an increase in net sales through the
Group’s owned e-commerce sites.

COUNTRIES

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the North American
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional
net sales.

Year ended December 31,

HZ12ANALFEE

£3.6% @ MZETLHEREEAPER3.4% - KETE
WAL EEAMRHEBERENHEEFHERFER
141.6 BEBEITE93.2% @ MAFETHEBNIEE FE
ARFIBR 141 4B BEITHI3.0%  WWERIZR
2016 FFSFIGERMN T KA B &5 (B3ER 2016 F 8 A
1 BETURES Y 163 R Tumi fE & A UEE EIE TR 1B %
BRI R TumiFEH) - AR 2015 F/F 88 16
RIEFN S FHEMTE o I - BRAKGRITRZ
IRE W EET E R R L & F IR 0.8% AT
B) o WWIERTIEETTRB L INEIRE R 2016 F L3¥
FRHEREERETSHOANORSOEETEE
FTEkE - EER2016F THEFEHERE AT - M
BrTumi - EEERBEERENHEE FHRETE
BEEEIER 5.4% « MIRETLHRREERNIER5.2% ©

AEEHEEAEREBENE TRHEREUEILHAR
RSHE FREE R 209 B8 XL 61.3% * HAF Tumi
JEIE19.9 BEETT » M Tumi » AEBEEZEAE
BENETHEREZASBEAETHERUN
HEF I RS o

EiER

TREHEE2016F 12831 H & 201512 A 31
B I F E IR IS0 B 85 693k 360 [ 5 & 7R 55 E
4 DUBEHE R @S FEEEA D YR

2016 vs 2015

2016 2015 2016 5FE22015 F LEEL
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effects(
Net sales by geographic location!": US$°000 HEZS US$'000 HERE I GEA) EREE B2
Rib MBS HEE TR FTEr B FTER Bt B ECHD) B
United States i 976,120 95.0% 769,505 94.8% 26.9% 26.9%
Canada tIEX 51,052 5.0% 41,799 5.2% 22.1% 25.3%
Net sales $HEFE 1,027,172 100.0% 811,304 100.0% 26.6% 26.8%
Notes 7T #&

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.

REEMHEEFENIRMESHRRMEEERNER @ X T —ERKHEBEERAENER -

(2] Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

REFEESEEEZTINEERIFIFRSHMBFIETA - ANRAFRAE B 2T EERBEFOTHIERGFEMRS -

For the year ended December 31, 2016, US Dollar reported net sales in the United
States increased by US$206.6 million, or 26.9%, year-on-year driven by the addition
of Tumi. Excluding amounts attributable to the Tumi brand, US Dollar reported net
sales in the United States increased by US$28.9 million, or 3.7%, driven primarily
by the Samsonite, American Tourister, Lipault and Speck brands. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales in Canada increased by 25.3% year-on-year due primarily
to the addition of the Tumi/brand. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumibrand in
Canada, net sales on a constant currency basis increased by US$2.9 million, or 6.9%,
while net sales on a US Dollar reported basis increased by US$1.6 million, or 3.8%.

RHEE Tumi FITE) - BIE2016F 12 A31 HIESF
B AETTRMEERHE FRIRFIER 206088
FETTk26.9% © MR Tumi mIRHIFEIG S8 - AT
R ERHE FEER28IBBEETLITS - £
BXRFAEE - American Tourister ~ Lipault & Speck
MR - MIRERTE - MERNHE FER
FI8R25.3% » JHEZEAEFIE Tumi miEPTEL © #IkR
Tumi EIHEVEHE F R - MEARNIHE FRRETE
MEERR2IBEERTKG.9% ' MHEFHILE
TLERREEAPER 1 6B EEIT3.8% °



POSITION Founded in 1975 by American entrepreneur Charlie

HiSEN

Clifford, Tumi is a leading global premium lifestyle brand
offering a comprehensive line of business bags, travel
luggage and accessories. The brand is consistently
recognized as “best in class” for the high quality, durability,
functionality and innovative design of its products.

TN

Tumi A EB %2R Charlie Clifford R 1975 F 83 - 2
—BERBERANSEEEETRIE  HEENERRS
BEAKE  RETERERENS - ZRBUHERE
BER  MA - STEEUARAIFRS  MEHARRMIR

A LEADING GLOBAL
PROGRESS Acquired by the Group on August 1, 2016, integration
" has proceeded far more quickly and smoothly than
ER originally expected. The Group has significantly increased B U S I N ESS I RAVE L
p

marketing spend for the Tumi brand post-acquisition, and

it is actively working to gain control of the wholesale and

direct-to-consumer distribution of Tumi products in key AN D AC C ESS 0 RY
markets around the world.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Europe increased by
US$87.7 million, or 16.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales for the region increased
by US$70.6 million, or 13.0%. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumi brand
in Europe, net sales on a constant currency basis increased by US$56.2 million,
or 10.3%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$40.0 million, or 7.3%.
The increase was a result of increased net sales of the Samsonite brand as well as
the Group’s continued focus on driving growth of the American Tourister brand and
increasing its presence in Europe.

BRANDS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$33.8 million, or 7.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales of the Samsonite brand
increased by US$19.0 million, or 4.4%. Net sales of the American Tourister brand
increased by US$14.0 million, or 21.9%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$13.1 million, or 20.5%, compared to the prior
year. American Tourister comprised 12.5% of the net sales in the European region
during 2016 compared to 11.7% during 2015 as the Group continued its focus on
driving growth of the brand and increasing its presence in Europe. Net sales of the
Tumi brand in Europe amounted to US$30.5 million since the Group's acquisition
of the company on August 1, 2016. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of
the Lipault brand increased by US$3.0 million, or 27.0%, year-on-year and US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$2.8 million, or 25.2%, to US$13.7 million driven by
further expansion of the brand’s distribution within the region. On a constant currency
basis, net sales of the Gregory brand increased by 31.4% and US Dollar reported
net sales increased by 31.9% to US$3.4 million. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales of the Hartmann brand increased by 114.1%, while US Dollar reported net
sales increased by 112.6% to US$3.3 million during the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015.

PRODUCT CATEGORIES

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category increased
by US$43.6 million, or 10.8%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$29.0
million, or 7.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015 driven by the addition of Tumi and increased sales of hard-side
products under the Samsonite and American Tourister brands. Excluding Tumi, net
sales in the travel product category increased by 7.2% on a constant currency basis
and by 3.7% on a US Dollar reported basis. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales in the business product category increased by US$20.5 million, or 35.8%, and
US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$19.3 million, or 33.7%, year-on-year,
due to the addition of Tumiand successful new business product introductions under

WERERZZE  AEEREZE2016F12A3181E
FEABMOEE FHEEKEE2015F12A43181E
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Europe Net Sales wssm BUMEHE F 5 mazx)

+16.1%"

2016 $615.3

$544.7

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. iR H 5748 o
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Europe Adjusted EBITDA (ussm)
BUNE A EBITDAm® =)

+20.7%"

2016 $109.8
2015 $92.4
1" Excluding foreign currency effects.
HERTE H E -

the Samsonite and Hartmann brands. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the business
product category increased by 17.6% on a constant currency basis and by 15.9% on a
US Dollar reported basis. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the casual
product category increased by US$8.8 million, or 54.7%, year-on-year, while US
Dollar reported net sales increased by US$8.6 million, or 53.3%, mainly attributable
to increases from the American Tourister and Gregory brands. Excluding Tumi, net
sales in the casual product category increased by 37.2% on a constant currency basis
and by 36.3% on a US Dollar reported basis.

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$41.9 million, or 11.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
previous year, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$29.1 million, or
7.9%, year-on-year. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the wholesale channel increased
by 7.6% on a constant currency basis and by 4.2% on a US Dollar reported basis. Net
sales in the direct-to-consumer channel increased by US$45.8 million, or 26.1%, on
a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$41.5
million, or 23.7%, over the same period. This increase was driven by the addition of
31 net new company-operated stores during 2016, including 25 Tumi stores from the
acquisition on August 1, 2016. Additionally, there was the full-year impact of 79 net
new stores added during 2015, which included 30 Chic Accent stores and 21 Rolling
Luggage stores acquired in 2015. On a same store, constant currency basis, retail
net sales increased by 7.6%. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the direct-to-consumer
channelincreased by 16.0% on a constant currency basis and by 14.0% on a US Dollar
reported basis. Direct-to-consumer e-commerce sales in the region increased year-
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on-year by 42.3% on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales
increased by US$5.9 million, or 40.5%. Excluding Tumi, net sales in the direct-to-
consumer e-commerce business increased by 31.3% on a constant currency basis
and by 29.5% on a US Dollar reported basis.

COUNTRIES

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the European region
by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A3NBLEE

BIHEFIRFIERL2.3% - MUETREBHHEEF

FAPE RS 9AEEITTEL0.5% © W Tumi » HIE
HAMHEENETHEESRETERELEER

31.3% °

MiZETCERREERIER 29.5% ©

EER

TREFNEZE2016F 12831 H KX 2015F 12 A31H
IEFE i B 25 M BUN D @ 35S F s8R A -
LASBSHE KAl th [ S F BB 5 B DL IR -

2016 vs 2015

2016 2015 2016 22015 FLLEL
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effects‘“
Net sales by geographic location!": US$°000 SHETFHE US$'000 SHEFH I ORA) HBREE 5.5
Rib MBS HEE TR FEx Bt FEr Bt Aot BMORA) B tl:‘“
Germany 2] 110,883 18.0% 80,252 14.7% 38.2% 38.4%
Belgium® LbFlfF 12 73,475 11.9% 64,411 11.8% 14.1% 14.0%
Italy AR 68,740 11.2% 60,614 11.1% 13.4% 13.7%
United Kingdom!®) 3£ © 68,521 11.1% 59,774 11.0% 14.6% 30.6%
France S:El 66,997 10.9% 68,393 12.6% (2.0)% (1.7)%
Spain FAIEF 47,599 7.7% 41,055 7.5% 15.9% 16.3%
Russia &2 Ht 30,608 5.0% 27,085 5.0% 13.0% 23.2%
Other HEAth 148,478 24.2% 143,156 26.3% 3.7% 6.6%
Net sales $HE F8 615,301 100.0% 544,740 100.0% 13.0% 16.1%
Notes T #

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.

AEEHEFEOMSUENHRREEERNER - YT —ERKmEEE BRAENER

(2) Net sales in Belgium were US$19.7 million and US$18.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Remaining sales consisted of

direct shipments to distributors, customers and agents in other countries.

BE2016F 12431 AR2015F 12 A31 AILFE - LABOHEEFEN IR 19TAERTRI88AERTT - R TNHERREEREE TRMRRN S #HE - TP RAEM -

(3)  Includes Ireland.

BIRERH -

[4)  Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

REFEHEEELINEERIEIFRSHBTE T A - ENSAFENE N EE 25 NFEERAEFNHTHEX

On a constant currency basis, almost all countries within the European region
achieved net sales growth during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the prior year, including Germany (+38.4%), the United Kingdom (+30.6%), Spain

16.3%) and ltaly (+13.7%). Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumi brand, these
same countries achieved the following constant currency net sales growth over the
prior year: the United Kingdom (+21.3%), Germany (+15.7%), Spain (+12.2%] and Italy
(+11.3%). On a US Dollar reported net sales basis, these same countries achieved the
following growth over the prior year when excluding net sales attributable to the Tumi
brand: Germany (+15.6%), Spain (+11.9%), ltaly (+11.1%), and the United Kingdom
(+6.8%). The Group continued to experience year-on-year constant currency net sales
growth in Russia (+23.2%) and Turkey (+3.4%). Net sales in France decreased by 1.7%
on a constant currency basis, primarily related to negative impacts from the terrorist
attacks that occurred in that country during 2016, partially offset by the addition of the
Tumibrand. Excluding net sales attributable to the Tumibrand in France, net sales on
a constant currency basis decreased by US$4.2 million, or 6.2%, and on a US Dollar
reported basis, net sales decreased by US$4.5 million, or 6.5%.
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POS ITI 0 N A chic and youthful French luggage brand with a strong

[ J
o n appeal to fashionable, female travelers through its
iEﬁ
M EEL signature Parisian style and vibrant colors. 1 p a l I
—EREREFEEETEERE  BREBRGER
1 REBE O TIRE| B S B LA IRE o PARIS

PROGRESS Net sales of the Lipault brand in Europe increased by
" 27.0%" to US$13.7 million during 2016. Net sales in Asia
ER and North America amounted to US$10.4 million and

US$3.5 million, respectively.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Latin America increased
by US$20.9 million, or 17.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales for the region
increased by US$10.1 million, or 8.4%, as the Group was negatively impacted by the
strengthening of the US Dollar.

BRANDS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$9.9 million, or 18.9%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$4.0
million, or 7.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015. Net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$7.0
million, or 98.5%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales
increased by US$5.1 million, or 72.4%, year-on-year as the Group continued to
expand the geographical distribution of the brand. Sales of women’s handbags under
the Secret brand name enjoyed continued success, with constant currency net sales
growth of 17.1% and US Dollar reported net sales growth of 15.3% to US$14.7 million
in 2016. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the local brands Saxoline and
Xtrem increased by 5.5% and 9.4%, respectively, while US Dollar reported net sales
increased by 1.3% and 2.1%, respectively.

PRODUCT CATEGORIES

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category increased
by US$12.1 million, or 22.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the prior year. US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$6.5 million, or 12.1%.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the business product category
increased by US$2.8 million, or 25.7%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased
by US$1.8 million, or 16.7%. Net sales in the casual product category increased by
US$3.0 million, or 9.5%, on a constant currency basis. US Dollar reported net sales
increased by US$0.4 million, or 1.3%.

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$6.2 million, or 7.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported net sales decreased by US$2.3 million,
or 2.8%, year-on-year due to the strengthening US Dollar. Net sales in the direct-to-
consumer channel increased by US$14.8 million, or 37.8%, on a constant currency
basis, primarily driven by the addition of 37 net new company-operated retail stores
during 2016 and the full-year impact of 28 net new stores added during 2015. US
Dollar reported net sales increased by 31.6%. On a same store, constant currency
basis, retail net sales increased by 9.4%. The Group continued to invest in retail
expansion in Latin America to expand distribution and gain market share to drive
future profitability.

MBELFE  AEEREE2016F12A31 81
FEANT EMOHES FEREE 2015912 A 31
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Latin America Net Sales ws$m

WTEMEEFE mazn
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+17.4,
2016 $130.6
2015 $120.5

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. #iBRIE 5 528 o



Latin America Adjusted EBITDA (ussm)
BT EMNEHEEBITDAEEER)

-21.8% "

2016 $7.8
2015 $10.9

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. #iFRIE 5 524 o

2 During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group's profitability in
Latin America was negatively impacted by the continued investment
in retail expansion, team and infrastructure necessary to position the
region for strong growth in the coming years.

BZE2016F 12 A31 FILFE - ARER T XN AFIRENZE A
MR AR RBEBIRIDIERABNTEEBIER - MERERR
TEHEFERENamTE

COUNTRIES EIER

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Latin American TREHEHZ2016F12A31 B KL 2015512 831H
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December |- EE iRt igi i B £ D 05 T S i[5 55 65 ) F 58 A
31, 2015, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales. A ABEHERGH &R EE FEAEA D LY -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3HLFE

2016 vs 2015
2015 2016 FEL 2015 FLLER
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales (decrease) currency effects'
Net sales by geographic location!: US$'000 SHEFH B ORA) BREE 5% 2221
RV BE S HHEEFED Fxx Bt EPale BMORAS)BDLE @
Chile B 57,867 48.0% 2.9% 6.8%
Mexico Z&7 & 38,429 31.9% 7.8% 26.0%
Brazil? B @ 10,016 8.3% 241% 25.5%
Other® HEAth 14,164 11.8% 21.64% 31.5%
Net sales $HE&/F58 120,476 100.0% 8.4% 17.4%
Notes 7+#&

)

(2)

3

4)

The geographic location of the Group's net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end
consumers were actually located.

AEEHEEFEOMSMENHRREEERNER - YT —ERKmEEE BRAENER

The net sales figure for Brazil includes net sales to third party distributors in Brazil.

EAMNHEFREEEENEAHE =S DHHNHEFE -

The net sales figure for the "Other” geographic location includes sales in Argentina, Colombia, Panama, Peru and through the Group's distribution center in Uruguay, but
does notinclude sales in Brazil to third party distributors.

gi;rlg —HHE NS FEBE RENIRE - FRls DS RWEERMNEE REBAEEN SN ENSHEP MEHNHE - ATREREAHE=SHHEER
Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

ZEEEWEERINEERIFIFRSH B ETA - ANRAFENE SR 2N EERAEFNTIERFERS -

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Chile increased by 6.8% year-on-year.  #iBR[ER & E - SRMHE FHILFILR6.8% o
US Dollar reported net sales for Chile increased by US$1.7 million, or 2.9%, primarily — WAZETEHBROE FIHEEFHAPER 1. 7EBE LK
due to improved year-on-year net sales of the Samsonite brand and the women's ~ 2.9% ' FEERF A MIE ML T FRMIE Secret
handbag brand Secret. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Mexico — HVEHE FFIRFERME - XFAE - American
increased by 26.0% for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior  Tourister & Xtrem G HHI S5 & FREIE RATAE) « M
year, driven by increased net sales in the Samsonite, American Touristerand Xtrem — FREEN &2 - HE 2016512 A31 HIEF/E2EF
brands. Net sales in Brazil increased by 25.5% on a constant currency basis and US &/ FREER 2 AT —FIE K 26.0% - XS EEEBEHE
Dollar reported net sales increased by 24.1% driven by continued retail expansion.  #ESRATHS) @ IHE T G EE - BRPEFHEER
The Group continues to invest in Brazil, where the Group's presence has historically — 25.5% * fAZE LRI EE FEBAPE R 24.1% © &
been under-represented, to drive future net sales growth and gain market share. RAEEAEREBENTISORRE - AEBEEE

MNZBEETTRE - B AR E FRRIER RIE 0
TISIEE -

Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2016 | #i5E BB AR AR 2016 4 F R

47



48

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

Cost of sales increased by US$136.0 million, or 11.8%, to US$1,289.5 million
(representing 45.9% of net sales] for the year ended December 31, 2016 from
US$1,153.5 million (representing 47.4% of net sales) for the year ended December
31, 2015.

Gross profit increased by US$242.0 million, or 18.9%, to US$1,521.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016 from US$1,279.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2015. Gross profit margin increased to 54.1% for the year ended December 31,
2016 from 52.6% for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The increase in gross profit margin was attributable to the impact from the
acquisition of Tumi, which yields higher margins, a higher proportion of sales coming
from the direct-to-consumer channel, including direct-to-consumer e-commerce,
and a reduction in certain product costs. Excluding amounts attributable to Tumi,
gross profit increased by US$63.6 million, or 5.0%, to US$1,342.6 million, and gross
profit margin increased to 53.0% for the year ended December 31, 2016 from 52.6%
for the year ended December 31, 2015.

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Distribution expenses increased by US$152.7 million, or 22.9%, to US$818.4 million
(representing 29.1% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2016 from
US$665.8 million (representing 27.4% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2015. This increase was primarily due to the acquisition of Tumi and the increase in
sales volume during the year ended December 31, 2016. Distribution expenses as
a percentage of net sales increased year-on-year primarily due to increased costs
from the Group's retail expansion strategy, investment in the infrastructure of the
Group s business in Latin America and investment in the geographical expansion of
the American Tourister, Lipault and Hartmann brands, as well as the impact from
the Tumi acquisition, including US$10.2 million of amortization attributable to the
definite-lived intangibles recognized at acquisition. Excluding amounts attributable
to Tumi, distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales were 28.3% for the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to 27.4% during the previous year.

MARKETING EXPENSES

The Group spent US$143.8 million [representing 5.1% of net sales) on marketing
during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to US$132.1 million
(representing 5.4% of net sales] for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase
of US$11.7 million, or 8.9%. On a constant currency basis, marketing expenses
increased by US$13.4 million, or 10.1%. The reduction in marketing spend as
a percentage of net sales reflects more normalized spending on the American
Tourister brand in Europe following two years of investment to increase awareness
and drive growth of the brand in the region. The Group continued to employ targeted
and focused advertising and promotional campaigns. The Group believes the
success of its advertising campaigns is evident in its net sales growth, and remains
committed to enhancing brand and product awareness and driving additional net
sales growth through focused marketing activities.
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Growth in net sales driven by new product launches
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses increased by US$23.5 million, or 15.2%, to
US$177.9 million (representing 6.3% of net sales) for the year ended December
31, 2016 from US$154.5 million (representing 6.4% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2015. General and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage
of net sales as the Group maintained tight control of its fixed cost base and leveraged
it against year-on-year net sales growth. Share-based compensation expense, a
non-cash expense included in general and administrative expenses, amounted to
US$15.5 million, an increase of US$0.3 million year-on-year. Excluding amounts
attributable to Tumi, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net
sales were 6.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 6.4% during the
previous year.

OTHER EXPENSES

The Group incurred other expenses of US$49.6 million and US$17.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Other
expenses for 2016 were primarily comprised of acquisition-related costs totaling
US$46.2 million associated with due diligence, professional and legal fees, severance
and integration costs incurred for the acquisition of Tumi, which was completed on
August 1, 2016. Other expenses for 2015 included acquisition-related costs of US$8.9
million, which were primarily comprised of costs associated with due diligence and
integration activities, severance, and professional and legal fees associated with
both the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent acquisitions that were completed in 2015
as well as other contemplated acquisitions.

Liquidation of Defined Benefit Plan

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group sponsored a defined benefit retirement plan, the
Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan (the “SERIP Plan”], which covered
certain employee groups. Retirement benefits were based on a final average pay
formula. The SERIP Plan was closed to new entrants effective December 31, 2009.
Effective December 31, 2010, the SERIP Plan was frozen to suspend future benefit
accruals. The SERIP Plan was terminated effective December 31, 2014. In connection
with the SERIP Plan’s termination, the benefits being paid to participants and
beneficiaries whose pensions were in pay were continued through the purchase

of an annuity contract from an insurance company. Participants whose pension
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payments had not started had the option to either make an election to receive a
lump-sum payment that could be rolled over into an individual retirement account
or other qualified plan, or receive either an immediate or a deferred vested annuity
contract that would pay their benefits. In August 2016, the SERIP Plan received a
determination letter from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS”) stating that
the termination of the SERIP Plan did not affect its qualification for federal tax
purposes. On or before December 31, 2016, substantially all SERIP Plan assets were
distributed to participants and beneficiaries or used to purchase the annuity that will
pay the benefits for the remaining participants (the “SERIP Plan Liguidation”).

Participants who elected to receive a lump sum payment received such payment
from SERIP Plan assets during 2016. The projected benefit obligation for participants
who did not elect to receive a lump sum benefit has been, or, in the case of the
US$7.3 million liability remaining at December 31, 2016 will be, satisfied by the
annuity contracts purchased by the Group, at which time there will be no further
recourse on the Group.

The net defined benefit liability was recalculated by the Group’s third party actuary
immediately prior to the SERIP Plan Liquidation. In conjunction with the SERIP
Plan Liquidation, the Group recognized a gain in the amount of US$6.0 million in its
consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2016. Of the US$6.0
million, US$1.5 million has been presented within general and administrative expenses
with the remainder in other expenses in the consolidated income statement.

In addition, US$56.8 million of deferred tax liabilities that were originally recognized
at the time of contributions to the SERIP Plan were removed, creating a tax benefit
for the same amount in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

See further discussion in note 14(b](ii] to the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING PROFIT

On a constant currency basis, the Group's operating profit increased by US$31.0
million, or 10.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015. Excluding acquisition-related costs, the Group’s operating
profit for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased by US$68.3 million, or 21.5%,
on a constant currency basis, year-on-year. US Dollar reported operating profit
of US$331.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased by US$22.3
million, or 7.2%, from US$308.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 due to
the factors noted above. Excluding acquisition-related costs, the Group’s US Dollar
reported operating profit increased by US$59.6 million, or 18.8%, for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015.

NET FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs increased by US$40.7 million, or 228.7%, to US$58.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016 from US$17.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2015. This increase was attributable to a US$40.5 million increase in interest
expense related to the Senior Credit Facilities (described in the Indebtedness section
below]. In addition, the increase in net finance costs was also due to a US$3.3 million
increase in the expense recognized for the change in fair value of put options related
to agreements with certain holders of non-controlling interests for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015. These increases
were partially offset by a US$3.0 million decrease in foreign exchange losses year-
on-year.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of total finance costs for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

TREFFNEE2016F 12831 H KX 201512 A31H
I FERBIFE AR -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3NBLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AAF =T 25) 2016 2015
Recognized in income or loss: AU Sk E B PR

Interest income on bank deposits SRITERNFEWA 1,253 868
Total finance income e ANt 1,253 868
Interest expense on financial liabilities RESHRATTENERE BN SR (43,691) (3,160)

measured at amortized cost

Change in fair value of put options ROLHEAREERS (9,119) (5,772)
Net foreign exchange loss SN & 1R FER (3,660) (6,681)
Other finance costs HibEriEE R (3,319) (3,066)
Total finance costs BB RMERE (59,789) (18,679)
Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss IR PN EISE BEEE (58,536) (17,811)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

On a constant currency basis, profit before income tax decreased by US$10.5 million,
or 3.6%, to US$280.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from US$291.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 due to the aforementioned increases
in acquisition-related costs and financing costs. US Dollar reported profit before
income tax decreased by US$18.4 million, or 6.3%, to US$272.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 from US$291.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2015. Excluding acquisition-related costs, profit before income tax increased
by US$26.8 million, or 8.9%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported
profit before income tax increased by US$18.9 million, or 6.3%, for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015, despite a year-
on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated with
the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.

INCOME TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE)

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group recorded an income tax benefit of
US$2.2 million compared with income tax expense of US$74.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015. In conjunction with the SERIP Plan Liquidation, the Group
recorded a US$56.8 million tax benefit related to the derecognition of deferred tax
liabilities that originated from contributions to the pension plan in prior years. In
addition, the enacted future tax rate in Luxembourg decreased by 321 basis points to
26.0%, which resulted in a favorable tax adjustment of US$8.8 million to the Group's
deferred tax liabilities. Excluding these tax benefits, as well as the tax benefit resulting
from the Tumi acquisition-related costs, the Group s effective tax rate was 27.8%.

The Group's consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 0.8% and (25.4)%
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The
effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average income tax rate from those
jurisdictions in which the Group is subject to tax, adjusted for permanent book/tax
differences, tax incentives, changes in tax reserves and changes in unrecognized
deferred tax assets. The increase in the Group s effective tax rate, as adjusted above
for certain one-time items, was mainly the result of normal changes in the profit mix
between high and low tax jurisdictions.
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

On a constant currency basis, profit for the year increased by US$63.0 million, or
29.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December
31, 2015. Excluding the tax-effected acquisition-related costs and the income tax
benefit resulting from the SERIP Plan Liquidation, the Group's profit for the year
increased by US$28.5 million, or 12.8%, on a constant currency basis, despite a
year-on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated
with the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition. US Dollar
reported profit for the year of US$274.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 increased by US$57.8 million, or 26.6%, from US$217.0 million for the previous
year. Excluding the same factors noted above, the Group 's US Dollar reported profit
for the year increased by US$23.4 million, or 10.5%, for the year ended December
31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015, despite a year-on-year
increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated with the Senior
Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.

On a constant currency basis, profit attributable to the equity holders increased by
US$63.2 million, or 32.0%, compared to the prior year due to the factors noted above.
Excluding tax-effected acquisition-related costs and the income tax benefit resulting
from the SERIP Plan Liguidation, the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders
increased by US$28.7 million, or 14.1%, on a constant currency basis, despite a year-
on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated with the
Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition. US Dollar reported profit
attributable to the equity holders was US$255.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2016, an increase of US$58.0 million, or 29.4%, from US$197.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015. Excluding the same factors noted above, the Group’s US
Dollar reported profit attributable to equity holders increased by US$23.6 million, or
11.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31,
2015, despite a year-on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily
associated with the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition.

Basic earnings per share (“Basic EPS”] increased by 29.3% to US$0.181 for the
year ended December 31, 2016 from US$0.140 for the year ended December 31,
2015. Diluted earnings per share increased by 29.3% to US$0.181 for the year
ended December 31, 2016 from US$0.140 for the year ended December 31, 2015.
The weighted average number of shares utilized in the Basic EPS calculation was
1,410,593,129 shares as of December 31, 2016 compared to 1,409,398,785 shares as
of December 31, 2015. The weighted average number of shares outstanding utilized
in the Diluted EPS calculation was 1,413,559,223 shares as of December 31, 2016
compared to 1,412,181,274 shares as of December 31, 2015.

ADJUSTED EBITDA

On a constant currency basis, Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, increased
by US$91.5 million, or 22.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA increased
by US$84.5 million, or 21.1%, to US$485.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2016 from US$401.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar
reported Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 17.3% from 16.5% primarily due to
the inclusion of Tumi. Excluding the Adjusted EBITDA and net sales attributable to
Tumi, US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA was US$421.3 million, or 16.6%, of net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2016. The Group continued to maintain tight
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control of its fixed cost base while achieving net sales growth. See the reconciliation ~ EZE 2016F 12 A 31 B I FE LAE TR L FHE
of profit for the year to Adjusted EBITDA below for a detailed discussion of the ~ EBITDAA421 3B EETT » SGHEFEE16.6% °
Group’s results excluding certain costs and charges and other non-cash charges ~ AEE—FHEEBUEE FHIER - RITEERZ
that impacted US Dollar reported profit for the year. EHIEEEA o B AARNEEEE (S P E MR E
AETT R FREMNBRTENZERARE R
AR EMIER ¢ 8B FERR - F2H T XAR
N M EAS T2 EBITDA B HIAR -

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group's profit for the year ~ NE&R#EFIEZE 2016512 A31 AKX 2015F12A31H
to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015: LEF N5 [ A g ) BLAE 9 22 EBITDA RIS BR -

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A3MALFEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LA T3 27!) 2016 2015
Profit for the year FRER 274,825 217,017
Plus (Minus): nGREL -
Income tax expense (benefit) PSR < (%) (2,160) 74,043
Finance costs B E M 59,789 18,679
Finance income B FEUL A (1,253) (868)
Depreciation e 66,785 48,985
Amortization e 22,456 10,590
EBITDA EBITDA 420,442 368,446
Plus: hn:
Share-based compensation expense LABRAD 2 A5 B9 5 BM B =% 15,490 15,215
Other adjustments!” HehFazEn 49,706 17,526
Adjusted EBITDA IR EBITDA 485,638 401,187
Adjusted EBITDA growth KR EBITDAE R 21.1% 4.4%
Adjusted EBITDA growth, constant currency basis LTAEEBITDARR » REIEEMEE 22.8% 12.6%
Adjusted EBITDA margin A EBITDARIE = 17.3% 16.5%
Note 7+

(1) Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement, which includes acquisition-related costs of US$46.2 million and
US$8.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
Hip BB EERERERGERTH [HEhk ] - EheE8E2016F12 31 B 2015F 12831 B ILFEOKREREBRAE - 25R46. 288X TR8IABET
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The following tables present reconciliations from profit (loss] for the year to Adjusted

EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December

31, 2015:

TREFFNEZE2016F 12831 H KX 2015F 12 A31H
I F e EE2T TR (E18) B

EBITDAHIER :

Year ended December 31, 2016
BE2016F12A31HLEFE

North Latin
Asia America Europe America Corporate Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (JAFET251) G SIS BUM HLT MO b1 st
Profit (loss) for the year FRER (BE) 102,883 40,649 49,356 (7,187) 89,124 274,825
Plus (Minus): IGRL -
Income tax expense (benefit) FrERiEX (3ER) 31,184 42,863 14,769 172 (91,148) (2,160)
Finance costs MisER (343) 840 4,615 2,641 52,036 59,789
Finance income BAFgUL A (654) (7) (192) (226) (174) (1,253)
Depreciation e 18,920 20,663 21,430 3,333 2,439 66,785
Amortization i 10,502 5,194 3,074 3,272 44 22,456
EBITDA EBITDA 162,492 110,202 93,052 2,005 52,691 420,442
Plus (Minus): InCRL) ¢
Share-based compensation LU 251
expense e 55 1,412 3,154 812 136 9,976 15,490
Other adjustments®? HitnFRzE 64,024 56,479 15,975 5,659 (92,431) 49,706
Adjusted EBITDA #ETHR EBITDA 227,928 169,835 109,839 7,800 (29,764) 485,638
Adjusted EBITDA growth KA EBITDAERE 13.6% 36.8% 18.9% (28.6)% 10.9% 21.1%
Adjusted EBITDA growth, #LFAEEBITDAER -
constant currency basis REEEHEE 15.8% 37.0% 20.7% (21.8)% 10.9% 22.8%
Adjusted EBITDA margin #EAE EBITDAREZEE 22.2% 16.5% 17.9% 6.0% nmBEZSH 17.3%

Notes 7%

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group's profitability in Latin America was negatively impacted by the continued investment in retail expansion, team and
infrastructure necessary to position the region for strong growth in the coming years.

248

BE2016F12 A3 HIEFE - ARERN T RMOBMNENZ I AZERARBFSRADEEMBANTEEBHER ERREEZMEHOBEREANETS

e

(2] Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement which includes acquisition-related costs. Regional results include intra-

group royalty income/expense.

HipRETEaEGAlERTH [Rubx ] EdeFEEaMRA < wREEEEE NP EMEA /X -

nm  Not meaningful. EEE 5

Year ended December 31, 2015
HE2015F 1283 BLEFE

North Latin
Asia America Europe America Corporate Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (JA T2 27!)) ZEM SIS BUM HTENM b1 EEi
Profit (loss) for the year FRRA (EE) 83,752 33,078 34,479 (3,980) 69,688 217,017
Plus (Minus): G -
Income tax expense FsHimX 29,382 21,680 16,982 2,743 3,256 74,043
Finance costs BKkER 2,167 5827 1,115 4,816 9,254 18,679
Finance income R TN (488) (2) (444) 66 = (868)
Depreciation wE 15,084 (§ES58 17,608 2,345 2,395 48,985
Amortization sy 5,233 1,347 1,720 2,256 34 10,590
EBITDA EBITDA 135,130 68,983 71,460 8,246 84,627 368,446
Plus (Minus): MR ¢
Share-based compensation DA A7 2 A5 B9 5 BB =2
expense 1,116 2,704 1,311 41 10,041 215
Other adjustments!! HipEz O 520 REEEED 2,640 (121501) 17,526
Adjusted EBITDA #EFHEEEBITDA 200,560 12451153 92,380 10,927 (26,833) 401,187
Adjusted EBITDA margin BB EBITDARIEER 212%  153%  17.0% 91% nmEEZE  165%

Notes #Hf#
m

HBEIZOEGERERTH [EMMA%] - EPaEREERKE < @ XA EEERHBNER KA /MY -

nm  Not meaningful. & °

Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement which includes acquisition-related costs. Regional results include
intra-group royalty income/expense.
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The Group has presented Adjusted EBITDA because it believes that, when viewed
with its results of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS and with the
reconciliation to profit for the year, Adjusted EBITDA provides additional information
that is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance
and of the trends impacting its business. Adjusted EBITDA is an important metric the

Group uses to evaluate its operating performance and cash generation.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure and as calculated herein may not
be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies and should
not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year in the Group's
consolidated income statement. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical
tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, an analysis
of the Group s results of operations as reported under IFRS.

ADJUSTED NET INCOME

On a constant currency basis, Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, increased
by US$44.4 million, or 20.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2015. US Dollar reported Adjusted Net Income increased
by US$41.0 million, or 18.9%, to US$257.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2016 from US$216.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, despite a
year-on-year increase in interest expense of US$40.5 million, primarily associated
with the Senior Credit Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition. See the
reconciliation of profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income below for a detailed
discussion of the Group's results excluding certain costs and charges and other
non-cash charges that impacted US Dollar reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Basic EPS and adjusted Diluted EPS, non-IFRS measures, increased to
US$0.183 and US$0.182, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2016 from
US$0.154 and US$0.154, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group's profit for the year to
Adjusted Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:
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Year ended December 31,
BEZ1N2ANBLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LA T3 2%1)) 2016 2015
Profit for the year FRREA 274,825 217,017
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests IR R EEF (19,158) (19,378)
Profit attributable to the equity holders IRAEISE AEMEF 255,667 197,639
Plus (Minus): o)
Change in fair value of put options ROLHEA R EEEE 9,119 5,772
Amortization of intangible assets E B EE 22,456 10,590
Acquisition-related costs LKL B #E A AR AR 46,189 8,877
Tax benefit from the SERIP Plan Liquidation JBE SERIPETEIMBIIEIR (56,773) -
Other adjustments!” Hipgz 5,775 -
Tax adjustments!? BIRFE (24,547) (5,968)
Adjusted Net Income® FEEHEOE T N 257,886 216,910

Notes &

(1) Other adjustments consisted of US$5.8 million for interest expense associated with the Term Loan B Facility incurred prior to the acquisition on August 1, 2016 (described in

the Indebtedness section below).

HpRBEERR2016F8 A 1 RIE SRR ZAEL M BEHEFB(HAN TXaE—#)BHNF S5 8A&XTT

(2] Tax adjustments represent the tax effect of the reconciling line items as included in the consolidated income statement.

BEABE NG RRRNERIER N RBHE
(3] Represents Adjusted Net Income attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
AR BBERA ARGERHBFRA -
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during 2016, driven by a 13.7%"" decrease in Asia, partially
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

The Group has presented Adjusted Net Income because it believes this measure
helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties a better
understanding of the Group's underlying financial performance. By presenting
Adjusted Net Income, the Group eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges
and credits and certain other non-cash charges, along with their respective tax
effects, that impact US Dollar reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-IFRS financial measure, and as calculated herein
may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies
and should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year in the
Group's consolidated income statement. Adjusted Net Income has limitations as an
analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for,
an analysis of the Group s results of operations as reported under IFRS.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The primary objective of the Group's capital management policies is to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for the Company's
shareholders, and to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses, working
capital needs and the payment of obligations. The Group's primary sources of
liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities, invested cash, available lines of
credit and, subject to shareholder approval, the Company s ability to issue additional
shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and estimated cash flows, along
with current working capital, will be adequate to meet the operating and capital
requirements of the Group for at least the next twelve months.

Net cash flows provided by operating activities increased by US$1.7 million, or
0.7%, to US$260.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
US$259.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in profit for the year, partially offset by a US$34.2 million
increase in cash paid for interest, primarily associated with the Senior Credit
Facilities utilized to finance the Tumi acquisition and the US$37.3 million increase in
acquisition-related costs recorded in 2016.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash flows used in investing activities
were US$1,759.4 million compared to US$104.1 million in the previous year. This
increase was due to the acquisition of Tumi on August 1, 2016 compared to the
acquisitions of Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent in 2015.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were US$1,697.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to net cash flows used in financing
activities of US$110.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Group
received gross proceeds of US$1,925.0 million from the Term Loan Facilities
(described in the Indebtedness section below] which were used to fund the
acquisition of Tumi. The Group paid US$69.5 million in deferred financing costs
related to the Term Loan Facilities. Cash flows used in financing activities for the
year ended December 31, 2015 are largely attributable to the US$88.0 million
distribution to shareholders and the purchase of the non-controlling interest in the
Group s Russian subsidiary.

The Group had US$368.5 million in cash and cash equivalents as of December 31,
2016, compared to US$180.8 million as of December 31, 2015. As of December 31,
2016, US$35.1 million of the cash was restricted. No amounts were restricted as of
December 31, 2015. Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the functional
currencies of each respective Group entity.
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Indebtedness

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Group’s loans and
borrowings as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AT =T 251)

&fE

TERBIIAKEN2016F12 A31 AR 2015F 12 A
3T HAMESRRERNREE

December 31, 2016
201612 A31H

December 31, 2015
20155128318

Term Loan A Facility AEHEREE
Term Loan B Facility BEME M RIE
Revolving Facility RREE

Senior Credit Facilities BEEERRE
Prior Revolving Facility BEBREE
Other lines of credit Hit= &%

Finance lease obligations RLE T ERIE
Total loans and borrowings BERRETHERE

Less deferred financing costs IR FE B E A A

Total loans and borrowings less deferred
financing costs

Senior Credit Facilities

Overview

On May 13, 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a
Credit and Guaranty Agreement dated as of May 13, 2016 (the “Credit Agreement”)
with certain lenders and financial institutions. On August 1, 2016 [the “Closing
Date”), the Company and certain of its other indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
became parties to the Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement provides for (1] a
US$1,250.0 million senior secured term loan A facility [the “Term Loan A Facility”), (2)
a US$675.0 million senior secured term loan B facility (the “Term Loan B Facility”
and, together with the Term Loan A Facility, the “Term Loan Facilities”) and (3) a
US$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”, and, together
with the Term Loan Facilities, the “Senior Credit Facilities”]. On May 13, 2016,
the proceeds of the borrowings under the Term Loan B Facility were funded and
deposited into an escrow account and were held in escrow until the consummation
of the merger with Tumi on the Closing Date, at which time such proceeds were
released from escrow and were used to pay a portion of the consideration under the
Merger Agreement.

On the Closing Date, the Company and certain of its other indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries became parties to the Credit Agreement, and the Group used the
proceeds from the Senior Credit Facilities to pay the total consideration under the
Merger Agreement, to repay all amounts then outstanding under the Group’s prior
US$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Prior Revolving Facility"), which Prior
Revolving Facility was then terminated, and to pay fees, costs and expenses related
to the Tumi acquisition, as well as for general corporate purposes.

BERRAERBRREL RS R A

1,242,187 —
673,313 L
10,516 -
1,926,016 3
- 48,174

13,410 15,921
283 87
1,939,709 64,182
(64,341) (1,401)
1,875,368 62,781
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Interest Rate and Fees

Interest on the borrowings under the Term Loan A Facility and the Revolving Facility
began to accrue on the Closing Date. The interest rates for such borrowings were
initially based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus an applicable
margin of 2.75% per annum. The borrowers under such facilities could also initially
elect to pay interest at a base rate plus 1.75% per annum. The applicable margin for
borrowings under both the Term Loan A Facility and the Revolving Facility may step
down based on achievement of a specified total net leverage ratio of the Company
and its subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal quarter, commencing with the quarter
ended December 31, 2016. Interest on the borrowing under the Term Loan B Facility
began to accrue on May 13, 2016 at the rate of LIBOR plus 3.25% per annum. The
borrower under such facility may also elect to pay interest at a base rate plus 2.25%.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the Senior Credit
Facilities, the borrowers will pay customary agency fees and a commitment fee
in respect of the unutilized commitments under the Revolving Facility, which
was initially 0.50% per annum. The commitment fee may step down based on the
achievement of a specified total net leverage ratio level of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal quarter, commencing with the quarter ended
December 31, 2016.

Subsequent to December 31, 2016, the Group refinanced the Senior Credit Facilities
on February 2, 2017 (the “Repricing”). Under the terms of the Repricing, the interest
rate payable on the Term Loan A Facility and the Revolving Facility was reduced with
effect from February 2, 2017 until the delivery of the financial statements for the
period ending June 30, 2017 to LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum (or a base rate plus
1.00% per annum) from LIBOR plus 2.75% per annum (or a base rate plus 1.75% per
annum) and thereafter shall be based on the total net leverage ratio of the Group at
the end of each fiscal quarter. The interest rate payable on the Term Loan B Facility
was reduced with effect from February 2, 2017 to LIBOR plus 2.25% per annum
with a LIBOR floor of 0.00% (or a base rate plus 1.25% per annum) from LIBOR plus
3.25% with a LIBOR floor of 0.75% (or a base rate plus 2.25% per annum). In addition,
the commitment fee payable in respect of the unutilized commitments under the
Revolving Facility was reduced from 0.5% per annum to 0.375% per annum through
June 30, 2017 and thereafter shall be based on the total net leverage ratio of the
Group at the end of each fiscal quarter. In conjunction with the Repricing, the Group
incurred approximately US$5.2 million in fees and expenses that will be deferred

and amortized over the term of the borrowings.
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POSITION Founded by Joseph S. Hartmann in 1877 in Milwaukee,

Wisconsin, U.S.A., Hartmann is an iconic American
luggage and leathergoods brand known for its long
heritage, traditional aesthetic and craftsmanship.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Mandatory Prepayments

The Credit Agreement requires certain mandatory prepayments of outstanding loans
under the Term Loan Facilities from the net cash proceeds of certain asset sales and
casualty and condemnation events (subject to reinvestment rights), and the net cash
proceeds of any incurrence or issuance of debt not permitted under the Senior Credit
Facilities, in each case subject to customary exceptions and thresholds. The Credit
Agreement also provides for mandatory prepayments of the Term Loan B Facility to
be made based on the excess cash flow of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Voluntary Prepayments

Voluntary prepayments of the Term Loan B Facility in connection with re-pricing
transactions on or prior to six months following the Repricing will be subject to a call
premium of 1.0%. Otherwise, all outstanding loans under the Senior Credit Facilities
may be voluntarily prepaid at any time without premium or penalty other than
customary “breakage” costs with respect to LIBOR loans.

Amortization and Final Maturity

The Term Loan A Facility requires scheduled quarterly payments commencing
December 31, 2016, with an amortization of 2.5% of the original principal amount
of the loans under the Term Loan A Facility made during the first year, with a step-
up to 5.0% amortization during the second and third years, 7.5% during the fourth
year and 10.0% during the fifth year, with the balance due and payable on the fifth
anniversary of the Closing Date. The Term Loan B Facility requires scheduled
quarterly payments commencing December 31, 2016, each equal to 0.25% of the
original principal amount of the loans under the Term Loan B Facility, with the
balance due and payable on the seventh anniversary of the Closing Date. There is no
scheduled amortization of the principal amounts of the loans outstanding under the
Revolving Facility. Any principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Facility is
due and payable on the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date.

Guarantees and Security

The obligations of the borrowers under the Senior Credit Facilities are unconditionally
guaranteed by the Company and certain of the Company s existing direct or indirect
wholly-owned material subsidiaries, and are required to be guaranteed by certain
future direct or indirect wholly-owned material subsidiaries organized in the
jurisdictions of Luxembourg, Belgium, Canada, Hong Kong, Hungary, Mexico and the
United States. All obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities, and the guarantees
of those obligations, are secured, subject to certain exceptions, by substantially all of
the assets of the Company and the assets of certain of its direct and indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries that are borrowers and/or guarantors under the Senior Credit
Facilities, including: (i) a first-priority pledge of all of the equity interests of certain of
the Company s subsidiaries and each wholly-owned material restricted subsidiary of
these entities (which pledge, in the case of any foreign subsidiary of a U.S. entity, is
limited to 66% of the voting capital stock and 100% of the non-voting capital stock of
such foreign subsidiary); and (i) a first-priority security interest in substantially all of
the tangible and intangible assets of the Company and the subsidiary guarantors.

Certain Covenants and Events of Default

The Senior Credit Facilities contain a number of customary negative covenants that,
among other things and subject to certain exceptions, may restrict the ability of the
Company and its subsidiaries to: (i) incur additional indebtedness; [ii] pay dividends
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or distributions on its capital stock or redeem, repurchase or retire its capital
stock or its other indebtedness; (iii) make investments, loans and acquisitions; (iv)
engage in transactions with its affiliates; (v) sell assets, including capital stock of its
subsidiaries; (vi) consolidate or merge; (vii) materially alter the business it conducts;
(viii) incur liens; and (ix) prepay or amend any junior debt or subordinated debt.

In addition, the Credit Agreement requires the Company and its subsidiaries to meet
certain quarterly financial covenants. Commencing with the fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to maintain (i) a
pro forma total net leverage ratio of not greater than 4.75:1.00, which threshold will
decrease to 4.50:1.00 for test periods in 2018, 4.25:1.00 for test periods in 2019 and
4.00:1.00 for test periods in 2020, and (i) a pro forma interest coverage ratio of not
less than 3.25:1.00. The Group was in compliance with the financial covenants as of
December 31, 2016.

The Credit Agreement also contains certain customary representations and
warranties, affirmative covenants and provisions relating to events of default
(including upon a change of control).

Interest Rate Swaps

The Group entered into interest rate swap transactions on June 1, 2016 that became
effective on December 31, 2016 and will terminate on August 31, 2021. The Group
uses the interest rate swap transactions to minimize its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations under the floating-rate Senior Credit Facilities by swapping certain
US Dollar floating-rate bank borrowings with fixed-rate agreements. The interest
rate swap agreements have initial notional amounts totaling US$1,237.0 million
representing approximately 65% of the anticipated balances of the Term Loan
Facilities. The notional amounts of the interest rate swap agreements decrease
over time in line with required amortization and anticipated prepayments on the
Term Loan Facilities. LIBOR has been fixed at approximately 1.30% under each
agreement. Each of the interest rate swap agreements have fixed payments due
monthly starting January 31, 2017. The interest rate swap transactions qualify as
cash flow hedges under IFRS. As of December 31, 2016, the interest rate swaps were
marked-to-market, resulting in a net asset position to the Group in the amount of
US$16.1 million, which was recorded as an asset with the effective portion of the
gain deferred to other comprehensive income.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Group recognized US$69.5 million of deferred financing costs during the year
ended December 31, 2016 related to the Senior Credit Facilities, all of which were
included in non-current loans and borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2016. The deferred financing costs were
comprised of the original issue discount, commitment fees and other financing-
related costs that will be deferred and offset against loans and borrowings to be
amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the Term Loan Facilities.

Revolving Facility

As of December 31, 2016, US$486.4 million was available to be borrowed on the
Revolving Facility as a result of US$10.5 million of outstanding borrowings and the
utilization of US$3.1 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to
certain creditors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

Prior Revolving Facility

Until July 31, 2016, the Group maintained the Prior Revolving Facility in the amount
of US$500.0 million. The Prior Revolving Facility had an initial term of five years from
its effective date of June 17, 2014, with a one-year extension available at the request
of the Group and at the option of the lenders. The interest rate on borrowings under
the Prior Revolving Facility was the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR or (b) the prime rate
of the lender and (i) a margin to be determined based on the Group's leverage
ratio. Based on the Group’s leverage ratio, the Prior Revolving Facility carried a
commitment fee ranging from 0.2% to 0.325% per annum on any unutilized amounts,
as well as an agency fee if another lender joined the Prior Revolving Facility. The
Prior Revolving Facility was secured by certain of the Group's assets in the United
States and Europe, as well as the Group s intellectual property. The Prior Revolving
Facility also contained financial covenants related to interest coverage and leverage
ratios, and operating covenants that, among other things, limited the Group's
ability to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain
mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Prior Revolving
Facility was terminated and all outstanding balances were repaid in conjunction with
the financing for the Tumi acquisition on August 1, 2016.

Other Loans and Borrowings

Certain consolidated subsidiaries of the Group maintain credit lines with various
third party lenders in the regions in which they operate. Other loans and borrowings
are generally variable rate instruments denominated in the functional currency
of the borrowing Group entity. These local credit lines provide working capital for
the day-to-day business operations of the subsidiaries, including overdraft, bank
guarantees, and trade finance and factoring facilities. The majority of these credit
lines are uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate amount outstanding under the
local facilities was US$13.4 million and US$15.9 million as of December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively. The uncommitted available lines of credit
amounted to US$79.5 million and US$88.1 million as of December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively.

The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Group's loans and
borrowings (excluding the impact of netting agreements) as of December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LA T2 2%1))
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On demand or within one year
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After two years but within five years MEREBERAFR
More than five years AFUE

Hedging

The Group's non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in US Dollars which are
designated as cash flow hedges. Cash outflows associated with these derivatives as
of December 31, 2016 are expected to be US$95.4 million within one year.
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Group's historical capital expenditures for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

Hib 8 E %
XM
BREEFHZ

TREHIAREBHZ2016F12 A31 B KL 2015F 12
A3 BLFERNBAEEARY

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3NBLFE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (JAFZT251) 2016 2015
Land T 26
Buildings BF 2,659
Machinery, equipment, leasehold improvements He2S - RfE - HEYEEBREM
and other 65,792
Total capital expenditures BB 68,477
Capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2016 included costs for ~ #ZE2016F 12 A31AILFE + EAFHZBIERF
the construction of a new warehouse in China, new or remodeled retail locations and ~ BIEE—FTH A EMREETIE - FIEKEETEH

investments in the Group s infrastructure.

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Group s capital expenditures budget for 2017 is approximately US$114.4 million.
The increase from 2016 reflects the inclusion of Tumi. The Group plans to complete
the warehouse in China and the plant expansion in Hungary, refurbish existing retail
stores, open new retail stores and invest in machinery and equipment.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Group s contractual
obligations for which cash flows are fixed and determinable as of December 31, 2016:

Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (JAFZT251) st

BERRAER
RIEKERENRK

Loans and borrowings

Minimum operating
lease payments

Total Bt
As of December 31, 2016, the Group did not have any material off-balance sheet
arrangements or contingencies except as included in the table summarizing its
contractual obligations above.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries

Other than the acquisition of Tumi, there were no other significant investments held,
material acquisitions, or disposals of subsidiaries during the year ended December
31, 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERB®E

The Board of Directors (the “Board”] of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
The Company recognizes that sound corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of the Company and to its
ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance manual, which is based on
the principles, provisions and practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(as in effect from time to time, the "CG Code"] contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Company complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the period from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016, except for the
deviation from code provision F.1.3 discussed below regarding the Company’s Joint
Company Secretaries.

Code provision F.1.3 provides that the company secretary should report to the
Chairman and CEQ.

Mr. John Livingston, the Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company, reports to the Company’s Chief Financial
Officer ("CFQ”). The Company believes this is appropriate because Mr. Livingston
is based at the same location as the CFO and works closely with him on a day-to-
day basis. In addition, Mr. Livingston works directly with the Company’s Chairman,
its CEO and with the chairpersons of the various Board committees with respect
to corporate governance and other Board-related matters. Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy,
the Company’s other joint company secretary based in Hong Kong, reports to Mr.
Livingston. The Company believes this is appropriate because her primary role as
joint company secretary is to assist Mr. Livingston in ensuring that the Company
complies with its obligations under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”] for securities
transactions by directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Group on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required standard set out in
the Trading Policy during the year ended December 31, 2016. Directors” and Chief
Executives’ interests in the Company’s shares as of December 31, 2016 are set out
at pages 116 to 118 of this Annual Report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for (i) overseeing the corporate
governance and financial reporting of the Company, (i) ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems, [iii) overseeing the Company’s policies and procedures
on compliance and corporate governance, and (iv] the training and continuous
professional development of its directors and senior management. To assist it in
fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three board committees: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee (details
of which are set out at pages 69 to 72 of this Annual Report).

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the Board
functions effectively and acts in the best interests of the Company. The CEO is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the Company.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must be
approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation, approval
and adoption of the Company’s annual operating budget and capital expenditure
budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEQ, CFO, Joint Company Secretary or certain
other members of the Company’s senior management team; and approving and
recommending significant transactions.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD, NUMBER OF BOARD
MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board consists of nine directors, including two Executive Directors ("EDs"),
three Non-Executive Directors ["NEDs"], and four Independent Non-Executive
Directors ("INEDs"). The biographical details of each director and their respective
responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 84 to 94 of this Annual Report. None of the members
of the Board is related to one another.
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There were twelve meetings of the Board held during the year ended December

31, 2016. The following is the attendance record of the directors at Board and
committee meetings, as well as at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders
held during the year:

HE2016F12A31BIEFE /BT +=
ReE - TIATFREESHEEEEREECSH
PYNELE S ki Nz oFk - o

Attendance HiERE
Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration ~ Annual General
Category Directors Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BREER FHEES BREFBFRE

bl EE

—

Timothy Charles Parker

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala

Kyle Francis Gendreau

Tom Korbas

Jerome Squire Griffith!"

Paul Kenneth Etchells

Keith Hamill

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)

Ying Yeh
e

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko?
= R
Notes 7+

(1) Mr. Jerome Squire Griffith was appointed to the Board as a NED on September 22, 2016.
Jerome Squire Griffith e 478 2016 9 A 22 AEEEMAEF G REIFNTES -

REZEE

=

(2] Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko resigned from the Board and from the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees effective September 22, 2016.
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Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation of his or her
independence, and the Company considers each of the INEDs to be independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14 days in advance,
and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. Annual meeting
schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally made available to
directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow directors to include items
in the agenda, and final agendas together with board papers are sent to directors at
least 3 days before each regular Board meeting, and as soon as practicable before
other Board meetings, so that the Board can make informed decisions on matters
placed before it. Each director also has separate and independent access to the
senior management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest in a transaction,
that director is required to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at the meeting for approving the transaction.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company usesaformalandtransparent procedure for the appointment, election
and removal of directors, which is set out in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
and is led by the Nomination Committee, which will make recommendations on
new director appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the directors is engaged on a service contract, with their appointment
subject to re-election. Further details of the appointment, election and removal of
directors are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages

84 to 94 of this Annual Report.

Each director is appointed for a maximum term of three years, after which, upon
recommendation of the Board, such director may be proposed for re-election by the
Company’s shareholders in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy that provides that the Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of the Board's performance and to support the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives. Under the policy, all Board appointments will be based on
merit, in the context of the knowledge, skills and experience that the Board as a
whole requires to be effective.

INDUCTION AND ONGOING DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and awareness of a director’'s responsibilities and obligations. Mr.
Jerome Squire Griffith received such an induction following his election to the
Board in September 2016.

All directors participate in continuous professional development in order to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each member of the Board received
training on corporate governance, regulatory developments or other relevant topics
during the year ended December 31, 2016, and directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees generally follow the
same procedures as for meetings of the Board.
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Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee and has adopted written terms
of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
(Chairman of the Audit Committee] (INED], Mr. Keith Hamill (INED) and Ms. Ying
Yeh (INEDJ.

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the Audit
Committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise in discharging the responsibilities of the
Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements
as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever required.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems, to monitor the integrity of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and financial reporting, and to oversee the audit process.

There were five meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2016. The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2016:

*  Reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2016, and received
periodic updates on the status of internal audit activities from the Company’'s
Vice President of Internal Audit;

° Reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2015;

e Reviewed the annual financial statements (both consolidated and standalone),
annual results announcement and annual report for the year ended December
31,2015 and recommended approval of such documents to the Board;

° Reviewed the independence of the Company's external auditors and
recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ended
December 31, 2016;

e Approved the non-audit services that could be provided by the external auditors
during the year ended December 31, 2016;

. Reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements, interim results
announcement and interim report of the Company for the six months ended
June 30, 2016, and recommended approval of such documents to the Board;

° Reviewed the Company's results announcement for the three and nine-
months ended September 30, 2016, and recommended approval of such
announcement to the Board:;

°  Reviewed and approved the plan for and scope of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016
and the fee proposal for such audit;

° Reviewed arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties;
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°  Met twice with the Company’s external auditors without the presence of the
EDs or management; and

e Met with the Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit without the presence
of the EDs or management.

In addition, during the first three months of 2017 the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of risk management and internal controls
for the year ended December 31, 2016; reviewed the annual financial statements,
annual results announcement and annual report for the year ended December 31,
2016 and recommended approval of such documents to the Board; and reviewed
the independence of the Company’s external auditors and recommended the re-
engagement of the external auditors for the year ending December 31, 2017.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Timothy Charles
Parker (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (NED), Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
(INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board with respect
to any changes to the composition of the Board, and to assess the independence of
the INEDs. When identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee shall
(where applicable and appropriate) use open advertising or the services of external
advisers and consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds on merit and
against objective criteria.

There were three meetings of the Nomination Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2016. The following is @ summary of the work performed by
the Nomination Committee during 2016:

°  Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
. Reviewed the time and contribution required from directors;

° Assessed the independence of the INEDs and concluded that each of the
INEDs satisfied the independence requirements applicable to INEDs;

e  Considered the retirement and re-nomination of directors to stand for re-
election to the Board at the Company’'s 2016 annual general meeting of
shareholders;

*  Recommended that the Board nominate Mr. Jerome Squire Griffith for election
to the Board; and

°  Recommended that the Board appoint Mr. Keith Hamill as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Keith Hamill
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
(INED), Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain [Hardy) (INED] and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’'s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, as well as to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all EDs and certain members of
senior management.

There were six meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2016. The following is a summary of the work performed by
the Remuneration Committee during 2016:

°  Approved the grant of share options to senior managers and the EDs, and
recommended to the Board the approval of the grant of share options to other
employees of the Group, on May 6, 2016;

°  Approved the additional special grant of share options to two members of
the Group’s senior management team, and recommended to the Board the
approval of such additional special grant, on May 6, 2016;

*  Reviewed and approved the compensation of each member of the Company’s
senior management, including the EDs, for 201¢;

*  Reviewed the remuneration of non-executive directors for 2016; and

e Approved the participation of certain members of the Company’s senior
managementin the Company’s Management Severance Plan, which establishes
guidelines that may be modified by the Remuneration Committee inits discretion
with respect to severance payable to certain members of senior management,
including the EDs, if their employment with the Group is terminated by the
Group without cause or by the senior manager for good reason.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Company, as
well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors.

The remuneration of directors is recommended to the Company’s shareholders by
the Board, which receives recommendations from the Remuneration Committee.
The remuneration of directors must be approved by special resolutions at the
annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company. All of the NEDs and
INEDs received directors’ fees. EDs did not receive any directors’ fees.

Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the EDs and senior
management receive cash compensation in the form of salaries as well as annual
bonuses that are subject to annual performance targets. The EDs and senior
management also receive periodic grants of share options, which serve as the long-
term incentive component of the Group’s compensation strategy.
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Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses,
share-based compensation expense and other benefits] was approximately
US$10.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. The aggregate amount of
emoluments for the five highest paid individuals of the Group, including certain
EDs, was approximately US$12.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. No
amounts have been paid to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
for the year ended December 31, 2016. No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments to which they were entitled for the year ended December 31, 2016.

The following information summarizes the emoluments, by band, of the members of
the Company’s senior management team during the year ended December 31, 2016:

HK$5,000,000 - HK$10,000,000
(US$644,000 - US$1,289,000): 4

HK$10,000,001 - HK$15,000,000
(US$1,289,001 - US$1,933,000): 3

HK$15,000,001 - HK$20,000,000
(US$1,933,001 - US$2,577,000): 1

Over HK$20,000,000
(Over US$2,577,001): 2

Such emoluments are shown inclusive of the share-based compensation expense
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2016 for all grants made to date
for these individuals.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 130 to
136 of this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December
31,2016 provided by KPMG LLP and its foreign member firms, the external auditors
of the Company, were as follows:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LA T3 271)
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5,000,000 #7T - 10,000,000 7T
(644,000%7T - 1,289,00057T) : 4

10,000,001 87T - 15,000,000 7T
(1,289,001 7T - 1,933,000%7T) : 3

15,000,001 7T - 20,000,000 7T
(1,933,001 7T - 2,577,000%7T) : 1

#23820,000,000 3 7T
(#B382,577,001 % 7T) 2
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Annual audit and interim review services!" FEEZKPHERRES " 5,355
Due diligence and other acquisition-related ERETRHMEWESHEARBEEEXZ R

non-audit services®? 1,493
Permitted tax services R A A% AR AS 690
Other non-audit related services H A B2 BRI RS 128
Total Bt 7,666

Notes 7

(1) Includes non-recurring services provided in conjunction with the June 27, 2016 circular filing, as well as opening balance sheet and purchase price allocation procedures,

associated with the acquisition of Tumi Holdings, Inc. totaling US$1.1 million.

EIEIREE 2016 6 A 27 BB HAERM IR B IEARTS - LA ELUEE Tumi Holdings, Inc. MM EIE EBBRREEENRREF - ARAB1IBEET

(2] Primarily comprised of fees associated with financial due diligence and integration planning performed in conjunction with the acquisition of Tumi Holdings, Inc.

FZEFEEFL Tumi Holdings, Inc. W FIHM BTN BEBEE LESREEENER -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

°  Overseeing the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company with a view of ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company; and

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with the
support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s financial reporting, including annual and interim reports, quarterly
results announcements, other price-sensitive announcements, other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, reports to regulators and information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
Company’s management, under the oversight of the Board, is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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An industry leader and pioneer, responsible for many
innovations in backpack design and well respected by
active outdoor and adventure enthusiasts.
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Asia, North America and Europe all recorded double-
digit net sales growth during 2016: Asia (+29.4%"), North
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Principal Risks

The Company recognizes that effective management of risk is essential to executing
the Company’s strategies, achieving sustainable shareholder value, protecting the
Group’s brands and ensuring good corporate governance. Accordingly, rather than
being a separate and standalone process, risk management is integrated into the
Company’s business processes including strategy development, business planning,
capital allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-to-day operations.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of
the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. The
Company aims to only take reasonable risks that (a) fit its strategy, (b] can be
understood and managed, and (c) do not expose the Company to:

°  Material financial loss impacting the ability to execute the Company’s business
strategy or materially compromising the Company’s financial viability;

e Material interruption to the Company’s business;
e Breaches of applicable laws and regulations; or
°  Damage to the Company’'s reputation and brands.

As part of the Audit Committee’s review of the Group’s risk management systems,
the Audit Committee considers the principal risks facing the Group and the nature
and extent of such risks. The Company's Vice President of Internal Audit facilitates
an annual enterprise risk assessment process in conjunction with the senior
management team in each of the Company’s regions as well as senior management
of the Company’'s corporate functions. This process reviews the significant risks
facing the Company’s operations and records the relevant activities that are in
place to mitigate such risks.

The risks set out below represent the principal risks and uncertainties that may
adversely impact the Company’s performance and the execution of its strategies.
Other factors could also adversely affect the Company’s performance. Accordingly,
the risks described below should not be considered to be a comprehensive list
of all potential risks and uncertainties. The principal risks are not listed in order
of significance. In addition to the principal risks described below, a discussion of
certain qualitative and quantitative market risks is included on pages 107 through
109 of this Annual Report.

The key steps the Company takes in an effort to mitigate these principal risks are
described below. It is not possible for the Company to implement measures to
address all of the risks it may face, and there can be no assurance that the steps
the Group has taken will adequately and effectively mitigate the risks it faces.
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Risk [z

Impact $/2

Mitigation JR (KRR EY & HE

Deterioration in economic conditions
globally or in the Company’s major
regional markets.

BRI AN B EE M E IS KT
RIBAE e

Adverse impacts on the travel
industry, especially air travel,
resulting from events such as
terrorist attacks or outbreaks of
contagious disease.

R E e B e
B (SRR MR 5
SRR o

Rising costs for finished goods, raw
materials and components sourced
from third-party suppliers.

EE=FHERRBHRRG - R
MRRERA LT o

Risk of third-party suppliers failing
to comply with the Company’s social
compliance policy.

B=HHERARET A A REE
BEEBERAE o

Reductions in discretionary consumer spending
could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s net sales, profitability and cash flow.

AXBUHE S R - AEHAQRHEET
B BAREARAERBEREATRZTE

Sales of travel luggage, which make up a
majority of the Group’s sales, are significantly
dependent on travel as a driver of consumer
demand. Significant adverse impacts on the
travel industry could have an adverse effect on
the Company’s sales, profitability and cash flow.

MiREEAT ZF R RV SR E R (M AN R B SR E R — KB
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ATFIZE A RE AN R SHERE - BAIGED
MR ERBERTRITE

Could adversely affect the Company’s ability
to maintain product margins if the Company is
unable to raise its prices or find suitable, more
cost-effective suppliers.

AR AIRERSERNREEARAMENE
EAER - BITJREE AN AERERFERN
BENEERARIZE

Ceasing production from a supplier that violates
the Company'’s social compliance policy could
disrupt supply and result in reduced sales and
increased costs. Violations could also cause
significant damage to the Company’s reputation
and brand image.
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The Company’s multi-brand, multi-category
strategy results in flexibility in the wide range of
price points at which the Company’s products
are sold, which helps make the business

more resilient. The geographic diversity of the
Company’s global business helps to mitigate the
impact of local economic challenges.
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Historically, disruptions to the travel industry
have been temporary and have not had material
long-term adverse impacts on the Company's
business. The Company’s strategy to grow its
sales of non-travel products, including business
and casual bags and accessories, helps mitigate
its vulnerability to disruptions in the travel
industry. The Company’s geographic diversity
also mitigates the impact of more localized travel
disruptions.
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The Company seeks to maintain and expand

a geographically diverse supplier base. Price
increases are implemented where possible

to help maintain product margins. Products

are engineered to ensure maximum value

for consumers by eliminating unnecessarily
costly features. The Company utilizes in-house
manufacturing of hard-side luggage where doing
so is cost effective.
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The Group seeks to ensure that all new and
existing third-party suppliers abide by its social
compliance policy. Supply contracts require
compliance, and the Group's social compliance
audit personnel visit suppliers on a regular basis
and audit their compliance. Failure to remedy
violations of the policy may result in termination
of the relationship with the supplier.
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Risk [z

Impact $72

Mitigation JR KRR EYTE HE

Risk of inability to source, on a
timely basis, in sufficient quantities
and at a competitive cost,

finished goods, or raw materials

or component parts needed for
manufacture by the Group of certain
key hard-side luggage products.

KA DLESE H A 5008
EHYENRE R RIS
FEEWnSRERF BN
BIRBAOES -

Fluctuations in the value of the
US Dollar against the functional
currencies of the Group’s
businesses.

ETAANEEEB RS HIE
ERE °

Inability of suppliers to deliver, in a timely and
cost-effective manner, products that meet the
Group’s quality standards could result in damage
to customer relationships, reduced market
share, lost sales, lower profitability and reduced
cash flow.

In addition, the Group is dependent on a sole
source supplier for the supply of the Curv
material used to form the outer shell of several
of its best-selling, hard-side product lines. Any
disruption in the supply of Curv material could
adversely impact production of such products,
which could result in lost sales and market
share.
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The Company’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in US Dollars. The net
sales of the Group’s operating subsidiaries are
generated in their local functional currency,
while a large proportion of each subsidiary’s
cost of sales (in the form of inventory purchases)
are incurred in US Dollars. Fluctuations in the
value of the US Dollar against the currencies

in which its businesses generate revenues
could adversely affect the Company’s US Dollar
reported net sales, gross margin, profitability
and cash flow.
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Where possible, the Company maintains
alternative sources of supply. Prospective and
current vendors are reviewed for quality, cost-
effectiveness and adequacy of capacity. Inventory
needs and purchase order requirements are
monitored to ensure appropriate inventory levels
are maintained.

The Group has an exclusive supply arrangement
with the manufacturer of Curv material, and
seeks to maintain an adequate supply of Curv
material to meet inventory needs.

The Group maintains business interruption

insurance in almost all of its key markets to
protect itself against significant revenue or

profitability losses.
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The Group periodically uses forward exchange
contracts to hedge its exposure to currency risk
on product purchases denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currency of
its subsidiaries.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in the
local currency of the borrowings. Borrowings are
generally denominated in currencies that match
the cash flows generated by the underlying
operations.

The Company provides constant-currency
comparisons of period-over-period financial
results in order to provide investors a view to the
underlying performance of the business without
distortions caused by currency fluctuations.
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Risk [z

Impact $/2

Mitigation JE KRR EY & HE

The Company is dependent upon
certain information technology
systems.

Risk of failure to protect confidential
information of the Group’s
customers, or of a breach in the
security of the Group’s or third-
party service providers” networks,
websites, e-commerce shops

or other information technology
systems.

RNATMRIEE TEAPRRSL

REEREREBEESHERES
B = T RIS IR A AY
% Y - BT EEHREME
AR RSB EHER

Potential disruptions affecting
the Group’s company-owned
manufacturing facilities,
distribution centers or third party
logistics providers.

FANREE B REERE - BXH
DRB=TFYRBEENEETE -

Legal proceedings or regulatory
matters could adversely impact the
Group's results of operations and
financial condition.

RN EEBETRRUAE
B EER A RRERTA
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Technical problems with the Group’s information
technology systems could negatively impact the
timely preparation of management accounts

and forecasts, which could adversely affect

the Company’s ability to manage its business
effectively or to accurately and timely report its
financial results. In addition, technical problems
could result in delays in delivering products to
customers, which could adversely affect the
Company’s sales and reputation.

Any compromise of the security of the Group’s
or its service providers’ systems, or a failure to
protect customers’ confidential information in
accordance with applicable privacy laws, could
result in damage to the Company’s reputation
and expose the Group to business disruption or
potential legal liability, which could substantially
harm its business and results of operations.
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Disruptions to the operations of the Company’s
manufacturing facilities, distribution centers
or third party logistics providers, from natural
disasters, adverse weather conditions, work
stoppages, accidents or other events beyond
the Company’s control could result in inventory
shortages, delayed, incomplete, inaccurate or
lost deliveries, or damaged goods, which could
adversely affect the Company’s reputation, net
sales, profitability and cash flow.
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The Group is subject from time to time to
various legal claims arising out of its business
operations. Additionally, the Group may from
time to time be subject to changes in applicable
laws or regulations in the jurisdictions where
the Group conducts business operations. Such
matters could have an adverse impact on the
Company’s results of operations, or could expose
the Group to negative publicity, reputational
damage, harm to customer relationships, or
diversion of management resources.
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The Group has implemented fully redundant,
high availability hosted solutions for its core
Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP") systems.

The Group has a security function, has obtained
Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) certification for its
U.S. retail systems, and has undertaken global
penetration testing on the Group’s systems and
major e-commerce shops.
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The Company maintains property insurance

on all company-owned facilities and carries
business interruption insurance on the majority
of its business operations. Certain company-
owned distribution facilities employ physical
protections such as fire alarms and sprinkler
systems, which are evaluated and upgraded
periodically based on the advice of outside
consultants.

The Company has developed, or is in the process
of developing, disaster recovery and business
continuity plans for its key company-owned
manufacturing and distribution facilities.
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The Company’s business works with the
Company’s in-house legal department and
outside legal advisors, where appropriate, to
identify significant legal or regulatory risks and
to develop strategies (contractual, compliance or
otherwise) to help manage such risks.
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Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal control and is
responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains sound and effective systems
of risk management and internal control.

The Company’s internal audit department reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. Each year the internal and
external audit plans are discussed with, and approved by, the Audit Committee.

The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control for the year ended December 31, 2016. The Board
has delegated to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the Company’'s
systems of risk management and internal control and reporting the committee’s
findings to the Board. In conducting such review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, has (i) reviewed the Company’s internal audit activities during the year and
discussed such activities and the results thereof with the Company’s Vice President
of Internal Audit, (i) reviewed and discussed the scope and results of the annual audit
with the Company’s external auditors, [iii) reviewed the results of management's
control self-assessment process with management and the Company’'s Vice
President of Internal Audit, (iv] reviewed the results of the Company’s risk assessment
with management and the Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit, and (v)
reviewed with management the results of the Company’s internal management
representation process that was performed in connection with the preparation
of the annual consolidated financial statements. Based on its review, the Board
confirms, and management has also confirmed to the Board, that the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate.

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

On March 3, 2016, the Company’'s shareholders approved an amendment to
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation in order to (i} reduce the Company's
authorized share capital from US$1,012,800,369.99, representing 101,280,036,999
shares [(including the subscribed share capital) to US$35,000,000, representing
3,500,000,000 shares [including the subscribed share capitall with a par value
of US$0.01 each and (i) renew, for a period of five years from the date of the
publication of the amendment of the authorized share capital in Luxembourg, the
authorization of the Board to issue shares, to grant options to subscribe for shares
and to issue any other securities or instruments convertible into shares, subject to
the restrictions set out in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Luxembourg
companies law and the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications
with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps a constant dialog with the
investment community through company visits, conference calls, information
sessions and participation in major investor conferences to communicate the

Company’s business strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, quarterly results announcements, the
current version of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Company’s stock
exchange filings, video webcasts, press releases and other information and updates on
the Company’s operations and financial performance are available for public access
on the Company’s website, www.samsonite.com, and some of them are also available
on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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INSPIRED LUXURY

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company's Annual
General Meeting ("AGM"] and other general meetings to communicate their views
and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level of accountability and
also to stay informed of the Company’s strategies, developments and goals.

The 2017 AGM will be held on June 1, 2017. The notice of AGM will be sent to the
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Disclosure of Inside Information Policy that establishes
the Company's policy and procedures for reporting and disseminating inside
information. This policy is to ensure the timely disclosure of information on the
Group and the fulfillment of the Group’s continuous disclosure obligations.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 13.10 of the Articles of Incorporation, any one or more
shareholder(s) who together hold not less than 5% of the issued and paid-up shares
of the Company that carry the right to vote at general meetings may convene a
general meeting by depositing a written request signed by such shareholders
and addressed to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong

Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

Such request must specify the objectives of the meeting. If the Board does not within
two calendar days from the date of deposit of the request proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 28 calendar days, the shareholders signing
the request (or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all shareholders signing the request) may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board. No general meeting convened by request of the shareholders may be
held later than three months after the date of deposit of the request.

ARREBERREFEARABRRBFEAS (R
BEREDREMERRE  NEERNESSRE
HEBHFBINER URRAESENHEENE - I
BERBEEANFORE  HFREAR -

2017 FRREAF RSN 2017F 6 A1 BEIT - &
RAFREMNBERRBRRAF AR R
0EEXATHETIRE -

REEERBEBR

RARERAANEEBBERER - UELARRR
i&ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ%%%ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ o I BURFERASE
BEEERIREEE  TETASEFELFERR
E’JEEE °

IR R R

BRRABMKRRAEHNRERF

$E%F<<%Iﬂﬁﬁi*ﬁ%%iﬁﬁﬂ>>%13 1016 @ Ef—B3K
A EBCRA A AR R RO 5% SRR &R
ﬁ%E‘JBﬁéﬁﬁ&E.@EHﬂ’ﬁ AEBRARBRE
ARENTMPERLARRREBNMEE oS,
FIRT )R EMZERREZFNEME RN T A
FREARE - B ARKRRBNEFEARWE -

FHZSAAGHENEN - WEFSRAELKE
PR ERE PR EE A RNEXBRANERE 28
BB EAEITHEE - AIEERBERNREREIA

FTEEEEHEERNKRRBIRZEBEHNTAK
a ﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂﬁ_t?ﬂ il
REERE

RIFERERLESS
RARE - RREBRBHOBRAGER
BAERHR =18 A RE1T -

Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2016 | T BEEBEAR AR 2016 FFRK

81



82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERRE

Procedure for Shareholders to Make Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing by sending such enquiries
to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the
addresses of which are set out below. The Joint Company Secretary will forward
enquiries to the Chairman of the Board for consideration.

In addition, shareholders in attendance at any general meeting of the Company’s
shareholders may make enquiries at such meeting to the Chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the various Board committees, or to other directors in attendance
at such meeting.

Procedure for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 13.11 of the Articles of Incorporation, upon a written request by
(i) one or more shareholder(s) representing not less than 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who at the date of such request have a right to vote at
the meeting to which the request relates, or (ii] not less than 50 shareholders
holding shares in the Company on which there has been paid up an average sum,
per shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, the Company shall, at the expense of
the shareholders making the request (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may be
properly moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting, and (b circulate
to shareholders entitled to receive notice of any general meeting a statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with in the meeting.

Pursuant to Article 13.12 of the Articles of Incorporation, such request must be
signed by all the shareholders making the request (or two or more copies between
them containing the signatures of all the shareholders making the request)
and deposited at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the
Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

Such request must be deposited (i) not less than six weeks before the meeting in
question in the case of a request proposing that a resolution be adopted at the
meeting, and (i} not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
request that does not propose that a resolution be adopted at the meeting.

In addition, one or more shareholder(s) who together hold at least 10% of the
Company’s issued and paid-up shares may request that one or more additional
items be put on the agenda of any general meeting. Such request must be sent to
the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg, the address of which is set out
below, by registered mail not less than five days before the meeting.

Except pursuant to the procedures described above, a shareholder may not make a
motion at a general meeting.

Procedure for Election to the Office of Director upon
Shareholder Proposal

A shareholder who intends to propose a candidate for election to the office of
director of the Company shall provide the Company’s Joint Company Secretary with
a written notice reflecting its intention to propose a person for election to the office
of director of the Company.
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The notice shall be delivered by the shareholder at the registered office of the
Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of
which are set out below, during a period commencing no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the convening notice of the meeting scheduled for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting. Such notice must
be delivered by a shareholder (not being the person to be proposed) who is entitled
to attend and vote at the meeting. In addition, the candidate proposed for election
shall deliver to the Company’s Joint Company Secretary a signed written notice
reflecting his willingness to be elected as a director of the Company.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the
appointment of the director will be made by way of a general shareholders’” meeting of
the Company and by ordinary resolution adopted at a simple majority of the votes cast.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to one of
the following addresses marked for the attention of the Joint Company Secretary:

Registered Office in Luxembourg:
13-15 Avenue de la Liberté,
L-1931 Luxembourg

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong:
25/F, Tower 2, The Gateway,

Harbour City, 25 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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GENERAL

The Board currently consists of nine directors, comprising two Executive Directors,
three Non-Executive Directors and four Independent Non-Executive Directors.

In accordance with Code provision A.4.2 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under Article 8.1
of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the directors shall be elected by
the shareholders at a general meeting, and the term of office of a director shall be
three years, upon the expiry of which each shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2016, Messrs. Parker, McLain
and Etchells retired by rotation, and having been eligible, offered themselves for
re-election as directors at the 2016 AGM. Each was re-elected to three-year terms
at the AGM by majority vote.

Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko resigned from the Board and the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees effective September 22, 2016 because of his
expanded responsibilities within his other business interests. The shareholders
of the Company acknowledged Mr. Ko's resignation in a general meeting held on
September 22, 2016.

The terms of Messrs. Gendreau and Korbas, and Ms. Yeh, will expire at the 2017
AGM of the Company. The terms of Messrs. Tainwala, Hamill and Griffith will expire
atthe 2018 AGM of the Company. The terms of Messrs. Parker, McLain and Etchells
will expire at the 2019 AGM of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and conduct
of the Company’'s business. The following table sets out certain information
concerning the directors:

EE

EERARLA-RBNEERETRATNE
% - TRRIIEHEEOETER -

Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities!”
i Fie B ZERH FTEREY
Timothy Charles 61 Non-Executive Director and March 2011 Leading the Board and ensuring the
Parker Chairman 201143 A Board functions effectively and acts in
I TEERIRE the best interest of the Company
BEESE  WRRESSHNEFE
BRARBEENEITE
Ramesh Dungarmal 57 Executive Director and Chief ~ As Executive Director: Overall strategic planning and
Tainwala Executive Officer March 2011 management of the Group's operations
HTEERTHAR As Chief Executive Officer: A emummmmrmaiRee
October 2014
AHTES 1 2011F38
RITHAE : 20145108
Kyle Francis 47 Executive Director and Chief ~ March 2011 Management of the Group’s finance
Gendreau Financial Officer 201143 8 and treasury matters
HATES R ERAEENTBRAESE
Tom Korbas 65 Non-Executive Director June 2014
FHTES 201456 A
Jerome Squire Griffith = 59 Non-Executive Director September 2016
FHITES 201659 B
Paul Kenneth Etchells = 66 Independent May 2011
Non-Executive Director 201158
BYFHTES
Keith Hamill b4 Independent March 2011
Non-Executive Director 2011438
BN FHTES
Bruce Hardy McLain b4 Independent March 2011
(Hardy) Non-Executive Director 2011438
BN FHTES
Ying Yeh 68 Independent May 2011
R Non-Executive Director 201145 A
BN FHTES
Note 7T H

(1) Asis usual for a company of this size, the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational responsibilities but rather, with

the benefit of their particular experiences, provide strategic guidance and leadership to the Board.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, aged 57, has served as an Executive Director of
the Company since May 2011 and as an executive director of the consolidated group
since February 2011. He has served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer since
October 1, 2014. In his role as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tainwala is responsible for
the Company’s overall strategic planning and for managing the Group’s operations.
Prior to his appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tainwala served as the
Company’s Chief Operating Officer from March 2014 until September 2014. Before
his appointment as Chief Operating Officer, he served as the Company’s President,
Asia-Pacific and Middle East. Mr. Tainwala has been the General Manager of the
Group’s Middle Eastern operation since January 2007 and has been the Chief
Operating Officer of the Group’s Indian operation since June 2000. Prior to joining
the Company in November 1995, Mr. Tainwala was an entrepreneur in the plastic
processing and consumer goods industries, including with Tainwala Chemicals &
Plastics (India) Limited with which he was associated from 1985 to 2008. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Donear Industries Limited (1990
to 2013) and Basant Agro Tech (India) Limited (2005 to 2013), both of which were
listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited. Mr. Tainwala holds a Master’s degree in Management Studies from the
Birla Institute of Technology and Science, Pilani, India (1982).

Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 47, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in March 2011 and as an executive director of the
consolidated group since January 2009. He has served as Chief Financial Officer
since January 2009. Mr. Gendreau is responsible for managing all aspects of the
Group’s finance and treasury matters. Mr. Gendreau joined the Company in June
2007 as Vice President of Corporate Finance and as Assistant Treasurer. Prior to
joining the Company, he held various positions including vice president of finance
and chief financial officer at Zoots Corporation, a venture capital-backed start-up
company (2000 to 2007), assistant vice president of finance and director of SEC
reporting at Specialty Catalog Corporation, a listed catalog retailer {1997 to 2000)
and a manager at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996). Mr. Gendreau holds
a BS in Business Administration from Stonehill College, Easton, Massachusetts,
USA (1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant in Massachusetts.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 61, has served as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors since the Company was incorporated in March 2011. As Chairman, he is
responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and acts in the best interests of the Company. He served as non-executive
chairman of the consolidated group from November 2008 until January 2009, and
as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the consolidated group from January
2009 through September 2014, and as non-executive chairman since October 1,
2014. Mr. Parker has a long history of managing large businesses. Prior to joining
the Company, he was chief executive of: The Automobile Association (2004 to 2007),
the car-repair firm Kwik-Fit (2002 to 2004}, Clarks, the shoemaker (1997 to 2002)
and Kenwood Appliances (1989 to 1995). Mr. Parker is currently a director of Archive
Investments and is a member of the U.K. Advisory Board of CVC Capital Partners.
Since November 2014, Mr. Parker has been Chairman of the National Trust, a U.K.
charitable organization. Mr. Parker was appointed Chairman of Post Office Limited
effective October 1, 2015. He has previously held non-executive directorships with
Alliance Boots, Compass and Legal and General. Mr. Parker has also previously
advised ministers and senior civil servants on nationalized industry policy in his
capacity as an economist at the British Treasury (1977 to 1979). Mr. Parker holds a
MA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the University of Oxford, Oxford, the
United Kingdom (1977) and a Master’s in Business Studies from London Graduate
School of Business Studies, London, the United Kingdom (1981).

Mr. Tom Korbas, aged 65, has served as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since April 2016, before which he served as an Executive Director of the Company
from June 2014 until March 2016. Before his retirement, Mr. Korbas served as
the Company’s President, North America and was responsible for the overall
management and development of the Group’s business in the United States
and Canada. He continues to serve as a consultant to the Company’s business
in North America. He served as President, Americas from 2004 until April 2014.
Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1997. His previous positions with the Company
include: Vice President/General Manager of the Company's U.S. wholesale
business (2000 to 2004), Vice President of Sales and Operations (1998 to 2000) and
Senior Vice President of Soft-Side and Casual Bags (1997 to 1998). Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Korbas was vice president of operations (1986 to 1997), director
of manufacturing operations, and engineering manager for American Tourister.
Mr. Korbas holds a BS in Industrial Engineering from Northeastern University,
Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1973) and an MBA from Babson College, Wellesley,
Massachusetts, USA (1976).
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Mr. Jerome Squire Griffith, aged 59, has served as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since September 2016. Since March 6, 2017, Mr. Griffith has served as
the Chief Executive Officer of Lands’ End, Inc., a multi-channel retailer of clothing,
accessories, footwear and home products that is listed on NASDAQ. Mr. Griffith has
served as a director of Lands’ End, Inc. since January 2017. Mr. Griffith previously
served as the Chief Executive Officer, President and director of Tumi Holdings, Inc.,
a company which was listed on the New York Stock Exchange, from April 2009 to
August 2016. He has served as a member of the supervisory board of Tom Tailor
Holding AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, since June 2015,
and as a director of Vince Holding Corp., a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, since November 2013. Mr. Griffith also has served on the board of
Parsons School of Design since September 2013. From 2002 to February 2009, he
was employed at Esprit Holdings Limited, a global fashion brand, where he was
promoted to Chief Operating Officer and was appointed to the board in 2004. He was
then promoted to President of Esprit North and South America in 2006. From 1999
to 2002, Mr. Griffith worked as an executive vice president at Tommy Hilfiger, an
apparel and retail company. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Griffith worked as the president
of retail at the J. Peterman Company, a catalog-based apparel and retail company.
From 1989 through 1998, he worked in various positions at Gap, Inc., a retailer of
clothing, accessories, and personal care products. Mr. Griffith holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in marketing from the Pennsylvania State University, State College,
Pennsylvania, USA (1979).

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 66, has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director since May 2011. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Swire Properties Limited, a leading developer, owner and operator of mixed use,
principally commercial properties in Hong Kong and the PRC, and of China Foods
Limited, a company engaged in food and beverage processing and distribution, both
of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Previously, Mr. Etchells also served as a non-executive director and chairman of
Twenty20 Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands which, through
its subsidiary companies, is engaged in the manufacture and sale of eyewear
products. Mr. Etchells has served as an advisor to Cassia Investments Limited,
a private equity firm, since November 2012. Mr. Etchells has also held various
positions at The Coca-Cola Company (1998 to 2010, including deputy president of
Coca-Cola Pacific (2007 to 2010) and president of Coca-Cola China (2002 to 2007).
Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company, Mr. Etchells held various positions at the
Swire Group (1976 to 1998), including managing director of Swire Beverages (1995
to 1998), general manager of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1989 to 1995)
and finance manager of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1981 to 1989). Mr.
Etchells holds a BA in Political Studies from the University of Leeds, Leeds, the
United Kingdom (1971) and a MA in Asia Pacific Studies from the University of Leeds
(2013). He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 64, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since June 2014, before which he served as a Non-Executive Director
from May 2011 until June 2014. He has served as a non-executive director of the
consolidated group from October 2009 until May 2011. Mr. Hamill is currently the
chairman of Horsforth Holdings Ltd., a privately held investment holding company
for a number of leisure businesses, and an independent non-executive director
of easyJet plc [since 2009), which is listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr.
Hamill's prior experience includes being chairman of inter-dealer broker Tullett
Prebon plc (2006 to 2013), stockbroker Collins Stewart plc (2000 to 2006) and
software developer Alterian plc (2000 to 2011), and an independent non-executive
director of the distribution group Electrocopments plc (1999 to 2008) and of Max
Property Group plc (2010 to 2014), all of which are or were listed on the London
Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive director of NASDAQ-
listed publisher and printer Cadmus Communications Inc. (2002 to 2007). Mr.
Hamill has also chaired the board of a number of UK privately owned companies
which included Endell Group Holdings Limited (parent company of Travelodge
Hotels Limited) (2003 to 2012), insurance broker Heath Lambert Limited (2009 to
2011), HGL Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011) and construction business Avant Homes
Limited (2013 to 2014). He was chief financial officer of hotel group Forte plc (1993
to 1996), retailer WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000) and United Distillers International
Limited (1990 to 1993), and director of financial control at Guinness plc (1988 to
1991). Mr. Hamill was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986 to 1988). He
was also chairman of the board of the University of Nottingham, United Kingdom.
Mr. Hamill holds a BA in Politics (1974) and an Honorary Doctorate in Law from the
University of Nottingham and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
England and Wales.

Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 64, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since June 2014, before which he served as
a Non-Executive Director from May 2011 until June 2014. He served as a non-
executive director of the consolidated group from October 2007 until May 2011. Mr.
MclLain is a co-founder, and serves on the board, of CVC (formerly a subsidiary of
Citigroup known as Citicorp Venture Capital), from which he retired as managing
partner in December 2012. Mr. McLain joined Citicorp Venture Capital in 1988,
and in 1993 participated along with fellow managers in the acquisition of Citicorp
Venture Capital from Citigroup and the founding of CVC. Since founding CVC
Capital Partners he has been involved in and held directorships with a number of
companies including the Dorna Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala VMC 0YJ (1998
to 2005), Punch Taverns Plc (formerly known as Punch Group Limited] (1999 to
2002), Spirit Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Spirit Amber Holdings)
(2003 to 2006), Kappa Holding BV (1998 to 2000) and Haymon Sports LLC (2013 to
2015). He is currently a non-executive director of CVC Capital Partners, Everbright
Ltd., Formula One, Mount Street Group Limited and the Lecta Group. Prior to
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joining Citicorp Development Capital, Mr. McLain worked for Citicorp’s investment
management (1986 to 1987) and mezzanine finance (1987 to 1988 groups. Mr.
McLain holds a BA in Public Policy and Psychology from Duke University, Durham,
North Carolina, USA, where he graduated in 1976, and an MBA in Finance and
Marketing from UCLA, Los Angeles, California, USA (1981). He serves on the Board
of Visitors for both the Sanford School of Public Policy at Duke University and the
UCLA Anderson School of Management.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 68, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director since
May 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive experience as an executive and a non-executive
director of major international corporations. She was the chairman of Nalco Greater
China Region until June 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s largest sustainability
service companies. Ms. Yeh currently holds a non-executive directorship at ABB
Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the stock exchanges in Stockholm
(NASDAQ OMX Stockholm] and the New York Stock Exchange [NYSE)). She was
previously a non-executive director of AB Volvo (a company listed on the OMX
Nordic Exchange, Stockholm] and InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a company
listed on the main board of the London Stock Exchange). Prior to joining Nalco, Ms.
Yeh worked in various Asian divisions of Eastman Kodak (1997 to 2009) and also
held various positions with the United States Government, Foreign Service (1982 to
1997). Ms. Yeh holds a BA in Literature and International Relations from National
Taiwan University, Taiwan (1967).

Changes in Information of Directors

A summary of changes in information concerning certain Directors of the Company
that have occurred subsequent to the publication of the Company’'s 2016 interim
report pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules is as follows:

°  Mr. Griffith was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company effective
September 22, 2016. He was appointed as a director of Lands” End, Inc.
effective January 26, 2017 and as Chief Executive Officer of Lands” End, Inc.
effective March 6, 2017.

°  Mr. Etchells was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Swire
Pacific Limited effective May 17, 2017. He resigned as Non-Executive Director
and Chairman of Twenty20 Limited effective February 9, 2017.

°  The term of the consulting agreement under which Mr. Korbas serves as a
consultant to the Group’s North America business has been extended until June
30, 2017. The other terms of such consulting agreement remain unchanged.

°  Mr. Mclain was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Mount Street Group
Limited effective February 2017. He resigned as a Non-Executive Director of
Terressentia Corp. effective December 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group's senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of
its business. The following table sets out certain information concerning its senior
management:

SREERE

AEENSAETEEREEEBNAEEE - TX
FIEMESREERENETERM

Name Age Position
HE Fie 20
Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala 57 Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
HATESFRITHRAER
Kyle Francis Gendreau 47 Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
HATES R BREE
Subrata Dutta 53 President, Asia Pacific and Middle East
DARPREAR
Lynne Berard 45 President, North America
EENEER
Arne Borrey 58 President, Europe
BUNEEE
Robert William Cooper 50 General Manager, North America, Tumi
Tumidb =M B
Juan Roberto Guzman Martinez (Roberto) 51 President, Latin America
T ENESEER
Frank Ma ¥4 Ed 54 President, Greater China
RHPEREH
Leo Boo Suk Suh (Leo) 48 President, South Korea
ARt ERAR
Andrew David Wells 56 Chief Information Officer
BB
John Bayard Livingston 49 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

B - BEEEREREEARDWE

Mr. Subrata Dutta serves as the Company’s President, Asia Pacific and Middle East,
and is responsible for the overall management and development of the Company's
business in Asia. Mr. Dutta re-joined the Company in his current role in April 2016.
From 2013 until 2016, he served as Chief Executive Officer of Fabindia Overseas
Private Limited, an India-based company in the apparel, home furnishings,
furniture, personal care and health foods business. Mr. Dutta previously served
as Managing Director (2008 to 2012) and Chief Operating Officer (2007 to 2008) of
Samsonite South Asia and Middle East, where he managed the Group’s business
in India, the Middle East, the SAARC countries and East Africa. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Dutta worked as Business Head of Himalaya Herbal Healthcare (2005 to
2007), Vice President Sales and Marketing of Wimco Limited - Swedish Match Group
(2002 to 2005), and in a variety of other sales and marketing management roles for
companies including Elbee Limited (2001 to 2002), Pepsi Foods Limited (2000 to
2001) and Lakme Limited, Lakme Lever Limited and Hindustan Lever Limited (1990
to 2000). Mr. Dutta holds a BTech with honors in electrical engineering from the
Indian Institute of Technology, Kharagpur, India (1986) and a PGDM from the Indian
Institute of Management, Bangalore, India (1990).
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Ms. Lynne Berard serves as the Company’'s President, North America, and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Company’'s
business (excluding the Tumi brand) in the United States and Canada. Ms. Berard
was promoted to her current role in April 2016. Before her promotion, she served
as General Manager and Vice President, Sales and Marketing for U.S. Wholesale
beginning in 2008, and as Vice President, Marketing (2002 to 2008) and Senior
Director, Marketing (2000 to 2002). Prior to 2000, Ms. Berard served in several sales
and marketing roles with the Group’s U.S. business. She began her career in 1993
with American Tourister, Inc., which was acquired by the Group in 1993. Ms. Berard
holds a BS in Business Management from Providence College, Providence, Rhode
Island, USA (1993).

Mr. Arne Borrey serves as the Company’s President, Europe, and is responsible for
the overall management and development of the Group’s business in Europe. Mr.
Borrey re-joined the Group in his current role in December 2016. From 2015 until
2016 he served as Vice President International for Justice, a U.S.-based fashion
apparel retailer and a division of Ascena Retail Inc. From 2011 until 2014 Mr.
Borrey served as Vice President International for Ethan Allen Global, Inc., a U.S.-
based furniture retailer, and from 2009 until 2011 he was Senior Vice President,
International for Coach, Inc., a luxury lifestyles and accessories brand and retailer.
Mr. Borrey previously worked for the Group for more than 20 years, most recently
as the Group's President, Europe (2004 to 2009), and as Vice President Marketing
and Sales for the Group's Europe, Middle East and Africa region (2001 to 2004).
Mr. Borrey holds a Master, Public Administration degree from Ghent University,
Ghent, Belgium (1985). He also holds an MBA in Marketing from the Vlerik Business
School, Ghent, Belgium (1986).

Mr. Robert William Cooper serves as the Company’'s General Manager, North
America, for Tumi and is responsible for the overall management and development
of the Tumi brand’s business in North America. Mr. Cooper was promoted to his
current role in August 2016. He previously served as the Group’s Vice President and
General Manager, Direct-to-Consumer for the North America region (2008 to 2016),
and as Vice President of Stores and Store Operations for North America (2006 to
2008). Between 1990 and 2005 he served in several retail management roles in the
Group’s North America region. Mr. Cooper holds a BA in Economics from Drew
University, Madison, New Jersey, USA (1989).
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Mr. Juan Roberto Guzman Martinez (Roberto) serves as the Company’s President,
Latin America, and is responsible for the overall management and development
of the Company’s business in Latin America. Mr. Guzman joined the Company in
July 2007 when the Group formed Samsonite Chile S.A. as a joint venture with Mr.
Guzman, following the acquisition by the Group of the Saxoline group of companies
from Mr. Guzman's family. He was promoted to his current role in May 2014. From
2007 until his promotion in May 2014, Mr. Guzmaén served as General Manager of
Samsonite Chile S.A., and he continues to be responsible for the management of
the Group's business in Chile. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guzman served
in various roles for the Saxoline group including General Manager (1998 to 2007),
Deputy General Manager (1996 to 1998) and Finance and Administration Manager
(1989 to 1996). From 1988 to 1989 he worked as Operations Manager for Salomon
Brothers Chile. Mr. Guzman holds a degree in business engineering from Pontificia
Universidad Catélica de Chile, Santiago, Chile. He also attended the Senior Executive
Program at the London Business School.

Mr. Frank Ma serves as the Company’s President, Greater China, and is responsible
for the overall management and development of the Group's business in mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the Philippines. He was promoted to his
current role in January 2015. Mr. Ma was the Vice President of Samsonite Greater
China (2007 to 2015). His previous positions with the Company include General
Manager of Samsonite China (1999 to 2007) and Operations Manager of Samsonite
China (1998]. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ma held responsibilities in plant
operations and process design with CP Group, Cargill Corp. & Shandong Chemical
Design Institute. He holds a Master’s of Engineering from Tianjin University, China
(1988) and an MBA from Canberra University, Australia (2004).

Mr. Boo Suk Suh (Leo) serves as the Company’s President, South Korea, and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Company's
business in South Korea. Mr. Suh joined the Group in 2005. He has served in this
role since January 2016. His previous positions with the Company include President,
Asia Pacific and Middle East (2014 to 2015), Executive Vice President, Asia (2013 to
2014) and General Manager, Korea (2005 to 2013). Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Suh served in sales and marketing roles with a number of global luxury brands’
South Korean operations, including Prada, Bally and Chanel. Mr. Suh holds a
bachelor’s degree in business administration from Yonsei University, Seoul, South
Korea. He also attended the Advanced Distribution Management Program course
at Yonsei Graduate School of Economics and the Global Leader Course at Korea
Graduate School of Education in Seoul, South Korea. Mr. Suh also studied at the
University of California, San Diego.

Mr. Andrew David Wells is the Company’s Chief Information Officer and is
responsible for developing, structuring and implementing the Group’s global
information technology strategy and outsourced IT shared services. Mr. Wells
joined the Group in March 2009. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wells was global
chief information officer and senior vice president at Shire plc, a FTSE 100
pharmaceutical company (2000 to 2008), supply chain director for Bristol Myers
Squibb Central & Eastern Europe Division (1996 to 1999) and manager of Information
Services International at Mars (1986 to 1996). Mr. Wells holds a M Eng (Masters of
Engineering) from Cambridge University, Cambridge, the United Kingdom (1994).
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Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston is responsible for all of the
Company’s legal matters worldwide and provides counsel to senior management
and the Directors on matters of corporate governance. Mr. Livingston joined the
Group in July 2006 and was Vice President and General Counsel for the Group's
Americas division until September 2009 when he became Vice President and
General Counsel of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Livingston was in-
house counsel (2002 to 2006) at Reebok International Ltd. and was an associate in
the corporate department of Ropes & Gray (1995 to 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a BA
in Political Science from Colgate University, Hamilton, New York, USA (1989), and a
J.D. from Boston College Law School, Newton, Massachusetts, USA (1994).

COMPANY SECRETARIES AND AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin lvy are the Company’s Joint
Company Secretaries while Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala and Ms. Chow are
the Company’s authorized representatives (pursuant to the Listing Rules).

During 2016, the Joint Company Secretaries complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules regarding professional training.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGERS

None of the directors or senior managers is related to any other director or senior
manager.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEGHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

All references herein to other sections or reports in this annual report form part of
this Directors’ Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company’), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing
and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and casual
bags, travel accessories and slim protective cases for personal electronic devices
throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, Tumi®, American Tourister®,
Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck®, Lipault® and Kamiliant® brand names

and other owned and licensed brand names.

Before 2012, the Group’s business was primarily centered on the Samsonite brand,
focused largely on travel luggage, and distributed principally through the wholesale
channel. Over the last several years, the Group has strategically diversified its
business in order to reduce its reliance on any single brand, market, channel of
distribution or product category, and in line with the goal of not just building a bigger
business, but a stronger one as well. Today, the Group has a more balanced business,
built around a portfolio of diverse yet complementary brands and offering its
customers a competitive mix of products sold through multiple distribution channels.
The Company believes this diversification considerably strengthens its resilience and
provides a platform for sustained growth.

The Group sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels,
through its company-operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The principal
wholesale distribution customers of the Group are department and specialty retail
stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Group sells
its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.

Strategy

Details of the Company’s strategy for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out
in the Strategy section on page 3 of this Annual Report.

Financial Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Details of the Group's financial results of operations and financial condition as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis ('MD&A") section on pages 24 to 65 of this Annual Report. Reconciliations for
non-IFRS measures are also presented within the MD&A section.

Financial Highlights

Details of the Group’s financial highlights as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016 are set out in the Financial Highlights section on pages 4 to 6 of this Annual Report.
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Significant investment in advertising and promotion

The Group continued to make significant investments in marketing, which amounted
to approximately 5.1% of net sales during 2016, reflecting its commitment to advertise
and promote its brands and products to support sales growth worldwide.

Introduction of new and innovative products to the market

The Group continued to focus on innovation and ensuring that its products reflect
local consumer tastes in each region. Innovation and a regional focus on product
development are key drivers of sales growth and are the means to deliver quality and
value to the Group’s customers.

Acquisition of Tumi

On March 3, 2016, the Group entered into the Merger Agreement with Tumi Holdings
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire Tumi Holdings for a cash
consideration of US$26.75 per outstanding common share of Tumi Holdings, without
interest. The acquisition was completed on August 1, 2016. The total consideration
paid under the Merger Agreement amounted to approximately US$1,830.8 million. As
a result of the completion of the acquisition pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Tumi
Holdings became an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. On December
30, 2016, Tumi Holdings was merged with and into its wholly-owned subsidiary Tumi,
Inc., with Tumi, Inc. surviving the merger.

Tumi is a leading global premium lifestyle brand offering a comprehensive line of
business bags, travel luggage and accessories. The brand is consistently recognized
as “"best in class” for the high quality, durability, functionality and innovative design
of its products, which range from its iconic black ballistic business cases and travel
luggage synonymous with the modern business professional, to travel accessories,
women'’s bags and outdoor apparel.

The financial results of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016
include Tumi Holdings’ financial results from August 1, 2016, the date of acquisition,
through December 31, 2016.

Future Prospects

The Group's growth strategy will continue as planned for 2017, with a focus on the
following:

*  Continue to develop the Company into a well-diversified multi-brand, multi-
category and multi-channel luggage, bag and accessories business.

e Leverage the Company's regional management structure, sourcing and
distribution expertise and marketing engine to extend the strong Tumi brand
into new markets and penetrate deeper into existing channels.

e Tactfully deploy multiple brands to operate at wider price points and broader
consumer demographics in each category.

° Increase the proportion of net sales from the Group's direct-to-consumer
channel by growing direct-to-consumer e-commerce net sales and through
targeted expansion of its bricks-and-mortar retail presence.
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e Continue to invest in the Group’s core brands with sustained R&D spending to
produce lighter and stronger new materials as well as exciting and innovative
new products, supported by effective marketing spend to drive awareness
among consumers.

° Intend to increase the Company’s investment in marketing in 2017 to support
global expansion of Tumi and to continue to drive visibility for Samsonite,
American Tourister and other brands.

°  Execute on market opportunities for recently acquired brands to further diversify
the Group's product offering into non-travel categories.

The Group aims to deliver top-line growth, maintain gross margins, increase Adjusted
EBITDA margins and enhance shareholder value.

Industry!

The global luggage market is forecast to experience a compound annual growth rate
("CAGR") of approximately 6.1%, growing incrementally by US$11.4 billion from 2017
to 2021. The primary factors that are expected to drive this growth include consumers’
improving standards of living, rising interests in outdoor and adventure sports, an
increase in key competitors’ trade offers, and government support to promote and
fund the tourism industry. Rising urbanization and an increase in disposable income
have led to growth in the number of travelers worldwide.

The growth in the global luggage market is expected to continue to be led by the
Asian region, which is projected to grow incrementally by US$6.0 billion, or 52.2% of
the total incremental growth, from 2017 to 2021 and at a 7.2% CAGR. The region’s
high population density is a major growth factor in addition to the growing demand
for luggage from countries including China, India, Australia, Japan and South Korea.

Both the North American and European luggage markets are at a more mature stage
of development and are both forecast to grow at a 4.8% CAGR from 2017 to 2021. The
North American market is projected to grow incrementally by US$2.4 billion, or 20.9%
of the total incremental growth of the global market, from 2017 to 2021. Contributions
to market growth from the U.S. are expected to be driven by a stabilizing economy and
growth in outdoor activities from 2017 to 2021.

The European market is estimated to grow incrementally by US$2.0 billion, or 17.4%
of the total incremental growth of the global market, from 2017 to 2021. For the
European region, Germany, Italy, France, the United Kingdom and Spain are expected
to maintain their leadership positions in the European luggage market. Many cities
in these countries are style capitals for fashion connoisseurs. Luggage products,
especially from luxury brands, are considered fashion accessories. Purchases of
these luxury luggage brands are expected to have a favorable impact on the European
luggage market from 2017 to 2021.

The growth in the Latin American luggage market is expected to continue through
2021 mainly driven by increases in disposable income in countries such as Chile, as
well as increased consumer spending on travel and tourism. Global luggage vendors
are also expected to further expand their businesses in Latin America.

The global luggage market can be categorized across three primary product segments,
namely the travel bag segment, the casual bag segment and the business bag segment.

Note
(1) Source: Global Luggage Market 2017 - 2021, Technavio, 2016.
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e The travel bag segment comprises travel products, such as suitcases and
carry-ons, and is further categorized by the material from which the products
are constructed, with the three main categories being hard-side, soft-side and
hybrid luggage.

e Casual bags are primarily for daily use, and include different types of backpacks,
female and male shoulder bags and wheeled duffel bags. Casual bags are
generally not sold as part of a luggage collection. Their color, size, style and
material vary.

°  Business bags are primarily for business use. Special characteristics of a business
bag include convenience for carrying a laptop and documents, and these bags
often come in the form of rolling mobile office, briefcase or computer bags.

Considering the market breakdown by product segment, the largest segment in 2016
was the travel bag segment, which was estimated at approximately US$14.8 billion of
retail sales value and accounting for approximately 44.4% of the total global luggage
market. The casual bag segment was estimated to be US$13.2 billion of retail sales
value in 2016, representing approximately 39.6% of the total global luggage market.
The business bag segment was estimated to be US$5.3 billion of retail sales value in
2016 and represented approximately 16.0% of the total global luggage market. The
travel bag segment is forecast to increase at a CAGR of approximately 7.0% over
the next five years, due to the growing popularity of tourism, outdoor sports and
adventure tours across the globe. The casual bag segment is expected to grow at a
CAGR of approximately 4.2% over the next five years, driven by a growing customer
base with higher disposable income and the growth in backpacking activities among
consumers. The introduction of backpack products that are easy to carry, lightweight,
and made from high-density polyester and ultra-strong fiberglass frames are also
expected to lead to greater consumer interest. The business bag segment is forecast
to grow at a CAGR of approximately 7.7% over the next five years as increased
globalization has led to a rise in the number of people traveling on business.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of the Company’s purchases that were attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers was less than 30% during the year ended December 31, 2016.

The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was less than 30% during the year ended December 31, 2016.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest suppliers and customers.

Major Locations and Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, percentage ownership and
significant non-controlling interests as of December 31, 2016 are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Intellectual Property

The Group is the registered owner of the Samsonite, Tumi, American Tourister,
Hartmann, High Sierra, Gregory, Speck, Lipault, Kamiliant and Rolling Luggage
trademarks as well as certain other local brands. The Group’s Samsonite, Tumiand
American Tourister trademark registrations in its principal geographic markets are
of material importance to its business. The trademark registrations in the United
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States and elsewhere will remain in existence for as long as the Group continues
to use and renew the trademarks on a timely basis. The Group registers its
trademarks in countries where products are sold or manufactured for its primary
brands (Samsonite, Tumi and American Tourister], sub-brands (such as Samsonite
Red, Black Label and Xtrem) as well as key product line and feature names (such as
Cosmolite and Silhouette).

The Group seeks patent protection where appropriate for inventions embodied in its
products and design protection for a number of its unique designs. New, potentially
patentable ideas from its research and development teams are subjected to
patentability and non-infringement analyses before a decision is made to pursue a
patent. Emphasis on innovation is a significant component of the Group’s competitive
strategy in applicable portions of its business, particularly with respect to hard-side
and hybrid luggage products, wheel technology and mobile device cases. Patents and
pending patent applications cover features, designs and processes in various of the
Group's product lines.

The Group’s anti-counterfeiting activities include training customs officials to identify
counterfeit goods, monitoring factories in China where many counterfeits originate,
and monitoring online marketplaces. From time to time, third parties have sought
to imitate the Group's patented products or trade off the reputation of its brands.
The Group also aggressively takes action to enforce its intellectual property rights
against third-party infringers by sending “cease and desist” letters, filing opposition
and cancellation proceedings, and, if necessary, bringing suits against the infringing
party. The Group identifies infringers through its business teams in the various
regions who are in the marketplace evaluating third-party activity; through trademark
watch services; through professional investigators; and through customs officials
who work with the Group to detain potentially infringing product at border locations.
The Group respects valid third party intellectual property rights, but will vigorously
defend itself against any inappropriate third party claims. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, no infringement of the Group’s patents or trademarks, and no
allegations of infringement claimed against the Group, had a material adverse effect
on the business or reputation of the Group.

Competition

Competition in the luggage industry tends to vary across different parts of the world
and is highly fragmented. The Group has significant regional competitors in each of
its markets [Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America). However, the Group is
one of the few companies that operates on a global scale.

Throughout its regional markets, the Group competes based on brand name
recognition, reputation for product quality, product differentiation, new product
innovation, customer service, high quality consumer advertising campaigns and
quality to price comparisons. The Group is well established in the distribution
channels critical to luggage distribution. The Group also invests in marketing
campaigns in order to enhance consumer awareness of the Company’s brands and
drive sales growth.

The manufacture of soft-side luggage is labor intensive but not capital intensive;
therefore, barriers to entry by competitors in this market are relatively low. This is
reflected by the many small competitors present in the soft-side luggage market.
In addition, the Group competes with various large retailers, some of whom are its
customers, who have the ability to purchase private label soft-side luggage directly
from low-cost manufacturers.
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The manufacture of hard-side and hybrid luggage is more capital intensive and there
are relatively fewer finished goods vendors. Nonetheless, the Group has several
significant competitors worldwide in the hard-side luggage market.

Legal and Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Compliance

The Group operates in the consumer products wholesale and direct-to-consumer
business, a business generally characterized by lighter regulations than more
manufacturing-intensive businesses. The Group is required to secure licenses and
permits to operate its owned manufacturing facilities in Belgium, Hungary and India,
and its office in Ningbo, China. The Group’s in-house legal department provides
oversight and coordination of compliance with the rules, regulations and laws to
which it is subject, both at the corporate level as well as at the regional level.

The Company believes that all members of the Group have obtained and currently
maintain all necessary permits and licenses which are material to the Group’s
production and sales activities, and that the Group is in compliance in all material
respects with the rules, regulations and laws to which its business is subject. The
Group did not experience any material labor disputes during the year ended December
31, 2016 and the Group believes it is in compliance in all material respects with the
labor laws of the jurisdictions in which it operates.

Competition Regulations

The Group, like all large companies, is subject to various competition laws and
rules, including laws and rules on merger control, restrictive agreements and abuse
of dominance or monopolization. The Group works to ensure that it complies fully
with these laws and regulations. If the Group was to be deemed to have a dominant
position in a particular market segment, and was deemed to have abused that
dominant position, it could be subject to regulatory action. In addition, if the Group
was to pursue certain acquisitions of businesses it may be subject to competition
regulations depending on the degree to which the business is a competitor in the
markets in which the Group operates.

Anti-Corruption

As a global company the Group is subject to anti-corruption laws in many of the
countries in which it operates, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the
UK Bribery Act and other applicable laws. In general, these laws prohibit requesting,
accepting, giving or offering anything of value to or from anyone to reward improper
performance of an official duty or to obtain an unfair business advantage.

The Company has adopted a Global Anti-Corruption Policy that requires all of the
Company's directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives to comply
with all applicable anti-corruption laws. The policy, which has been distributed to
personnel worldwide, provides guidance on how to ensure compliance under various
scenarios that may be encountered. In addition, training on compliance with anti-
corruption laws has been completed by appropriate personnel.

The Company’'s legal department provides guidance on compliance with the
Global Anti-Corruption Policy and applicable laws, and the Company’s internal
audit department, as part of its routine internal audit activities, helps to assess
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compliance with the policy. In addition, management in each of the Company’s
regions certifies compliance with the policy as part of the Company's internal
management representation process that is completed twice annually in connection
with the preparation of the interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Company is not aware of any violations of applicable anti-corruption laws, nor is it
aware that it has been subject to any investigation by any governmental authority of
any alleged or suspected violation of such laws.

Environmental Protection

The Group’s operations throughout the world are subject to national, state and local
environmental laws and regulations. These environmental laws and regulations
govern the generation, storage, transportation and emission of various substances.
With respect to emissions, the Company’s policy is to comply with relevant laws and
regulations in regards to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The Company
tracks and monitors energy consumption and emissions (air and greenhouse gases),
discharges into water and land, and waste (hazardous and non-hazardous, as defined
by local laws] at each of its owned and operated manufacturing facilities. Energy
consumption is also monitored at distribution centers, regional offices, and retail
stores. In 2016, the Company had no known material instances of non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations in regard to emissions. With respect to the use
of resources, the Company’s policy is to comply with relevant laws and regulations
in regards to the efficient use of resources, including energy, water, and other raw
materials. Furthermore, the Company continuously aims to implement energy use
and water efficiency initiatives. The Company monitors its use of resources mostly
through its reporting to the national, regional, and local governments where it operates
owned and operated manufacturing facilities and where such reporting is required.
The Company believes that the Group was in compliance in all material respects with
the environmental laws and regulations to which its business is subject in 2016é.

From time to time the Group has incurred, or accrued for, cleanup or settlement costs
for environmental cleanup matters associated, or alleged to have been associated,
with its historic operations. In 2016, these expenses have not had a material
effect upon the Group’s cash flow or financial position. Unknown, undiscovered or
unanticipated situations or events may require the Group to increase the amount it
has accrued for any environmental matters.

Regulation of Materials

REACH

The Group’s operations in Europe are subject to the hazardous materials regulations
known as REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemical
substances), the European Union regulation on chemicals and their safe use. The
Group is required to gather information on the chemical substances used both
in its own production and in imported goods, and to communicate to the Group’s
customers if hazardous substances on the list of Substances of Very High Concern
("SVHC") are used in its products, which the Group has done in the past for its use of
certain phthalates on the SVHC list in some of its soft-side products. The Group has
been working proactively with its suppliers to phase out its use of these phthalates
and to meet the EU ban of these substances. If the Group uses more than one ton
of a substance on the list of SVHC, and if this substance has not been registered
for the particular use it is making of such substance, the Group is required to notify
the European Chemicals Agency ("ECHA”]. The Group does not believe it is currently
required to notify the ECHA of any substance it uses.
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Proposition 65

Proposition 65 is a California hazardous material regulation that provides a list of
chemicals that, if included in products, must either be included in safe amounts, or
the products must be labeled, disclosing to the consumer that the product contains
a substance determined by the State of California to be potentially harmful. Similar
to REACH, this list of chemicals includes phthalates, and is enforced through civil
litigation in the State of California.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has adopted a social compliance policy that it requires its third party
suppliers to adhere to. The Group employs personnel in China who monitor its third-
party suppliers for any practices that would violate its social compliance policies, such
as child labor, forced labor or other human rights violations. Any evidence of practices
that would violate its social compliance policies that are not remedied by the third party
may result in the termination of the Group’s working relationship with that party.

Environmental Social Governance

The Company will publish an Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which
highlights the corporate policies and practices through which it seeks to responsibly
manage its business worldwide, within three months of the publication of this annual
report on the Company’s website and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Economic Conditions

Details of potential economic conditions that could impact the Group’s results of
operations and financial condition are disclosed within the Risk Management and
Internal Control section of the Corporate Governance Report on pages 74 to 80 of this
Annual Report.

Human Resources and Remuneration

As of December 31, 2016, the Group had approximately 12,400 employees worldwide,
compared to approximately 9,800 employees as of December 31, 2015. The increase
in headcount was largely driven by the acquisition of Tumi that was completed on
August 1, 2016, as well as the addition of new retail stores around the world. The
Group regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the
relevant market practice, employee performance and the financial performance of
the Group. The Group is committed to helping its employees develop the knowledge,
skills and abilities needed for continued success, and encourages employee
professional development throughout each employee’s career.

Share Award Scheme

On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the Company’s Share
Award Scheme, which will remain in effect until September 13, 2022. The purpose
of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to
incentivize them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to
acquire equity interests in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme may
take the form of either share options or restricted share units ("RSUs"), which may be
granted at the discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other persons
as the Board may determine.
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The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the Board in
its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the higher of:

a]  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

c]  the nominal value of the shares.

As of February 28,2017 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate number
of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme is 65,799,419 shares, representing approximately 4.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company at that date. An individual participant may be granted awards
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in respect of a maximum of 1% of the Company's
total issued shares in any 12-month period. Any grant of awards to an individual
participant in excess of this limit is subject to independent shareholder’s approval.

OnMay6,2016,the Company granted share options exercisable for 19,953,760 ordinary
shares to certain directors, key management personnel and other employees of the
Group with an exercise price of HK$24.91 per share. Such options are subject to pro
rata vesting over a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary
date of the grant. Such options have a 10-year term.

On May 6, 2016, the Company made an additional special grant of 4,190,013 share
options to two members of the Group’s senior management team. The exercise price
of the options granted was HK$24.91. 60% of such options will vest on May 6, 2019 and
40% will vest on May 6, 2021. Such options have a 10-year term.

On May 11, 2016, the Company granted share options exercisable for 62,160 ordinary
shares to an employee of a subsidiary of the Company with an exercise price of
HK$24.23 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4-year period,
with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the grant. Such options
have a 10-year term.

On June 16, 2016, the Company granted share options exercisable for 99,972 ordinary
shares to an employee of a subsidiary of the Company with an exercise price of
HK$23.19 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4-year period,
with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the grant. Such options
have a 10-year term.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options are
entitled to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price per
share equal to the exercise price of the options. The fair value of services received in
return for share options granted is based on the fair value of share options granted
measured using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value calculated
for share options is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model utilized.

The grant-date fair value of the share options granted is generally recognized as an
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity when such options represent equity-
settled awards, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the
number of awards that meet the vesting conditions at the vesting date.
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The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the 19,953,760 share options made on May 6, 2016:

Fair value at grant date HK$6.57
Share price at grant date HK$24.00
Exercise price HK$24.91
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 35.5%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 2.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.0%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment for the additional special grant of 4,190,013 share options
made on May 6, 2016:

Fair value at grant date HK$6.84
Share price at grant date HK$24.00
Exercise price HK$24.91
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 35.5%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 7 years
Expected dividends 2.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.1%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment for the 62,160 share options made on May 11, 2016:

Fair value at grant date HK$6.79
Share price at grant date HK$24.10
Exercise price HK$24.23
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 35.5%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25years
Expected dividends 2.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.0%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment for the 99,972 share options made on June 16, 2016:

Fair value at grant date HK$5.84
Share price at grant date HK$22.45
Exercise price HK$23.19
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 35.2%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 2.3%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.8%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price
volatility as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable companies
given the limited trading history of the Company’s shares.

In total, share-based compensation expense of US$15.5 million and US$15.2 million
was recognized in the consolidated income statement, with the offset in equity
reserves, fortheyears ended December 31,2016 and December31, 2015, respectively.
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REFHANRE 224587
1TEE 2319787
TERARED ChOREF 393K ED) 35.2%
IBREE R (R AP 1) 6.25F
FEHRS 2.3%
ERBRANZEUBFESHERE) 0.8%
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Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December 31,  #ZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE - BRENFBERLE

2016 were as follows: T -
Number of share options . )
BREHE . 1
Closing price
Exercise immediately
Canceled/ price per preceding the
As of lapsed As of 1 share date of grant
Name/category January 1, Granted  Exercised duringthe December (HK$) (HK$)
of grantee 2016  duringthe  during the period 31,2016 ) RERHAAN
ERAKR R20165F period period” HARZESE/ 20164 Date of grant Exercise period 1T1EE Wi E
& /AR 1A18 BRI HMRTEY K¥  12B31H BEE 17165 (387) (87)
Directors g~ —
S
Timothy Parker
Timothy Parker

Ramesh Tainwala

Ramesh Tainwala

Ramesh Tainwala

Ramesh Tainwala

Kyle Gendreau

Kyle Gendreau

Kyle Gendreau

Kyle Gendreau

Kyle Gendreau

Tom Korbas

Tom Korbas

Tom Korbas

Total Directors
s
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Name/category
of grantee
ERAR

5 /55

Others
Hity

Employee
(=]

Employee
&8

“Employees

Employees
EE

Employees
&8
Employees
&8
Employees
=]
Employees
&8

Employee
(=]

Employees
&E

Employee
=]

Total Employees
EEAG
Total
#ast
Note 7t

Number of share options

WA o
Canceled/
As of lapsed As of
January 1, Granted  Exercised duringthe December
2016  during the  during the period 31,2016
20165  period period” HIREFSE/ 20165 Date of grant
TA1R  HARRE  HRTE X% 12A31AH RHA

(1) The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date of exercise by participants was HK$25.25.

SR 2AEITE A PRI TR E /252587

Details of the accounting treatment for share options are set out in notes 3(m)(vi) and

14(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

(vi) B2 14(a) °

Exercise
price per
- share

Exercise period T8
7Y (B

Closing price
immediately
preceding the
date of grant
(HK$)

SERM A AN
W fE

(&)

BN G RIEHEHNR S M B IMKR MR 3(m)



Risk Factors

Details of the Group's principal risks and uncertainties that may adversely impact the
Company’s performance and the execution of its strategies are disclosed within the
Risk Management and Internal Control section of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 74 to 80 of this Annual Report.

Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to
a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is limited to
the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s exposure to creditriskis influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers the demographics of
its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. There is no
concentration of credit risk geographically or with any single customer.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for credit worthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery
terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including aging profile and existence of previous financial difficulties.
Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’'s wholesale customers.
Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and monitored by
the Group and future sales are made on an approval basis. Further information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2016 is set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial Guarantees

The Group's policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of subsidiaries. No
other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Group's primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities,
invested cash, and available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder approval,
its ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and
estimated cash flows, along with current working capital and access to lines of credit,
will be adequate to meet its operating and capital requirements for at least the next
twelve months. See note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for the maturity
profile of outstanding borrowings as of December 31, 2016.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts a portion of its business in currencies other than the US Dollar,
the functional currency of the Company and the currency in which the consolidated
financial statements are reported. Accordingly, the Group’s operating results could
be adversely affected by foreign currency exchange rate volatility relative to the US
Dollar. The Group’s foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their functional
currencies. The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The forward exchange contracts
typically have maturities of less than one year. Although the Group continues to evaluate
strategies to mitigate risks related to the fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the
Group will likely recognize gains or losses from international transactions. Changes in
foreign currency exchange rates could adversely affect the Group’s operating results.

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of its
subsidiaries. Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the
borrowing entity. Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match
the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

A sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to currency risk is set out in note 21(d](i)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on
variable rate debt instruments. The Group enters into interest rate swap agreements
as hedges to manage interest rate risk. See note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements for the Group's exposure to interest rate risk as of December 31, 2016.

Tax Rates and Liabilities

A number of international legislative and regulatory bodies have proposed draft
legislation and begun investigations on the tax practices of multinational companies.
One of these efforts has been led by The Organization for Economic Co-operation
and Development (the "OECD"), an international association of 34 countries including
the United States, which has finalized recommendations to revise many corporate
taxes, transfer pricing, and tax treaty provisions in member countries. In addition,
the European Union and its European Commission has begun to review and opine on
the appropriateness of certain agreements between various member countries and
companies in light of the European Union competition rules against unjustified state
aid. While the Company maintains that it is in compliance with corporate tax, transfer
pricing, and tax treaty provisions, it is possible that these efforts may in the future
impact its income tax liabilities.

Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities held by the Group's
defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic
net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan assets
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s investment
strategy is to generate investment returns on pension plan assets in order to satisfy
its defined benefit pension plan obligations. The Group engages professional pension
plan asset managers to assist in this process.
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The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed
to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels] exceeds the fair value of the assets of the
Group’s pension plans, which is primarily the result of underperforming equity
markets and low interest rates during prior years. Future market conditions and
interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact future assets and liabilities of
the Group's pension plans and future minimum required funding levels. As a result
of the SERIP Plan Liquidation, substantially all assets attributable to this plan were
distributed to participants and beneficiaries or used to purchase the annuity contract
as of December 31, 2016. See note 14(b[ii] to the consolidated financial statements
for further discussion of the SERIP Plan Liquidation.

See note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for the Group’s exposure to
other market risk as of December 31, 2016.

Risks associated with our Senior Credit Facilities

As a result of the Group's acquisition of Tumi, the Company’s long-term debt has
increased substantially, which, in turn, has increased the Company’s leverage.

The Company’s Credit Agreement requires the Company and its subsidiaries to comply
with certain financial and restrictive covenants. Although the Company is currently in
compliance with these covenants, unexpected downturns in the Company’s business
could trigger certain covenants that may increase the Group’s cost of borrowing,
decrease the amounts available under the Revolving Facility, or both. The principal
risks associated with the Company’s leverage include the following:

e the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future for acquisitions,
capital expenditures, general corporate purposes or other purposes could be
limited;

e the Company’s borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities accrue interest at
variable rates, and, increases in certain benchmark interest rates would increase
the Company’s cost of borrowing [note, however, that the Group has entered into
interest rate swaps with respect to approximately 65% of the principal amount
of the Term Loan Facilities, which will significantly reduce the effect on the
Company of interest rate increases);

° the Company’s leverage could increase its vulnerability to declining economic
conditions, particularly if the decline is prolonged;

e failure to comply with any of the covenants under the Credit Agreement could
result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company;

e financial and restrictive covenants under the Credit Agreement could adversely
affect or limit the Company’s ability to, among other things, implement business
plans, react to changes in economic conditions or return capital to the Company’s
shareholders (whether through cash distributions, share repurchases, or
otherwisel; and

°  asubstantial portion of the Company’s cash flow from operations must be used
to pay principal and interest on the Senior Credit Facilities, therefore reducing
the cash flow available to fund the Company’s operations, capital expenditures
and other business opportunities.
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Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average inventory, cost
of sales and average inventory days for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015:

EEGIR

FE W

TREFFNEZE2016F 12831 B KX 2015F 12 A31H
IHFEAREBRTFHEFE HERARFHEFEEAH
RIBEE

Year ended December 31,
HZE12A3BLEEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (JAF2£L2%1) 2016 2015
Average inventory!” FigEEw 385,205 340,675
Cost of sales SHEKA 1,289,545 1,153,513
Average inventory turnover days? FHEFEAEAHY 109 108

Notes T#&
(1) Average inventory equals the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period.

FEFERSNEEBERIRARNTE FEN T -

[2)  Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

FEHR P RIRE A BURSNZ PR O EMRAZPMMAHEERE - BRAZHOAS -

The Group's average inventory increased in 2016 (US$421.3 million as of December
31, 2016 compared to US$349.1 million as of December 31, 2015) compared to
2015 (US$349.1 million as of December 31, 2015 compared to US$332.3 million
as of December 31, 2014) to support increased customer demand, new product
introductions, the Group’s retail store expansion, as well as the result of the Tumi
acquisition completed on August 1, 2016 and the acquisitions of Rolling Luggage and
Chic Accent during 2015.

Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group's average trade and other
receivables, net sales and turnover days of trade and other receivables for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

2016 EAKETFHEE(N2016F12A318 45
4213ABZET  MR20155F12 A31RAIA349.1H
BEIL)EB2015F(R2015F 12 A31BA3L.1ES
EJT MR20145F 12 A31HEBIA3323BE*=T)
BETIEI - RS HERPE RGN - HETESR
MAEEERTEE - UERR2016F8 A1 BEK
B Tumi Y BE FIE 270 20155 #9 Rolling Luggage &
Chic Accent WB=TERTEL ©

FEW R R B EW R

TREIIEE 2016512831 AKX 2015512 431 H
IEFEAKE TR R R B RFOR - S
FFERLA B MR SR N B At PR AR TR 88 B BB

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A3ALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (JATT251) 2016 2015
Average trade and other receivables!” 39 UK B R R L At LK R 7 ) 320,643 287,168
Net sales HEFHE 2,810,497 2,432,477
Turnover days of trade and other receivables®? FEURBR A EL A FE U FR B B8 H B @ 42 43

Notes 7

(1) Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period.

I R ARER 3R EL A FE U SRR AR S A T R ) I R A M AR R e L R OB S R A B

(2)  Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net sales for that period and multiplied by

the number of days in the period.

5 E AR A R UK AR SR EL A PR R TR R S B SRS I SR A0 19 JE RR AR e Bt FEUR BB RR A% AR M SH 5 88 - BSRAZIIM B B -

The Group’s average trade and other receivables increased in 2016 (US$357.8
million as of December 31, 2016 compared to US$283.5 million as of December 31,
2015) compared to 2015 (US$283.5 million as of December 31, 2015 compared to
US$290.8 million as of December 31, 2014) due to the increase in net sales and timing
of receipts year-on-year, as well as the result of the Tumi acquisition completed on
August 1, 2016.

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2016 are on average due within 60 days from
the date of billing.

2016 G 72 5 B 5 e Uk R B0 I E A FE UGB (R
2016412 A31 B/A3578E&3IT * MR 2015412
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A1/290 8 BB ET) ARG - L HRMEEFHEK
W SRES IR 10 - AR 20165 8 B 1 HSERREY
Tumi Wi BIEFTEL ©

M2016F12 431 BWMEWERR T RNEERH
BEH60 B AEIE -



Trade and Other Payables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group's average trade and other
payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other payables for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

FERR R AN R

TREFFNEZE2016F 12831 HKX2015F 12 A31H
IHFEAREEFHEMERRREMEMNIE - HE
FRZNLA K FEAS AR B I EAtb PR SR BB 2 B B E -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31BLFE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LAFET250) 2016 2015
Average trade and other payables!” PRI R H A FRE 487,957 428,793
Cost of sales SHER A 1,289,545 1,153,513
Turnover days of trade and other payables? FES BRI H A TR E B8 B &2 138 136

Notes 715

(1) Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period.

A9 FEA AR AR S EL AR 5 SRIBEAR B 0 E EAR A9 S AR I 9 AR AR S LA B SRR A A9 8K o

[2)  Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied by

the number of days in the period.

5 TE AR ) FE N BR AR N AL A FE (9 BORIE S A BUR S A2 R T N BRA  ELA FE 1 BRIE M AR AR O SH S AR BSRAZ AR H 8K -

The Group's average trade and other payables increased in 2016 (US$533.8 million
as of December 31, 2016 compared to US$442.1 million as of December 31, 2015)
compared to 2015 (US$442.1 million as of December 31, 2015 compared to US$415.4
million as of December 31, 2014) primarily due to the timing of payments associated
with inventory purchases period over period, the expansion of the Group’s vendor
financing program, as well as the result of the Tumi acquisition completed on August
1, 2016 and the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent acquisitions during 2015.

Trade payables as of December 31, 2016 are on average due within 105 days from the
invoice date.

Gearing Ratio

The following table sets forth the Group’s loans and borrowings (excluding deferred
financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as of December 31,2016 and December
31,2015:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LA FZETL251)

2016 F NS B F 15 JE A BR 30 S H At FE A ZE (R
2016% 12 831 HA533.8BEEIL * MR 2015F 12
A3 RAIA44L2 1 BEET)R 20155 (2015412
RA31RA4M21ARSET  MR2014512 831 88|
B LEBET)EN  EEARBERNERBEE
AR RERREARNEBENEERRES
AR 201648 A1 H ST E) Tumi W i8S 18 12 2015
FHRolling Luggage X Chic Accent i S TEFTER

R2016F 12 A3 BNENERFHAEREZEH
HEET105 HEIER o

EREE

TRESIIAEBER2016F12 A31HKE 201512 B
JNBERRERMBRETCRERA) « ESEEN
HERLE R

December 31, 2016
2016%F12A31H

December 31, 2015
20155 12A31H

Loans and borrowings (excluding deferred
financing costs)

Total equity AR
Gearing ratio!” ERE R

Note #H#&
(1) Calculated as total loans and borrowings [excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity.

R SR AR (MPREERNE A B AR AR -

Theincrease in the Group's loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs)
from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016 was due to the borrowings under
the Term Loan Facilities to finance the acquisition of Tumi, which was completed on
August 1, 2016.

Subsequent Events

Details of the events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2016 are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERRAER (MERIELE B E R A)

1,939,709 64,182
1,510,987 1,399,386
128.4% 4.6%
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Forward-Looking Statements

This document contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
reflect the Group’s current views with respect to future events and performance.
These statements may discuss, among other things, the Group’s net sales, operating
profit, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA margin, cash flow,
liquidity and capital resources, impairments, growth, strategies, plans, achievements,
distributions, organizational structure, future store openings, market opportunities
and general market and industry conditions. The Group generally identifies forward-
looking statements by words such as “expect”, “seek”, “believe”, “plan”, “intend”,
“estimate”, “project”, “anticipate”, "may”, "will", “would” and “could” or similar words
or statements. Forward-looking statements are based on beliefs and assumptions
made by management using currently available information. These statements are
only predictions and are not guarantees of future performance, actions or events.
Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. If one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if management’s underlying beliefs and
assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those
contemplated by a forward-looking statement. These risks and uncertainties include
those set forth under “Risk Management and Internal Control” within the Corporate
Governance Report. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which
they are made. The Group expressly disclaims any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise, except as required by applicable securities laws and regulations.

DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company will evaluate its distribution policy and distributions made (by way of
the Company’s ad hoc distributable reserve, dividends or otherwise] in any particular
year in light of its financial position, the prevailing economic climate and expectations
about the future macroeconomic environment and business performance. The
Company intends to increase distributions to shareholders in line with its growth
in earnings. The determination to make distributions will be made upon the
recommendation of the Board and the approval of the Company’'s shareholders
and will be based upon the Group's earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital
and other reserve requirements and any other conditions which the Board deems
relevant. The payment of distributions may also be limited by legal restrictions and
by the Term Loan Facilities or other financing agreements that the Group may enter
into in the future.

The Board recommends that a cash distribution in the amount of US$97.0 million, or
approximately US$0.0687 per share based upon the number of shares outstanding as
of the date hereof [the “Distribution”) be made to the Company’s shareholders from
its ad hoc distributable reserve. The per share amount of the Distribution is subject
to change in the event that any new shares are issued pursuant to the exercise of
outstanding share options before the record date for the Distribution. A further
announcement will be made on the record date of the Distribution in the event that
the finalamount per share changes. The payment shall be made in US Dollars, except
that payment to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members in
Hong Kong shall be paid in Hong Kong Dollars. The relevant exchange rate shall be
the opening buying rate of Hong Kong Dollars to US Dollars as announced by the
Hong Kong Association of Banks (www.hkab.org.hk) on the day of the approval of the
Distribution.
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The Distribution will be subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from May 26, 2017 to June 1,
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
The record date to determine which shareholders will be eligible to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM will be June 1, 2017. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on May 25, 2017.

Subject to the shareholders approving the recommended Distribution at the
forthcoming AGM, such Distribution will be payable on July 12, 2017 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on June 17, 2017. To determine
eligibility for the Distribution, the register of members will be closed from June 14,2017
to June 16, 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be entitled to receive the Distribution, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on June 13, 2017.

The Distribution will not be subject to withholding tax under Luxembourg laws.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment for the year ended
December 31, 2016 is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves during the year ended December
31,2016 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 140
and 141 of this Annual Report and in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December31, 2016, reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted
to approximately US$2.0 billion as shown in the statutory financial statements of
Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with the Company’'s
Articles of Incorporation.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2016 amounted to US$0.7 million.
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BANK LOANS

As of December 31, 2016, the Group had bank loans that were repayable over the
following period of time:

7, A3 =%,
BITER
AREBEN2016F12 A31 BRIRITERALE A TH
REE -

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LA F 7T 251) 201612 A31H 20154124318
On demand or within one year BERSIRA—FA 69,807 64,125
After one year but within two years —FREWER 69,319 18
After two years but within five years MEREBRAFR 1,161,020 39
More than five years AFENE 639,563 -

1,939,709 64,182

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets, and liabilities of the Company for the last five fiscal
years is set out on page 236 of this Annual Report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation provide that the Company shall keep
indemnified to the extent permitted by law, among others, its directors and any
attorney in fact it may appoint against any reasonable costs and expenses incurred by
them by virtue of their involvement in legal proceedings or suits initiated against them
by reason of their current or former holding of office as a director or attorney in fact
or at the request of the Company or of any other company of which the Company is a
shareholder or creditor, except where they are found to be grossly negligent or to have
breached their duties to the Company. In the event of any extra-judicial compromise
settlement, the Articles of Incorporation provide that a director or attorney in fact
is only to be indemnified if the Company is informed by its legal counsel that the
director or attorney in fact has not failed in his or her duties to the Company. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of potential
legal actions against its directors and senior management. Save as disclosed above,
the Company is not a party to any permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of any
of the directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Company is not a party to any management contract under which any person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company where such contract is not a contract of services with
any director of the Company or any person engaged in the full time employment of
the Company.
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ISSUE, PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 1,455,376 ordinary
shares at a weighted-average exercise price of HK$18.41 per share, or HK$26.8
million in aggregate, in connection with the exercise of share options that were
granted under the Company’'s Share Award Scheme. There were no purchases
or redemptions of the Company’'s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2016.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Award Scheme, no equity-linked agreements subsisted during
or at the year ended December 31, 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of any movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

DIRECTORS

As of December 31, 2016 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the composition of
the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala
Kyle Francis Gendreau

Non-Executive Directors

Timothy Charles Parker
Tom Korbas!"
Jerome Squire Griffith (appointed on September 22, 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Paul Kenneth Etchells
Keith Hamill

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)
Ying Yeh

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as of the date of this report are
set out on pages 85 to 90 of this Annual Report.

Note 718

(1) Mr. Tom Korbas was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on April 1, 2016.

Tom Korbas fe4 7 20164F 4 A 1 BEMITESERTEIENTES -
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HE2016F12A3MBIEFE - ARBHAQFR
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TEEERI18.41HEIL(RA L 268 EEBIL) T
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Bl ETES o
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Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala
Kyle Francis Gendreau

FHTES

Timothy Charles Parker
Tom Korbas!
Jerome Squire Griffith (74201659 A 22 AEZEE)
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Paul Kenneth Etchells
Keith Hamill

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has or is
proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
AGREEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in respect of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala’s interests in certain of the
Company’s continuing connected transactions on pages 119 to 128 of this Annual
Report, none of the directors or an entity connected with a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, agreement or contract of
significance subsisted during or at the end of the year to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

On December 16, 2016, Jerome Squire Griffith, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company, was appointed as chief executive officer of Lands’ End, Inc., effective March
6,2017. Mr. Griffith has served as a director of Lands” End, Inc. since January 26, 2017.
Lands' End, Inc., a company listed on the NASDAQ, is a leading multi-channel retailer
of clothing, accessories, footwear and home products. The products of Lands” End,
Inc. include bags. Lands’ End, Inc.’s bag business is incidental to its core business
and the Company does not consider Lands’ End, Inc. to be a significant competitor.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors has interests in any business (apart
from the Group's businesses) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
and indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2016 or as of December 31, 2016.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As of December 31, 2016, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers [the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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1

. Long position in the shares of the Company 1. RERD BB ET R

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares
held at December 31, 2016
Name of Director Nature of Interest | 2016 F 12 A 31 BRAENEER/ Approximate shareholding %
HENA Rt E HERDEE TEIREMBIAE 2L

Timothy Charles Parker

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala

Kyle Francis Gendreau

Tom Korbas

~Keith Hamill

Bruce Hardy McLain

Ying Yeh
-3

Notes 7+#&

la

(b

lc

(d

le

(f)

) (U represents long position.

URFKFRE -

] Comprised of 28,142,740 shares held by Mr. Parker and 28,142,740 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker, each as beneficial and
registered owner. Mr. Parker is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms. Parker. Also includes share options held by Mr. Parker that are

exercisable for 4,190,364 shares.

B35 28,142,740 B HA Parker 5435 B HIRXAD % 28,142,740 B B E A {8 Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker K =B HIID - BESAABRRERHEEA - B

(EH R EIEIEH) - Parker 5o AR A Parker LB MUAR () A5  TVELIE Parker SeAE TR AITTHERRME 4,190,364 ARAS (7 HORBASHE -
] Comprised of 10,192,034 shares held by Mr. Tainwala and share options exercisable for 6,284,764 shares.
245 10,192,034 B/ Tainwala SE 445 HORRD B RTTT{ELARRER 6,284,764 ARARAD HORBATIE -
) Comprised of 1,409,648 shares held by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Gendreau is the founder and share options exercisable for 5,972,457 shares.
B4E 1,409,648 L Gendreau SEAE A AU A R 2AEISFEPTFT B MOB) R AT TIELARRER 5,972,457 B B0 HOBBAAE -
) Comprised of 696,171 shares held by Mr. Korbas and share options exercisable for 1,494,121 shares.
BLHE 696,171 BA Korbas 55 AR B RORRAD K ATT T A SR8 1,494,121 BRAAD AV RE AR A -

Comprised of 500,000 shares held by Mr. McLain and 383,400 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Helle Elisabeth Skov McLain, each as beneficial and registered owner.

Mr. McLain is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms. McLain.

4% 500,000 A% F McLain St 4E 35 48 B9 A% 17 £ 383,400 A% i E At {8 Helle Elisabeth Skov MclLain ZEH BRI  RECAABERELHEA  BIBGEHREAEEG) -

McLain SE 4 H4R A ¥ A McLain ZZ i B LD EVRERS ©
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2. Interests in the shares of associated corporations 2. AEECEE R 0 VR R
Number of ordinary shares held at Approximate
Name of December 31, 2016 shareholding %
Name of Director Associated Corporation Nature of Interest MR2016F12A318 1EBRAER
EEHE MEEEEAB RS BENZBEREE BRBEDL
Ramesh Dungarmal Samsonite South Asia Beneficial owner and 14,196,493 (L) 40.0
Tainwala Private Limited interest in a controlled
corporation
BEnlEEAR
REEEEBENRERS
Samsonite Interest in a controlled 8 (L)@ 40.0
Middle East FZCO corporation
REEHEENER
Notes 71

(a)

(b)

(c)

(L) represents long position.

UHFRFR -

This amount includes (i) 1,807,020 shares jointly held by Mr. Tainwala s wife, Mrs. Shobha Tainwala, and his daughter, (i) 9,644,473 shares in which Mr. Tainwala has full
discretion to exercise voting rights under powers of attorney on behalf of other shareholders in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited, (iii] 556,000 shares held by Tainwala
Holdings Private Limited and (iv) 2,189,000 shares held by Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited. Mrs. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in 66.28% of the issued share
capital of Tainwala Holdings Private Limited while Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in 69.86% of the issued share capital of Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited (since
Mrs. Tainwala’s controlling interest in that company is attributed to him) and Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited (since he has a controlling interest in that company). The
remaining 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited is held by the Group.

ZEEE B (i) Tainwala 5t £ Z F Shobha Tainwala 2+ & H 2z BHEFA 891,807,020 IKARIS - (ii) 9,644,473 8RS + & Tainwala £E AT 2 EBMBRB R ERR
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited 8 E A% R7T{E 224 - (i) Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 3% #9556,000 B& %15 & (iv) Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited #5748
#92,189,000 &A% 1% © Tainwala A AR EHEAE Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 66.28% B B 1TAR A2 + M Tainwala 5t 4 BI4A8 YE#E A Periwinkle Fashions Private
Limited 69.86% BB 1TAA RIS © B © Tainwala S AR /EHE A Tainwala Holdings Private Limited (B35 Tainwala A AR % A B AIEAHE R TRB R Tainwala 564 ) &
Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited (B FAs% A R A 1A% 25 ) 7 Samsonite South Asia Private Limited BT #EA) 2 345 © Samsonite South Asia Private Limited #
TH)60% iR A R ESE -

Mr. Tainwala holds 100% of the equity interest in Periwinkle Holdings Limited and therefore Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire 40% equity interest in
Samsonite Middle East FZCO held by Periwinkle Holdings Limited. The remaining 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite Middle East FZCO is held by the Group.

Tainwala 5o 4454 Periwinkle Holdings Limited 2 BA%#E - It » Tainwala SoE AR VEHES Periwinkle Holdings Limited 74 Samsonite Middle East FZCO Fi#% 40% A&i2H) 2
Pz © Samsonite Middle East FZCO#2 T4 60% i A AR @5 A -

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2016, none of the directors or chief B EXHEETEEIN - R2016F 128318 + AQFE
executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or short positionsin -~ FEHmE =T A BBIE SR ER AR F) L EEM
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its associated ~ #HEER (12 (FH KBS EH) 8 XVIBH EE ) KR
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the 17 + HHEIR (D K ERE B HEBRE(EHELBER
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO  f7I) 85XV #8557 K 8 5 #B/B K& 7R A &) JeHgh 32 Fr o i
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under — #8UAE (BIERIE(EH RHBAEIE0) BE BiEX
such provisions of the SFQ), or recorded in the register required to be maintained by HEWE ESRIEHRAE RS AR) - IR AXA
the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the  RIZEIRIR (35 % R HAE 150I1) 85 XV 205 352 4B F A

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BELMeEmsors  RBEGRESTRD ASRITH
BARRNB KB ERSOAE o



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

1. Long and short position in the shares of the Company

FERERRN R0 R AEE RS 8
BENKXR

1. RERQBFROVEFRRKR

Number of ordinary shares held

Nature of Interest

L Soea

Name of Shareholder

RREH
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.
and its affiliates
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.

K HLER B2 R
FIL Limited

Morgan Stanley
EEAR 5

Morgan Stanley
EEAR 3R

Note 7T#
[a) (L) represents long position. [S) represents short position. (P) represents lending pool.

(URKIFA - SIRKKR ° (PHRFATHEE LML -

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2016, so far as the directors are aware,
no other persons (except the directors or chief executives) or corporations had 5% or
more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Company and required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules to
be disclosed in the Company’s annual report:

at December 31, 2016

HR2016F12A31H
BFENEBEREE

Approximate shareholding %

RN E St

B EXHEEI R2016F 128318 EELF
MABEMEMA T (EFRERITHRABRIN SOE
ERARRA ARG RABBERG R B RAKRQFER
1B GBS R EER5]) 5 XV 2B 336 5 FH oM
H)5% A LR SON A -

BER S
BHEREXS

TXEHINBBARRRE L RABRECETRIND E 14A
SENRARRFHBBENFBEMEZZNER
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al) Transactions between Samsonite India and associates of
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala

Samsonite South Asia Private Limited ("Samsonite India”], a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into transactions with associates of Mr.
Ramesh Tainwala, a director of the Company, and certain members of his family (the
“Tainwala Group”) which relate to the operation of Samsonite India in the ordinary and
usual course of its business. Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala Group are also
substantial shareholders in Samsonite India.

Manufacturing agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of understanding
(the "Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding”) with Abhishri Packaging Private
Limited ("Abhishri’), a company controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group.
Under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding, Abhishri purchases certain
raw materials and components from Samsonite India and manufactures hard-side
luggage products on behalf of Samsonite India. The price paid by Abhishrito Samsonite
India for raw materials and components is based on the current market price paid by
Samsonite India, and the prices paid by Samsonite India for products manufactured
and manufacturing services provided by Abhishri are determined based on Samsonite
India’s current procurement policies, and are monitored against relevant factors
including the cost of raw materials, the range of commercially appropriate margins
that Samsonite India is able to make on comparable products and, where available,
quotations and market prices for comparable third party products and services.
Samsonite India followed its procurement policies when determining the pricing and
terms of all transactions under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding during
the year ended December 31, 2016. The pricing under the Abhishri Memorandum
of Understanding is on normal commercial terms as the margins available to
Samsonite India from the prices charged by Abhishri are comparable to (or better to
the Company than) the margins available from the prices charged by certain other
third party manufacturers who are not connected persons under agreements with
Samsonite India.

On October 9, 2015, the Company entered into a framework agreement with Abhishri
(the "Abhishri Framework Agreement”) with effect from April 6, 2015. The Company
entered into the Abhishri Framework Agreement to govern the terms of sales of
components and finished products and the provision of manufacturing services by
Abhishri to members of the Group, in addition to sales of components and finished
products and the provision of manufacturing services by Abhishri to Samsonite India
under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding.

a) Samsonite India 82 Ramesh

Tainwala St £V BA L ZBHIX 5

KRARIIEZEK B AR Samsonite South Asia
Private Limited([ Samsonite Indial) B EARRFE
E Ramesh Tainwala L £ E A TR EE TRk
B ([Tainwala 5B ]) 5] 37 % IEEL Samsonite India
—B & AEEBBIETHEEFENRZS © Ramesh
Tainwala 7t 4 & Tainwala ££[E#5 & Samsonite India
R)EERR o

E2 Abhishri 2 [ #) 843 175 55

720091 A3H * Samsonite India L Abhishri
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The Abhishri Framework Agreement provides that all transactions between Abhishri
and the members of the Group thereunder (i) shall be in writing and shall incorporate
the Group's general purchase conditions and standard supplier agreement terms, (ii)
shall be on normal commercial terms, which shall mean pricing and payment terms
no less favorable to the Group than those available from independent third party
suppliers for comparable components, finished products or manufacturing services,
and [iii) shall be in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Listing Rules.
The initial term of the Abhishri Framework Agreement will expire on December
31, 2017 and may be renewed thereafter, subject to the parties complying with the
applicable provisions of the Listing Rules in respect of any such renewal. The prices
paid by the Group for products manufactured and manufacturing services provided
by Abhishri are determined based on the Group's current procurement policies, and
are monitored against relevant factors including comparisons of the landed cost of
purchases sourced from Abhishri relative to the landed cost of comparable products
if sourced from non-connected third parties. The Group followed its procurement
policies when determining the pricing and terms of all transactions under the
Abhishri Framework Agreement during the year ended December 31, 2016. The
pricing under the Abhishri Framework Agreement is on normal commercial terms
as the margins available to the members of the Group from the prices charged by
Abhishri are comparable to (or better to the Company than) margins available from
the prices charged by certain other third party manufacturers who are not connected
persons under agreements with the Group.

Dealership agreement with Bagzone

OnNovember 16,2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of understanding
with Bagzone Lifestyles Private Limited ("Bagzone”), a company controlled by certain
members of the Tainwala Group. The memorandum of understanding was renewed
with effect from January 1, 2015 for a period expiring on December 31, 2017. Under
this memorandum of understanding, Bagzone was appointed as a preferred dealer
of Samsonite, American Tourister and other products in India, which as of December
31, 2016 are sold in 98 exclusive Samsonite retail outlets and 38 multi-brand outlet
stores operated by Bagzone. Samsonite India directly rents three of these exclusive
Samsonite retail outlets and is reimbursed by Bagzone for the associated rental costs.
The other 133 outlets are directly rented by Bagzone, which bears the costs of such
rental. Bagzone pays all operating costs of these 136 retail outlets. Bagzone receives
a normal operating margin of 47.5% on the retail price for products it purchases
from Samsonite India and sells through both the exclusive Samsonite retail outlets
and the multi-brand outlet stores. Samsonite India does not own or operate retail
outlets itself because of restrictions imposed under Indian law with respect to
ownership of retail businesses by non-Indian nationals. Under this memorandum of
understanding, the margin available to Bagzone will be reviewed and amended as
necessary from time to time to ensure that the maximum profit margin with respect
to products purchased from Samsonite India does not exceed 3.0% of its net sales
of such products. Samsonite India followed the pricing terms in the memorandum
of understanding for all transactions during the year ended December 31, 2016.
These transactions are on normal commercial terms as the profit margin available to
Bagzone is within a range that is reasonably consistent with that made by other third
party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India sells products.
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License and lease agreements with members of the Tainwala Group

Samsonite India has entered into six lease or license agreements for company
accommodation and office premises with members of the Tainwala Group. On August
25, 2016, Samsonite India renewed the leave and license agreement and amenities
agreement with Bagzone (dated August 23, 2011) and Satya Buildmart Private
Limited (dated September 20, 2011) for the use of certain office premises in the cities
of Bangalore and Gurgaon, India, respectively, for the period from September 1,
2016 to December 31, 2018. On August 25, 2016, Samsonite India also entered into
a leave and license agreement with Tainwala Holdings Private Limited for the use of
warehouse premises in Nashik, India for use as additional warehouse storage space
for a period of one year effective from September 1, 2016, which was terminated
effective from October 31, 2016 pursuant to a termination letter dated October 12,
2016. These agreements are on normal commercial terms and the rent, license fees
and administrative charges payable thereunder are within the reasonable range of
the then prevailing market rates for similar properties in the relevant locations at the
date of execution. Samsonite India followed its procurement policies in relation to
each of these agreements during the year ended December 31, 2016.

Aggregate value of transactions between the members of the Group
and the Tainwala Group

The aggregate consideration payable by the members of the Group to the Tainwala
Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December 31, 2016
was approximately US$7.8 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount of consideration payable by the members of the Group under transactions
with the Tainwala Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the year ending
December 31, 2017 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at
US$22.91 million and US$23.09 million, respectively.

The aggregate consideration payable by the Tainwala Group to the Group under
all transactions described above for the year ended December 31, 2016 was
approximately US$10.8 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount
of consideration payable by the Tainwala Group under transactions with the members
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the year ending December
31, 2017 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$16.84

million and US$20.21 million, respectively.

The annual caps in respect of transactions between the Group and the Tainwala
Group were determined primarily on the basis of: (i] estimated annual growth in
purchases of raw materials and finished products between the members of the Group
and the Tainwala Group under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding and the
Bagzone memorandum of understanding due to increases in sales and production
in line with the Group’s then-current business plan; (i) estimated increases in rental
and associated costs payable by Samsonite India in line with local market conditions;
(iii) estimated annual growth in purchases of finished products, components and
manufacturing services by the Group from Abhishri under the Abhishri Framework
Agreement due to increases in sales in line with the Group’s then-current business
plan; and (iv] expected market conditions and fluctuations in the foreign exchange
rate for the Indian Rupee against the US Dollar.
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The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the transactions
between the Group and the Tainwala Group will be, on an annual basis, more than
0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders” approval
requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

b) Transactions between Samsonite Middle East and the rest
of the Group

Samsonite Middle East FZCO ("Samsonite Middle East’), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is held 40.0% by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and certain
members of the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of
the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and i) is entitled to control the
exercise of 10.0% or more of the voting power in Samsonite Middle East, Samsonite
Middle East is also a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(5) of the
Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011, Samsonite Middle East entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the "Middle East Framework Agreement”) covering
all transactions with other subsidiaries of the Company in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group’s business including the purchase by Samsonite Middle East
of finished products from other subsidiaries of the Company, the receipt and
payment by Samsonite Middle East of cross-charges and fees in relation to the
sharing of global marketing, promotion, product development and personnel costs
between subsidiaries of the Company and the payment by Samsonite Middle East of
royalties in respect of intellectual property rights licensed to Samsonite Middle East.
Purchases by Samsonite Middle East of finished products from other subsidiaries of
the Company are made at prices and on terms that are consistent with the prices and
terms applicable to intra-Group purchases made by non-connected subsidiaries of
the Company, and the royalties paid by Samsonite Middle East are consistent with the
royalty rate and terms paid by the Company’s other non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

Samsonite Middle East and the Company have further renewed the Middle East
Framework Agreement for a period of three years with effect from January 1, 2016
(the "Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement”). Save for the duration of, and
annual caps under, the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement, all other terms
are the same as those in the Middle East Framework Agreement. The purpose of
the Company entering into the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement was to
ensure that Samsonite Middle East could continue to enter into transactions with
other members of the Group in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s
business as an essential part of the Group’s global operations.

The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions
between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the Group must be on normal
commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between
other subsidiaries of the Company and in compliance with all applicable provisions
of the Listing Rules. The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement will expire
on December 31, 2018 and is renewable for further periods of three years, subject
to compliance with the then applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is
terminated earlier by mutual agreement. The Company has followed its policies
for intra-company transactions in relation to all transactions under the Middle East
Framework Agreement during the year ended December 31, 2016.
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The aggregate consideration payable by the members of the rest of the Group to
Samsonite Middle East under all transactions described above for the year ended
December 31, 2016 was approximately US$0.05 million. The annual caps for the
maximum aggregate amount of consideration payable by the members of the rest of
the Group under transactions with Samsonite Middle East for the year ended December
31, 2016 and the year ending December 31, 2017 have been set pursuant to the
requirement of the Listing Rules at US$0.53 million and US$0.63 million, respectively.

The aggregate consideration payable by Samsonite Middle East to the members of the
rest of the Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2016 was approximately US$4.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount of consideration payable by Samsonite Middle East under
transactions with the members of the rest of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2016 and the year ending December 31, 2017 have been set pursuant to the
requirement of the Listing Rules at US$7.43 million and US$8.91 million, respectively.

The annual caps under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement were
determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in purchases of
finished products by Samsonite Middle East from the rest of the Group due to
increased sales in line with Samsonite Middle East’s then-current business plan; (ii)
estimated growth in royalty payments by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of the
Group due to growth in underlying sales; [iii) estimated growth in marketing and
development costs in line with Samsonite Middle East's then-current business plan;
and (iv) expected market conditions.

The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the transactions
under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement will be, on an annual basis,
more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

c] Transactions between Samsonite India and the rest of
the Group

Samsonite India, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is held 40.0% by
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as
a director of the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and [ii] is entitled
to control the exercise of 10.0% or more of the voting power in Samsonite India,
Samsonite India is also a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(5) of
the Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011, Samsonite India entered into a framework agreement
with the Company (the “India Framework Agreement”) covering all transactions with
other subsidiaries of the Company in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business including the purchase by Samsonite India of raw materials, components,
spare parts, finished products and capital assets from other subsidiaries of the
Company, the sale of finished products by Samsonite India to other subsidiaries of
the Company, the receipt and payment by Samsonite India of cross-charges and fees
in relation to the sharing of global marketing, promotion and product development
costs between subsidiaries of the Company, and the payment by Samsonite India of
royalties in respect of intellectual property rights licensed to Samsonite India.
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Samsonite India and the Company have further renewed the India Framework
Agreement for a period of three years with effect from January 1, 2016 (the "Renewed
India Framework Agreement”). Save for the duration of, and annual caps under,
the Renewed India Framework Agreement, all other terms are the same as those
in the India Framework Agreement. The purpose of the Company entering into the
Renewed India Framework Agreement was to ensure that Samsonite India could
continue to enter into transactions with other members of the Group in the ordinary
and usual course of the Company’'s business as an essential part of the Group's
global operations.

The Renewed India Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions between
Samsonite India and the rest of the Group must be on normal commercial terms
consistent with those in intra-company transactions between other subsidiaries of
the Company and in compliance with all relevant provisions of the Listing Rules.
The Renewed India Framework Agreement will expire on December 31, 2018 and
is renewable for further periods of three years, subject to compliance with the then
applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by mutual
agreement. The Company has followed its policies for intra-company transactions
in relation to all transactions under the India Framework Agreement during the
year ended December 31, 2016. Purchases by Samsonite India of raw materials,
components, spare parts, finished products and capital assets from other subsidiaries
of the Company, and purchases of finished products from Samsonite India by other
subsidiaries of the Company, are made at prices and on terms that are consistent
with the prices and terms applicable to intra-Group purchases made between non-
connected subsidiaries of the Company. The royalties paid by Samsonite India are
consistent with the royalty rate and terms paid by the Company’s other non-wholly
owned subsidiaries.

The aggregate consideration payable by the members of the rest of the Group to
Samsonite India under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2016 was approximately US$14.8 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount of consideration payable by the members of the rest of the Group
under transactions with Samsonite India for the year ended December 31, 2016 and
the year ending December 31, 2017 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the
Listing Rules at US$26.97 million and US$32.36 million, respectively.

The aggregate consideration payable by Samsonite India to the members of the rest
of the Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December 31,
2016 was approximately US$7.2 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount of consideration payable by Samsonite India under transactions with the
members of the rest of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the year
ending December 31, 2017 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules at US$11.73 million and US$14.08 million, respectively.

The annual caps under the Renewed India Framework Agreement were determined
primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in purchases of raw materials
and finished products between Samsonite India and the rest of the Group due
to increases in sales and production in line with Samsonite India’s then-current
business plan; (i) estimated growth in royalty payments by Samsonite India to the rest
of the Group due to growth in underlying sales; iii) estimated growth in marketing
and development costs in line with Samsonite India’s then-current business plan;
and (iv) expected market conditions and fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate for
the Indian Rupee against the US Dollar.

Samsonite India B EIARQ A — HEETHIEEZR K
FB2016F 1 AT HRABM=F([EINEER
Wil - BRETEEERGENFHREBE TS
LRS- FTA B GRS BENEIE R e Pl s
1R« RARFI B ENERER B B &) A5
fRSamsonite India ATEBN AR BIN— R B EE
HRBEAEEAEMKERFEINRS @ WAKRE
BERIREBHEE IR o

EETENEIELEHE AT © Samsonite India B34 EE
HbpK B AR R 5 WAERERRD 7 H MK B
ANAZEANARER S — A — R EIRRET L -
WAEBF(CEMRA) W AEEBIEX - BRIHE
ERBZBN2018F 12831 BER - WAl EH=
F o WEES(ETAAD ERERMGX - RIEE
EHHTERAZI RIS ERR - REIE 2016512
ASVHIEFE  ARFRIEREEEEBHRIETH
FIER SERERFBR BB - Samsonite India
MZARR I E MM B A RS R A - T4 - &4
BNEMEEREE  UEANAGBEMHER AR
Samsonite India SREE R JH IR BN A FERAE MY
BAT 2 T A AN 5 B ) SPER AR PR A0 (B A% R 1
KRB ER RIEFKIEL - Samsonite India 214 #)
BRERERNAREMIEZERBOMBARE
SRS ARG -

AEBEMKERTREZ=2016F12A31HIEF
Et EiFTE A2 5 M1 Samsonite India BIARR(EL
R4 8BEBET - MEBE(LETHIDMHRE - A%
BEEMKERTEE2016F 12831 BIEFENME
£201712 A31 HILFE B Samsonite India FTi#
TR ZENOESRERLENFE LRI BER
2697TBEEETLNI236BEET ©

Samsonite India REZE2016F 12 A31BIEFE
BRERFER S ENANEBEAMEE R ARER
BHAT2EBET - BRE(EMRADKBRE -
Samsonite India#E 2016412 A31 B ILFE RE
Z2017F12A3AILFERAEEEMKE QT
T TRR ZEMHESRBRENFE LR D5
EANT3EEETK14L08BEETT °

BRTEEIER G HEB THFE LR E IR N EE
EE (i) Samsonite India EAREEHMAKE AR 2
M E RV RSO SR FEER - tEH
ERAEEERE Samsonite India & RIRA EER
BIFAFFETEL ; (i) Samsonite India A28 S B E ALK
BARXNENBROMHER - WWHEMBRHEE
BTG RATE : () & H R FAZKARNMFHERE
Samsonite India &K RIRBEBHREER © K(iv) T8
AT M ENE B L R TR E IR ED ©

Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2016 | 155 BBIE AR AR 2016 FF R

125



DIRECTORS" REPORT
BE=ERE

The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the transactions
under the Renewed India Framework Agreement will be, on an annual basis, more
than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders” approval
requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

d] Transactions between Samsonite China and Bagzone

Bagzone is a company controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. As
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala is a director of the Company and the other members of the
Tainwala Group are associates of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala, Bagzone is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules.

As part of the Group’s overall relationship with Bagzone and the Tainwala Group,
since December 2010 Samsonite (China) Co., Ltd. ("Samsonite China”), a wholly-
owned member of the Group, has provided sourcing support and quality inspection
services to Bagzone in respect of the Lavie women’s handbag brand which is owned
by Bagzone. The amounts charged by Samsonite China to Bagzone for the provision
of such services are de minimis for the Group, being approximately US$0.14 million
(excluding applicable VAT) per year and in aggregate approximately US$0.71 million
(excluding applicable VAT) for the period from January 2011 until September 30, 2016.
All such sourcing support and quality inspection services provided by Samsonite
China to Bagzone had been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
Company's business and on normal commercial terms [after taking into account
the nature and de minimis value of the services provided and the Group’s overall
relationship with Bagzone and the Tainwala Group). Samsonite China has charged
Bagzone for the provision of such services at cost plus a margin of 7.12%, which
was determined by reference to the margin charged by the Group for intra-group
transactions of a similar nature.

On December 28, 2016, Samsonite China entered into a framework agreement
with Bagzone (the “Samsonite China Framework Agreement”] pursuant to which
Samsonite China has agreed to provide sourcing support and quality inspection
services to Bagzone in respect of the Lavie women's handbag brand. The Samsonite
China Framework Agreement provides that all transactions relating to the provision
of such sourcing support and quality inspection services must be in the ordinary
and usual course of the Company’'s business, on normal commercial terms (after
taking into account the nature and de minimis value of the services to be provided
and the Group's overall relationship with Bagzone and the Tainwala Group) and in
compliance with all applicable provisions of the Listing Rules. The transactions under
the Samsonite China Framework Agreement will be charged at cost plus a margin
of 7.12%, which was determined by reference to the margin charged by the Group
for intra-group transactions of a similar nature. The Samsonite China Framework
Agreement will expire on December 31, 2018 and is renewable for further periods of
three years, subject to compliance with the then applicable provisions of the Listing
Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by mutual agreement.
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The aggregate consideration payable by Bagzone to Samsonite China pursuant to
the Samsonite China Framework Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2016
was approximately US$0.14 million (excluding applicable VAT). The annual caps for
the maximum aggregate amount of consideration payable by Bagzone to Samsonite
China pursuant to the Samsonite China Framework Agreement for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and the year ending December 31, 2017 have been set pursuant
to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$0.18 million and US$0.19 million,
respectively, [excluding applicable VAT).

The annual caps under the Samsonite China Framework Agreement were determined
by reference to the estimated amount of sourcing support and quality inspection
services to be provided by Samsonite China to Bagzone and the estimated costs of
providing such services.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.83 of the Listing Rules, the transactions under the Samsonite
China Framework Agreement are required to be aggregated with the other
transactions between the Group and the Tainwala Group and the aggregate of the
consideration payable by Bagzone to Samsonite China in respect of the transactions
under the Samsonite China Framework Agreement is subject to the annual caps set
by the Company for all transactions with the Tainwala Group as set out above.

As set out above, the highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for
the transactions between the Group and the Tainwala Group will be, on an annual
basis, more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

Annual Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the INEDs of the
Company, who have confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

ii. either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

iil. inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In conducting such review, the INEDs of the Company have (i} reviewed with
management the purpose, nature and scope of the continuing connected transactions
and the policies and system of controls used by the Company to ensure compliance
with the Company’s policies and the Listing Rules, [ii) reviewed the monitoring
activities performed by the Company’s Internal Audit department in connection with
such transactions, (i) reviewed the procedures performed by the Company’s external
auditors in connection with the preparation of the limited assurance report described
below, and (iv) reviewed with management the Company’s disclosure with respect to
such transactions as included in this annual report and in other announcements that
may be published by the Company from time to time.
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In addition, the Auditor of the Company was engaged to provide a limited assurance
report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”. The auditors of the
Company have advised that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that:

1. the continuing connected transactions had not been approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors;

2. the continuing connected transactions were not, in all material respects,
entered into in accordance with the terms of the related agreements governing
the continuing connected transactions;

3. the relevant cap amounts, where applicable, have been exceeded during the
financial year ended December 31, 2016; and

4. inthe event that there would be any transactions involving the provision of goods
and services by the Group, the transactions were not, in any material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

The auditor hasissued its unqualified Limited Assurance Report containingits findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Company in pages 119 to 128 of this Annual Report in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s report has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Company during
the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above, none of these transactions constitutes a
disclosable connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued share capital
required under the Listing Rules during the year ended December 31, 2016 and up to
the Latest Practicable Date.

AUDITOR

The financial statements were audited by KPMG LLP, who shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 15, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B ZBERE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Samsonite International S.A.:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Samsonite International
S.A. and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated income statements and statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs] as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Code of Professional Conduct (AICPA
Code] and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the AICPA Code and the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Acquisition of Tumi Holdings Inc. [note 5]

In August 2016, pursuant to a merger agreement negotiated between the boards
of directors of the Group and Tumi Holdings Inc. (Tumi), the Group completed its
acquisition of Tumi for cash consideration of approximately US$1,830.8 million.
This acquisition is significant to the Group’s operations and financial results.

Purchase accounting for this transaction includes complex and judgmental
estimates and related assumptions necessary for management to determine the
fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and to allocate purchase
consideration to goodwill and separately identifiable intangible assets such
as customer contracts and relationships. Significant assumptions include, for
example, royalty rates, discount rates, customer attrition rates, revenue growth
rates and projected cash flows.

Based on the significance of the acquisition and the complex, judgmental
estimation process, this was a key area of audit focus.

Tax accounting [note 18]

As of December 31, 2016, the Group has recognized current tax liabilities of
US$93.6 million, deferred tax assets of US$56.0 million and deferred tax liabilities
of US$456.5 million. In addition, the Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets
of US$67.7 million including US$63.5 million of tax loss carry forwards, some of
which begin to expire beginning in 2019, because it is not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the benefits
from these deferred tax assets.

The Group operates in multiple jurisdictions throughout the world. As a result, the
Group is subject to periodic challenges by various national and local tax authorities
on a range of tax matters during the normal course of business, including transfer
pricing and transaction related tax matters. Based on these factors, the accounting
for tax uncertainties requires significant management judgment. In addition, the
recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets in North America, Europe,
Asia and Latin America requires significant management judgment, particularly in
regards to the amount of net operating losses recognized.

Based on the significant judgments required, we identified these areas of the tax
provision as a key audit matter.
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Revenue recognition (note 3(o)]

The amount of revenue recognized in the year on the sale of the Groups’ products

is dependent on the point in time the ownership transfers from the Group to the

customer.

The transfer of ownership includes consideration of terms and conditions
present in customer contracts, purchase orders or sales orders. This may also
be impacted by local regulatory considerations or mode of transport. Since the
Group’s sales occur in various countries throughout the world, there is an inherent

risk around the consistent application of the Group's revenue recognition policies
when considering these factors.

Based on these noted risks, we identified revenue transactions recorded at or near

year end as a key audit matter.

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures included, amongst others:

We read the merger agreement and related agreements to understand the
key terms and conditions of the transaction;

We assessed the design and implementation of relevant controls over the
authorization process for the acquisition, reconciliation of underlying data
and assumptions, and preparation and review of forecasted information
utilized by management to establish the fair values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed;

We performed substantive audit procedures over a selection of assets
and liabilities as of the acquisition date as well as procedures focused on
appropriate revenue and expense cutoff;

In order to validate the key terms and conditions impacting the accounting for
the transaction, we obtained and read the documents filed by Tumi with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC]) related to the acquisition,
including the proxy statements filed on Schedule 14A, and other pertinent
information as well as the reporting and filings by the Group with The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

We obtained and read the valuation report which was prepared by an
independent professional services firm and evaluated the assumptions and
methodologies used to determine the fair values;

With the assistance of our economic valuation specialists, we evaluated
certain assumptions by comparing them to external benchmarks and/or
independently performing recalculations of the assumptions, based on our
knowledge of the Group and the industry; and

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s presentation and disclosures in
respect of this acquisition and the related financing.
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We assessed the design and implementation of controls over the
identification and determination of temporary differences and tax loss
carry forwards giving rise to deferred tax assets or liabilities as well as the
accounting for tax uncertainties;

With the assistance of our tax specialists in the relevant jurisdictions, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the current tax provision, the determination
and completeness of income tax uncertainties and the recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities;

We assessed the recoverability of deferred tax assets, including net
operating losses and other deferred tax attributes. This included performing
procedures to understand, among other things, how losses arose and where
they are located, assessing any restrictions on future use, assessing the
availability of future income to utilize those losses and determining whether
and when those losses expire;

We evaluated transfer pricing documentation completed by third-party
specialists engaged by the Group as part of our procedures related to the
accounting for tax uncertainties; and

We evaluated the appropriateness of the related disclosures in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

With the assistance of our Information Technology (IT) specialists, we tested
the IT environment in which material ordering and billing and other relevant
support systems reside, including change control procedures in place
around systems that bill revenue streams;

We tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
certain controls over the revenue cycle as part of determining our level of
substantive testwork:

We tested a sample of revenue transactions from throughout the year for
compliance with the revenue recognition criteria, including transfer of risk of
loss. This included a sample of transactions near year end;

We read certain contractual arrangements with key customers enabling us
to understand key terms and conditions negotiated, including the provisions
for risk of loss, incentives and return rights;

We tested a sample of manual journal entries recorded to revenue during the
month ended December 31, 2016;

In order to identify potential material adjustments to 2016 revenue, we tested
a sample of credit memos issued subsequent to December 31, 2016;

We performed substantive procedures for year-end reserves for selected
markdown allowances, returns and discounts; and

We reconciled, on a sample basis, cash receipts back to the customer invoice
and purchase order.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the IASB,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and ISAs will
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

always detect a material misstatement

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued
B BN -

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe those matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report
is David B. Wilson.

I‘CPMG LCP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWER

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, Note
except per share data) (AFETE25  SREERM) FiaE 2016 2015
Net sales HEFH A 2,810,497 2,432,477
Cost of sales SHERA (1,289,545) (1,153,513)
Gross profit EH 1,520,952 1,278,964
Distribution expenses DX (818,432) (665,762)
Marketing expenses BT (143,785) (132,068)
General and administrative expenses — M AT 2 (177,933) (154,465)
Other expenses Hinp 5(c) (49,601) (17,798)
Operating profit KR 331,201 308,871
Finance income EUE LN 19 1,253 868
Finance costs Wi5ER 19 (59,789) (18,679)
Net finance costs WIS ERFE 19 (58,536) (17,811)
Profit before income tax B PT1S E Al A 20 272,665 291,060
Income tax benefit (expense) FriStife (M) 18 2,160 (74,043)
Profit for the year FR A 274,825 217,017
Profit attributable to equity holders Rt A A FE R T 255,667 197,639
Profit attributable to non-controlling FEIZERR R A AL i 23(c) 19,158 19,378

interests
Profit for the year F AT 274,825 217,017
Earnings per share BRRER

Basic and diluted earnings per share TRREA RS AT

(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (AERRETTZES) 12 0.181 0.140

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meErTEBER

Year ended December 31,

BZ12ANALEE

Note
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE25) Ff & 2016 2015
Profit for the year F RN F 274,825 217,017
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hih 2 mE U (E1E) -
Items that will never be reclassified to KT EEFHEEEEZ
profit or loss: A
Deferred tax impact of the SERIP Plan 7B B SERIP&T &I 2 AL
Liquidation HIERE 14(b) (53,899) -
Remeasurements on defined benefit BT EEREENETE
plans, net of tax (BRTi12) 14,18(c) (8,354) (530)
(62,253) (530)
Items that are or may be reclassified HigesnlgeENoETEan
subsequently to profit or loss: =
Changes in fair value of foreign RHNESKH 2 A BEE
exchange forward contracts, net of tax (BrFi1%) 18(c) (657) (1,690)
Changes in fair value of interest rate FEIGH 7 N (BEE
swaps, net of tax (B71&) 18(c) 11,431 -
Foreign currency translation gains BN TEHNEETE H W e
(losses) for foreign operations (E518) 19 (23,118) (35,272)
(12,344) (36,962)
Other comprehensive income (loss) Hth 2 EME (E5E) (74,597) (37,492)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZE W2 200,228 179,525
Total comprehensive income attributable to ARG AL 2 H KRB RE
equity holders 181,352 163,751
Total comprehensive income attributable to FF#EAS EzS fE (5 2 T S A8 %8
non-controlling interests 18,876 15,774
Total comprehensive income for the year — FRZEWEERE 200,228 179,525

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R

December 31,

12A31H
Note
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) Bt =E 2016 2015
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MRRAE 6 281,990 186,083
Goodwill [l 7(a) 1,238,910 297,360
Other intangible assets HthEpEE 7(b) 1,733,061 762,411
Deferred tax assets BEBRIBEE 18(d) 56,007 50,752
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 13(a) 16,149 =
Other assets and receivables H A& E M EWFIA 8(a) 32,926 25,159
Total non-current assets EMBNEERE 3,359,043 1,321,765
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories 7e 9 421,334 349,076
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B R R L At FE LKL TR 10 357,790 283,495
Prepaid expenses and other assets ENERAREMEE 8(b) 142,833 80,702
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 11 368,540 180,803
Total current assets MEVEERRTE 1,290,497 894,076
Total assets BERT 4,649,540 2,215,841
Equity and Liabilities EnkaE
Equity: PR
Share capital A& 23(b) 14,113 14,098
Reserves E 23(b) 1,452,941 1,345,456
Total equity attributable to equity holders — RXHERF A A (L HERS 4A%E 1,467,054 1,359,554
Non-controlling interests AR AE 23(c) 43,933 39,832
Total equity e B 1,510,987 1,399,386
Non-Current Liabilities ERBERE
Loans and borrowings ERRER 13(a) 1,805,561 57
Employee benefits BEEF 14 28,680 38,523
Non-controlling interest put options FEIEAR A s SR HAAE 23(c) 64,746 55,829
Deferred tax liabilities RAEHIABE 18(d) 456,540 106,240
Other liabilities Hib&E 7,140 4,403
Total non-current liabilities JEMBENB B 2,362,667 205,052
Current Liabilities RBARG
Loans and borrowings BERRER 13(b) 23,994 62,724
Current portion of long-term debt KGRI RIAAER 5 13(b) 45,813 -
Employee benefits EEREH 14 78,680 59,139
Trade and other payables JE1SF BR R R ELAth {5 308 17 533,772 442,141
Current tax liabilities BNEATEIE & (& 18 93,627 47,399
Total current liabilities mENB(ERE 775,886 611,403
Total liabilities afEmss 3,138,553 816,455
Total equity and liabilities =k B EBRE 4,649,540 2,215,841
Net current assets MENEEFEE 514,611 282,673
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERRDAE 3,873,654 1,604,438

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

Number of
Note shares
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except number of shares) (ATFER25 > RHDEE BRI Bt =E RHEE
Year ended December 31, 2015: HBZE2015F1283NAILEE :
Balance, January 1, 2015 201541 A1 BRy4&sR 1,408,026,456
Profit for the year F R A =
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hib 2wz (E5E)
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax BT EERENE (BREE) 14(b) =
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax ReEnBEHA AR BEEZIH (KRR 18 -
Foreign currency translation losses HNEETE &5 18 19 =
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year FAZEMNE(EE) 45 =
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity: BEEFTAE=NEES AN :
Change in fair value of put options RmEIEA R BEE 21 -
Cash distributions to equity holders MRERE AEL 2R &0k 12 -
Share-based compensation expense LARR 5 32 A< 9 S Bl 7 s 14(a) =
Exercise of stock options Gnid i 14(a) 1,807,069
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Wi SR IR i A 23(c) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT AR R AR 2 -
Balance, December 31, 2015 72015 12 A 31 HW &R 1,409,833,525
Year ended December 31, 2016: BZE2016F12A3MALFE :
Balance, January 1, 2016 R2016F 1 B 1 BM&ERH 1,409,833,525
Profit for the year F IR A -
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hih2mE = (EE)
Liquidation of defined benefit plan TBEHEE RN 2 14(b) -
Deferred tax impact of the SERIP Plan Liquidation BESERIPFT &I IRETHEF 2 14(b) -
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax B2 TR 2 (BRFE) 14(b) -
Changes in fair value of foreign exchange forward RHSNESH 2 AR BEZEH(BREE)  18(c) -
contracts, net of tax
Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps, net of tax X2 DA BEEEH(FRHRIEL) 13(a), 18(c) -
Foreign currency translation gains (losses) HNEETE H M55 (5 18) 19 =
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year FAZENE(EE)EE -
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity: HETAEGREREEANRS
Change in fair value of put options RLHEABEES 21 -
Cash distributions to equity holders MRS B AEH 2R & DK 12 -
Share-based compensation expense VAR 19 2 1~ 9 B B A =2 14(a) -
Exercise of stock options IR E ARE 14(a) 1,455,376

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

RARE S0 Tt b o)

Balance, December 31, 2016

M 2016412 A31 BRIAEE

1,411,288,901

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

&

Total equity
attributable

Additional to equity holders Non-controlling

Share capital paid-in capital Translation reserve Other reserves Retained earnings BEZFEA interests Total equity
;&S BEIMBA R RERE Hitb ks REBF PEfhRER AR IR ESEEE
14,080 964,992 (38,775) (64,257) 393,648 1,269,688 37,752 1,307,440
- - - - 197,639 197,639 19,378 217,017
- - - (533) = (533) 3 (530)
- - - (1,689) = (1,689) (1) (1,690)
= = (31,666) = = (31,666) (3,606) (35,272)

= = (31,666) (2,222) 197,639 163,751 15,774 179,525

- - - - 1,775 1,775 - 1,775
= = = = (88,000) (88,000) = (88,000)

- - - 15,215 - 15,215 - 15,215

18 6,229 - (1,804) - 4,443 - 4,443
- - (1,102) - (6,216) (7,318) (2,085) (9,403)
= = = = = = (11,609) (11,609)
14,098 971,221 (71,543) (53,068) 498,846 1,359,554 39,832 1,399,386
14,098 971,221 (71,543) (53,068) 498,846 1,359,554 39,832 1,399,386
- - - - 255,667 255,667 19,158 274,825

- - - 141,747 (141,747) = = =
- - - (53,899) = (53,899) - (53,899)
- - - (8,384) = (8,384) 30 (8,354)
- - - (628) = (628) (29) (657)

- - - 11,431 - 11,431 - 11,431
- - (22,835) = = (22,835) (283) (23,118)

= = (22,835) 90,267 113,920 181,352 18,876 200,228

- - - - 202 202 - 202
- - - - (93,000) (93,000) - (93,000)

- - - 15,490 - 15,490 - 15,490

15 4,830 - (1,389) = 3,456 - 3,456
- - - - - - (14,775) (14,775)
14,113 976,051 (94,378) 51,300 519,968 1,467,054 43,933 1,510,987
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLLFE

Note
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) B = 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities: RETFH2HRERE !
Profit for the year FRRA 274,825 217,017
Adjustments to reconcile profit to net YE AR DA A B AT &5 )
cash generated from operating activities: Fr{3IR & /SRR TR ¢
Gain on sale and disposal of assets, net HEREEEEW ' ¥ 1,593 10
Depreciation e [} 66,785 48,985
Amortization of intangible assets A E R 7(b) 22,456 10,590
Net change in defined benefit pension plans ERBAEASEIMNEEFE  14(b) (21,652) (8,809)
Change in fair value of put options LRI BEES 21(g) 9,119 5,772
Non-cash share-based compensation PARR 19 2 A< I FEER & H B 14(a) 15,490 15,215
Interest expense on financial liabilities TREENFERAX 19 43,691 3,160
Income tax (benefit) expense SR (%) R 18 (2,160) 74,043
410,147 365,983
Changes in operating assets and liabilities K BERAEEE
(excluding allocated purchase price in (MBREBE T 2 EDRUEEE) :
business combinations):
Trade and other receivables RSB % L At P MR TR (55,132) (10,528
Inventories 78 31,469 (31,783)
Other current assets HiRE&EE (9,719) (5,968)
Trade and other payables JEA-F AR R 2 EL A B T 00 (8,363) 35,774
Other assets and liabilities, net HihEEREE  F8 3,611 (9,290)
Cash generated from operating activities BEEEERS 372,013 344,188
Interest paid ERAE (36,055) (1,900)
Income tax paid ERFEH (75,203) (83,265)
Net cash generated from operating activities AR EPTISER S FEE 260,755 259,023
Cash flows from investing activities: REFEHZHERE !
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREE 6 (69,579) (68,477)
Other intangible asset additions HiBIZEERE 7 (6,197) =
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired  UWES S (HIBRWEHES) 5 (1,685,281) (30,138)
Other proceeds (uses) HEiASRIB(EBAFIE) 1,691 (5,437)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMAR S FHE (1,759,366) (104,052)
Cash flows from financing activities: METBZHERE !
Proceeds from issuance of Senior BITEB L EEREMSEIE 13 1,925,000 -
Credit Facilities
Payments of long-term debt T REBES 13 (9,500) =
Payments from current loans and borrowings, net  EIEAE TR R A& F (3K - B4 13 (45,211) (1,111)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Wi SR AR i 2 23(c) - (15,716)
Payment of deferred financing costs EAHEIERLE R A 13 (69,499) =
Proceeds from the exercise of share options TS 0B 14 4,845 6,247
Cash distributions to equity holders RRERE AEHZ RS DK 12 (93,000) (88,000)
Dividend payments to non-controlling interests 2 {J3FZE iR R B 23 (14,775) (11,609)
Net cash generated from (used in) MEEEBAE(FAA)ReF8E 1,697,860 (110,189)
financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re RIBEEEYHILINFEE 199,249 44,782
Cash and cash equivalents, at January 1 R1ATENRE RIS EEY 180,803 140,423
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXEHHR e RASSEYNLE (11,512) (4,402)
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 R12ANBRRERIEEEEY 11 368,540 180,803

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B ERARMIEE

1. Background

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the "Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and
casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective cases for personal electronic
devices throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite® Tumi® American
Tourister®, Hartmann® High Sierra®, Gregory® Speck®, Lipault® and Kamiliant®
brand names as well as other owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells
its products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels, through its
company-operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The Group sells its
products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”]. The Company was
incorporated in Luxembourg on March 8, 2011 as a public limited liability company
(a société anonyme), whose registered office is 13-15 Avenue de la Liberté, L-1931
Luxembourg.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 23.

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), which collective term
includes all International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations,
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted all these
new and revised IFRSs for all periods presented, except for any new standards
or interpretations that are not yet mandatorily effective for the accounting
period ended December 31, 2016. The revised and new accounting standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the accounting period ended
December 31, 2016 are set out in note 3(v).

These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The accounting policies below, where material, have been applied consistently to
all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) on March 15, 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

2. Basis of Preparation continued

(b) Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the following material items in the consolidated statement of
financial position as set out in the accounting policies below:

. derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

o the defined benefit liability is recognized as the net total of the plan assets,
plus recognized past service cost and recognized actuarial losses, less
recognized actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates (“functional currency”). The
functional currencies of the significant subsidiaries within the Group are the
currencies of the primary economic environment and key business processes of
these subsidiaries and include, but are not limited to, United States Dollars, Euros,
Renminbi and Indian Rupee.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in
the United States Dollar ("USD"), which is the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
No significant changes occurred during the current reporting period of estimates
reported in prior periods.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued

(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions continued

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 3(o) — Revenue recognition

o Note 5 — Business combinations

. Note 6 — Property, plant and equipment

o Note 7 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
o Note 9 — Inventories

o Note 10 — Trade and other receivables

e Note 14(a) —

e Note 14(b) — Pension plans and defined benefit schemes

Share-based payment arrangements

o Note 18 — Income taxes
e Note 21(g) — Fair value of financial instruments

o Note 23(c) — Non-controlling interests and acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have an
effect on the consolidated financial statements resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year is included in the following notes:

o Note 5 — Business combinations

o Note 7 — Goodwill and other intangible assets

e Note 14(b) — Pension plans and defined benefit schemes
o Note 16 — Contingent liabilities

o Note 18 — Income taxes

o Note 21 — Financial risk management and financial instruments

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of new, revised and amended IFRSs. For the
purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016, there were no new or revised IFRSs yet effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
by the Group to all periods presented, where material, in these consolidated
financial statements.

(a) Principles of Consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity.

The financial information of subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

(i) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit for the year and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and equity
holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’'s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with the resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the new cost basis on initial recognition of a financial asset or an associate.

(iii]  Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at
the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is obtained by the Group.
In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration substantive potential
voting rights.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the excess of the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree, over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition date. If
the net fair value is greater than the consideration transferred, then this excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(a) Principles of Consolidation continued
(iii] Business Combinations continued

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement
of pre-existing relationships, if applicable. Such amounts generally are recognized
in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not
remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit
or loss.

When share-based payment awards (“replacement awards”) are required to be
exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees (“acquiree’s awards”)
and relate to past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s
replacement awards is included in measuring consideration transferred in the
business combination. This determination is based on the market-based value of
the replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the acquiree’s
awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or
future service.

(b) Foreign Currency Translation
(il Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences
arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences
arising on the retranslation of qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognized
in other comprehensive income. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the
period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange
rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(b) Foreign Currency Translation continued
lii] ~ Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries are translated
into USD at period end exchange rates. Equity accounts denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into USD at historical exchange rates. Income and
expense accounts are translated at average monthly exchange rates. All foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations are recorded in the foreign currency translation reserve in the
consolidated statement of position. The net exchange gains or losses resulting
from translating at varied exchange rates are recorded as a component of
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and attributed to non-
controlling interests, as appropriate.

(c) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by
the Group's management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information
is available.

The Group's segment reporting is based on geographical areas, representative of
how the Group's business is managed and its operating results are evaluated. The
Group's operations are organized as follows: (i) “Asia”; (i) "North America”; (iii)
“Europe”; (iv) “Latin America”, and (v) “Corporate”.

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses,
income tax assets and liabilities, and licensing activities from the license of brand
names owned by the Group.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Assets
under finance leases are stated at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments. Improvements which extend the life of an asset are capitalized.
Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment continued

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if applicable, as follows:

e Buildings
e Machinery, equipment and other
e Leasehold improvements

20 to 30 years
3to 10years
Lesser of useful life or the lease term

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Group with freehold interest is not
depreciated.

The Group capitalizes the costs of purchased software and costs to configure,
install and test software and includes these costs within machinery, equipment
and other in the consolidated statement of financial position. Software assessment
and evaluation, process reengineering, data conversion, training, maintenance and
ongoing software support costs are expensed as incurred.

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
lil  Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of a business is included in
intangible assets. For measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3(a)
(iii). Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit ("CGU"), or groups of CGUs, which are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and are tested annually for impairment.

lii]  Intangible Assets (Other Than Goodwill)

Intangible assets primarily consist of tradenames, customer relationships,
patents and key money. No recognized intangible assets have been generated
internally.

Intangible assets which are considered to have an indefinite life, such as
tradenames, are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and
are not amortized but are tested for impairment at least annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired.
Samsonite®, Tumi®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®,
Speck® and Lipault® are the significant tradenames of the Group. It is anticipated
that the economic benefits associated with these tradenames will continue for
an indefinite period. The conclusion that the tradenames are an indefinite lived
asset is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortization of intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
lii]  Intangible Assets (Other Than Goodwill] continued

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized and measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization
expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives from the date that they are available for use, as this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

10 to 20 years
3to 10 years
1to 10 years

e Customer relationships
e Key money
e Patents

Intangible assets having a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be recoverable. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually
and adjusted if applicable.

(f) Impairment
(il Financial Assets (Including Trade and Other Receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise, or indications that a debtor or issuer
will enter bankruptcy.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific
asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables are assessed
for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has
been incurred but not yet identified.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends. Impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(f)  Impairment continued
(il Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For those CGUs or
group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the
same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "CGU"). For the purposes
of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. This allocation is subject to an operating segment before aggregation
ceiling test and reflects the lowest level at which that goodwill is monitored for
internal reporting purposes to the asset or CGU.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an
indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset may be allocated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the group of units, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss that has been recognized on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods if estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
change. For other assets, impairment losses that have been recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. The cost of inventory includes
expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production costs and other
costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case
of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost also
may include transfers from other comprehensive income of any gain or loss on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses
of inventories are recognized as expenses in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(h) Trade and Other Receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes and generally
approximates carrying value.

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(j) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value. Trade and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

(k) Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognized and the redemption value being recognized in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest payable and deferred
financing costs, using the effective interest method.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Financial Instruments
(il Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they
are originated.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
receivables are measured at cost, less any impairment losses. Receivables are
comprised of trade and other receivables.

The Group initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they
are originated. The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, canceled or expire.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables. Both loans and borrowings and
trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to their initial recognition, loans
and borrowings are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

(i} Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are
not closely related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined instrument
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. For derivatives designated in
hedging relationships, changes in the fair value are either offset through profit
or loss against the change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk
being hedged or recognized in hedging reserves that are reported directly in equity
(deficit) until the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss and, at that time, the
related hedging gain or loss is removed from equity (deficit) and is used to offset
the change in value of the hedged item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Financial Instruments continued
(i}  Derivative Financial Instruments continued

Other than agreements with holders of non-controlling interests, there were no
derivatives embedded in host contracts during the periods presented. The Group
has certain put option agreements that are classified as financial liabilities in
accordance with IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation ("IAS 327), in the
consolidated statement of financial position, as the Group has a potential obligation
to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount recognized initially is the fair
value of the redeemable non-controlling interests and subsequently remeasured
at each reporting date based on a price to earnings multiple discounted to the
reporting date. For agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS 3,
Business Combinations ("IFRS 3"}, on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes
in liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after
January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and any attributable transaction
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as
described below.

The Group periodically enters into derivative contracts that it designates as a
hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or
paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging
relationships, the Group formally documents the hedging relationship and its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed
prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring
ineffectiveness. The Group also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception
and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting cash flows of hedged items by
determining whether the actual results of each hedge are within a range of 80%
to 125%. For a cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction, the transaction should
be highly probable to occur and should present an exposure to variations in cash
flows that ultimately could affect reported profit or loss.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow
hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a
component of other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve
in equity, and reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged transaction affects profit or loss. Gains and losses on the
derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are excluded from the assessment
of effectiveness and are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines
that the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged
item, the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is
de-designated as a hedging instrument because it is unlikely that a forecasted
transaction will occur, or management determines that designation of the
derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not designated
in a qualified hedging relationship, all changes in fair value are recognized
immediately through profit or loss. If the forecasted transaction is no longer
expected to occur, then the balance in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Financial Instruments continued
(iii) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.

(m) Employee Benefits
(i)  Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which
an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense
in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

(il  Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a
defined contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any
unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.
The discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under which the
benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount
rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value. IAS 19,
Employee Benefits ("IAS19"] limits the measurement of the defined benefit asset
to the lower of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling, which
is defined as the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or redirections in future contributions to the plan. In order
to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic
benefit is available to the Group if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on
settlement of the plan liabilities.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have pension plans and post-retirement health
benefit plans which provide retirement benefits for eligible employees, generally
measured by length of service, compensation and other factors. The Group follows
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure provisions of IAS 19.
Under IAS 19, remeasurements, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income
and are not subsequently reclassified into profit or loss. The measurement date
for all pension and other employee benefit plans is the Group's fiscal year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(m) Employee Benefits continued

lii]  Defined Benefit Plans continued

Under IAS 19, the Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the
period on the net defined benefit liability (asset] by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period.
Consequently, the net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset) now

comprises:

o Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation;
. Interest income on plan assets; and

o Interest on the effect of asset ceiling.

liii] Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other
than pension plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.
The discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under which the
benefits are projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount
rate is then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value. Any
actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at the end of
the fiscal year.

[iv) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the
termination of an employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision
to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an
employee’s decision to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination
of employment.

[v]  Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

[vi] Share-based Compensation

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards
granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become
entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized
as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet the related service
and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For equity-settled
share-based payment awards with market performance conditions or non-vesting
conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected
and actual outcomes.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(n) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and
deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to a business combination, items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the
following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In
addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences arising
on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities,
if they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

(o) Revenue Recognition

Revenues from wholesale product sales are recognized when (i) evidence of
a sales arrangement at a fixed or determinable price exists (usually in the form
of a sales order], [ii] collectability is reasonably assured, and [iii) title transfers
to the customer. Provisions are made for estimates of markdown allowances,
warranties, returns and discounts at the time product sales are recognized.
Shipping terms are predominately FOB shipping point (title transfers to the
customer at the Group's shipping location] except in certain Asian countries where
title transfers upon delivery to the customer. In all cases, sales are recognized
upon transfer of title to customers. Revenues from retail sales are recognized at
the point of sale to consumers. Revenue excludes collected sales taxes.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognized in profit or loss.

The Group licenses its brand names to certain third parties. Net sales in the
accompanying consolidated income statement include royalties earned on
licensing agreements with third parties, for which revenue is earned and
recognized when the third party makes a sale of a branded product of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(p) Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and
Administrative Expenses

The Group includes the following types of costs in cost of sales: direct
product purchase and manufacturing costs, duties, freight, receiving, inspection,
internal transfer costs, depreciation and procurement and manufacturing
overhead. The impairment of inventories and the reversals of such impairments
are included in cost of sales during the period in which they occur.

Distribution expenses are primarily comprised of rent, employee benefits,
customer freight, depreciation, amortization, warehousing costs and other selling
expenses.

Marketing expenses consist of advertising and promotional activities. Costs
for producing media advertising are deferred until the related advertising first
appears in print or television media, at which time such costs are expensed. All
other advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs
associated with customer support programs giving the Group an identifiable
advertising benefit equal to at least the amount of the advertising allowance
are accrued and charged to marketing expenses when the related revenues
are recognized. From time to time, the Group offers various types of incentive
arrangements such as cash or payment discounts, rebates or free products. All
such incentive arrangements are accrued and reduce reported revenues when
incurred.

General and administrative expenses consist of management salaries and
benefits, information technology costs, and other costs related to administrative
functions and are expensed as incurred.

(q) Finance Income and Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, gains on
hedging instruments that are recognized in profit or loss and reclassifications of
net gains previously recognized in other comprehensive income. Interest income
is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings (including the
amortization of deferred financing costs), unwinding of the discount on provisions,
changes in the fair value of put options associated with the Group’'s majority-
owned subsidiaries, net gains (losses) on hedging instruments that are recognized
in profit or loss and reclassifications of net losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments are included
in the initial measurement of the related financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Such deferred financing costs are amortized using

the effective interest method over the term of the related debt obligation.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(r) Earnings Per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS”) data for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the period, adjusted for any shares held by
the Group. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding, adjusted for any shares held by the Group, for the effects of
all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to
employees, as applicable.

(s) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased
asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group leases retail stores, distribution centers and office facilities. Initial
terms of the leases range from one to twenty years. Most leases provide for
monthly fixed minimum rentals or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess
of stated amounts and normally require the Group to pay real estate taxes,
insurance, common area maintenance costs and other occupancy costs. The
Group recognizes rent expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis over the base term
of the lease. Any difference between the straight-line rent amount and the
amount payable under the lease is included in other liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Contingent rental payments are expensed as
incurred.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between
the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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3.
(t)

EUEHRRMET =

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount

when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past

event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money

is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(u)
(i)

(1)
(2)
(3)

(ii)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Related Parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply
the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, the subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in [i;

a person identified in (iJ(1) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is part, provides key
management services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(v) New Standards and Interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are
not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2016, and have not been applied
in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final element of its comprehensive response
to the financial crisis by issuing IFRS 9, Financial Instruments ("IFRS 97]. The
improvements introduced by IFRS 9 include new principles for classification
and measurement based on cash flows characteristics and business model,
a single forward-looking expected loss impairment model and a substantially
revised approach to hedge accounting aligning it more with risk management
strategies. IFRS 9 will come into effect on January 1, 2018 with early application
permitted. The Group intends to adopt IFRS 9 as of January 1, 2018 and, based on
its preliminary assessment of the requirements, does not anticipate a significant
impact on its financial performance and condition.

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("IFRS 157). IFRS 15 sets out requirements for recognizing revenue that applies
to all contracts with customers and introduces a five step approach with control
being the basic principal underpinning the new model. IFRS 15 is effective as of
January 1, 2018 with earlier application permitted. The Group intends to adopt
IFRS 15 as of January 1, 2018 and is currently in the process of evaluating an
appropriate transition approach as well as identifying potential differences
between existing accounting and the new requirements.

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases ("IFRS 16”) which, once adopted,
replaces the existing standard IAS 17, Leases. IFRS 16 is intended to provide
transparency on companies’ lease assets and liabilities, with off-balance sheet
lease financing generally no longer possible, thereby improving comparability
between companies that lease and those that borrow to buy. IFRS 16 is effective
as of January 1, 2019. Early application is permitted for companies that also adopt
IFRS 15. The Group intends to adopt IFRS 16 as of January 1, 2019 and is currently
in the process of evaluating appropriate transition options available under IFRS 16
as well as gaining an understanding of the overall impact of the adoption on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the IASB issued Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes. These
amendments, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses, clarify
how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured
at fair value. Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes provides requirements on
the recognition and measurement of current or deferred tax liabilities or assets
and clarify the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized
losses. Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes will come into effect for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted.
The Group will adopt Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes as of January 1, 2017.
Based on management’s assessment, the adoption of the new guidance will not
have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(v) New Standards and Interpretations continued

In February 2016, the IASB issued Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash
Flows. These amendments are part of the IASB’s broader disclosure initiative
to improve presentation and disclosure in financial statements. Amendments
to IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows requires new disclosures that help users to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash flow and non-cash flow changes. Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash
Flows will come into effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2017 with early application permitted. Comparative information for preceding
periods is not required upon the adoption of this amendment. The Group will adopt
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows as of January 1, 2017 and will
present reconciliations between the opening and closing balances for liabilities
with changes arising from financing activities in its 2017 annual report.

In June 2016, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions. These amendments
eliminate the ambiguity over how a company should account for certain types
of share-based payment arrangements. Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions cover three accounting
areas: (i) measurement of cash-settled share-based arrangements, [ii)
classification of share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings and (iii)
accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to
equity-settled. Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions will come into effect for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 with earlier application permitted. The Group intends
to adopt IFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions as of January 1, 2018 and does not anticipate a material impact on its
consolidated financial results from adoption of this amendment.

In December 2016, the IFRS issued Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC"] Update
22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration ["IFRIC 227). IFRIC
22 clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment
of advance consideration in a foreign currency. IFRIC 22 covers foreign currency
transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration before
the entity recognizes the related asset, expense or income. IFRIC 22 is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with earlier
application permitted. The Group intends to adopt IFRIC 22 as of January 1, 2018.
Based on its initial assessment, management does not expect the adoption of the
new guidance will have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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4. Segment Reporting

(a)

Operating Segments

Management of the business and evaluation of operating results is organized

primarily along geographic lines dividing responsibility for the Group’s operations,

besides the Corporate segment, as follows:

Asia — includes operations in South Asia (India and Middle East], China,
Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan, Hong Kong, Thailand,
Indonesia, Philippines and Australia;

North America — includes operations in the United States of America and
Canada;

Europe — includes operations in European countries as well as South
Africa;

Latin America — includes operations in Chile, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil,
Colombia, Panama, Peru and Uruguay; and

Corporate — primarily includes certain licensing activities from brand
names owned by the Group and Corporate headquarters overhead.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below

Performance is measured based on segment operating profit or loss, as included

in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Chief Operating

Decision Maker. Segment operating profit or loss is used to measure performance

as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating

the results of the Group’s segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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4. Segment Reporting continued

(a)

Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 and

December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Operating Segments continued

Iff
Ji

9

4.

(a)
201612 8
LEFENDBPERT :

%Bi&
418

B

uu]t

Year ended December 31, 2016
BZ2016F12ANHILEEE

31HK&2015F 12 A31 B REEZB

North Latin
Asia America Europe America Corporate Consolidated
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (A F£7x25!) =M JEEM BUM FTEM 1t 3 &t
External revenues SRR 1,028,578 1,027,172 615,301 130,559 8,887 2,810,497
Operating profit S 133,070 84,345 68,548 (4,600) 49,838 331,201
Operating profit (loss) MR EE NS E R
excluding intragroup charges 482 % (E18 ) 196,107 142,880 85,012 (1,683) (91,115) 331,201
Depreciation and amortization — #7& & # 29,422 25,857 24,504 6,605 2,853 89,241
Capital expenditures BRI 21,861 16,300 22,697 7,161 1,560 69,579
Interest income FEWA 654 7 192 226 174 1,253
Interest expense FERAX (261) - (736) (545) (42,149) (43,691)
Income tax (expense) benefit — FTf3%: (FIs0) K% (31,184)  (42,863)  (14,769) (172) 91,148 2,160
Total assets BEMAE 1,122,449 1,740,980 538,763 107,641 1,139,707 4,649,540
Total liabilities BiEEE 176,483 612,954 214,146 43,229 2,091,741 3,138,553
Year ended December 31, 2015
HZE20155 1283 BLLFE
North Latin
Asia America Europe America Corporate  Consolidated
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (A F =T 25) CED) JE M BUM RHTEM P &t
External revenues HNERUL AR 947,602 811,304 544,740 120,476 8,355 2,432,477
Operating profit iyl 114,813 56,083 52,132 3,645 82,198 308,871
Operating profit (loss) MR EE AN E R
excluding intragroup charges &2 & & F(/&18) 178,377 107,890 69,186 6,437 (53,019) 308,871
Depreciation and amortization — #T& M # 20,317 12,900 19,328 4,601 2,429 59,575
Capital expenditures BEARFXZ 26,305 14,209 20,383 5,660 1,920 68,477
Interest income FEUWA 488 2 IANA (66) - 868
Interest expense FERE (146) (145) (461) (287) (2,121) (3,160)
Income tax (expense) benefit P58 (B )% (29,382) (21,680 (16,982) (2,743) (3,256) (74,043)
Total assets BEME 609,838 762,054 466,915 112,099 264,935 2,215,841
Total liabilities EREFCEE 229,924 502,839 225,856 44,145 (186,309) 816,455



4. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information

The following tables set out enterprise-wide information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group's property, plant, and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
(specified non-current assets). The geographical location of customers is based on
the selling location of the goods. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the assets.

(il  Revenue from External Customers

The following table presents the revenues earned in major geographical
locations where the Group has operations. The geographic location of the Group’'s
net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not
necessarily indicate the country in which its end consumers were actually located.
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Year ended December 31,
BZ12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETL25) 2016 2015
Asia: CEL IR
China s 251,729 252,722
South Korea [EL 178,176 184,141
Japan =FN 135,041 93,668
India ENE 128,056 135,066
Hong Kong"" e 109,093 77,224
Australia SEM 67,959 56,203
United Arab Emirates Fa[Fz 1R B & 2 = B 45,881 41,043
Thailand Z=E 27,551 25,703
Singapore Frngg 26,262 25,126
Taiwan =) 23,910 22,970
Indonesia EfE 19,069 17,817
Other EHih 15,851 15,919
Total Asia CEVE= 1,028,578 947,602
North America: JEZEM
United States ERH 976,120 769,505
Canada IEDN 51,052 41,799
Total North America IEEMNEE 1,027,172 811,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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4. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continuec
(il Revenue from External Customers continued

4.

(b)
(i)

DEPERE =
i &R
KE I EBEFE W a #

4

Year ended December 31,
BZ12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Europe: BN
Germany =R 110,883 80,252
Belgium [nlliss 73,475 64,411
Italy BAA 68,740 60,614
United Kingdom® B 68,521 59,774
France =B 66,997 68,393
Spain i 47,599 41,055
Russia ik 72 Hy 30,608 27,085
Holland Gl 30,295 28,307
Sweden gl 19,684 16,821
Austria Ed 3 F| 17,103 14,684
Turkey TEH 16,670 17,745
Switzerland Imt 16,446 17,701
Norway X 12,034 11,941
Other EHih 36,246 35,957
Total Europe BN &5t 615,301 544,740
Latin America: T EM
Chile B 59,518 57,867
Mexico =POaf 41,422 38,429
Brazil® pisis) 12,425 10,016
Other Eph 17,194 14,164
Total Latin America T EMNEFT 130,559 120,476
Corporate and other [(royalty revenue): EREM(FER ) -
Luxembourg EHRE 8,804 8,240
United States ESE 83 115
Total Corporate and other ERAMERT 8,887 8,355
Total @t 2,810,497 2,632,477
Notes e

(1) Includes Macau. 2016 net sales in Hong Kong included sales to distributors of the Tumi brand throughout Asia,
excluding Japan.

(2)  Includes Ireland.

(3] The net sales figure for Brazil includes net sales to third party distributors in Brazil.

U

(2)
3

BIERM - 2016 FEBOHEFERIER A AU EN S
Tumi ERRE5 SHESHEL AVSHE -

BIEEBE o
BANEEFESBRAENEAHE =D HANHEFE -



4. Segment Reporting continued
(b) Geographical Information continued

lii] - Specified Non-current Assets

The following table presents the Group’s significant non-current assets by
country. Unallocated specified non-current assets mainly comprise goodwill.

4L, DEEE =

(b) imEE &

lii) EERIFREEE
TRAEERREZINNASENERIEREE

E o RDIEMIEEHRDEETEBRREEE -

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) 2016 2015
United States E350 1,613,020 51,590
Luxembourg EARE 693,756 677,309
Belgium b R B 55,699 58,466
China A 27,140 25,153
Hungary &7 F 23,705 20,953
Japan SN 23,661 16,232
Hong Kong B 19,382 14,789
India ENE 15,200 15,252
Chile B 11,697 12,033
South Korea [FFEE: 11,012 9,937

5. Business Combinations
(a) 2016 Acquisition

The Group completed one business combination during the year ended
December 31, 2016.

(i) Tumi Holdings, Inc.

On March 3, 2016, the Company and PTL Acquisition Inc. ("Merger Sub”),
which was then an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement and plan of merger (the "Merger Agreement”) with Tumi Holdings,
Inc. ("Tumi Holdings"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire Tumi
Holdings for a cash consideration of US$26.75 per outstanding common share
of Tumi Holdings, without interest (the “Per Share Merger Consideration”). The
acquisition was completed on August 1, 2016 and was effected by way of the
merger of Merger Sub with and into Tumi Holdings, with Tumi Holdings surviving
the merger as an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. On December
30, 2016, Tumi Holdings was merged with and into its wholly-owned subsidiary
Tumi, Inc., with Tumi, Inc. surviving the merger. Tumi is a leading global premium
lifestyle brand offering a comprehensive line of business bags, travel luggage and
accessories. The brand is consistently recognized as “best in class” for the high
quality, durability, functionality and innovative design of its products, which range
from its iconic black ballistic business cases and travel luggage synonymous
with the modern business professional, to travel accessories, women'’s bags and
outdoor apparel.

5. XS4t
(a) 2016FWIEEE

HZE2016F 12831 HIEFE - AEBTHK—
HEBEH -

(i]  Tumi Holdings, Inc.

M2016F3 A3 H » RNARIRAREEREE
BENE2EMB AR PTL Acquisition Inc.([ & B
B2A7R])E Tumi Holdings, Inc.([Tumi Holdings )
Bl aotE et ([ &0t =) @ Bt - "RF
[EEWHE Tumi Holdings * & Tumi Holdings 17
NS RRFASNRER26.75FTETHE([ER
EHRE]) - WEEREN2016F8 A1 B -
W LAS GFHT B A RIEL Tumi Holdings & #F3F B HF A
Tumi Holdings 8973 # & & » il Tumi Holdings A
EHTREEARDRIRERAENEENB AR
IETF4E - 7R 20164F 12 A30H * Tumi Holdings B2 H
2EME AR Tumi, Inc. &0 BHFA Tumi, Inc.
i Tumi, Inc. RE BB EBETFE - TumiZ— &
FREANSERHEETDE  HEFNERRT
BEEBE  RETFEREMS - ZmEARE
mEEBR M - ZWAREIFRE - MEA
RAFRREN MR - HEMBEREARSEHER
EERMBALMRAORSEERCBERENER
BB RIRETEMS  REEM - KEFRRFIN
BREf o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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5. Business Combinations continued

(a) 2016 Acquisition continued
[/} Tumi Holdings, Inc. continued

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, as of the effective time of the
merger (the “Effective Time"), each issued and outstanding share of Tumi Holdings
common stock, other than dissenting shares and shares owned by the Company,
Merger Sub, Tumi Holdings or any of their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries
(including treasury shares), was canceled and converted into the right to receive
the Per Share Merger Consideration. All Tumi Holdings stock options, service
restricted stock unit awards and performance restricted stock unit awards (in
each case whether vested or unvested) that were outstanding immediately prior
to the Effective Time were canceled upon the completion of the merger, and the
holders thereof were paid an aggregate of approximately US$19.0 million in cash
in respect of such cancellation pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement.
Upon the Effective Time, holders of Tumi Holdings common stock immediately
prior to the Effective Time ceased to have any rights as stockholders in Tumi
Holdings (other than their right to receive the Per Share Merger Consideration, or,
in the case of shares of Tumi Holdings common stock as to which appraisal rights
have been properly exercised and not withdrawn, the rights pursuant to Section
262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law). The total consideration paid under
the Merger Agreement was approximately US$1,830.8 million. There was no
contingent consideration included in the transaction.

The financial results of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016 include Tumi Holdings™ financial results from August 1, 2016, the date of
acquisition, through December 31, 2016. From the date of acquisition, the Tumi
operations contributed US$275.8 million of revenue and net income of US$38.0
million (excluding transaction costs and the finance costs associated with the
Senior Credit Facilities used to fund the acquisition] to the consolidated financial
results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016.

5. ¥¥KE6ts

(a) 2016 FWHESIE =

(i} Tumi Holdings, Inc. &

RIRE HHZE IR REHEEERERE(TEX
) - RE T REITEIMI Tumi Holdings ¥
AR (Tumi Holdings 2ZRMUAKREBAARF] « &0
M AR] » Tumi Holdings sk &% B M2 EME
ARFEAR Tumi Holdings & (BIEEFRD ) K
SN B FrEsslr B @8R A NS RE SR ERETR -
REE AR EATHARERAFTAE Tumi Holdings
BERRAE - SZARFERR AR (D B8 i 22 Eh K 52 7 IR R HI A
DEMER(ESBR T THERBHET)EREH
FIESTAR TUARESE - MBREE AERES 1%
FNGTREEEHEEINREEHN19.088E
TC o PRAEEF R - BEE A EFREIATAI Tumi Holdings
TERFEEATBEEEMEATumMI Holdings %
REEF (R FHEEFRE R ENEFBRIN - 3k
fE Tumi Holdings @R G B ERCEEE T
B EEEEAERLT - AEERFNENLTBAR
SEEE 262 (KIE THUKER) o & O REE THEHER
B#)51,830.8 BEET - MENKARBIAZIER
% °

AEBMP2016F 12 31 BREEZB L FEN
BELEBIETumi Holdings 8201648 A1 8 (Mg
BE)REZ2016F 12 A3 AWM BEELE - A
BEER  TumBEBAAREEBE 20165121
31 BILFEREE MBS HEERIKNER 2758 B EET
RSFUA 380 EEETT (MR SRR EANE
WEFENESEERBERNYBER)



5. Business Combinations continued
(a)
(i)

The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets and liabilities

2016 Acquisition continued
Tumi Holdings, Inc. continued

acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date as a preliminary allocation
of the purchase price.

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

5. XKa6t«
(a) 2016 FWIBREIR &
(i} Tumi Holdings, Inc. &

TREVRUEE B B PT IS 8 2 & B B A R PTAE
BENEHRSRERKBENTLHE -

(AFET25)

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE L& 102,309
Identifiable intangible assets AR E A E 986,984
Other non-current assets Hi3pme & E 5,441

Inventories 7] 109,735
Trade and other receivables JFEE M52 B 0 e L At W T8 27,855
Other current assets Hin#hEE 26,801

Cash R&e 145,507
Deferred tax liability REFIABE (370,183)
Current loans and borrowings BVEAE R R AR (4,409)
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EmeaE (1,665)
Trade and other payables JRE 1 B R EL A FE A< SRR (138,660)
Other current liabilities HibmshaE (3,205)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BRI # A A E AR 886,510

Goodwill [EkS 944,278
Total purchase price HMREEE 1,830,788

Identifiable intangible assets above is comprised of US$845.0 million attributable
to the Tumi tradename, US$136.0 million for customer relationships and US$6.0
million for other intangibles.

If new information obtained within one year from the acquisition date about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date identifies adjustments to
the above amounts, or any additional provisions that existed at the acquisition
date, then the acquisition accounting will
3(alliii) on accounting for business combinations.

be revised. See further discussion in note

Goodwill in the amount of US$944.3 million was recognized as a result of the
acquisition. The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be
achieved from integrating Tumi into the Group’s existing business. None of the
goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

(i) Pro forma results [unaudited)]

If this acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2016, the Group estimates that
consolidated net sales for 2016 would have been approximately US$3,126.4 million,
and consolidated profit attributable to equity holders for 2016 would have been
approximately US$269.7 million. In determining these amounts, the Group has
assumed that the Senior Credit Facilities would have been outstanding for the full
year and that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of the acquisition
would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2016. The
pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been consummated at that
time, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
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L AR BT EE R Tumi B2 EIER845.0F
BXEL BEFPBARI1360ABETLAMETLEE
bOBESET

fis) B W iE B BRI —F A FTEERE B i B ERTF 1
W?Eﬁ’lﬁ?ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@ A L e EELDR

SRR B BRTF TR B A - R RE =18
\E.quJ%EE?H?f il o BRAXBAMHNEH AN
R0 - B2 SR °

AREBE D UL KB ERER 944 3B ETHIRAE -
B ZANTERR Tumi & EAREER A XK
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B E T LA -

li] fEZ & (REEFZ)

Wb BB FIER 2016 F 1 A1 H#EST - AKE
HET 2016 ARG HEFREAA/3 12604 BEET -
2016 FRRIERF B AEIR AR A m R BIR) A 269.7 B &=
T EETUZFLER  ASERRELEERE
PEREEBEUNRKBASREEN AR BERFAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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5. Business Combinations continued

(b) 2015 Acquisitions

The Group completed two business combinations during the year ended
December 31, 2015.

lil  Rolling Luggage

On February 16, 2015, certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
completed the acquisition of the business and substantially all of the assets of
Rolling Luggage for a cash consideration of GBP15.8 million, with a subsequent
working capital adjustment of GBP(0.3] million and a subsequent purchase price
adjustment of GBP(0.5) million for leases that were not successfully transferred,
for a total purchase price of GBP15.0 million. The acquisition provides the Group
with a significant retail footprint in some of the world’s leading airports, and
further expands the Group’s portfolio of retail store locations. The allocation of the
purchase price was completed in 2015 resulting in goodwill of US$21.8 million,
none of which is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. No subsequent
adjustments have been made to the amounts recognized for the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed that were disclosed in the 2015 Annual Report.

(i} Chic Accent

On September 30, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, and assumed certain
liabilities, comprising the business as a going concern of Chic Accent for a cash
consideration of EUR8.5 million, with a subsequent working capital adjustment of
EUR(2.1) million in cash. The acquisition provides the Group with 31 retail store
locations in ltaly dedicated to premium accessories, ladies’ handbags, travel
luggage and business products, and further expands the Group’s portfolio of
retail store locations. The allocation of the purchase price was completed in 2015
resulting in goodwill of US$8.1 million, all of which is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes. No subsequent adjustments have been made to the amounts
recognized for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed that were disclosed in
the 2015 Annual Report.

(c) Acquisition-related Costs

The Group incurred approximately US$46.2 million and US$8.9 million
in acquisition-related costs during the years ended December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively. Such costs are primarily comprised of costs
associated with due diligence, professional and legal fees, severance and
integration costs and are recognized within other expenses on the consolidated
income statement.

5. ¥%&6ta

(b) 2015 F ARSI

HZE2015F12 A3 HILFE - RNEEZEKM
TERTEE B o

(il Rolling Luggage

M2015F 28168 ARRETEZERBLR
A)STEAUEE Rolling Luggage B KA THEE
E -BeREARICSHERE HEREEESE
(03 EEEFMARE - WHREKINEZENEE
HWEEEL (05 BERENAE  BREER
1508 8HEE - WEKERAEERNSRETHE
RALORISRETEER  WE— P BRAEE
MTEEHEE - WREBR2015FTXAE - EA
B2 8EEET  EHVEREIRBBEENT
LAFNER » G R 2015 FFEHP B BN WEEE
REFEE BERN S RELEERE -

(i) Chic Accent

R2015F9A308 AR —RE2ENBA
AISEAUREE Chic Accent:I FRTEEE » WAEMA
ERIFEKEXBNETAE  HeRERSLIESR
BT - AR EEESEL 2.1 BERTHERESHA
B o hTEKEEAEEREARFBGEII REEE -
BHHEEERERY  KEFR TFEHEEEBE
m WE—SERASENTEEEAS - WEED
R2015F TR HE - EERES 1 BEXE - HE
WEPGE A ShALS B A9 T UASNBR o SRR 20154F
FRPBBENDWEEERDAEEEMERNE
HELRETE

(c) WHBSEEMERA

NEBREZE2016F12 A31 B K 2015412
A3 BLEFESREELN462BEETLREIAE
EUMBREEERBANAS - BENAETEREHRRE
BESHRAN  BEREERER EBREBEKAE
FRRBRIBA - TR A IE R R E b5 S NHER o



6. Property, Plant and Equipment

M= - BERRE

Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
and other
HES - RE
Land Buildings HEMELE Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (ATFETEF) Tith B REHAh st
2016 2016 F
Cost: A :
As of January 1, 2016 R2016F1A1H 10,728 51,687 422,753 485,168
Purchases of property, BEYE BER
plant and equipment B 226 404 68,949 69,579
Additions through business BIREBE G
combinations (note 5) WE (FiFE5) 418 6,876 95,015 102,309
Disposals and write-offs & R - (16) (29,344) (29,360)
Effect of movement in foreign 4N PEE SR B A
currency exchange rates P (161) (2,050) (10,911) (13,122)
As of December 31, 2016 R20164F
12AH31H 11,211 56,901 546,462 614,574
Accumulated depreciation and I ERREE :
impairment:
As of January 1, 2016 R2016F1H1H (1,099) (22,790) (275,196) (299,085)
Depreciation for the year FRITE (28) (3,433) (63,324) (66,785)
Disposals and write-offs HEE R EY - 9 26,024 26,033
Effect of movement in foreign SINGEE [ 2R S B
currency exchange rates 7 37 986 6,230 7,253
As of December 31, 2016 R2016%F
12A431H (1,090) (25,228) (306,266) (332,584)
Carrying value: BRMEIME :
As of December 31, 2016 R 2016%F
12A31H 10,121 31,673 240,196 281,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment continued

6. MK  MERRHE =«

Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
and other
MBS RAE
Land Buildings HEWMERE Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFERT275) T it BF REM et
2015 20154
Cost: A
As of January 1, 2015 7K2015%F 1818 11,271 55,593 402,299 469,163
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BEX
equipment B 26 2,659 65,792 68,477
Additions through business FHREBEH
combinations (note 5) NE (FEES) - - 2,099 2,099
Disposals and write-offs & KA - (1,485) (20,602) (22,087)
Effect of movement in foreign SN P SR A Eh Y
currency exchange rates we (569) (5,080) (26,835) (32,484)
As of December 31, 2015 20154
12A31H 10,728 51,687 422,753 485,168
Accumulated depreciation and T ERREE :
impairment:
As of January 1, 2015 ©K2015F1 818 (1,198) (23,832) (265,808) (290,838])
Depreciation for the year FAIE (24) (3,153) (45,808) (48,985)
Disposals and write-offs L R - 1,485 19,351 20,836
Effect of movement in foreign SN [ R B
currency exchange rates 7 123 2,710 17,069 19,902
As of December 31, 2015 20154
12H31H (1,099 (22,790) (275,196) (299,085)
Carrying value: BRMEE :
As of December 31, 2015 R 20154
12H31H 9,629 28,897 147,557 186,083

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December
31, 2015 amounted to US$66.8 million and US$49.0 million, respectively. Of
this amount, US$13.9 million and US$8.0 million was included in cost of sales
during the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
Remaining amounts were presented in distribution and general and administrative
expenses. The Group has authorized capital expenditures of US$114.4 million in
2017, of which approximately US$3.6 million has been committed as of December
31, 2016. All land owned by the Group is freehold.

No impairment indicators existed as of December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015.

HE2016F12A31BK%2015F 12 A31 BILFER
MEBRASRRSEBETRIIOBEET - &
ZERTER 139ABETKSOEEERTAAIEIA
HZE2016F12A31BK%2015F 12 A31 BILFER
HERAR - B TSERIEE—RETEHRAZAZ
Bl o REBR2017TFERMENERAZA114.48
EXm HRK36BEETER 20165 12A31H
7 o AEERETATA LA KA EHE o

M2016F 12 A31 B % 2015412 A31 8 » #EFA
SHER °



7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(a) Goodwill

The Group’'s goodwill balance amounted to US$1,238.9 million as of
December 31, 2016, of which approximately US$61.2 million is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

7. BERHMELEE

(a) &

R2016F 128318 » REBNFELH
1,238 9B8%TT ﬁﬁ?ﬂmw.zﬁ%%ﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁ‘mﬁﬁ
BF B BT AR ©

The carrying amount of goodwill was as follows: RENRAENT
December 31,
12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) 2016 2015
Cost: AR :
As of January 1 R®1A1H 1,267,147 1,239,866
Additions through business combinations (note 5)  BEBEKACHRE (FI3E5) 944,278 29,909
Other additions HEMAE 452 -
Effect of movement in foreign currency exchange SNETE R | E b BB 2 &
rates/other (3,180) (2,628)
As of December 31 ®12A31H8 2,208,697 1,267,147
Accumulated impairment losses: HEPREERE !
As of January 1 and as of December 31 MR1A1BE®R12A31H (969,787) (969,787)
Carrying amount FREE 1,238,910 297,360
The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating segment ~ 2 BLE FLESBOBENAEEENT -

were as follows:

Asia  North America Europe Latin America Consolidated
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFXT25%) )| b =M &M FLTEM a5t
As of December 31, 2016 M2016F12A31H 503,726 679,753 55,431 - 1,238,910
As of December 31, 2015 72015512 A31H 174,438 84,018 38,904 - 297,360

In accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets ["IAS 36"), the recoverable
amounts of the Group’s CGUs with goodwill were determined using the higher of
fair value less cost to sell or value in use, which is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s
operating segments, comprised of groups of CGUs, as these represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. The allocation is made to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(a) Goodwill continued

Separate calculations are prepared for each of the groups of CGUs that make up
the consolidated entity. These calculations use discounted cash flow projections
based on financial estimates reviewed by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using estimated growth
rates appropriate for the market in which the unit operates. The values assigned
to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends and
are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data) and are
summarized below.

. Pre-tax discount rates of 8.5-10.5% were used in discounting the projected
cash flows. The pre-tax discount rates were calculated for each CGU.

o Segment cash flows were projected based on the historical operating
results and the five-year forecasts.

o The terminal values were extrapolated using constant long-term growth
rates of 3-4% for each CGU, which is consistent with the average growth
rate for the industry.

o The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections. Management has considered the above assumptions and
valuation and has also taken into account the business plans going forward.
Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above
key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount.

7. BERHMUELEE »

(a) BE =
HNGAERBNSARCEABNERNE - 2%
FTEEREEEEMN AT NS - WER
ARIRIRESRETEN - BBAFHNRESRENER
BAUAEMTEMSEENGFHEREER - T2/
BTN SERTEEEHARRBENMET - I
LASNER SRR R A ERE B GRABUR) AikiE - 5H1EHE
AR o

. LA 8.5-10.5% RIBR B BT 8L 2R % A R BE IR TE B R
EHRE RBREELBENSATERBA
ARIAER o

s REBELEXGENAFRAEFSHRS

=g —N
/ﬁg °

o UAB-4%MEIE KRG R R (R EARITENF
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued 7. BEREMEBEFLEE «
(b) Other Intangible Assets (b) HthEEEE
Other intangible assets consisted of the following: Hip L EERIENA TR :
Total other
Total intangible
Customer subject to assets
relationships Other  amortization Tradenames HAih
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (A FEx2%) EFEBR Hith EtHE [GES BERE
Cost: B
As of January 1, 2015 K205 1818 138,771 8,297 147,068 681,646 828,714
Additions through business BREKEHAE
combinations - - - 1,078 1,078
Other additions HMRE - 6,675 6,675 - 6,675
Disposals e - (4,160) (4,160) - (4,160)
Effect of movement in foreign 4N fE 3=
currency exchange rates pEEI b7 (249) (596) (845) (567) (1,412)
As of December 31, 2015 and R 20154F
January 1, 2016 12A318B &
20161 A 1H 138,522 10,216 148,738 682,157 830,895
Additions through business FREBSOIRE
combinations (note 5) (PfE5) 136,000 5,984 141,984 845,000 986,984
Other additions EMARE - 5,745 5,745 - 5,745
Disposals HE - (535) (535) - (535)
Effect of movement in foreign 4N i 3%
currency exchange rates 2T E 126 (983) (857) 203 (654)
As of December 31, 2016 72016512831 H 274,648 20,427 295,075 1,527,360 1,822,435
Accumulated amortization: E-5E 1
As of January 1, 2015 RK2015F1A1H (56,145) (5,882) (62,027) - (62,027)
Amortization for the year FEEEY (9,852) (738) (10,590) - (10,590)
Disposal HeE = 4,160 4,160 - 4,160
Effect of movement in foreign AN e &
currency exchange rates BN E 18 (45) (27) - (27)
As of December 31, 2015 and 20154
January 1, 2016 12A318B %
20161 H1H (65,979) (2,505) (68,484) = (68,484)
Amortization for the year FNEEEE (19,009) (3,447) (22,456) - (22,456)
Effect of movement in foreign 4N FE 2R
currency exchange rates B TE 46 1,520 1,566 - 1,566
As of December 31, 2016 M2016512H31H (84,942) (4,432) (89,374) = (89,374)
Carrying amounts: BRMEE :
As of December 31, 2016 M 20165F12H31H 189,706 15,995 205,701 1,527,360 1,733,061
As of December 31, 2015 7®20154F 12 A31H 72,543 7,711 80,254 682,157 762,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

The aggregate carrying amounts of each significant tradename were as follows:

7. BERHMUELEE »

(b) EfbmAEE o
SEEHANBEEEDT -

December 31,

12H318H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Samsonite A 462,459 462,459
Tumi Tumi 845,000 -
American Tourister American Tourister 69,969 69,969
High Sierra High Sierra 39,900 39,900
Gregory Gregory 38,600 38,600
Speck Speck 36,800 36,800
Hartmann Hartmann 16,500 16,500
Lipault Lipault 12,259 12,259
Other Hih 5,873 5,670
Total tradenames EEZ:H) 1,527,360 682,157

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015 was US$22.5 million and US$10.6 million, respectively,
and is presented as a distribution expense in the consolidated income statement.
Future amortization expense as of December 31, 2016 for the next five years
is estimated to be US$32.1 million, US$29.0 million, US$27.9 million, US$25.9
million, US$24.9 million and a total of US$65.9 million thereafter.

In accordance with |IAS 36, the Group is required to evaluate its intangible assets
with finite lives for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance
indicate that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. The fair value of
customer relationships is determined using a combination of the income approach
and the multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued
after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related
cash flows. There were no impairment indicators and there were no accumulated
impairment losses as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

The Group’s tradenames have been deemed to have indefinite lives due to their
high quality and perceived value. In accordance with IAS 36, the recoverable
amounts of the Group's tradenames were determined using the relief-from-
royalty income approach to derive fair value less cost to sell.

HZE2016F12 A31 AR 2015512 A31 BILFEE
HEENEHEERS A A2B8BETLRI0.6B88
ETT  RERERERF 2N A HAEZ - R20164F
12 A3 BZ B RAFHARREEERGTHRIA32.1
BEXEL 29088XmL  27988XEmT 2598
BEITNUIEBET  HBBTERGIABET

RAR IAS S8 36 5% + £ 3R (E I B8R Pl e A A W B B
EENFHRBERERS R  NEBAETEES
RAAFHEREERTKEY - REBEND R
BENAHBEERZ NBERMBEET  HFYM
HEENGECSNRAMEEMRERERSRER
BIEEMNAERR - R2016F 12 831 B K 20154
12 A31 BMERERR R RUREESE

HERASENEEHEERE e BRANER - WHE
REEEERAIASH - BIRIASEICH - A5H
AE AR E S REEREFRAGEETEARE
BERLEXAMETE °



7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

The calculations use discounted projections based on financial estimates reviewed
by management covering a five-year period. Revenues beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the market. The
values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment
of future trends and are based on both external sources and internal sources
(historical data) and are summarized below.

o Pre-tax discount rates of 8.5-10.5% were used. The pre-tax discount rates
were calculated separately for each tradename.

o Revenues were based on anticipated selling prices and projected based on
the historical operating results, the five-year forecasts and royalty rates
based on recent transfer pricing studies in the jurisdictions the Group
operates in.

o The terminal values were extrapolated using constant long-term growth
rates of 3-4% for each tradename, which is consistent with the average
growth rate for the industry.

o The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections. Management has considered the above assumptions and
valuation and has also taken into account the business plans going forward.
Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above
key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of its indefinite lived
intangible assets to exceed their recoverable amounts.

8. Prepaid Expenses, Other Assets and Receivables

(a) Non-current

Other assets and receivables consisted of the following:

7. BERHMUELEE »

(b) HtEFEE =
ZEFEENEEERMONTFPNPBMHE - I
EARIRIEN - BT FH S THERRETS
BERBHER RN - TERJARABOBESR
RNERBHRRBB MR - WAINBATR R A B
58 CBEREUR) RREE - FEHANT -

o EAB5-105%MRBAIAEE - REHRE
B ERBARRE -

o WERBEEENT  URBBELER
B AFRAREAREZEMEREER
TSR B BTN EN B MR -

o HU3-4%WBEERIERER(EARTENF
B EE-B) RSB RNRKER -

s BEHEBHRSNEANEEFE o

ETReRERAMKANIERRBALBH
i MEIZRRNEXAZEREREBAGEE
APE - BEECDEE LBHRELNE - BEE
BARKHBEN R - BRERR L ERMRA
ERAEMNARREL  BIegREmBnNREE
HRB R S FE

8. ANER - HitEEREWFIR

(a) R
HitBE KR EWKFIREE -

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETL25) 2016 2015
Deposits T3 28,926 21,346
Other Hith 4,000 3,813
Total other assets and receivables H & MEUGRIB AR 32,926 25,159

(b) Current

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are primarily comprised of
prepaid taxes and prepaid rent and are expected to be recoverable or expensed
within one year.

(b) FE
ENERFEEMRBDEELTERERANREAR
ENES - WEAR—FAKEIHRZ S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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9. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

9. FE
R BEN AR

December 31,

12H31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Raw materials R 23,913 22,608
Work in process R 1,779 1,725
Finished goods S 395,642 324,743
Total inventories wiFE 421,334 349,076

The amounts above include inventories carried at net realizable value (estimated
selling price less costs to sell) of US$180.8 million and US$94.7 million as of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. During the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the impairment of inventories to net
realizable value amounted to US$6.2 million and US$2.1 million, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 the reversal of
impairments recognized in profit or loss amounted to US$1.3 million and US$1.9
million, respectively, where the Group was able to sell the previously written-down
inventories at higher selling prices than previously estimated.

10. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are presented net of related allowances for
doubtful accounts of US$13.0 million and US$12.7 million as of December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively.

(a) Aging Analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful accounts) of US$338.4 million and US$269.1 million as of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, with the following aging
analysis by due date of the respective invoice:

A L BBERAEIFE (BT EERBEERN)
IBRETFE - 12016512 A31 B R 2015512 A
3NTANRIA180.8 ABXTNILTABERTT - BE
2016512 A3 B R 201512 A3 HIEEFE - FE&
WRZERERFEDR2AEXETR21BESE
JC o BIE2016F 12 A31 B X 2015512 A31 HIEFE
B REEPHEANREER SR RI13ABETR
1988%T  AARENSRERNGEHNEELE
BEMEEFS

10. FEWBRFN K H b FEUWRFRIE

JE Ui B 2R B HL At B U ERIE T 4S F0 B R AR AH A
BER2Y - RERMERER2016F12A31HR
201512 A31BARIAIB0EEXRTRI27TASSE
7_E °

(a) RRERZHT

R2016F12 31 BR 20156124318 - [E
WERR (BB REREB) D 5B 3384 BEXTR
2691 BEZRTT - AT AR R H AU IR
HIZSRZ2MANRRIITOT -

December 31,

128318
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Current BNHA 291,359 232,027
0 - 30 days past due BEI0Z30H 34,379 32,960
Greater than 30 days past due B EAEBB 30 A 12,648 4,132
Total trade receivables FEURBR SR /B8R 338,386 269,119

Credit terms are granted based on the credit worthiness of individual customers.
As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, trade receivables are on average
due within 60 days from the invoice date.

EEHDREEREZEAEEMZH - R2016F 12
A31BX%2015412 A31 8 » EWERR A A
Z=HHEGHEET 60 HAEIE o



10. Trade and Other Receivables continued

10. FEWARF B E AL B WRRIR =

(b) Impairment of Trade Receivables (b) FEWERKAVRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an B REBER R ERE R B BRBREH - I

allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is

FARERBREFIANEEEN - HUBRT

remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables GBS E 5 EUKBR FOETTHIGS - REBIW R

directly. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. ZERER R AR
The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year follows: FARREBESSNAT
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (RFET25) 2016 2015
As of January 1 ®W1A1H 12,720 13,459
Impairment loss recognized B iR EEE 2,031 1,160
Impairment loss written back or off BB B S SR E R 1R (1,746) (1,899)
As of December 31 W12H31H8 13,005 12,720
11. Cash and Cash Equivalents M. BREeERREZEY
December 31,
12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) 2016 2015
Bank balances IRITHERR 362,736 169,994
Short-term investments REHIRE 5,804 10,809
Total cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEYRE 368,540 180,803

Short-term investments are comprised of overnight sweep accounts and time ~ FEHERABERRAB RS REHFHK - 1020165
deposits. The Group had restricted cash in the amount of US$35.1 million as of ~ 12H31H » AEENXBRHIRER351AERET °
December 31, 2016. There were no restrictions on the use of any of the Group's ~ 12015412 A31 H » AKEAEE AR ST L HE

cash as of December 31, 2015. ZBMESAIBR ] o
: =

12. Earnings Per Share 12. BREF
(a) Basic (a) EX

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable HZE2016F 12831 B KX 201512431 HiE
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended December 31,  F/E » SREARE T THIREA A B & BEBREN
2016 and December 31, 2015. T AETHE o

Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MALEE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, (AFETE25
except share and per share data) IR ] B REIEIR D) 2016 2015

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year ~ F #2317 & @AY

Weighted-average impact of share options FABITEBRENNEESZE
exercised during the year

1,409,833,525

759,604

1,408,026,456

1,372,329

Weighted-average number of shares during the year & A&7 H) N F 158X

1,410,593,129

1,409,398,785

Profit attributable to the equity holders REHELS B A& T 255,667 197,639
Basic earnings per share BREREF]
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (AZEFETE7) 0.181 0.140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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12. Earnings Per Share continued

(b) Diluted

Dilutive earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

(AFETE5)
B0 B 2R EBIRERIN)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars,
except share and per share data)

12. BIRER =

(b) #H

IR B YRR D BT M B ET
158 - IABRATE TR B E BB RE L ART
LR

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3NALEE

2016 2015

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic]
at end of the year

Effect of share options B E

FARE A IR F 19 B (EA)

1,410,593,129 1,409,398,785

2,966,094 2,782,489

F AR B4R T 8

Weighted-average number of shares during the year

1,413,559,223 1,412,181,274

Profit attributable to the equity holders RHEREE AFE(E R T 255,667 197,639
Diluted earnings per share BREER T
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (AEETES) 0.181 0.140

(c) Dividends and Distributions

On March 16, 2016, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the
amount of US$93.0 million, or approximately US$0.0659 per share, be made to the
Company’s shareholders of record on June 17, 2016 from its ad hoc distributable
reserve. The shareholders approved this distribution on June 2, 2016 at the Annual
General Meeting and the distribution was paid on July 13, 2016.

On March 16, 2015, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the
amount of US$88.0 million, or approximately US$0.0624 per share, be made to the
Company’s shareholders of record on June 17, 2015 from its ad hoc distributable
reserve. The shareholders approved this distribution on June 4, 2015 at the Annual
General Meeting and the distribution was paid on July 13, 2015.

Dividend payments to non-controlling interests amounted to US$14.8 million and
US$11.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively.

No other dividends or distributions were declared or paid during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

(c) RERDIK

MR2016F3A16R - EESEZERFRIA
HAIRGEERR 2016F 6 417 B RB5IREZMAIA
ARIRERIEL 93.0 B B ET sk B R4 0.0659 ETH)
WEHIK - BREMR2016F 6 A2 ARITHREESF
A E#AERESIR - MOIREN20165F7 138
S e

R2015%3 160 - EESEFER A HDIK
MMM 20154 6 417 B R VIR R A ME AL B
RIEH 88.0 ABETTHFMA0.0624 K TTHR S5
& > BRI 20155 6 B4 BETHRFBFASG L
HEMIED IR - MOIKER 20157 13 BT -

REZE 201612 A31B R 2015412 831 B IE4E
fE o mFEERERINRES R B1L8EEETR
MN6ASBET °

REZE2016F12 A31B R 2015512 A31 B IE4F
B ARRWES RS A EMRERDIR



13. Loans and Borrowings

(a) Non-current Obligations

Non-current obligations represent non-current debt and finance lease
obligations as follows:

13. ERRER

(a) FREEHR
REIPRBES WA E
o

SAERIEREERS

December 31,

128318
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Term Loan A Facility ATE B E KRR 1,242,187 -
Term Loan B Facility BEHIERRLE 673,313 -
Term Loan Facilities TEAE R REE 1,915,500 -
Finance lease obligations e T E A 283 87
Total loans and borrowings ERRETMEzE 1,915,783 87
Less deferred financing costs BRI R A AR (64,341) -
Total loans and borrowings less BERRAER BB REE B E R AN
deferred financing costs 1,851,442 87
Less current portion of long-term debt R EEB R B AR5 (45,813) =
Less current installments on finance B A E AR BNER S BB 2k
lease obligations (68) (30)
Non-current loans and borrowings JERNEAE R fE 3K 1,805,561 57

The contractual maturities of non-current loans and borrowings are included in
note 21(c).

Senior Credit Facilities
Overview

On May 13, 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a Credit and Guaranty Agreement dated as of May 13, 2016 (the
“Credit Agreement”] with certain lenders and financial institutions. On August
1, 2016 (the "Closing Date”), the Company and certain of its other indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries became parties to the Credit Agreement. The Credit
Agreement provides for (1) a US$1,250.0 million senior secured term loan A facility
(the “Term Loan A Facility”), (2) a US$675.0 million senior secured term loan B
facility (the “Term Loan B Facility” and, together with the Term Loan A Facility,
the “Term Loan Facilities”] and (3) a US$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Facility”, and, together with the Term Loan Facilities, the “Senior Credit
Facilities”). On May 13, 2016, the proceeds of the borrowings under the Term
Loan B Facility were funded and deposited into an escrow account and were held
in escrow until the consummation of the merger with Tumi on the Closing Date,
at which time such proceeds were released from escrow and were used to pay a
portion of the consideration under the Merger Agreement.

On the Closing Date, the Company and certain of its other indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries became parties to the Credit Agreement, and the Group used the
proceeds from the Senior Credit Facilities to pay the total consideration under the
Merger Agreement, to repay all amounts then outstanding under the Group's prior
US$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Prior Revolving Facility”), which
Prior Revolving Facility was then terminated, and to pay fees, costs and expenses
related to the Tumi acquisition, as well as for general corporate purposes.
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13. Loans and Borrowings continued

(a) Non-current Obligations continued
Senior Credit Facilities continued
Interest Rate and Fees

Interest on the borrowings under the Term Loan A Facility and the
Revolving Facility began to accrue on the Closing Date. The interest rates for
such borrowings were initially based on the London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") plus an applicable margin of 2.75% per annum. The borrowers under
such facilities could also initially elect to pay interest at a base rate plus 1.75% per
annum. The applicable margin for borrowings under both the Term Loan A Facility
and the Revolving Facility may step down based on achievement of a specified total
net leverage ratio of the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal
quarter, commencing with the quarter ended December 31, 2016. Interest on the
borrowing under the Term Loan B Facility began to accrue on May 13, 2016 at the
rate of LIBOR plus 3.25% per annum. The borrower under such facility may also
elect to pay interest at a base rate plus 2.25%.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the Senior Credit
Facilities, the borrowers will pay customary agency fees and a commitment fee
in respect of the unutilized commitments under the Revolving Facility, which was
initially 0.50% per annum. The commitment fee may step down based on the
achievement of a specified total net leverage ratio level of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal quarter, commencing with the quarter ended
December 31, 2016.

Subsequent to December 31, 2016, the Group refinanced the Senior Credit
Facilities on February 2, 2017 [the “Repricing”]. Under the terms of the Repricing,
the interest rate payable on the Term Loan A Facility and the Revolving Facility
was reduced with effect from February 2, 2017 until the delivery of the financial
statements for the period ending June 30, 2017 to LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum
(or a base rate plus 1.00% per annum) from LIBOR plus 2.75% per annum (or a
base rate plus 1.75% per annum) and thereafter shall be based on the total net
leverage ratio of the Group at the end of each fiscal quarter. The interest rate
payable on the Term Loan B Facility was reduced with effect from February 2, 2017
to LIBOR plus 2.25% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 0.00% (or a base rate plus
1.25% per annum) from LIBOR plus 3.25% with a LIBOR floor of 0.75% (or a base
rate plus 2.25% per annum). In addition, the commitment fee payable in respect of
the unutilized commitments under the Revolving Facility was reduced from 0.5%
per annum to 0.375% per annum through June 30, 2017 and thereafter shall be
based on the total net leverage ratio of the Group at the end of each fiscal quarter.
In conjunction with the Repricing, the Group incurred approximately US$5.2
million in fees and expenses that will be deferred and amortized over the term of
the borrowings.

Mandatory Prepayments

The Credit Agreement requires certain mandatory prepayments of
outstanding loans under the Term Loan Facilities from the net cash proceeds of
certain asset sales and casualty and condemnation events (subject to reinvestment
rights), and the net cash proceeds of any incurrence or issuance of debt not
permitted under the Senior Credit Facilities, in each case subject to customary
exceptions and thresholds. The Credit Agreement also provides for mandatory
prepayments of the Term Loan B Facility to be made based on the excess cash
flow of the Company and its subsidiaries.

13. ERRMER 5

(a) ERBEK &
BrEERBE =
FEREA

AFHERBRABALEREEBE TNERFE
RTERK B BRI RET - BABRNFRBYIRE
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RETT - BEAERRBIE NOEBRF 2R 201665
A 13 B IZLIBORBINFHEI25%FIR Rt - B
B8 B A TH TN B 8 SR I A 3 1 4R LRI 3K 55 i FI =
2.25% ZAFFIE °

iy

BREMBECERBETHREERSHFEIN
BRAKRERBREEETOARADARFLEIN
BERBEERAHRE  BYAEF050% A#HE
AEAREINARFAREMBRARREHREERDN
HEAFEELEMTA  BEE2016F12A831
BIEFERRABRET -

M2016F 12 A31 A% ZEBER2017F2H2H
BREELCEERB(ENEE] - REEHEE
1&3K - B2017F2 A28 REZEXNEZE2017F6
A30 B MMM BRERE AL - ATHERFUR
MIEREE RN R LIBOR BANEF = 2.75% (5
EER R BINERRK1.75%) FFHZE LIBOR B H4EF
L2.00%(HEEFKSINFEFE1.00%)  HiEH
NAEBAE T ETERNEFIEZ L R BRI -
B2017F2A2H# BEHERBENFIEAR
LIBOR(LIBOR FFR A0.75%) S AN4E F % 3.25% (&
EEFRBZINEFE2.25%) NHAZELIBOR(LIBORT
R 4 0.00%) 3B HNEEFI 2R 2.25% (S EXEF| R B AN4EF|
R1.25%) ° LN HE20175E6A308 @ BERE
BETHASAA#SENENAEBRAESF05%
THRAEFF0.375% * HEBURNEERSHBEE
ROBFERL R ARE - REFEENRE @ X
EEESBRARMATHN5 288 - WEHNERE
RELE 8 -

SRHMTRNRIR

EEHAREAERESRBETHAREER
HHETREIERNFOR - HRAMEETEEN
LEINRBRAEFCSRBREERINHREME
FIRFRE  UREFELASBEHESREERBEAT
T ARNEBNRESMBHIIRFE - HESER
TAXBRREEPIIMERRRE - FEWHEITRE
B HIE SEEAY SR B M TR IR TR A R B R K
B ARMBER S RES -



13. Loans and Borrowings continued

(a) Non-current Obligations continued
Senior Credit Facilities continued
Voluntary Prepayments

Voluntary prepayments of the Term Loan B Facility in connection with re-
pricing transactions on or prior to six months following the Repricing will be
subject to a call premium of 1.0%. Otherwise, all outstanding loans under the
Senior Credit Facilities may be voluntarily prepaid at any time without premium or
penalty other than customary “breakage” costs with respect to LIBOR loans.

Amortization and Final Maturity

The Term Loan A Facility requires scheduled quarterly payments
commencing December 31, 2016, with an amortization of 2.5% of the original
principal amount of the loans under the Term Loan A Facility made during the
first year, with a step-up to 5.0% amortization during the second and third years,
7.5% during the fourth year and 10.0% during the fifth year, with the balance due
and payable on the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date. The Term Loan B Facility
requires scheduled quarterly payments commencing December 31, 2016, each
equal to 0.25% of the original principal amount of the loans under the Term Loan
B Facility, with the balance due and payable on the seventh anniversary of the
Closing Date. There is no scheduled amortization of the principal amounts of the
loans outstanding under the Revolving Facility. Any principal amount outstanding
under the Revolving Facility is due and payable on the fifth anniversary of the
Closing Date.

Guarantees and Security

The obligations of the borrowers under the Senior Credit Facilities are
unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and certain of the Company’s existing
direct or indirect wholly-owned material subsidiaries, and are required to be
guaranteed by certain future direct or indirect wholly-owned material subsidiaries
organized in the jurisdictions of Luxembourg, Belgium, Canada, Hong Kong,
Hungary, Mexico and the United States. All obligations under the Senior Credit
Facilities, and the guarantees of those obligations, are secured, subject to certain
exceptions, by substantially all of the assets of the Company and the assets of
certain of its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries that are borrowers and/
or guarantors under the Senior Credit Facilities, including: (i) a first-priority pledge
of all of the equity interests of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and each
wholly-owned material restricted subsidiary of these entities (which pledge, in the
case of any foreign subsidiary of a U.S. entity, is limited to 66% of the voting capital
stock and 100% of the non-voting capital stock of such foreign subsidiary); and
(ii) a first-priority security interest in substantially all of the tangible and intangible
assets of the Company and the subsidiary guarantors.

Certain Covenants and Events of Default

The Senior Credit Facilities contain a number of customary negative
covenants that, among other things and subject to certain exceptions, may restrict
the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to: (i} incur additional indebtedness;
(ii) pay dividends or distributions on its capital stock or redeem, repurchase or
retire its capital stock or its other indebtedness; [iii] make investments, loans and
acquisitions; (iv) engage in transactions with its affiliates; (v) sell assets, including
capital stock of its subsidiaries; (vi] consolidate or merge; (vii) materially alter the
business it conducts; (viii) incur liens; and (ix) prepay or amend any junior debt or
subordinated debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

13. Loans and Borrowings continued

(a) Non-current Obligations continued
Senior Credit Facilities continued
Certain Covenants and Events of Default

In addition, the Credit Agreement requires the Company and its subsidiaries to
meet certain quarterly financial covenants. Commencing with the fiscal quarter
ended December 31, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
maintain (i) a pro forma total net leverage ratio of not greater than 4.75:1.00, which
threshold will decrease to 4.50:1.00 for test periods in 2018, 4.25:1.00 for test
periods in 2019 and 4.00:1.00 for test periods in 2020, and (i) a pro forma interest
coverage ratio of not less than 3.25:1.00. The Group was in compliance with the
financial covenants as of December 31, 2016.

The Credit Agreement also contains certain customary representations and
warranties, affirmative covenants and provisions relating to events of default
(including upon a change of control).

Interest Rate Swaps

The Group entered into interest rate swap transactions on June 1, 2016 that
became effective on December 31, 2016 and will terminate on August 31, 2021. The
Group uses the interest rate swap transactions to minimize its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations under the floating-rate Senior Credit Facilities by swapping
certain US Dollar floating-rate bank borrowings with fixed-rate agreements. The
interest rate swap agreements have initial notional amounts totaling US$1,237.0
million representing approximately 65% of the anticipated balances of the Term
Loan Facilities. The notional amounts of the interest rate swap agreements
decrease over time in line with required amortization and anticipated prepayments
on the Term Loan Facilities. LIBOR has been fixed at approximately 1.30% under
each agreement. Each of the interest rate swap agreements have fixed payments
due monthly starting January 31, 2017. The interest rate swap transactions qualify
as cash flow hedges under IFRS. As of December 31, 2016, the interest rate
swaps were marked-to-market, resulting in a net asset position to the Group in
the amount of US$16.1 million, which was recorded as an asset with the effective
portion of the gain deferred to other comprehensive income.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Group recognized US$69.5 million of deferred financing costs during the
year ended December 31, 2016 related to the Senior Credit Facilities, all of which
were included in non-current loans and borrowings in the consolidated statement
of financial position as of December 31, 2016. The deferred financing costs were
comprised of the original issue discount, commitment fees and other financing-
related costs that will be deferred and offset against loans and borrowings
to be amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the Term
Loan Facilities.
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13. Loans and Borrowings continued

(b) Current Obligations and Credit Facilities

Current obligations represent current debt and finance lease obligations as
follows:

13. ERRfER =
(b) REEXEREERE

REFDEBRBEREREORDES
o

December 31,

128318
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Current portion of non-current loans FERNERE R I (8 SR B BN ERER 5
and borrowings 45,813 -
Revolving Facility BREE 10,516 -
Prior Revolving Facility BAERREE = 48,174
Other lines of credit HiEEH 13,410 15,921
Finance lease obligations & BRI 68 30
Total current obligations mBNER AR 69,807 64,125
Less deferred financing costs on FBERREENREEREKAN
Prior Revolving Facility - (1,401)
Total current obligations less deferred TMENETS AR EERIEE B & AN
financing costs 69,807 62,724

Revolving Facility

As of December 31, 2016, US$486.4 million was available to be borrowed
on the Revolving Facility as a result of US$10.5 million of outstanding borrowings
and the utilization of US$3.1 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit
extended to certain creditors.

Prior Revolving Facility

Until July 31, 2016, the Group maintained the Prior Revolving Facility in the
amount of US$500.0 million. The Prior Revolving Facility had an initial term of five
years from its effective date of June 17, 2014, with a one-year extension available
at the request of the Group and at the option of the lenders. The interest rate on
borrowings under the Prior Revolving Facility was the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR
or (b) the prime rate of the lender and (i) a margin to be determined based on the
Group’s leverage ratio. Based on the Group's leverage ratio, the Prior Revolving
Facility carried a commitment fee ranging from 0.2% to 0.325% per annum on
any unutilized amounts, as well as an agency fee if another lender joined the
Prior Revolving Facility. The Prior Revolving Facility was secured by certain of the
Group’s assets in the United States and Europe, as well as the Group’s intellectual
property. The Prior Revolving Facility also contained financial covenants related
to interest coverage and leverage ratios, and operating covenants that, among
other things, limited the Group’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens on its
assets, and participate in certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales
or investments. The Prior Revolving Facility was terminated and all outstanding
balances were repaid in conjunction with the financing for the Tumi acquisition on
August 1, 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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13. Loans and Borrowings continued

(b) Current Obligations and Credit Facilities continued
Other Loans and Borrowings

Certain consolidated subsidiaries of the Group maintain credit lines with
various third party lenders in the regions in which they operate. Other loans and
borrowings are generally variable rate instruments denominated in the functional
currency of the borrowing Group entity. These local credit lines provide working
capital for the day-to-day business operations of the subsidiaries, including
overdraft, bank guarantees, and trade finance and factoring facilities. The majority
of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate amount
outstanding under the local facilities was US$13.4 million and US$15.9 million as of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The uncommitted available
lines of credit amounted to US$79.5 million and US$88.1 million as of December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

14. Employee Benefits

Employee benefits expense, which consists of payroll, pension plan expenses,
share-based payments and other benefits, amounted to US$377.5 million and
US$298.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
respectively. Of these amounts, US$31.4 million and US$23.6 million was included
in cost of sales during the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
respectively. The remaining amounts were presented in distribution expenses and
general and administrative expenses.

Average employee headcount worldwide was approximately 11,061 and 9,325 for
the years ending December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements

On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the Company's
Share Award Scheme, which will remain in effect until September 13, 2022.
The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to
strive for the future development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. Awards under
the Share Award Scheme may take the form of either share options or restricted
share units ("RSUs"), which may be granted at the discretion of the Board to
directors, employees or such other persons as the Board may determine.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the Board
in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the higher of:

al the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

cl the nominal value of the shares.
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements continued

As of February 28, 2017 [the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate
number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme is 65,799,419 shares, representing approximately 4.7% of
the issued share capital of the Company at that date. An individual participant may
be granted awards pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in respect of a maximum
of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any 12-month period. Any grant of
awards to an individual participant in excess of this limit is subject to independent
shareholder’s approval.

On May 6, 2016, the Company granted share options exercisable for 19,953,760
ordinary shares to certain directors, key management personnel and other
employees of the Group with an exercise price of HK$24.91 per share. Such
options are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4-year period, with 25% of the options
vesting on each anniversary date of the grant. Such options have a 10-year term.

On May 6, 2016, the Company made an additional special grant of 4,190,013 share
options to two members of the Group’s senior management team. The exercise
price of the options granted was HK$24.91. 60% of such options will vest on May 6,
2019 and 40% will vest on May 6, 2021. Such options have a 10-year term.

On May 11, 2016, the Company granted share options exercisable for 62,160
ordinary shares to an employee of a subsidiary of the Company with an exercise
price of HK$24.23 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over
a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the
grant. Such options have a 10-year term.

On June 16, 2016, the Company granted share options exercisable for 99,972
ordinary shares to an employee of a subsidiary of the Company with an exercise
price of HK$23.19 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over
a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the
grant. Such options have a 10-year term.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options are
entitled to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price
per share equal to the exercise price of the options. The fair value of services
received in return for share options granted is based on the fair value of share
options granted measured using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value
calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made
and the limitations of the model utilized.

The grant-date fair value of the share options granted is generally recognized as
an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity when such options represent
equity-settled awards, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount
recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which
the vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the vesting conditions at
the vesting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements continued

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the 19,953,760 share options made on May 6,

2016:
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The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the additional special grant of 4,190,013 share
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Expected dividends TEEIAR B 2.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) EERRFE (BT ES REE) 1.1%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the 62,160 share options made on May 11, 2016:
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Fair value at grant date

Share price at grant date

Exercise price

Expected volatility (weighted average volatility)
Option life (expected weighted average life)
Expected dividends
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The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the 99,972 share options made on June 16, 2016:
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements continued (a) LABRH 1+ 4

RARRRMDORZELEGIR - AR LK
JEE sE 19 B B R B K% P B LL B R R R S I BB

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price
volatility as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable companies
given the limited trading history of the Company’s shares.

In total, share-based compensation expense of US$15.5 million and US$15.2
million was recognized in the consolidated income statement, with the offset
in equity reserves, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31,

2015, respectively.

Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015 were as follows:
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Outstanding at January 1, 2016 M20165F1 A1 B ERITHE 49,101,566 HK$21.83/87T
Granted during the period HAR#E 24,305,905 HK$24.90 57T
Exercised during the period HATT6E (1,455,376)  HK$18.41 87T
Canceled/lapsed during the period BARRESE / KK (963,036) HK$23.2477T
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 M 20164512 A31 B mARTTEE 70,989,059 HK$22.93 /57T
Exercisable at December 31, 2016 M 2016412 A31 BAI{T{E 16,625,484 HK$20.57 87T

Number of Options

Weighted-average
exercise price

R ES S PR 1T
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 201541 A1 B #RIT6E 26,741,866 HK$20.13/87T
Granted during the period HAARH 26,161,369 HK$23.31/87C
Exercised during the period HARATE (1,807,069)  HK$19.06;E 7T
Canceled/lapsed during the period HAREESH / Rk (1,994,600)  HK$21.22/87C
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 72015512 A 31 B R1TE 49,101,566 HK$21.83/87T
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 20154 12 A 31 BAJ{T{E 8,036,722 HK$19.29 7T

At December 31, 2016, the range of exercise prices for outstanding share options
was HK$17.36 to HK$24.91 with a weighted average contractual life of 8.0 years.
At December 31, 2015, the range of exercise prices for outstanding share options
was HK$17.36 to HK$24.77 with a weighted average contractual life of 8.3 years.

No RSUs had been issued under the Share Award Scheme as of

December 31, 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes
(il Plan Descriptions

Details of the significant plans sponsored by the Group are presented below.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group sponsored a defined benefit retirement plan, the
Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan [the “SERIP Plan”], which covered
certain employee groups. Retirement benefits were based on a final average
pay formula. The SERIP Plan was closed to new entrants effective December
31, 2009. Effective December 31, 2010, the SERIP Plan was frozen to suspend
future benefit accruals. The SERIP Plan was terminated effective December 31,
2014. In connection with the SERIP Plan’s termination, the benefits being paid to
participants and beneficiaries whose pensions were in pay were continued through
the purchase of an annuity contract from an insurance company. Participants
whose pension payments had not started had the option to either make an election
to receive a lump-sum payment that could be rolled over into an individual
retirement account or other qualified plan, or receive either an immediate or a
deferred vested annuity contract that would pay their benefits. In August 2016, the
SERIP Plan received a determination letter from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service
("IRS") stating that the termination of the SERIP Plan did not affect its qualification
for federal tax purposes. On or before December 31, 2016, substantially all SERIP
Plan assets were distributed to participants and beneficiaries or used to purchase
the annuity that will pay the benefits for the remaining participants (the “SERIP
Plan Liquidation”). SERIP Plan management believes it has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in regards to the SERIP Plan Liquidation. A liability
of US$7.3 million exists for the SERIP Plan at December 31, 2016 for certain
participants whose benefits were not distributed or transferred to the insurance
carrier or Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation until the first quarter 2017 due to
administrative reasons. See further discussion in note 14(b){ii) below.

The Group also maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain management
employees. This plan was closed to new entrants effective January 1, 2010.
Effective December 31, 2010, the plan was frozen to future accruals.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group also provides health care and life insurance benefits
to certain retired employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility
requirements. The plan was closed to new entrants with regards to life insurance
benefits effective January 1, 2009 and was closed to new entrants with regards
to medical benefits effective December 31, 2009. Eligible retirees are required
to contribute to the costs of post-retirement benefits. The Group’s other post-
retirement benefits are not vested and the Group has the right to modify any
benefit provision, including contribution requirements, with respect to any current
or former employee, dependent or beneficiary. As of December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, the percentage of health insurance cost that the retiree must
contribute was 100%.

A Belgium subsidiary of the Group sponsors a pre-pension defined benefit
retirement plan to certain employees who meet certain age and years of service
eligibility requirements. Benefits are calculated based on a final pay formula and
are contributed until the employee reaches the legal retirement age.
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) Plan Descriptions continued

The U.S. plans are administered by trustees, which are independent of the Group,
with their assets held separately from those of the Group. These plans are funded
by contributions from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations. The latest independent
actuarial valuations of the plans were as of December 31, 2016 and were prepared
by independent qualified actuaries, who are members of the Society of Actuaries of
the United States of America, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuations indicate that the Group's obligations under these defined benefit
retirement plans were US$9.9 million and US$227.4 million as of December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, which are 0.0% and 90.7% funded by
the plan assets held by the trustees as of December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively.

(i) The SERIP Plan Liquidation

The Group accounted for the SERIP Plan Liquidation in accordance with IAS
19, Employee Benefits ["IAS 197). IAS 19 defines a settlement as a transaction that
eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits
provided under a defined benefit plan, other than a payment of benefits to, or on
behalf of, employees that are set out in the terms of the plan and included in the
actuarial assumptions. Substantially all of the participants who elected to receive
a lump sum payment received such payment from SERIP Plan assets during 2016.
The projected benefit obligation for participants who did not elect to receive a
lump sum benefit has been, or, in the case of the US$7.3 million liability remaining
at December 31, 2016, will be, satisfied by the annuity contracts purchased with
a combination of SERIP Plan and Group assets. As a result of this process, the
Group will no longer by obligated to pay such benefits.

In accordance with IAS 19, the net defined benefit liability was recalculated by the
Group's third party actuary immediately prior to the SERIP Plan Liquidation. In
conjunction with this remeasurement, the Group recognized a settlement gain
in the amount of US$6.0 million in its consolidated income statement for the
year ended December 31, 2016. Of the US$6.0 million, US$1.5 million has been
presented within general and administrative expenses with the remainder in other
expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Per IAS 19, remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income shall not be reclassified to profit or
loss in a subsequent period. However, an entity may transfer those amounts
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income within equity categories.
In conjunction with the SERIP Plan Liquidation, accumulated other comprehensive
income attributable to the SERIP Plan in the amount of US$141.7 million was
transferred to retained earnings, while the related US$53.9 million of deferred
tax asset was derecognized from the statement of financial position and from
accumulated other comprehensive income.

The Group had US$53.9 million of deferred tax asset recognized against
accumulated other comprehensive income. Per IAS 12, Income Taxes ["IAS 127),
deferred tax assets or liabilities shall be recognized outside profit or loss if those
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(il The SERIP Plan Liquidation continued

relate to pre-tax items that have been recognized, in the same or a different
period, outside of profit or loss. Therefore, the derecognition of deferred tax assets
or liabilities that relate to pre-tax items that originally have been recognized in
other comprehensive income shall be presented in other comprehensive income
accordingly. Hence, the US$53.9 million of derecognized deferred tax asset was
released through other comprehensive income during 2016.

In conjunction with the SERIP Plan Liquidation, US$56.8 million of deferred tax
liabilities that were originally recognized as deferred income tax expense at the
time of related cash contributions to the U.S. SERIP Plan were derecognized,
creating a tax benefit for the same amount on the consolidated income statement
for the year ended December 31, 2016. Per IAS 12, in the case of deferred tax assets
or liabilities that have been originally recognized through deferred tax income or an
expense are derecognized in a subsequent period, those reversals will be presented
within profit or loss accordingly. Hence, the US$56.8 million of derecognized
deferred tax liability was released through deferred tax income during 2016. See also
note 18(a).

(il Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position for the Group’s Significant Plans
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December 31,

12A31H

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015

Present value of unfunded obligations REEREHRE (15,541) (14,104)

Present value of partly funded obligations O EBERENIRE (7,302) (224,840)

Fair value of plan assets FEIEEN AR BE = 206,378

Net pension liability BRREAEFHE (22,843) (32,566)

Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities T EIBERE LSRR 3,300 270
The net pension liability is recorded in employee benefits in the consolidated — RK&BEFEEFALEMBRARNIEEEF

statement of financial position. The Group does not have net unrecognized
actuarial losses as the Group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in
accumulated other comprehensive income.

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one
year. However, it is not practicable to segregate the amount from the amounts
payable in the next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate to future
changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. The Group estimates
that the benefit payments for the pension and post-retirement benefits will be
approximately US$0.7 million during 2017 and between US$0.6 million and US$0.9
million each year from 2018 through 2021.
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(il Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position for the Group’s Significant Plans continued

The net pension liability is shown below:

14. BERF =

(b) EBASFHEIREEBANE =
lii) 7B Eq1 8B RGE B BRI R

FHIERRI TN
BARSEEFEITAT

December 31, 2016
2016 12H31H

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETL5) EEBRAKRSER EEBRAKREERN  HFEESEAREF “Et
Present value of the defined benefit EREEFMEIERIRE
obligation (9,915) (1,631) (11,297) (22,843)
Fair value of plan assets FEEEAREE = = - -
Net liability FRIE (9,915) (1,631) (11,297) (22,843)
December 31, 2015
2015%12H31H
U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) XERNKRESERN ZERAKREER  HEREEAER et
Present value of the defined benefit ERREFAMERIRE (227,426) (1,681) (9,837) (238,944)
obligation
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEAREE 206,378 = = 206,378
Net liability FEE (21,048) (1,681) (9,837) (32,566)

[iv] Movements in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations

for the Group’s Significant Plans

liv] & EE B0 EREEFIAIE R EE

2

Year ended December 31, 2016
HZ2016F12ANHILFEE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) XERNKRESERN ZERAKAEER  HEREEAER et
Change in benefit obligation: BRI AR -
Benefit obligation at January 1 R1A1E®
@R 227,426 1,681 9,837 238,944
Service cost BR#S AR A (5,962) - 914 (5,048)
Interest cost AlBSYP %N 7,443 65 176 7,684
Plan participants’ contributions FTE|2HLE HER - 129 - 129
Remeasurements B2 16,122 (110) 1,005 17,017
Benefits paid 2 &R (13,904) (134) (238) (14,276)
Settlement payments from plan assets R E 52| & EH
HEENR (221,210) - - (221,210)
Foreign exchange adjustments SN R - - (397) (397)
Benefit obligation at December 31 12 A31 A&
fa e 9,915 1,631 11,297 22,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

A B IRR AT =

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(iv] Movements in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations

for the Group’s Significant Plans continued

14. BERH =

(b) BASFHEREREANTE 2
liv] ZXEEEEq &0 EFHENAERE

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F12A31ALEFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) ZERIREER EEREEF Lt T B3R R 18 Al Bt
Change in benefit obligation: TR AE S -
Benefit obligation at January 1 ®1A1HH
fRFEYE 244,229 1,826 11,332 257,387
Service cost ARFGR AN = - 578 578
Interest cost BB 8,674 64 153 8,891
Plan participants’ contributions FTEI2 A MK - 168 - 168
Remeasurements EHEE (8,524) (199) (785) (9,508)
Benefits paid AR (16,953) (178) (289) (17,420)
Foreign exchange adjustments HINGEE B - - (1,152) (1,152)
Benefit obligation at December 31 K12 318/
YIS 227,426 1,681 9,837 238,944
[v]  Movement in Plan Assets for the Group’s Significant Plans ] HKEBEEZFEWEEELE
Year ended December 31, 2016
BZE2016F12A31BLEFE
U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) EEBAKRESEF ZERINEEF L T B3R R 18 A “Et
Change in plan assets: FFEIEEES)
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 ®1 A1 H8EHE
BENAABE 206,378 - - 206,378
Interest income FE YA 7,139 - - 7,139
Remeasurements EHFFE 9,578 - - 9,578
Employer contributions EEHR 13,148 5 238 13,391
Plan participants’ contributions HEI2EEH - 129 - 129
Benefits paid BASER (13,904) (134) (238) (14,276)
Settlement payments from plan assets 2R & 5t 218 EH)
HEERR (221,210) - - (221,210
Administrative expenses FTHFAX (1,129) - - (1,129)

Fair value of plan assets at December 31

K12 A431 HE
AEIBRENAR
(B8



14. Employee Benefits continued

(b)

Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

[v]  Movement in Plan Assets for the Group'’s Significant Plans continued

14. EERF =

(b) BASTHEIREHBAE &
vl FEEFEFIAEEEZE &

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F12A31BLEFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) EXEBRAKREEF B3R IREIEF L T BF 3R R 18 A ECH
Change in plan assets: TE|EESE) :
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 %1 A1 B8:HE
BENAAEE 213,991 - - 213,991
Interest income 2 YA 7,714 = = 7,714
Remeasurements B2 (10,913) - - (10,913)
Employer contributions EEHK 14,140 10 289 14,439
Plan participants’ contributions FTEI2EEHRR - 168 - 168
Benefits paid BA1E R (16,953) (178) (289) (17,420)
Administrative expenses TR X (1,601) = - (1,601)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 712 A31 HHY
TEIEEMAR
BE 206,378 - - 206,378

[vi] Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for

the Group’s Significant Plans

lvi] ZEEFEEERA MR E W as P HER
RYEH T2

Year ended December 31, 2016
BZE2016F12A31HLEFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) XEIRREEA EEREEF L 7 B3R R 18 Al et
Cumulative amount at January 1 ®1A1HB
g?ré%ﬁ 137,931 (3,952) 1,243 135,222
Effect of changes in demographic A #at R & &)
assumptions VR 2 - - (45) (45)
Effect of changes in financial SRR E D)
assumptions ) -7 13,179 37 546 13,762
Effect of experience adjustments KEARNTE 2,943 (147) 504 3,300
(Return) on plan assets sHEIEE(B15R)
(excluding interest income) (NBIEFS
WA (9,449) - - (9,449)
SERIP Plan Liquidation 7EE SERIPETE] (141,747) - - (141,747)
Cumulative amount at December 31 W12 831 B/
Bite® 2,857 (4,062) 2,248 1,043
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

A B IRR AT =

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

[vi] Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for

the Group'’s Significant Plans continued

14. EERF =

(b) BASTHEIREHBAE &
(vi] 5B E 251 B8R E At 2 [H L 55 7
RHVEF B &

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F12A31BLEFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) EXEBRAKREEF ZERIEEF L T BF 3R R 18 A ECH
Cumulative amount at January 1 R1A1BH
2ite8 135,441 (3,753) 2,028 133,716
Effect of changes in demographic A O ZETRER
assumptions e o2 = = = -
Effect of changes in financial BT RAR
assumptions pEEglin)Z (9,036) (62) (680) (9,778)
Effect of experience adjustments KERRERNTE 512 (137) (105) 270
(Return) on plan assets FrEIEE(B15R)
(excluding interest income) (NBFEFE
KA 11,014 - - 11,014
Cumulative amount at December 31 ®12A318/
Bite® 137,931 (3,952) 1,243 135,222

[vii] Costs (Gains] Recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement for

the Group’s Significant Plans

lvii] 2558 B BIR4GE Wiz 7 FHER A
A (W as)

Year ended December 31, 2016
HZ2016F 12831 ALLFEE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETZ25) XERNKRSER EERKEEF Eb 7l BE 3R R 18 Kl E
Service cost (gain) BRI AN (U as ) (5,962) - 914 (5,048)
Interest expense on defined TE RRAR AN EHEHY
benefit obligation FEREZ 7,443 65 177 7,685
Interest (income) on plan assets FFEIEEM
MEUEAN) (7,139) - - (7,139)
Administrative expenses TEFAX 1,000 - - 1,000
Total net periodic benefit cost (gain) T EAE A
B (s ) 45 (4,658) 65 1,091 (3,502)



14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

[vii] Costs (Gains) Recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement for

the Group'’s Significant Plans continued

14. EERF =

(b) BASTHEIREHBAE =
lvii) FEEFEEBIREGE Was 7 FHEZAY
B (W as) #

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F12A31BLEFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) EXEBRAKREEF ZERIEEF L T BF 3R R 18 A ECH
Service cost ARFGR A - - 578 578
Interest expense on defined TEREAR AR
benefit obligation MBI 8,674 64 153 8,891
Interest (income) on plan assets FHEIEER
MEEA) (7,715) - - (7,715)
Administrative expenses TEFAX 1,500 - - 1,500
Total net periodic benefit cost JFE BAtE A
PR R 2,459 64 731 3,254

The expense (gain) is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated
income statement:

RigElERT - M () RA N RBER

Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31BLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETE5) 2016 2015
General and administrative expenses —MRATER R (6,990) 1,343
Other expenses HnA% 3,488 1,911

(3,502) 3,254

Pension expense included in other income and expense relates to the actuarial
determined pension expense associated with the pension plans of two companies
unrelated to the Group’s current operations whose pension obligations were
assumed by the Group as a result of a 1993 agreement with the Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation (the "PBGC"). The plans were part of a controlled company
of corporations of which the Group was a part of, prior to 1993.

BARESHYREAEERMESEFRNRMRAT
(AR EEARESEFIERQF(TPBGC])H 1993 F 1
# o HERARSBETHRAERAE) NBEBTENKRS
P BRI E MU A KBS o R19934F /T » x5t
BEANEFI AR (AEEEBE—IH)H—IH ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

14. Employee Benefits continued

14. BEER =

Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

[viii] Actuarial Assumptions Used for the Group's Significant Plans

(b) SEARSH BIREMHEREHE
(vili) K 2= Bt BT FOAE B2

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
BR A SRR EBERKEIEF L R RIE F
2016 2016
Weighted average assumptions used to FR{EEEMR 12 A31AK
determine benefit obligations as of %mfﬂ??@)*é’]j]l]%$i’j%{
December 31: % - Hep
Discount rate ALIR &K 3.89% 3.82% 1.40%
Rate of compensation increase FrBE &= N/ATER N/ATEA =
Rate of price inflation B1% Rk N/ATERA N/ATER 1.75%
Weighted average assumptions used to FRIEEER
determine net periodic benefit cost HEZ12A3MAILFER
for the year ended December 31: Y RE BRAE AR AN 8 AN
B - KA
Discount rate BhIE & 4.07% 4.07% 1.80%
Rate of compensation increase g R =X - N/ATER =
2015 20154
Weighted average assumptions used to REEER12A31 8K
determine benefit obligations %mf'ﬁ?@)*ﬂ’]bﬂ*gzﬁ’]%(
as of December 31: R -
Discount rate ,H\Eiﬁb% 4.07% 4.07% 1.80%
Rate of compensation increase g R = N/ATER N/ANE A =
Rate of price inflation Big LRE N/ATNE N/ATNE 1.75%
Weighted average assumptions used to BEETER
determine net periodic benefit cost HE12A3HIEFER
for the year ended December 31: Y TE BAE AR AN B e
FEERR - KA
Discount rate ALIR =X 3.68% 3.68% 1.50%
Rate of compensation increase g R X - N/AiE =

The actual rate of return on assets for December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015
was 10.3% and (2.0)%, respectively.

The discount rate is based on a high-grade bond yield curve under which benefits
were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate
was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value.

For post-retirement benefit measurement purposes, a 6.7% annual rate of
increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits is assumed for the
year ended December 31, 2017. The rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 4.5%
for the year ended December 31, 2027 and remain at that level thereafter.

2016412 A31 B X 2015412 A31 BHMWEREED
|ED RN A10.3% K (2.0)% ©
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
[viii] Actuarial Assumptions Used for the Group's Significant Plans
continued

Reasonably possible changes as of the reporting date to one of the relevant
actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

14. EERF =

(b) BASTHEIREHBAE =
lviii) ZEEF 51 EIFFEERR &

WeE A Hh AR B R G A DA R
B(LBRRETR) SV ETTEFRRE - F
REBETMT -

December 31, 2016
2016128 31H

Increase Decrease
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) +H# T+
Discount rate (50 basis points) ALIR R (50 fEE2E) (841) 919
Medical cost trend rate (1% movement) BEEERBZLE(1%EE)) (9 8

The estimated benefit obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed
to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date
without considering future compensation levels), exceeded the fair value of plan
assets as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 by US$22.8 million and
US$32.6 million, respectively.

[ix) Fair Values of the Assets Held by the U.S. Pension Plan by Major
Asset Category for the Group’s Significant Plans

As of December 31, 2016, substantially all SERIP Plan assets were
distributed to participants and beneficiaries or used to purchase the annuity
contract in conjunction with the SERIP Plan Liquidation. See further discussion in
note 14(b)(ii).

TERHE R RSE (T E ARG KTE - Ret2 B AllE
8RB EEFHMKFEEIENENEERE)D BN
2016 12 A31 AKX 2015412 A 31 B EI B ER
AREEZE 2 8AEXTRI26BEETT

lix)] ZEEFHE B EPEEEMRE BT
BRTFEEESHENEEN A IEE
R2016F 128318 » BAEESERIPETEIAR

B+ SERIPFTEIMBAIHDBEED DR TREEHT

mA KAEBEFSEH - E—Pilma 2K

#E140b)(i) ©

December 31, 2015
2015%12A31H

Targeted allocation Fair value

BRoE DREE

(US$’ 000)

(%)

Fixed Income EE WA -%-100% 174,942
Cash B -%-100% 31,436
Total #Et 100% 206,378

The asset allocation targets are set with the expectation that the plan’s assets
will fund the plan’s expected liabilities with an appropriate level of risk. Expected
returns, risk and correlation among asset classes are based on historical data and
input received from the Group’s investment advisers.

The funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet
minimum funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws. In
2017, there is no minimum required contribution for the defined benefit plans.

BESEMARDZABEESATHEEERER
B EENEERHESNERANRE - BED
BZRNBERCOR - ERRBEBEENREAE
BiRERRABEBBERBARR

ZET BN H AR R RIRBE B @M RBOEPEIR
23 RERNF A REHRERAOFIA - 122017
F o EREENE S EKEHRER -
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

[x] Historical Information for the Group'’s Significant Plans

14. EERF =

(b) BASTHEIREHBAE &
x) FEBEEEFZBEEH

December 31,

12A31H

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LLFET2%) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Present value of the defined TEREfR FEIER

benefit obligation A (22,843) (238,944) (257,387) (228,137) (257,185)
Fair value of plan assets TEIEER

ARfEE - 206,378 213,991 199,102 188,807

Net liability FAE (22,843) (32,566) (43,396) (29,035) (68,378)
Experience adjustments arising st E|BEMELH

on plan liabilities KB TR 3,300 270 1,878 (1,084) 7,354

(c) Defined Contribution Plan

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group provides a defined contribution 407(k]
retirement plan. The plan covers substantially all non-union employees of the
subsidiary for the sole purpose of encouraging participants to save for retirement.
Plan participants may contribute up to 75% of their compensation to the plan, a
percentage of which is matched by the Group. The Group may also make non-
elective contributions to participants” accounts. Participant contributions and the
earnings thereon are fully vested upon contribution. Participants become vested
in the matching and non-elective contributions upon completion of two and three
years of service, respectively. Forfeited contributions made by the Group are used
to reduce future matching contributions and/or administrative expenses.

In connection with this plan, the Group recognized an expense of US$3.6 million
and US$3.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively. Forfeited contributions were inconsequential for the periods
presented.

(d) Samsonite LLC’s U.S. Pension Plan Settlement Agreement

Samsonite LLC (a U.S. subsidiary of the Group) and the PBGC are party to a
Settlement Agreement under which PBGC was granted an equal and ratable lien
on certain domestic assets of Samsonite LLC and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries
(excluding any equity interests in subsidiaries and any inventory or accounts
receivable of Samsonite LLC or its U.S. subsidiaries), together with Samsonite’s
intellectual property rights in the U.S. and Samsonite’s rights under licenses of
such intellectual property to affiliates or third parties. The PBGC's lien, which is in
the amount of US$39.3 million, is equal and ratable with the lien granted over such
assets to Samsonite’s senior secured lenders. Other provisions of the agreement
restrict the transfer of U.S. assets outside of the ordinary course of business. The
Group is in compliance with these requirements as of December 31, 2016.

The agreement will expire upon (a) the Group obtaining investment grade status on
its senior unsecured debt, (b] the date the plan has no unfunded benefit liabilities
for two consecutive plan years, (c] the date on which the Group becomes part of a
controlled company whose unsecured debt has investment grade status, or (d) the
date the plan is successfully terminated.

(c) EFEHRETE
AEE—REBME A RRMERHFK401(K
RKEHE - LA BIREZMBRRBAS DTS
B8 BWELTBMS2EERRAFHE - FE2H
Er A EEL S ERHM75% R R - MAKE
TERZ A D EREFHR - AEERATRSHE
FERPIFHSERZRIEHES - 2EENEARETRN
HREREBHER - HEHRBIBEEEHKE D B
NEBMER=ZFREB2EE - ARERUKNHHE
RTIRER D RRE SRR/ HATBH ©

HZE2016F 12 A31HX&2015F 12 A31 HILFE -
AEEFRUETEI D RIERISEBETKI I BAEE
TTRIFAY - REr25ER @ SSWAHZRT REK -

(d) Samsonite LLCHEBRA S BIEE

ik

Samsonite LLC(ANEBH—REBH B LRF])
BAPBGC RAEMZEMNFI A - REZME - PBGC
BtSamsonite LLC REETERMBE A BIME TE
B EE (M8 A BRI E(I AR #E & Samsonite LLC3E
FEIM B A R e ERfF E S ARTERRSN) - DA
FBNERNANBERRNSBERNE THE QA
FE=FHLENBERNTAENENERT T
DBRLBINEERE - PBGCHI3IZHEELEE
ERRTHFBRBACEREFANZEEENH
B S ET D RIRLLA o 1755 & E Ath I5RRR HI 7
EEFEBBIZLAINEEEZREE - 702016512 A 31
B NEEETHERE -

ZIFER N (o) AEE S EE R BERERESRE
RETARES - (b) ZaTEINEEMERT B4 Z B AR
BHMEBEZR  (JAEBRAEEREGHEERE
FRFROZEF AR —HD 2B - 3 (d) ZEHE
PRI L2 BE ©



15. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2017 is approximately US$114.4
million. Capital commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and December
31, 2015 were US$3.6 million and US$7.8 million, respectively, which were not
recognized as liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position as they
have not met the recognition criteria.

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group's lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable leases of
office, warehouse and retail store space and equipment. As of December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, future minimum payments under non-cancellable leases
were as follows:

15. &iE

(a) EAREE

REER2017TFHEARZBENA11447
BT > MN20165F 12 A31 B K% 201512 A31 B
KEITHNERAESR B3 6ABETLRTSEERE
TL ZESBRATATAERER - AT ERGRA
BB RPERAEE -

(b) &EHERIE

REENHEAETEOENRAE RERT
EEER TR KA A EEETEE - 12016912
HA31BK2015%F12A31H - TAHHEAEETH
RIREMAEFRBELNT ¢

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Within one year —FR 139,664 94,453
After one year but within two years —FREMER 111,490 89,374
After two years but within five years MEBRBRAFA 211,979 102,717
More than five years FEUE 139,195 64,573
Total operating lease commitments BT E AR 602,328 351,117

Certain of the leases are renewable at the Group’s option. Certain of the leases
also contain rent escalation clauses that require additional rents in later years of
the lease term, which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental expense under cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases amounted
to US$156.9 million and US$122.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Certain of the retail leases provide for
additional rent payments based on a percentage of sales. These additional rent
payments amounted to US$1.8 million and US$2.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, and are included in rent
expense.
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16. Contingent Liabilities

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to various forms of
litigation and legal proceedings. The facts and circumstances relating to particular
cases are evaluated in determining whether it is more likely than not that there
will be a future outflow of funds and, once established, whether a provision relating
to specific litigation is sufficient. The Group records provisions based on its past
experience and on facts and circumstances known at each reporting date. The
provision charge is recognized within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement. When the date of the incurrence of an obligation
is not reliably measureable, the provisions are not discounted and are classified in
current liabilities.

The Group did not settle any significant litigation during the year ended December
31,2016.

17. Trade and Other Payables

16. AREE

RAREKBRES  FXEBRYSEEANF
INNERRER c ERERRECREAIEHIEES
NS G EEEBRAAENEERIRE  m—
LT o B LR AERARENREESSEN -
AEBEREBEECHRENSHREBPEANEE
MBI EEREE - BRI N EARERFH—RK
RATHRAL PR - ERBUKEN B BT #Y)sT
= BES TR EEE BERBARE -

HE2016F12A31BIEFE - AEEWEARE
A ERFFAA

17. B RRREMENRIER

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (RFET25) 2016 2015
Accounts payable FEfTERIR 386,754 345,438
Other payables and accruals H b e AT RUE K ERT B 141,677 89,523
Other tax payables HAbERTIIE 5,341 7,180
Total trade and other payables FETER R Eo M FE S BB B RE 533,772 442,141

Included in accounts payable are trade payables with the following aging analysis
by due date of the respective invoice:

FEN BRI At ATBIARIR - IR BB RIHAMNAR
O

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (RFET25) 2016 2015
Current BNER 290,703 262,325
0 - 30 days past due #HI0Z=30H 10,991 16,155
Greater than 30 days past due BEREBHE 30 A 2,429 5,205
Total trade payables FERTBR 4B EE 304,123 283,685

Trade payables as of December 31, 2016 are on average due within 105 days from
the invoice date.

M2016F12 431 BNEMNERFHOREEEAH
#BEH105 HEES



18. Income Taxes

(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement

Taxation in the consolidated income statement for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

18. Fi8 %

(a) REREWERTHBIEA
HZE 20161231 BR 2015612 A31 B 1k
FENGARERANTIARENTIAR

Year ended December 31,

BZE12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LTFETE5) 2016 2015
Current tax expense — Hong Kong Profits Tax: BIHATG BRI % — FE ST -

Current period AEAR (85) (663)
Current tax expense — Foreign: BNEARIB RS — 3% 4] -

Current period ANHAfE (83,134) (70,894)

Adjustment for prior periods B BRI R 1,142 2,167
Total current tax expense — foreign BEAT I8 2 4288 — 3:RHN (81,992) (68,727)
Total current tax expense BIEARR B 5 2 4858 (82,077) (69,390)
Deferred tax benefit (expense): EIERIBHE 2 (FX)

Origination and reversal of REREEERER

temporary differences 18,576 (1,249)

SERIP Plan Liquidation yBE SERIPETEI 56,773 =

Change in tax rate e ) 8,777 (94)

Change in recognized temporary differences BREREREEE 11 (3,310)
Total deferred tax benefit (expense) RIER IR ()% 84,237 (4,653)

Total income tax benefit (expense) Frissisfe (M) 2% 2,160 (74,043)

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group recorded an income tax benefit
of US$2.2 million compared with income tax expense of US$74.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015. In conjunction with the SERIP Plan Liquidation,
the Group recorded a US$56.8 million tax benefit related to the derecognition of
deferred tax liabilities that originated from contributions to the pension plan in
prior years. In addition, the enacted future tax rate in Luxembourg decreased by
321 basis points to 26.0%, which resulted in a favorable tax adjustment of US$8.8
million to the Group's deferred tax liabilities. Excluding these tax benefits, as well
as the tax benefit resulting from the Tumi acquisition-related costs, the Group's
effective tax rate was 27.8%.

The Group’s consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 0.8% and (25.4%)
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The
effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average income tax rate from
those jurisdictions in which the Group is subject to tax, adjusted for permanent
book/tax differences, tax incentives, changes in tax reserves and changes in
unrecognized deferred tax assets. The increase in the Group’s effective tax rate
as adjusted above for certain one-time items, was mainly the result of normal
changes in the profit mix between high and low tax jurisdictions.

See discussion regarding the SERIP Plan Liquidation and the related tax impacts
in note 14(b)(ii).

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015 was calculated at an effective tax rate of 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries was
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation in the relevant countries.

HE2016F12A3MBIEFE - ~EBESFHER
ER22BEFET  MREZE2015F12 A31 HIEF
RS EMBEX 740 B 85T - NIBESERIP
SRR - AEERSHRKIIERAEBIFER
ReFraHRELENETTIEAEHRBAOREES
56.8 BEZETT o LA - ERED BB AR RE ER
K321 AEBEZE26.0% * R AEEMNELTTIEA EEk
1588 EEETHNAFBIEAE - MR LS IER S
AR Tumi BB BIEARMR A ELNTIEES - A%
ENERTER27.8% °

HZE2016F12 A31 AR 2015512 A3 BILEE -
AEEXEBEGRE BERTIED R A0.8% & (25.4%)
BB R R AN E ESMNTIIE R RE R 2 T
HFEHREAE - UHKAMER/REER - HIE
BE  HEHEEZEHEAERELHRBEEESIE
HHAE - AEBWERBE (W EXmtHgEF—k
MIEEEEARR) EFA - TZEREHRAEER
SRR R Al AR 2 MR RFIEE ESE BN -

BRBESERIPAHEIRBMABAZ EN R - F2
BRI EE 14(b) (i) ©

HE2016F12A31BK%2015F 12 A31 HILFER
EETERBERBEENGTERE S IIRERR
E16.5%5TE o WHINIE A AN IEIRIEEREIRE
BRI R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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18. Income Taxes continued

18. Fr8 %% 4

i

(b) Reconciliation Between Tax Benefit (Expense) and Profit Before (b) F{1EiK % (B ) EEBRBL AR 128 AR

Taxation at Applicable Tax Rates

RETENHIR

Year ended December 31,

BZ12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Profit for the year F R A 274,825 217,017
Total income tax benefit (expense) sk e (F ) 42%8 2,160 (74,043)
Profit before income tax BR PSR & A1 272,665 291,060
Income tax benefit (expense) using the Group’s BARE @iﬁﬁﬁm-.-#%fﬁﬁﬁﬁ S
applicable tax rate e (FZ) (75,256) (82,661)
Tax incentives MIBEE 27,029 26,374
SERIP Plan Liquidation yEE SERIPETEI 56,773 -
Change in tax rates RS ) 8,777 (94)
Change in tax reserves IR EE 2,937 2,167
Non-deductible expenses AAEINFA X (11,552) (4,537)
Change in tax effect of undistributed earnings ROMBMOT G B 1,281 (1,082)
Current year losses for which no deferred RERBILERTBEENAFEEIE
tax assets are recognized (2,623) (4,616)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses RIBEARHERHBIAE R 111 47
Change in recognized temporary differences ERERERE=EEE) - (3,357)
Share-based compensation VAR A7 32 A<F £ 35 B (3,276) (2,420)
Withholding taxes TEHH (5,304) (5,100)
Other A 2,121 (931)
Over provided in prior periods e sk 1,142 2,167
2,160 (74,043)

The provision for taxation for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December
31, 2015 was calculated using the Group’s applicable tax rate of 27.6% and 28.4%,
respectively. The applicable rate was based on the Group's weighted average

worldwide tax rate.

E o

HZE 2016512 A31 B KR 2015 12 A31 BILFEH
IR D IR AR B HE AT 27.6% K& 28.4% 5t

& ERABETDERARE NG 2B XM



18. FTBH =

REMEZEKEHEIZNFAEHER
(FA3)

Year ended December 31, 2016
BZ2016F 12831 BLFE

18. Income Taxes continued

(c) Income Tax Benefit ([Expense) Recognized in Other (c)
Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZE2015F12A31BLEEE

Income tax Income tax
benefit benefit
(expense) (expense)
Before tax Fr8%  Netoftax Before tax P88 Net of tax
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LTFETZ5) MREiAT E%(FX) BBl % BB KR (BER) B %
Remeasurements on benefit plans  BFRFHEINEHHE 2 (8,442) 88 (8,354 (795) 265 (530)
Deferred tax impact of SERIP Plan B H SERIPETEIA)

Liquidation RIETIER 2 - (53,899) (53,899) - - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts & HJSNES 4 (992) 335 (657)  (2,599) 909 (1,690)
Interest rate swaps F 4= 51 16,150 4,719) 11,431 = - -
Foreign currency translation RINE TSR INEE TE 5,

differences for foreign operations =5 (23,118) - (23,118) (35,272) - (35,272)

(16,402) (58,195) (74,597) (38,666) 1,174 (37,492)
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities (d EZEMEEERAE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities were attributable to the following: BERIEEERBEIREATIER ¢
December 31,
128318
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Deferred tax assets: EETIIHEE

Allowance for doubtful accounts RERE 2,542 2,177

Inventory e 11,617 8,790

Plant and equipment R e w4 8,015 5,488

Pension and post-retirement benefits RIRE MR IKIZE R 10,703 14,324

Share-based compensation LARR A9 32 A<F 9 357 Bt 1,287 1,754

Tax losses HIaEE 3,106 3,447

Reserves E 43,454 19,544

Other Hih 4,440 2,376

Set off of tax IR 3H (29,157) (7,148)
Total gross deferred tax assets HIRENIAE E 56,007 50,752
Deferred tax liabilities: BERIBAE -

Plant and equipment R e mR A (21,330) (7.164)

Intangible assets mEE (451,359) (97,986)

Other Hith (13,008) (8,238)

Set off of tax TIEE 29,157 7,148
Total gross deferred tax liabilities BIRETRIRAE (456,540) (106,240)
Net deferred tax liability FRIETRIR AR (400,533) (55,488)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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18. FTBH =

18. Income Taxes continued

206

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued (d EZEHREEERAEE &
The movement in temporary differences for the years ended December 31, HZE2016%F12A31H X% 201512 A31H1E
2016 and December 31, 2015 was: FEMNEREZREFHA :
Recognized
Balance, in other Balance,
December 31, Recognized comprehensive December 31,
2015 in profit Purchase income 2016
20156 or loss accounting REMEE Other'" 20165
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 12A31 A&t RESEPER FEET Wz PR Hft" 12831 BEE
Allowance for doubtful accounts RARREE 2,177 36 350 - (21) 2,542
Inventory =& 8,790 2,230 702 - (105) 11,617
Property, plant and equipment WME - BEMERE (1,676) 1,512 (13,140) - (11) (13,315)
Intangible assets B EE (97,986) 11,935 (365,470) - 162 (451,359)
Pension and post-retirement BERE K
benefits RINERA 14,324 50,460 - (53,811) (270) 10,703
Share-based compensation LARR A7 Sz 11 9 357 B 1,754 (378) - - (89) 1,287
Tax losses IEEE 3,447 128 (48) - (421) 3,106
Reserves G 19,544 11,837 12,073 - - 43,454
Other Hiftb (5,862) 6,477 (4,650) (4,384) (149) (8,568)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) FRERIEEE
i & (55,488) 84,237 (370,183) (58,195) (904) (400,533)
Note g
(1) Other comprises primarily foreign exchange rate effects. (1) HthxEBHEERPE -
Balance, Recognized Balance,
December 31, in other December 31,
2014 Recognized comprehensive 2015
20145 in profit income 20154
128318 or loss REMEZR Other™ 12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (RFET25) wer REEPER Wz R Hetg R
Allowance for doubtful accounts RORE S 2,390 (41) - (172) 2,177
Inventory "& 8,397 716 - (323) 8,790
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB (4,752) 3,096 - (20) (1,676)
Intangible assets mPEE (99,217) 473 = 758 (97,986)
Pension and post-retirement BIRE K
benefits RIKIRAER 18,713 (4,132) 265 (522) 14,324
Share-based compensation LARR 7 32 A< Ao 3 B 1,568 212 = (26) 1,754
Tax losses IR 4,755 234 - (1,542) 3,447
Reserves &1 23,271 (2,943) - (784) 19,544
Other EHAh (4,998) (2,268) 909 495 (5,862)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) FREHEERE(AE) (49,873) (4,653) 1,174 (2,136) (55,488
Note T

(1) Other comprises primarily foreign exchange rate effects.

) HEtTrEafERE -



18. Income Taxes continued

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued
Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following
items:

18. FTBH =

(d) BEHEEEREE#
RIEFDIREBEEE
BRITFIIE B ARIER IR A B i AR IR AR

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (BAF 52 25)) 2016 2015
Deductible temporary differences AR EE 4,239 1,213
Tax losses FiIaEE 63,494 48,680
Balance at end of year FRER 67,733 49,893

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it
is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group
can utilize the benefits from them.

Available tax losses (recognized and unrecognized):

RERTHE - TEHNEREZZEIHA - KEE
HAMUFER BRELEHREE - BAKETK
AR ARRIERBENIERIREZEEENER -

AT HE) A TR R IR (B R R RFER) -

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Europe BN 40,985 36,021
Asia EENA 2,192 =
Latin America T EM 31,075 24,337
Total HRET 74,252 60,358

Tax losses expire in accordance with local country tax regulations. European
losses will expire beginning in 2020. Asia losses expire starting in 2021. Latin
American losses will expire beginning in 2019.

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities

As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, a deferred tax liability
of US$31.0 million and US$24.7 million, respectively, related to investments in
subsidiaries is not recognized because the Group controls whether the liability will
be incurred and it is satisfied that the temporary difference will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

BIRERNABHARRESMEROTOEATE © B
INE S B 2020 4F 2 HRR - SEMNETIHT B 2021 S
B o L T SNBSS B 2019 FREE -

AERIELEREAE

HRAR B E TS S REER RRERH
AERTeBROEREZRE - RibHARERREMNEA
AREEHMNELEHERAE - RKERSEN 2016
F12A318R2015512A31 BB A0EESE
TR 24 TEBET
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19. Finance Income and Finance Costs

19. B WAREBEEH

FAEWER MRS 2 ER SR E

The following table presents a summary of finance income and finance costs

recognized in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

TRENRN

REPEWA NG E AR

Year ended December 31,
BZ12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Recognized in income or loss: U A B 18 R
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERAF BULA 1,253 868
Total finance income Rl NG 1,253 868
Interest expense on financial liabilities BB AT ENSRBEN

measured at amortized cost FER (43,691) (3,160)
Change in fair value of put options RLHEA R BEEE (9,119) (5,772)
Net foreign exchange loss SN B8 5 5E (3,660) (6,681)
Other finance costs HtMBER (3,319) (3,066)
Total finance costs WIS B R e (59,789) (18,679)
Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss RER P RN 55 R F58 (58,536) (17,811)
Recognized in other comprehensive income (loss):  RAEth 2K (BB ) R iER
Foreign currency translation differences for BINETGH TN E 2 R

foreign operations (23,118) (35,272)
Changes in fair value of foreign exchange RHINESHH AR BEZS

forward contracts (992) (2,599)
Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps MEiHNO AR BEEY 16,150 -
Income tax on finance income and finance costs R E A 2 E e HERR Y B TS M A K

recognized in other comprehensive income B E REFTS R (4,384) 909
Net finance costs recognized in total other REMEZE K= ERNITEER

comprehensive income, net of tax R (FRAIZ) (12,344) (36,962)
Attributable to: TEIA LR
Equity holders of the Company KA RIRIEREE A (12,032) (33,355)
Non-controlling interests FEPRARHE RS (312) (3,607)



20. Expenses

Profit before income tax was arrived at after charging the following for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

20. X%

BZ= 201612 831 HR 2015612 431 ALE
FE - BRASHAENEHRNATEE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEBETE 66,785 48,985
Amortization of intangible assets IR 22,456 10,590
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN BN & 7,666 5,600
Research and development it 7% K e 3 25,395 22,345
Operating lease charges in respect of properties BN EEHEEA 156,939 121,996
Restructuring charges EHER = -

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December
31, 2016 provided by KPMG LLP and its foreign member firms, the external

auditors of the Group, were as follows:

BRAAREBEINEZEEIKPMG LLP R EBISM & 7
BE20165F12 31 AL FEMBHMNEZ MR
BRESEOBERLIAT

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETL25)
Annual audit and interim review services!" FEEZEFPAER RS 5,355
Due diligence and other acquisition-related ERES LAWK EEE 1,493
non-audit services®? JEEZ R 2
Permitted tax services 2T AT R IS AR A% 690
Other non-audit related services E A IEE B AR 128
Total HET 7,666
Notes T

(1) Includes non-recurring services provided in conjunction with the June 27, 2016 circular filing, as well as
opening balance sheet and purchase price allocation procedures associated with the acquisition of Tumi

Holdings, Inc. totalling US$1.1 million.

(2)  Primarily comprised of fees associated with financial due diligence and integration planning performed in

conjunction with the acquisition of Tumi Holdings, Inc.

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial

Instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial

instruments:
° credit risk;
o liquidity risk; and

o market risk.

(a)

Risk Management

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the

Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has delegated to the Audit
Committee the responsibility for reviewing the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. The Company’s management, under the oversight of the
Board of Directors, is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.

(1) BRIFRMHE2016F6 B 27 BEKABEOIC T RS - U RE
Yi#E Tumi Holdings, Inc. {HEAMEAMEE B ERRBEBHEIE
FAXBIIEEET

(2) EZBIELETumi Holdings, Inc. W EIBM EITHH KRR
ERESHEEBOER -

21. i EREEREMTA

AEERAER SR T AmmEE TR -
s FERR:
s RBERER: R

o THER

B\ f B2

AAREZTSRARRAR ARG REFES
AR RBEERANEZERR - EE2ECEE
B EgaRRNAEENRREERAREE
R - FEZENERT ARRAMNERERER
it BRERESEAARNRRER R AREERAR -

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

21 Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(b) Exposure to Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum
exposure is limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in
the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of the Group's customer base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an
influence on credit risk. No single customer accounted for more than 5% of the
Group’s sales for the periods presented or trade and other receivables as of the
reporting dates. Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for credit worthiness before the Group’s standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their
credit characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial
difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’'s wholesale
customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold
and monitored by the Group, and future sales are made on an approval basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

21. MBEREEREMIA

il

AENEERR
FEREERAMNERTANEPRRZHFRE
BIEANEENSAEREAZMBERORR
TERBAEEBKESORIE - &l EARKF
RANREMBRRMEIN S REERIRE(E -

(b)

e Bk e EL At P WK TR

AEENEERBKFEEXE SR FEL
MEHTE - A BERENEEEAKETPR
AR BREPREEBEEMBITERMER
RHENER - ARLERZAREEEERRENK
FE TEE-EPEAEEZIBENHEEER
RIRE B HIR AR R L ML FE U IR B 5% JA L -
eI Ef 5 A BT BEEE T ER -

AEEEHEEEBE Bl AEESERES
R P IR AR AR A A B S A GRS ER (G 1 AT - {EL R
HEEEBEITHMN -

EERTPHNEERRE - DIREZFPHNEESR
ETHHE - BERERERN - URZAEEEWHRE
B o JEARRRANN A R WK OA = 2 B R SR B My e 3
BEFPEM - BEAA [RRER ] NEFPHEESRE
BEAAEEETER  RRNHEFTELBEL
JTRIELT -

REENRAEARAGERREE - REER
B UTHANRAGEERBREENT

December 31,

12HA31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Trade and other receivables JE WS AR R K L FE YRR IR 357,790 283,495
Cash and cash equivalents B NIBLZEY 368,540 180,803
Total 1@zt 726,330 464,298

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by
geographic region was:

RiE RS IR R I E D BRI R A(E
ERBEER

December 31,

12H31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Asia EEV) 131,257 100,121
North America JEZEM 130,755 99,024
Europe BN 54,045 46,402
Latin America BT EM 22,329 23,572
Total trade receivables U BR R 4ERE 338,386 269,119



21. Financial Risk Management and Financial 21. HBEREEREMIA «
Instruments continued

(c) Exposure to Liquidity Risk (c) EENRBESER
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the nRBECERBRATEEEREITRACHARE
obligations associated with its financial liabilities. B ) B I 38 B R 2 = B o

The Group’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating ASEREBESHEBRRAHRALEETH - &
activities, invested cash, available lines of credit (note 13(b)] and, subject to ~ &IR% - AAEEF(MFE13(0)) REBITHR(FF
shareholder approval, its ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that ~ BRERBLEZR T AIEE ) ML NFTEERNIRESRE
its existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will —~ S£EHEE - HEBRES KRG RESRE - LR
be adequate to meet the operating and capital requirements of the Group for at ~&iB&A® @ BRUENAEERKEL + AKX
least the next twelve months. EEREBATE -

The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative $TERFTESHMEERBEN S NI B
financial assets and liabilities: N

December 31, 2016
2016 12HA31H

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
(Expressed in thousands of amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5years 5years
US Dollars) (AFETE5) REE BHARLSRE DPR—F 1824 2E5%F 5 E
Non-derivative financial HTES AR :
liabilities:
Trade and other FERBRA X
payables HibEMFIE 533,772 533,772 533,772 - - -
Term Loan Facilities TEEE A A 1,915,500 1,915,500 45,813 69,250 1,160,875 639,562
Revolving Facility BEREE 10,516 10,516 10,516 - - =
Other lines of credit HitnzE% 13,410 13,410 13,410 - - -
Finance lease obligations ~ Bi&MH &EHIE 283 283 68 70 145 -
Minimum operating ®EEEHRE
lease payments (NEN - 602,328 139,664 111,490 211,979 139,195
Derivative financial TESRTA :
instruments:
Interest rate swap =i Bt
agreements 16,149 60,449 15,750 14,508 30,191 -
Foreign exchange RARONE S A
forward contracts 3,137 95,360 95,360 - - -

As disclosed in note 13, the Group has entered into the Senior Credit Facilities,  ZunMIsF 13T - W 2016FE 128318 - KNEH
which consists of the Revolving Facility of US$500.0 million and the Term Loan BT {BEEEND  HyHAK500.058ETH
Facilities of US$1,915.5 million as of December 31, 2016. The future cash flows  {BREERAZ19155BEE TN THEZREA
on derivative instruments may be different from the amount in the table above as  fk o 74 T A& KR RIR &7 & 7] s F = & B iy 42
interest rates change. FERFAEHAEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
MEMEHRRMET =

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial 2. BBEREEREMIA »
Instruments continued
(c) Exposure to Liquidity Risk continued (c) AENRBESRER =

December 31, 2015
201512 H31H

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
(Expressed in thousands of amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5years 5years
US Dollars) (AFET25) REE SHELSRE DR—F 182%F 2E5F 5L E
Non-derivative financial TR CRAE
liabilities:
Trade and other payables  JEfERFN
H b fE TR 442,141 442,141 442,141 = - _
Prior Revolving Facility BEEREE 48,174 48,174 48,174 - - -
Other lines of credit Hit{Z &% 15,921 15,921 15,921 - - -
Finance lease obligations ~ Fl&EE&IE 87 87 30 18 39 -
Minimum operating EEERE
lease payments (NE:N = 351,117 94,453 89,374 102,717 64,573
Derivative financial THESRIA :
instruments:
Foreign exchange EERSNE S A
forward contracts 1,785 88,463 88,463 - - -

The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with ~ FRBRERSHREUTNITAE T EEBRNESR
derivatives, that are cash flow hedges, are expected to occur and impact profit or  SFEHIH IR R 2825 HAR -

loss.
Carrying Expected Less than More than
(Expressed in thousands of amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5years 5years
US Dollars) (AFETL5) IREE FAHRERE DR—F 1Z22%F 2B5F S5FELE
December 31, 2016: 20165 12H318 :
Assets BE 3,137 95,360 95,360 - = =
Interest rate swap FRE = 16,149 60,449 15,750 14,508 30,191 -
agreements
December 31, 2015: 20154F12 4318 :
Assets BE 1,785 88,463 88,463 - - =
(d) Exposure to Market Risk (d) AEHTHEREE
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign MZRBATSERNES AR - IFEARE

exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income  EMWASEFSELBM T ABENESR « FIXR KK
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk  #{E1& - MZRAKREEMNE R AEE RIZEHTIZE
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable ~ REERAEZLRXE A » RIRKELEHR -
parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group periodically buys and sells financial derivatives, such as forward AEEMHBRAR  ASETHBEERLES/ITE
purchase contracts for hedging purposes, in order to manage market risks. TA  fInstEal ZHE BB E SR -
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(d) Exposure to Market Risk continued

li]  Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the
Group’s subsidiaries.

The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure
to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than the
respective functional currency of the Group's subsidiaries. The forward exchange
contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.

Interest on borrowings is typically denominated in the local currency of the
borrowing. Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the
cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

The Group's exposure to currency risk arising from the currencies that more
significantly affect the Group’s financial performance was as follows based on
notional amounts of items with largest exposure:

21. MBEREEREMIA «

(d) EEHTH SRR &

lil E#EE
REEBAREEHB QRS BHOMEEERIA

SN E A E R RBRIE AR TR -

A5 B E H b AR R OMNE B R0 B H A R SR P 8
NEIBBENREEE I EE GEENERRED
EBRKR - ZFEMINERNNE A —RIR—
& o

EROTIE —BAERO B EREE « R~
HEA ERE RO AN B LR RN RE
A -

FEEENHARARRNERNZESE G
SEPBRRABLBREAZENERERARAT

December 31, 2016
2016%F12HA31H

Euro Renminbi Indian Rupee

BT ARYE EEEL

(Euro ' 000) (RMB ' 000) (INR ’000)

(F&xT) (AR®T ) (FENEEL)

Cash Re 21,891 231,186 859,427
Trade and other receivables, net JEURBRZR K Ho b FEUG ZRIE - JEEE 42,593 206,736 1,241,422
Intercompany receivables (payables) AR U (PR ) kI8 (8,666) (10,034) 60,367
Trade and other payables JEAS BRI B At e 5 5K IR (53,228) (194,042) (814,630)
Statement of financial position exposure B 75tk &= E k2 2,590 233,846 1,346,586

December 31, 2015
2015%12831H

Euro Renminbi Indian Rupee

56 AR EEELL

(Euro "000) (RMB '000) (INR "000)

(F&T) (AR®T ) (FENEEL)

Cash e 25,711 157,347 571,543
Trade and other receivables, net JE R BR SR M At PR UL GRTE - JFRR 40,606 128,254 1,428,309
Intercompany receivables (payables) NaE R () FIE (8,152) (9,216) 87,691
Trade and other payables FEAS AR TN Bt A 5RIR (65,253) (131,306) (856,954)
Statement of financial position exposure BA7&ik i &R E (7,088) 145,079 1,230,589
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(d) Exposure to Market Risk continued
{i} Currency Risk continued

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate

21. HEEBEEREMTIA

(d) FEWNTHEER &
lil B¥ERE &
RERNEROERERLDT :

Reporting date spot rate

THER 5% B HABES

2016 2015 2016 2015

Euro BT 1.1023 1.1113 1.0516 1.0861
Renminbi AR 0.1506 0.1592 0.1440 0.1540
Indian Rupee ENE L, 0.0149 0.0156 0.0147 0.0151

Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

A strengthening of the Euro by 10% against the US Dollar would have
increased profit for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015
by US$5.2 million and US$3.6 million, respectively, and increased equity as of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 by US$26.6 million and US$22.0
million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Euro would have an
equal, but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting
dates.

If the Renminbi had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would have
increased for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 by
US$2.5 million and US$2.5 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015 would have increased by US$5.0 million and US$4.8
million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Renminbi would have an
equal, but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting
dates.

If the Indian Rupee had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would
have increased for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015
by US$1.3 million and US$1.6 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015 would have increased by US$4.6 million and US$4.1
million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Indian Rupee would
have an equal, but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these
reporting dates.

lii]  Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings
on variable rate debt instruments. From time to time, the Group enters into
interest rate swap agreements to manage interest rate risk.

INEBURE DT

BT HETFAE10% D RIS B ZE 201612
A31B8K2015F 12 A31 BILFEREFILMNG.2H
BETKIEEET - ROBILR20165F12 A31
H& 201512 A31 BMEZRIEMN26.6 BEETR
20EBETT - A MBRERABEMAIZRKR(LHE
R ERE - BULEZE 10% 18 E 2 E M HEF|
MR ERE ABNERELCSSERRNTE -

MARB S ETAE 0% HZE20165F 128318 %
2015612 A3V AIEFEMEF KD REM2 588
ER25A8BET 0 MR2016F 12 A31H K& 2015
F12A3 BOEEHEEHRIEME.0BBETKLS
BEET o MBRZMAE M ZRER(LEEF
)RR TE o ARBEZE 10% B ZHEAET &
REEREAHNETEES2ERRNTE -

MENEE L HETFE10% - HE 2016512 A31
H&20154% 12 A31 BIEFEREFIED BIEM1.3
BEETKI6BEEET  kR2016F12A318 K
2015F 12 A3 BB E D RIEN46 AEET
RANVBEEET - ZoMBRAEHMATEEZ(CL
HRFR)MHTE - OEEEE 10% 5 H % 2
BEF R ERE BN EREESSEERD

7
lii] Rz fz
AREEREY BER TAERNRE

MR - AEBATRRI LA X RGE - LWERE
=g o



21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(d) Exposure to Market Risk continued
lii] Interest Rate Risk continued

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments was:

21. MBEREEREMIA «

(d) ABEHHEER =
i) FFEfE &
AEEG SR TANFEERMAT

December 31,

12H31H

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LLFET25) 2016 2015
Variable rate instruments: FETIA:

Financial assets EREE 5,804 10,809

Financial liabilities A=A (1,939,426) (64,095)
Total variable rate instruments FE T EAR% (1,933,622) (53,286)
Fixed rate instruments: EEIA:

Interest rate swap agreements = B 16,149 -
Total fixed rate instruments BILHE4#E 16,149 -

Sensitivity Analysis for Variable Rate Instruments

If the benchmark interest rates on each of the Term Loan A Facility and
Term Loan B Facility increased by 100 basis points, with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have decreased by US$5.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and equity would have decreased by US$5.9 million as
of December 31, 2016. A 100 basis point decrease in interest rates under each
of the Term Loan A Facility and Term Loan B Facility would have an equal, but
opposite impact to profit for the year and equity as of these reporting dates.

Fair Value Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed Rate Instruments

The Group does not designate interest rate swap agreements as hedging
instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore a change in
interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.
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FETENSBES T
HATHIEF BB EHERRBSTANE
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(e) Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management policies is
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for
shareholders, to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses and
working capital needs, and to pay obligations. The primary source of cash is
revenue from sales of the Group’s products. The Group anticipates generating
sufficient cash flow from operations in the majority of countries where it operates
and will have sufficient available cash and ability to draw on credit facilities for
funding to satisfy the working capital and financing needs.

The Group's capital needs are primarily managed through cash and cash
equivalents (note 11], trade and other receivables (note 10), inventories (note 9),
property plant and equipment (note 6}, trade and other payables (note 17) and
loans and borrowings (note 13).

(f)  Fair Value Versus Carrying Amounts

At December 31, 2016, management estimated that the Term Loan Facilities
had a fair value of approximately US$1,802.8 million compared to a book value of
US$1,915.5 million. All other financial assets and liabilities have fair values that
approximate carrying amounts.

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. [FRS establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

. Level T inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its
entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts
payable, short-term debt, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because
of the short maturity or duration of these instruments.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by reference to
market quotations received from banks.

21. MBEREEREMIA «

(e) EXEE

AEEEREERRNEE B RARFERE
RS MBRREEE®R - REARS - —RE
ERXREBEARERRESRNER - A
MEIBRRA/REEHEERNORE - AEEAM
BEEEMENAZEERNEBRELRHNRE
nE - BREARANAIRRS AR NEREE
BE - WRHESRNEEEARBETE -

FEENEAFTREIZERRERNSEEBY(H
1) EEARR R E A MR (R 10) - FE
(HI=E9) - W% - B R (o) - BRI
HA R FIR (1 7)) AR ER R ER(HIFE13)E
B e

(fl AAEESRKREENLER

MN2016F 128310 ' BREMTTEHERR
BOAAEENE1,8028AEET  MERELS
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed
market price. If a listed market price is not available, then fair value is estimated
by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the
current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk-
free interest rate (based on government bonds). Call options are considered
derivative financial assets and are recorded at fair value. The fair value of interest
rate swap agreements is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for
reasonableness by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms
and maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for a similar
instrument at the measurement date. Fair value estimates reflect the credit risk of
the Group and counterparty.

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based
on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

The Group has entered into agreements that include put and call option
arrangements to sell and to acquire non-controlling interests in certain majority-
owned subsidiaries exercisable at fair value at certain predetermined dates.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Group has call options to acquire the
remaining shares owned by the non-controlling interest holders and these non-
controlling interest holders have put options to sell their ownership in these
subsidiaries to the Group. In addition, the Group has the right to buy-out these
non-controlling interests in the event of termination of the underlying agreements.
The table of contractual maturities (note 21(c)) above does not include amounts for
the repurchase of non-controlling interests as they do not represent contractual
maturities.
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@ AEE R WIE R IFERER A AR ORI
MR ERBEE - Bl SIFRRERREARS
MAEE L ERENILENBRTNMEENRE
HARE o LLSh - B AR FARBBEAIER - AKE
BRBEN SRR - FIFERER T EES
WEMB - RSB ATIRIE21()TELE
E: Bl ¢ ekt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

A B IRR AT =

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial

Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities continued

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (including items that are required to be measured at fair
value) as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

21. MBEREEEREMIA «

(g) EMTEANAAEES
FITEEREE

TER25IR 201612 531 BR 2015612 A31 BIZ
SELEN AR BEFENBEERBR(BEREN
AREEFENER)

Fair value measurements at reporting date using

RFEAMERA TS ZRF RN A REE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
TEHEEE HtER ERFAEHE
December 31,2016 HAERHHENRE GBS PN ¢ WARE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFER25) 2016 12A31H (S —#&5l) (EE=45) (SE=#51)
Assets BEE
Cash and cash equivalents Bek
ReEED 368,540 368,540 - -
Interest rate swap agreements 242 it ae 16,149 - 16,149 -
Foreign currency forward contracts REINES A 3,137 3,137 - -
Total assets BERTE 387,826 371,677 16,149 -
Liabilities: BfE:
Non-controlling interest put options FEIE AR A 2
ok HiE 64,746 - - 64,746
Total liabilities BERR 64,746 - = 64,746
Fair value measurements at reporting date using
REEAHEATIISETENAAEE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
TRHEEEE HiER BARFAEHE
December 31,2015 FAERBRHHHRE TR A B R BWAEE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UTFET25) 201512 A31H (SE—#5) (SB=#5l) (BE=45l)
Assets: BE
Cash and cash equivalents BEk
REEB/Y 180,803 180,803 - =
Foreign currency forward contracts REINES K 1,785 1,785 - -
Total assets BERTE 182,588 182,588 - -
Liabilities: BfE:
Non-controlling interest put options FEFE AR b 2
AL 55,829 - - 55,829
Total liabilities BERE 55,829 - - 55,829



21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued
Non-derivative Financial Liabilities continued

The Group entered into interest rate swap transactions in conjunction with the
Senior Credit Facilities. See note 13(a) for further discussion. Since the interest
rate swap fair values are based predominantly on observable inputs, such as the
interest yield curve, that are corroborated by market data, they are categorized as
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Group periodically enter into forward
contracts related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in USD
which are designated as cash flow hedges. The hedging effectiveness was tested
in accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The fair value of these instruments was an asset of US$3.1 million and an asset of
US$1.8 million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the Level 3
fair value, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

21. MBEREEREMIA «

(g) EWMTANDIAEBES
FITEERMAE &
AEERELEEERBETNERERS - E—F
AR 13(a) - MRFIRIEHARBETIER
13T 5 BB HE TE B R B AR A B (A0 R 3R W i
B)FHE - MRS BRAREBESREBE_RH -

AEEETIEZENE AR E I L BRBEZN
ENFENTEEENERPEL  EHETAR
LRBY o YA MM BB IASE IR FH T
A R L ERE - R2016F 12 31 B KX 2015
F12A3H - BETANAAREEIRIAEES]
BEETLMEEISABET -

TREJNAEFZF =R 2R BERKANMGKER
& ARRRAHEA T BREARIE -

Inter-relationship between significant unobservable

Type Valuation Technique Significant unobservable inputs inputs and fair value measurement

5 fhET % EXTAUBERAHE EXTUBRBARMBEAAEENEZHENER

Put options Income approach -The valuation - EBITDA Multiple The estimated value would increase

R HE model converts future amounts - Growth rate (2016: 3%) (decrease] if:
based on an EBITDA multiple - Risk adjusted discount rate - The EBITDA multiple was higher (lower];
to a single current discounted (2016: 10.5%) - The growth rate was higher (lower); or
amount reflecting current - EBITDAEEX - The risk adjusted discount rate was lower
market expectations about - BRI (20164 : 3%) (higher).
those future amounts. - AR ERRLIR R M BIRATE R - (A ESZEMORD) -
Weas 7R — fEERAGER (2016 : 10.5%) - EBITDAfZEX EF(TE)

EBITDAEEGTEMHIE S REsE
BAE—EACEIRGRE - kit
MEERNEZERESENTE
/Hﬂ °

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing
balance for Level 3 fair values:

(AFETL5)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

- BEELF(TR) : o
- RAERREBRIRAERTRE(LF) o

TRENE=BH AN BENFIAEREFRER
RSBk -

Balance at January 1, 2015 201551 A1 BEV &R 58,288
Change in fair value included in equity A=A AR EEE (1,775)
Change in fair value included in finance costs AAMBERN AR EEE 5,772
Acquisition of non-controlling interest WS IR AR AR (6,456)
Balance at December 31, 2015 and January 1, 2016 R 201512 A31 B X% 20165 1 A1 BRI & 55,829
Change in fair value included in equity AR AR BEES (202)
Change in fair value included in finance costs SAMBERN AR BEE 9,119
Balance at December 31, 2016 12016 12 A 31 B &R 64,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities continued
For the fair value of put options, reasonably possible changes to one of the

significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the
following effects at December 31, 2016:

Profit or Loss

21. HEEBEEREMTIA

pi:}

(g) ERITEMNAREE:
ETESRHBE 2

RARHBHENARBENS  EHP—EEKRTA]
B ASBLEAEEEE - MEME ASIE
WIRFTE - BER2016FE 1283 BEANUTHE

Shareholders’ Equity

B#E RER AR
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFERT275) E# T E# T
EBITDA multiple (movement of 0.1x)  EBITDAfZ£X

(EE)0.11F) 1,663 (1,663) 362 (362)

Growth rate (50 basis points) #ERFE (50 EEZ) 14 (14) = =
Risk adjusted discount rate 4% <8 =K [ e B L 3E =R

(100 basis points) (100 & &%) (10) 10 - -

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market
information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates.

22. Related Party Transactions
(a)

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

In addition to their cash compensation, the Group also provides non-
cash benefits to certain directors and other key management personnel, and
contributes to a post-employment plan on their behalf.

Key management is comprised of the Group's directors and senior management.
Compensation paid to key management personnel during the year ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 comprised:

ARBE[IRE-SEREREEHETZER
REBTAMEBRHEL - ZE[EEETBEIS R
THRERRRBELHERHE - Rt EXEEE
E o BEROEMES S EEABRERTE -

22. BEHZS

(a) BRFEEBAENRS
AEERTHRTETEEREBEIRERASR

BEHMI - TRRSREEIFREEN - AREEF

AR ORI ETBIHER -

FTEEEEREASEEERSRTEE - #2
201612 A31 AR 2015 12 A3 BILFEEN=E
BEEASNEHMNEE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEEFE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETL25) 2016 2015
Director’s fees EEEE 1,290 1,290
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e ERREMAEYFIR 6,726 5,700
Bonus! TEAT 4,779 3,951
Share-based compensation VARS A7) 3% {<F #9357 B 9,348 8,599
Contributions to post-employment plans RINBET IR 196 96
Total compensation HNEzE 22,339 19,636

Note
W

Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.

R

(1) FEARAKBHRRAEE -



22. BERRD =

EsMeE

BIEES CARNMER) % 383 (1) & & (A A (#
BESFHERDRAGE2H  ESHESBERENT

22. Related Party Transactions continued

(b) Directors’ Remuneration (b)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation:

Year ended December 31, 2016
BZE2016F12A3NBLEFE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other Share-based to post-
benefits in compensation employment
Directors’ kind expense plans
fees & EHER Bonus" LA X{THY ERE Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) EENE HtEYWAZ A R 2 IR A5t
Executive Directors HITEE
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,726 1,000 1,469 - 4,195
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 624 1,128 1,414 28 3,194
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker 500 - - 481 - 981
Tom Korbas Tom Korbas 125 223 320 345 39 1,052
Jerome Griffith®? Jerome Griffith®? 31 - - - - 31
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-Executive Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 165 - - - - 165
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 125 - - - - 125
Miguel Ko® SRHE 94 - - - - 94
Bruce Hardy McLain Bruce Hardy
McLain 125 - - - - 125
Ying Yeh ®E 125 - - - - 125
Total fBEt 1,290 2,573 2,448 3,709 67 10,087
Notes g
(1) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group. (1) JEATIRAREER R AL o

(2)  Appointed as Non-Executive Director on September 22, 2016.

(3)  Resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on September 22, 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
MEMEHRRMET =

22. Related Party Transactions continued 22. BERRS =
(b) Directors’ Remuneration continued (b) EEE &

Year ended December 31, 2015
HZ2015F12A31 BLEEE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other Share-based to post-
benefits in compensation employment
Directors’ kind expense plans
fees ¥d  EHR Bonus"  BUBRAEATHY BIRE Total
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETZ275) EENE HtEWRAZE A M sHEMER Mt
Executive Directors HiTEE
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,672 664 1,371 - 3,707
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 631 510 1,399 29 2,569
Tom Korbas Tom Korbas - 548 304 638 39 1,529
Non-Executive Director IHITEE
Timothy Parker® Timothy Parker? 625 - 729 938 - 2,292
Independent BUHNTEE
Non-Executive Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 165 - - - - 165
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 125 - - - - 125
Miguel Ko =6 125 - - - - 125
Bruce Hardy McLain Bruce Hardy
McLain 125 - - - - 125
Ying Yeh RE 125 - - - - 125
Total “st 1,290 2,851 2,207 4,346 68 10,762
Notes e
(1) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group. (1) TEARAEENRBRELE -
[2) Mr. Parker’'s remuneration includes the bonus paid in 2015 related to his role as CEO during 2014, share-based (2) Parkerf‘ﬁiﬂ‘ﬂ?)ﬂﬁ@%ﬁj_ﬁ&ﬁéﬂmA?%@Eﬁﬂ(g@ﬁfﬁﬁémw5¢
compensation expense recognized for share options awarded during his tenure as CEQ and US$125 thousand AT HITEAT E’M&féﬁﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ’\]ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬂmuiﬂﬁ
of Director’s fees paid in 2015 related to his role as Chairman from the fourth quarter of 2014. D ATERBNB A R B 2014 FE N FERBEEEFMR

2015 F 2 EVEE S 125,000 T

No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to joinor  #ZE 201612 A31 B & 201512 A31 HIEFEE -
upon joining the Group during the years ended December 31, 2016 and December &= g AL BN EER B & /EA M A S IIAZ
31, 2015. No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the  &£@EEHEE - RSB - MEESHROKEE
periods presented. No director received any compensation during the years ended  #%@{F A B4 - HE 201612 A31 B & 2015412
December 31, 2016 or December 31, 2015 for the loss of office as a director of the  A31 B ILFEE @ MEESHEHERA T ESHREK
Company or of any other office in connection with the management of the affairs of  {F {a] £ fb B 7 £2 (B &5 38 S 76 75 7 e Bk 57 U BUAE (T 78

=y

the Group. & o
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22. Related Party Transactions continued 22. BERRS =

(c) Individuals with the Highest Emoluments (c) BEEFAL

HE2016F12A31BLFE AEBRER
EHALTEEMEES(HE2015F12A31HIEF
B =2%EF) FEOMeD R EXERE - X
FAREEESESTATHMSFBOT

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include two directors
during the year ended December 31, 2016 and three directors during the year
ended December 31, 2015, whose emoluments are disclosed above. Details of
remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid individuals of the Group are as
follows:

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEEFEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFETL25) 2016 2015
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e R AREAEYRIE 1,500 1,113
Bonus!" TE4L 1,184 966
Share-based compensation expense VARR 19 2 A~ 9 37 BM B S2 2,729 1,902
Contributions to post-employment plans RIREET B 53 -
Total BEt 5,466 3,981

Note s

(1) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group. (1) TEATRRAREENRE BELE -

The emoluments of each individual for 2016 and 2015 fall within these ranges:

ZRALTR2016F R 2015F NS EIATEE -

2016 2015
HK$11,500,000-HK$11,999,999 11,500,000 %75 -11,999,999 /87T
(US$1,482,000-US$1,545,500): (1,482,000 37T -1,545,500 37T ) 1 =
HK$15,000,000-HK$15,499,999 15,000,000 % 7T -15,499,999 /8 7T
(US$1,933,000-US$1,997,000): (1,933,000%7T-1,997,0003%7T) : 1 1
HK$15,500,000-HK$15,999,999 15,500,000 7T -15,999,999 B 7T
(US$1,997,001-US$2,062,000): (1,997,001 37T -2,062,000%7T) : 1 1

BZE20165F12 A31HX 2015512 A3 BIEFE -
BB % EA L EAFORE BRI ERER I
AFINARE E & H) 2/ -

No amounts have been paid to these individuals as compensation for loss of office
or as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

(d) Other Related Party Transactions (d) HMBEELRS

AN B /)75 THT B 2 71 M Abhishri Packaging
Pvt. Ltd(BBAREEHNITE S RITHRAER
Ramesh Tainwala 5t 4 ([ Tainwala o4 1) Y
REBERESDRBERMBREK G - M
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited Bl/[A)
Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd tH& & F R i £
Xttt o Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd 7R &
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited £ 3&Ef&
BITFEMER °

[ Certain subsidiaries of the Group purchase raw materials and finished I
goods from, and Samsonite South Asia Private Limited sells certain
raw materials and components to, Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd, which is
managed and controlled by the family of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala, Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group ("Mr. Tainwala”). Abhishri
Packaging Pvt. Ltd also manufactures hard-side luggage products on behalf
of Samsonite South Asia Private Limited.
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MEMEHRRMET =

22. Related Party Transactions continued
(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued

Related amounts of purchases, sales, payables and receivables were the following:

22. BAERRS =

(d EMREIRS &

Wi HE  ENRERERREBENERASEN
T

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3NALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Purchases e 6,944 5,560
Sales HE 165 224
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILEE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UTFET25) 2016 2015
Payables FEfTFRIE 1,634 735
Receivables U GRIE 6 39

I The Group’s Indian subsidiary, Samsonite South Asia Private Limited,
sells finished goods to Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited. The Group's
Chinese subsidiary, Samsonite China, provides sourcing support and quality
inspection services in respect of the Lavie women's handbag brand which
is owned by Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited. Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited is managed and controlled by the family of Mr. Tainwala. Mr.
Tainwala and his family also own non-controlling interests in Samsonite
South Asia Private Limited and in the Group’s United Arab Emirates
subsidiary, Samsonite Middle East FZCO.

. ANEBE#IENEHE AT Samsonite South Asia
Private Limited A Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited & SR m o RSB & BIFTE A A
Samsonite China#t Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited B K Lavie X T F R M IREH
B & RmERE RS - Bagzone Lifestyle
Private Limited A Tainwala £ £EMIRIEE
B RSl o Tainwala B E REREMER
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited &A%
] 7 B A (A B A& 28 R B PfS/B A & Samsonite
Middle East FZCO Ry FEIE R A2 -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12ANALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LTFET25) 2016 2015
Sales HE 10,337 10,606
Support and Services SRR R 143 163
Rent e 59 69
Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MALEE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Receivables RUGRIE 11,741 8,919

Approximately US$0.7 million and US$0.6 million was paid to entities owned by
Mr. Tainwala and his family, for office space rent for the years ended December
31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, no amounts were payable to or receivable from Mr. Tainwala
and his family.

All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced at an arm’s length
basis and are to be settled in cash within six months of the reporting date. None of
the balances are secured.

HE2016F12A31BK2015F 12831 BILHF
B EoRENHN0TEEETKIEEETLTH
Tainwala e E R EREMBNELE - IEH A2
MHESE - R2016F 12 A31 B KX 2015F12A318 -
BEEE B[R Tainwala Fo 4 REL KR ST s R A9 FH ©

B EZERET RN REREHRNSRTEAR
FREMEEME - BEREmE B R EA RIS
EXAY o FABBHRITEIER -



23. Parent Company Financial Information and

Particulars of Group Entities

(a) Company-alone Statement of Financial Position

The company-alone statement of financial position as of December 31, 2016

and December 31, 2015 follows:

23. BRFAMBERREEERD

(a)

HAER

RE B EMBRRER
20164612 531 B R 2015412 31 BMA
AESHBRREZHIIAT

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (RFET25) 2016 2015
Non-Current Assets RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHB A RMRE 866,682 866,682
Total non-current assets IERBEERT 866,682 866,682
Current Assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables due from subsidiaries  JEUZHIE A TR FEULEE X &%
L FEUGRIR 34,435 23,443
Prepaid expenses and other assets TR RS R HE A E 46 42
Cash and cash equivalents Re LREEEY 4,655 2,106
Total current assets MENEERRTE 39,136 25,591
Total assets BEEEE 905,818 892,273
Equity and Liabilities EzRkaE
Equity: HES
Share capital A& A 14,113 14,098
Reserves ] 887,150 871,195
Total equity attributable to equity holders MHERE A ARG AR 901,263 885,293
Total equity AR 901,263 885,293
Non-Current Liabilities kRBEE
Total non-current liabilities EMBBERTE = =
Current Liabilities RBAR
Loans and borrowings B RER - (1,401)
Trade and other payables due to subsidiaries FETI A B A FEAST BR FR R E A
FERIFRIA 3,030 6,581
Trade and other payables FE A BR SR % Eo A FE A< R 1B 1,525 1,800
Total current liabilities MEE ELREE 4,555 6,980
Total liabilities afEEs 4,555 6,980
Total equity and liabilities Kk EERR 905,818 892,273
Net current liabilities mEN B EFEE 34,581 18,611
Total assets less current liabilities BEEERTEBAE 901,263 885,293
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23. Parent Company Financial Information and

Particulars of Group Entities continued

(b) Share Capital and Reserves
li]  Ordinary Shares

On March 3, 2016, the Company’s shareholders approved an amendment
to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation in order to (i} reduce the Company’s
authorized share capital from US$1,012,800,369.99, representing 101,280,036,999
shares (including the subscribed share capital) to US$35,000,000, representing
3,500,000,000 shares (including the subscribed share capital] with a par value
of US$0.01 each and (i) renew, for a period of five years from the date of the
publication of the amendment of the authorized share capital in Luxembourg,
the authorization of the Board to issue shares, to grant options to subscribe for
shares and to issue any other securities or instruments convertible into shares,
subject to the restrictions set out in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the
Luxembourg companies law and the Listing Rules.

As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had 2,088,711,099
and 99,870,203,474, respectively, shares authorized but unissued and 1,411,288,901
and 1,409,833,525, respectively, ordinary shares with par value of US$0.01 per
share issued and outstanding.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at shareholder
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares in issue rank equally and in full for
all dividends or other distributions declared, made or paid on the shares in respect
of a record date.

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company
issued 1,455,376 and 1,807,069 ordinary shares, respectively, in connection with
the exercise of share options that were granted under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme.

(i) Treasury Shares

There are no treasury shares held by the Group.

23. BARIMBENREEERN
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ &

(b) BRARfFEME
(i) BB
M2016F3A3H » RABRRHARR A

CEMBCZ ZRRABAD B9ERT - AG) AR A R EARME
fB0.01 EIoHEE A 1,012,800,369.99 7T (1
101,280,036,999 & iz fn - BIEE RERA)EIRE
35,000,000 37T (15 3,500,000,000 B A& 15 - BIEE,
RERR)RIEEEFTSRITROOZEZER
EREBQGEIDEERANZ BRAFHR - LEL
RGO K BRI A KRBT ER ARG M EME

BHYAERE - WAEBTANR GEMK L ZRA
AIY - BREQARVERCEMHRAD FAIEAIRER S
A{EE o

2016512 A31 B R 2015512 A31 8 » XAFH
BIEEA 2,088,711,099 f% 12 99,870,203,474 K FE (B
REFTIRAD AR 1,411,288,901 B &2 1,409,833,525 f%
FREE0.01 ETTME BT REITIEINIE BAR

TRERAAERRARTNBRRAS Ll SRR
T—F - FFEERTEREOBERRSFMA - T2
BEBFAMBBOMEIR - FHIORNHIAE
BREHEMDIK °

HZE2016F 12 A31H&2015F 12 A31 HILFE -
RARBARA R IR SRE A28 TR B AR i
FTEM D BIBETT 1,455,376 A% 521,807,069 A% & @AY °

li] EFRG
AEE W ESSHEFRD



23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(b) Share Capital and Reserves continued
liii] Equity of the Company
Details of the equity components of Samsonite International S.A. company-

alone statement of financial position as included in the consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are set out below.

23. B AR KERNREEERDN
SMER
(b) BAKRf#HE 4
liii) KA EHEE
FEBEBERATNAREFHBRRIER
20165 12 A31 H % 2015412 B 31 Hit A&GA %
MR AOESERE D BT ©

gk

pi

Reserves
&
Retained
earnings
Additional (accumulated
paid-in Other deficit) Total
Share capital capital reserves REBEF equity
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) KA BEIMBARE H ks (RFHE4L) RSB
As of January 1, 2015 ®2015F1 818 14,080 964,992 17,259 (114,649) 881,682
Distributions to equity holders MR ERTE ATEH B9 IR - - - (88,000) (88,000)
Dividends received from BLENGITGE S
subsidiaries - - - 88,000 88,000
Loss attributable to equity holders IR E AEIEEE - - - (16,047) (16,047
Exercise of share options T RE AR 18 6,229 (1,804) = 4,443
Share-based compensation AR AR SZ A~ B9 357 B = = 15,215 - 15,215
As of December 31, 2015 and R2015%F12A31B K
January 1, 2016 2016F1H1H 14,098 971,221 30,670 (130,696) 885,293
Distributions to equity holders MR E AERH DR - - - (93,000) (93,000)
Dividends received from Bt A EIUER A AR B
subsidiaries - - - 105,000 105,000
Loss attributable to equity holders IRIERF B ARLEE - - = (14,976) (14,976)
Exercise of share options TR AR 15 4,830 (1,389) - 3,456
Share-based compensation LARR A9 Sz 45 B9 35 A - - 15,490 = 15,490
As of December 31, 2016 20165 12A31H 14,113 976,051 44,771 (133,672) 901,263

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of Samsonite
International S.A. for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015
included a loss of US$15.0 million and US$16.0 million, respectively, which are
dealt with in the financial statements of the Group.

As of December 31, 2016, reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately US$2.0 billion as shown in the statutory financial
statements of Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

(iv] Other Reserves

Other reserves comprise amounts related to defined benefit pension plans,
the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
related to hedged transactions pending subsequent recognition of the hedged
cash flows and the share option reserve for share-based payments made by
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(c) Non-controlling Interests and Acquisition of Non-controlling
Interests

The Group currently operates in certain markets by means of majority-owned
subsidiaries that are operated in conjunction with a non-controlling partner in
each country. Under these arrangements, the Group contributes brands through
trademark licensing agreements and international marketing expertise and the
partner contributes local market expertise. All interests acquired were paid in
full at the time of the acquisition and each of these subsidiaries is operated on a
self-financing basis. There are no current or future requirements for the Group to
contribute any further investment amount to any of these entities.

The agreements governing certain majority-owned subsidiaries include put
and call options whereby the Group may be required to acquire the respective
non-controlling interest at amounts intended to represent current fair value.
As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the financial liabilities
recognized related to these put options were US$64.7 million and US$55.8
million, respectively.

The call options were deemed to have a fair value of nil as of each reporting
date as the agreements call for redemption at fair value upon the option
being exercised.

On June 26, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the 40%
non-controlling interest in its Russian subsidiary for US$15.7 million in cash, with
a final working capital adjustment of US$0.3 million settled in July 2015, increasing
its ownership from 60% to 100%. The carrying amount of the Russian subsidiary’s
net assets in the consolidated financial statements on the date of acquisition was
US$5.1 million. The Group recognized a decrease in the non-controlling interest of
US$2.1 million and a decrease in retained earnings of US$6.2 million.

23. BARIMBENREEERN
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23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(c) Non-controlling Interests and Acquisition of Non-controlling

Interests continued

The following tables summarize the information relating to the Group's

significant subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests ("NCI"), before

any intra-group eliminations.

For the year ended December 31, 2016:

23.

BRAAMBERREEERD
HAIER -

(c) EEZIRERRUWIRIFZRER

TREGLERASE I 2ME QRN EME
BN RS EA I

¥ o

HZE2016F 12831 HIEFE -

5 ([ IR s |) Y

Samsonite Samsonite
Australia Pty Samsonite South Asia
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFERTEF) Limited Chile S.A. Private Limited
NCI percentage R ER A D 30% 15% 40%
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,328 32,881 10,741
Current assets mENEE 27,166 34,208 99,838
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 169 (11,796) 2,729
Current liabilities MEAE 14,664 22,828 61,623
Net assets FEE 15,661 56,057 46,227
Carrying amount of NCI SRR RV ARTE(E 4,698 8,409 18,491
Net outside revenue NG F R 67,959 59,518 128,056
Profit il 9,044 1,964 12,597
Other comprehensive income (“OCI")  Efth 2 ElUkzs (146) 3,539 (1,005)
Total comprehensive income i@qﬂl T ABRE 8,898 5,503 11,592
Profit allocated to NCI DR E FEIE AR R A A 2,713 295 5,039
0Cl allocated to NCI DEREIEE Hxﬁéﬁnmﬁmiﬁu&m (44) 531 (402)
Dividends paid to NCI EANEL=E Ty 2,677 1,339 2,559
Net increase (decrease) in cashand  R&&KES %fﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁbﬂ( B ) FEE
cash equivalents (471) 2,324 4,020
For the year ended December 31, 2015: HE2015F 12 A3 HLIEFE :
Samsonite Samsonite
Australia Pty Samsonite South Asia
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFERTES) Limited Chile S.A. Private Limited
NCl percentage JEERER B 30% 15% 40%
Non-current assets JEMENEE 2,927 32,182 9,744
Current assets MENVEE 24,431 28,159 93,875
Non-current liabilities EREBEaE - (18,570) 2,458
Current liabilities mENBE 11,673 19,428 60,127
Net assets FEE 15,685 59,483 41,034
Carrying amount of NCI IR RHREE 4,706 8,922 16,414
Net outside revenue HIMNK R FER 56,203 57,867 135,066
Profit Dt 6,322 7,419 16,122
OCl Eh2mlas (1,503) (9,400) (1,903)
Total comprehensive income iﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ R 4,819 (1,981) 14,219
Profit allocated to NCI B E FEIE AR A A 1,896 1,113 6,449
0Cl allocated to NCI DR E TR R E M 2 E s (451) (1,410) (761)
Dividends paid to NCI BN IRERE RIS 441 183 1,472
Net increase (decrease) in cashand  R& RIRESEEWMHIENCRD ) E5E
cash equivalents (1,058) 804 6,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

RE M BHMRMEE =
23. Parent Company Financial Information and 23. B AR ERREEERKN
Particulars of Group Entities continued FHER «
(d) Particulars of Group Entities (d) EEEBNFAER
Ownership %
HEERE%

Entity name Country
HEEE E/E 2016 2015
Samsonite International S.A. Luxembourg ERE Parent Parent
MAEBERARAT AT [SYNS)
Astrum R.E. LLC United States 5 100 100
Bypersonal S.A. de C.V. Mexico =~Jiths 100 100
Delilah Europe Investments S.4.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
Delilah US Investments S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
Direct Marketing Ventures, LLC United States EH 100 100
Equipaje en Movimiento, S.A. de C.V. Mexico =~JithS 100 100
Global Licensing Company, LLC United States e 100 100
HL Operating, LLC United States =35 100 100
Jody Apparel Il, LLC United States EH 100 100
Lonberg Express S.A. Uruguay ShE 100 100
Limited Liability Company “Samsonite” Russia kAR HT 100 100
Lipault UK Limited United Kingdom Y 100 100
McGregor I, LLC United States EH 100 100
PT Samsonite Indonesia Indonesia ENfe 60 60
PTL Acquisition Inc. United States EH 100 100
PTL Holdings Inc. United States =35 100 100
Samsonite (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia p k] 100 100
Samsonite (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand g5 60 60
Samsonite A/S Denmark e 100 100
Samsonite AB Sweden e 100 100
Samsonite AG Switzerland It 99 99
Samsonite Argentina S.A. Argentina PR AE 95 95
Samsonite Asia Limited Hong Kong BE 100 100
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited Australia BN 70 70
Samsonite Belgium Holdings BVBA Belgium [aalliss 100 100
Samsonite Brasil Ltda. Brazil walic] 100 100
Samsonite B.V. Netherlands AT 100 100
Samsonite Canada Inc. Canada IEWN 100 100
Samsonite CES Holding B.V. Netherlands AT 100 100
Samsonite Chile S.A. Chile =l 85 85
Samsonite China Holdings Limited Hong Kong BE 100 100
Samsonite (China) Co., Ltd. China AR EY 100 100
Samsonite Colombia S.A.S. Colombia @b 100 100

Samsonite Company Stores, LLC United States X 100 100



23. Parent Company Financial Information and 23. B AR ERREEERKN
Particulars of Group Entities continued FHER «
(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued d) EEERNFHAER o
Ownership %
BEREY

Entity name Country

HiEEE Bx 2016 2015
Samsonite Espana S.A. Spain [iEpi 100 100
Samsonite Europe NV Belgium [illiss 100 100
Samsonite Finanziaria S.r.L. Italy BAA 100 100
Samsonite Finland Oy Finland 2y | 100 100
Samsonite Ges.m.b.H. Austria B30 A 100 100
Samsonite GmbH Germany =2k 100 100
Samsonite Hungaria Borond KFT Hungary 1) 7F F| 100 100
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERRE 100 100
Samsonite Japan Co. Ltd. Japan =N 100 100
Samsonite Korea Limited Korea, Republic of KeERE 100 100
Samsonite Latinoamerica, S.A. de C.V.  Mexico =Ltk 100 100
Samsonite Limited United Kingdom ] 100 100
Samsonite LLC United States 35 100 100
Samsonite Macau Limitada Macau JRPY 100 100
Samsonite Mauritius Limited Mauritius E Bk 100 100
Samsonite Mercosur Limited Bahamas B 100 100
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico =Ttk 100 100
Samsonite Middle East FZCO United Arab Emirates B R A& 2 R B 60 60
Samsonite Norway AS Norway L 100 100
Samsonite Pacific LLC United States 35 100 100
Samsonite Panama S.A. Panama BEE5E 100 100
Samsonite Peru S.A.C. Peru WE 100 100
Samsonite Philippines Inc. Philippines JFEE 60 60
Samsonite S.A.S. France 7EE 100 100
Samsonite S.p.A. Italy B AR 100 100
Samsonite Seyahat Uriinleri Sanayive  Turkey TEHHE 60 60

Ticaret Anonim Sirketi

Samsonite Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore FThnsE 100 100
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited  India ENE 60 60
Samsonite Southern Africa Ltd. South Africa EZES 60 60
Samsonite Sp.zo.0 Poland i 100 100
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
SC Chile Uno S.A. Chile B 100 100
SC Inversiones Chile Ltda Chile a8 100 100
Speck Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China e 100 100
Speculative Product Design, LLC United States EH 100 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

23. Parent Company Financial Information and

Particulars of Group Entities continued

23. B AR EERREEERMN

(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued (d) SEERNFAER «
Ownership %
BEE%

Entity name Country

HEEB Bx 2016 2015
The Tumi Haft Company, LLC United States e 100 -
Tumi Asia Limited Hong Kong BB 100 -
Tumi Asia Limited (Shenzhen China e 100 =

Subsidiary)

Tumi Asia Limited ORI B2 7))

Tumi Asia (Macau) Co., Ltd. Macau JBRPY 100 -
Tumi Asia Sourcing China B 100 -
Tumi Austria GmbH Austria B3 R 100 -
Tumi Canada Holdings, LLC United States =3 100 =
Tumi Canada ULC Canada mex 100 -
Tumi Europe Ecommerce GmbH Germany = 100 -
Tumi France SARL France JAE 100 -
Tumi Hong Kong | B.V. Netherlands a6l 100 -
Tumi Hong Kong Il B.V. Netherlands Gl 100 -
Tumi Hong Kong Holding Company B.V. Netherlands Gl 100 =
Tumi Houston Airport LLC United States EH 70 =
Tumi Inc. United States =35 100 -
Tumi International LLC United States E35 100 =
Tumi Ireland Limited Ireland ERH 100 -
Tumi Japan Japan =N 100 -
Tumi Luggage S.L. Spain g 100 -
Tumi Netherlands B.V. Netherlands Gl 100 -
Tumi Stores, Inc. United States 35 100 =
Tumi (UK) Limited United Kingdom Y 100 -

201612 A31 A% 2015512 A31 HEFFEE
BERAREEFERMBARNRENFHIGERS

The particulars of the investment in subsidiaries held directly by Samsonite
International S.A. as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are set out

below. I o
December 31,
12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015
Unlisted shares, at cost FE TR - HRAAR 866,682 866,682

AT BT 8 2 ) B0 B A AR R R L At B SRR A R 4R
A R REEEERE -

Trade and others payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.
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23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or

liabilities of the Group are set out below.

23. BAEMBENREEERDN
TS
(d) SEEEBOFMER =

Y =7
FEXE

REEEE  BERBENHNEAF
HREIEESINT o

Date of

Entity Name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities Note

4 Bt EES M AL B B2 TEEK =HE

Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 2009 USD21,804,401 Holding *x
ERE 21,804,401 37T PR

Delilah US Investments S.a.r.L. Luxembourg 2009 USD78,160,399 Holding s
ERE 78,160,399 37T bl

Samsonite LLC United States 1987 USD nil Holding ok
EH 07T PERR

Samsonite Asia Limited Hong Kong 1996 HKD20 Distribution o

> 2078 7T 7 8H

Samsonite Australia Pty Limited Australia 1984 AUD2 Distribution o
SEL 287 8K

Samsonite Belgium Holdings BVBA Belgium 2014 USD4,881,476,000 Holding s
il 4,881,476,000 T AR

Samsonite Chile S.A. Chile 2007 CLP23,928,441,630 Distribution K
7 23,928,441,630 B FEZR 58

Samsonite (China) Co., Ltd. China 2006 USD16,500,000 Distribution ok Akk
H 16,500,000 % 7T S

Samsonite Company Stores, LLC United States 1985 USD nil Distribution ok
S 0%t 8K

Samsonite Espana S.A. Spain 1952 EUR3,122,195 Distribution *x
Pib i 3,122,195 BT 784

Samsonite Europe NV Belgium 1966 EUR13,085,106 Production/ o
Lt e 13,085,106 BT Distribution

HE/DE

Samsonite GmbH Germany 1966 EUR25,565 Distribution ok
== 25,565 BT 88

Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg 2009 USD114,115,900 Holding/Licensing **
ERE 114,115,900 37T S/ PR B FT R RE

Samsonite Japan Co. Ltd. Japan 2004 JPY80,000,000 Distribution K
=N 80,000,000 H & SaKic!

Samsonite Korea Limited Korea, Republic of 1997 KRW1,060,000,000 Distribution *x
RiERE 1,060,000,000 #£ & 7 8H

Samsonite Limited United Kingdom 1986 GBP20,000 Distribution ok
Y 20,000 45 Pok =

Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico 1986 MXN520,926,854 Production/ K
=Pgar 520,926,854 2P EFtEZE  Distribution

HE/DE

Samsonite S.A.S. France 1965 EUR1,643,840 Distribution o
EE 1,643,840 BT PaNz]

Samsonite S.p.A. Ital 1980 EUR780,000 Distribution x
EAN 780,000 BXoT SaK =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

MEMEHRRMET =

23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued

23. BATHMBERREEREY
ﬁéﬁﬁ*ﬂ &
(d) SEEEROFEEN =

Date of
Entity Name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities Note
BREEE S =M A H &N FEEK =T
Samsonite South Asia Private India 1995 INR354,912,330 Production/ K
Limited HE 354,912,330 ENE E L, Distribution
EE/DH
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg 2011 USD55,417,991 Holding *
EHRE 55,417,9913 7T b2l
Tumi Inc. United States 2016 usDO Distribution *
e 07T Pak !
Notes e

* Directly held by the Company.

*k

Indirectly held by the Company.

*** Alimited liability company and wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

24. Subsequent Events

The Group has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2016,
the reporting date, through March 15, 2017, the date this financial information was
authorized for issue by the Board.

From December 31, 2016 to the Latest Practicable Date, the Company issued
134,566 ordinary shares in connection with the exercise of share options that were
granted under the Company’s Share Award Scheme. There were no purchases
or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries since December 31, 2016.

Debt Repricing

Subsequent to December 31, 2016, the Group refinanced the Senior Credit
Facilities on February 2, 2017 [the “Repricing”]. Under the terms of the Repricing,
the interest rate payable on the Term Loan A Facility and the Revolving Facility
was reduced with effect from February 2, 2017 until the delivery of the financial
statements for the period ending June 30, 2017 to LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum
(or a base rate plus 1.00% per annum) from LIBOR plus 2.75% per annum (or a
base rate plus 1.75% per annum) and thereafter shall be based on the total net
leverage ratio of the Group at the end of each fiscal quarter. The interest rate
payable on the Term Loan B Facility was reduced with effect from February 2, 2017
to LIBOR plus 2.25% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 0.00% (or a base rate plus
1.25% per annum) from LIBOR plus 3.25% with a LIBOR floor of 0.75% (or a base
rate plus 2.25% per annum). In addition, the commitment fee payable in respect of
the unutilized commitments under the Revolving Facility was reduced from 0.5%
per annum to 0.375% per annum through June 30, 2017 and thereafter shall be
based on the total net leverage ratio of the Group at the end of each fiscal quarter.
In conjunction with the Repricing, the Group incurred approximately US$5.2
million in fees and expenses that will be deferred and amortized over the term of
the borrowings.

* BARREERS
* AARRRERER -
*r RPBERIAEREERARIEBELE

4L HRBEIE
AEBEFER2016F 12 31 AGRERH)
%ZE2017F3 15 B (AHMEEREE S SRR
TEER) AR A FIE o

B2016F 12 AN AEZHKEBERAITAE - KAFA
PR A& SREDET EITE TR A B AR T T T
1T 134,566 RE AR - B 2016512 A31 BLAZK -
RARSEFMHBEARBERENEEARF L
MEH -

BREHNEE
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BIERR > B2017F2 A2BEREERNEE20174F
6 A30 B RIS RERE AL - AT HEREE
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24. Subsequent Events continued 24, HiRETH 4

il

Business Combinations EXBEot
TKI TKI
On January 4, 2017, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary in South Korea R2017F1 A48 - KRR —RE#EZENE

completed the acquisition of the wholesale and retail distribution of Tumi products ~ RABEFERUKEEE 2017 F 1 A1 B Tumi ERNEHE
in South Korea with effect from January 1, 2017. This follows the acquisition of — AIHLZE RTEDHEER - HERTKI Inc.([TKI] - &
certain assets, including inventory, store fixtures and furniture, as well as rights 200643 A A Tumi REEN D EE) KEE TE
under retail store leases, from TKI, Inc. ("TKI"), Tumi’s distributor in South Korea — E(BEFE  EHETEE REH - ARTEEH
since March 2006, The consideration was settled in cash upon completion of the B FEEF)) - ZRECRUEEETKEUES
acquisition. The Group has not yet completed a formal valuation of the assets that — &ff - AEE WAL EFEFIRBENEE
were acquired in the acquisition. EYIEAE ©

The acquisition from TKI provides the Group with 34 points-of-sale in South Korea ~ B TKIKJWIES AL ER 2017461 A1 BEEEES
as of January 1, 2017, including 17 Tumi retail stores as well as shop-in-shops in 34 {EEER - BFE17TRTumi TE/EAREHE K&
duty-free operators and department stores. BERRINMEFRE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BB

AEBERERTEAMBFENFEEEAREE &
18 SR IFER R EE ST

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is as follows:

December 31,

236

12H31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFET25) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Net sales HE R 2,810,497 2,432,477 2,350,707 2,037,812 1,771,726
Gross profit EF 1,520,952 1,278,964 1,243,826 1,088,337 951,005
Gross profit margin ENAES 54.1% 52.6% 52.9% 53.4% 53.7%
Operating profit BT 331,201 308,871 299,277 281,292 241,742
Profit for the year attributable to: IO AL
FERmA
Equity holders f&ERE A 255,667 197,639 186,256 176,087 148,439
Non-controlling interests IR 2 19,158 19,378 19,098 21,334 18,188
Total assets BEMRE 4,649,540 2215841 2,131,294 1,934,891 1,813,164
Total liabilities BEBE 3,138,553 816,455 823,854 704,309 727,059
Equity attributable to equity holders A&t A
JEfG R 1,467,054 1,359,554 1,269,688 1,192,756 1,051,593
Non-controlling interests IR 43,933 39,832 37,752 37,826 34,512
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